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An offering statement pursuant to Regulation A relating to these shares has been filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“Commission”). Information contained in this preliminary offering circular is subject to completion or amendment. These shares may not be sold
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CHICKEN SOUP FOR THE SOUL ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
900,000 shares of Class A common stock
This is an initial public offering of our Class A common stock. The offering price is $12.00 per share.

The offering consists of 900,000 shares of our Class A common stock comprised of (a) up to 641,983 newly issued shares of our Class A common
stock (“Shares”) and (b) up to an aggregate of 258,017 of our outstanding shares of Class A common stock that may be sold by certain of our non-
management, non-affiliated existing stockholders (“Selling Stockholder Shares” and together with the Shares, the “Offering Shares”). We will not receive any
of the proceeds from the sale of the Selling Stockholder Shares in the offering. None of our officers, directors or affiliates is selling any securities in this
offering.

To the extent less than 900,000 of the Offering Shares are sold in the offering, the Offering Shares sold in the offering will be allocated pro rata
between the Shares and Selling Stockholder Shares. To the extent 900,000 or more of the Offering Shares are sold in the offering, all of the Selling
Stockholder Shares will be sold in the offering.

In the event all of the Offering Shares are sold, we may, in our discretion, sell up to 1,600,000 additional newly issued shares (“Additional Shares™)
in the offering.

There is no minimum number of Offering Shares that we must sell in order to conduct a closing in this offering. The offering will commence within
two calendar days after this offering circular has been qualified by the Commission. See “Plan of Distribution.”

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for our common stock. We have applied to have our Class A common stock listed on the
Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol CSSE no later than the final closing of this offering. If our Class A common stock is not approved for listing on the
Nasdaq Global Market, we expect our Class A common stock will be listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market. We currently meet the financial listing
requirements for the Nasdaq Capital Market. Giving effect to the sale of all of the Shares and at least 220,000 Additional Shares in the offering, we expect we
will meet the financial listing requirements for the Nasdaq Global Market. See “Plan of Distribution.”

See “Risk Factors” beginning on page 9 of this offering circular for a discussion of information that should be considered in connection with
an investment in such securities.

The Commission does not pass upon the merits of or give its approval to any shares offered hereby or the terms of the offering, nor does it
pass upon the accuracy or completeness of any offering circular or other solicitation materials. The Offering Shares are being offered pursuant to an
exemption from registration with the Commission; however, the Commission has not made an independent determination that the Offering Shares
offered are exempt from registration.

Selling Agents’ Proceeds to
Discounts and Proceeds to Selling
Price Per Share Commissions Our Company(3) Stockholders®
Shares $ 12.00 $ 0.96(1)2) $ 7,087,492 $ —
Selling Stockholder Shares $ 12.00 $ 0.48(1)2) $ —4) $ 2,972,356

(1) Does not include a non-accountable expense allowance of 2% of the gross proceeds from the sale of the Offering Shares, payable by us to the joint
bookrunning managers. The discounts and commissions (but not the non-accountable expense allowance) with respect to the Selling Stockholder
Shares will be paid by the selling stockholders. See “Plan of Distribution.”

(2) Does not include fees payable by us to (- ) for use of its online selling platform and related services in connection with this
offering. See “Plan of Distribution.”

(3) Assumes that all of the Shares offered are sold and we have not taken advantage of our option to sell any Additional Shares as described herein.
(4) We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of Selling Stockholder Shares in this offering.

(5) Assumes that all of the Selling Stockholder Shares offered are sold.




We plan to market this offering to potential investors through the joint bookrunning managers. This offering will terminate on , 2017, subject
to extension for up to ninety (90) days with the mutual consent of us and the joint bookrunning managers (the offering period, as extended, being referred to
as the “Offering Period”). We may hold an initial closing on any number of Offering Shares at any time during the Offering Period and thereafter may hold
one or more additional closings during the Offering Period. We will close on proceeds based upon the order in which they are received. With respect to
Additional Shares, however, we may accept or reject orders in our discretion. No closing will be conducted unless we have been approved for listing on the
Nasdaq Global Market or Nasdaq Capital Market (in either case, “Nasdaq”), although we will elect to delay listing and trading thereon until the earlier of the
final closing of the offering and the end of the Offering Period. We and the joint bookrunning managers will consider various factors in determining the
timing of any additional closings following the initial closing, including the amount of proceeds received at the initial closing and any prior additional
closings, and coordination with the commencement of our listing on Nasdaq. See “Plan of Distribution.”

Investment proceeds shall be held in escrow with Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Co., Inc. (“Continental” or the “Escrow Agent”) until the
earlier of the date of a closing with respect to such proceeds (at which time such proceeds shall be used to complete share purchases in the offering) and the
end of the Offering Period (at which time, such proceeds shall be returned to the applicable investors without interest or deduction). Pursuant to Rule 15c2-4,
unless there is a closing with respect to escrowed proceeds in the offering, we will not have any access to such proceeds. We may begin accepting investment
proceeds into escrow at any time beginning two days after this offering circular has been qualified by the Commission.

We may decide to close the offering early or cancel it, in our sole discretion. If we extend the offering, we will provide that information in an
amendment to this offering circular. If we close the offering early or cancel it, we may do so without notice to you, although if we cancel the offering all funds
that may have been provided by any investors will be promptly returned without interest or deduction. See “Plan of Distribution.”

This is a Regulation A+ Tier 2 offering.

We are an “emerging growth company” as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 and have elected to comply with certain
reduced public company reporting requirements. As a smaller reporting company within the meaning of Rule 405, we are following the Form S-1 disclosure

requirements for smaller reporting companies. This offering circular is intended to provide the information required by Part I of Form S-1.

Joint Bookrunning Managers

HCFP/Capital Markets [ ]

,2017
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“Chicken Soup for the Soul®” and related names are trademarks are owned by Chicken Soup for the Soul, LLC (“CSS*). “SipsTM ” is a trademark
owned by us. Solely for our convenience, trademarks and trade names referred to in this prospectus may appear without the “®” or “T™” symbols, but such
references are not intended to indicate, in any way, that we will not assert, to the fullest extent possible under applicable law, our rights or the rights to these
trademarks and trade names. We do not intend our use or display of other companies’ trade names, trademarks or service marks to imply a relationship with,
or endorsement or sponsorship of us by, any other companies. Each trademark, trade name, or service mark of any other company appearing in this prospectus

is the property of its respective holder.

You should rely only on the information contained in this offering circular. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different information.

The information in this offering circular assumes that all of the Shares offered are sold and we have not taken advantage of our option to sell any

Additional Shares as described herein.
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>

Unless otherwise stated in this offering circular, “we,” “us
Entertainment, Inc. and our predecessor operations.

our,” “our company” or “CSS Entertainment” refers to Chicken Soup for the Soul

The term “Adjusted EBITDA?” is as defined in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result of Operations — Use of

Non-GAAP Financial Measure.”
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SUMMARY

This summary highlights certain information appearing elsewhere in this offering circular. For a more complete understanding of this offering, you
should read the entire offering circular carefully, including the risk factors and the financial statements.

Overview
CSS Entertainment curates and shares video stories that bring out the best of the human spirit.

We create and distribute our video content under the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand. Since our inception in January 2015, our business has grown
rapidly and is profitable. Our 2016 revenue was $8.1 million, as compared to 2015 revenue of $1.5 million. We had net income of $0.8 million in 2016, as
compared to a net loss of $0.8 million in 2015. Our 2016 Adjusted EBITDA was $3.8 million, as compared to 2015 Adjusted EBITDA of $0.0 million.

We are aggressively growing our business through a combination of organic growth, licensing and distribution arrangements, acquisitions, and
strategic relationships.

In October 2015, we premiered our first show, Chicken Soup for the Soul’s Hidden Heroes on CBS. In 2016, we had two shows on the air, Hidden
Heroes and Project Dad, a Chicken Soup for the Soul Original, which aired on Discovery’s TLC network.

In September 2016, we entered into an exclusive distribution agreement (“A Plus Distribution Agreement”) with A Sharp Inc. d/b/a A Plus (“A
Plus”), a digital media company that is majority owned by an affiliate of CSS, and which specializes in positive journalism and social change. Our agreement
with A Plus significantly expands our ability to share our content by providing us access to A Plus’ celebrity influencers, including A Plus’ founder and
chairman, Ashton Kutcher. These celebrity influencers have more than 480 million followers combined.

In March 2017, we launched the CSS Network, our branded direct-to-consumer (“DTC”) network. The CSS Network will allow more consumers to
view our growing library of Chicken Soup for the Soul original and third-party video content on a fee-per-view, subscription or advertising-supported basis.

In June 2017, we entered into a three-year collaboration agreement (“Collaboration Agreement”) with an affiliate of Ashton Kutcher (“Kutcher”).
Kutcher will serve as an executive producer and collaborate with us on all business and creative elements of two new television series relating to the positive
content of A Plus and the Chicken Soup for the Soup brand.

We believe that increasing consumer demand for hopeful and enduring real life stories will continue to drive our growth. We intend to continue to
expand our content offerings and distribution capabilities at our current rapid pace in order to bring the positive Chicken Soup for the Soul message to as
many people as possible.

The Chicken Soup for the Soul Brand

We have an exclusive, perpetual and worldwide license from CSS to create and distribute our video content under the Chicken Soup for the Soul
brand.

The Chicken Soup for the Soul brand is best known for its series of Chicken Soup for the Soul books, with more than 250 published titles. More than
500 million Chicken Soup for the Soul books have been sold worldwide during the past 23 years. The brand has garnered considerable awareness within its
highly-prized female demographic with more than 80% of social media followers of Chicken Soup for the Soul on Facebook, Twitter and Instagram being
women.

The Chicken Soup for the Soul brand has been experiencing significant growth in its media and social media presence:
The brand had more than 2.6 million combined Facebook fans as of March 2017, which is up approximately 28 times since December 2011.

The Chicken Soup for the Soul daily podcast, which was launched in February 2016, has had more than 1.4 million digital downloads since
inception.

The Chicken Soup for the Soul brand had over 10 billion content views (which include impressions, video views and podcast downloads) across all
platforms including Facebook, Twitter, YouTube and Instagram during the 12-month period ended March 31, 2017, with 1 billion content views in March
2017.




We believe the significant awareness and reach of the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand, the demographics to which the brand appeals, and the
growing social media presence and highly engaged fan base associated with the brand will translate into meaningful recognition and demand for our video
content offerings.

Our Video Content

We provide both long-form and short-form video content. Our long-form video content typically consists of 30 to 60 minute episodic programs. Our
short-form video content typically consists of one to five minute videos sometimes branded as Sips. We generally make our content available to consumers
globally through traditional media and a growing number of alternative distribution platforms.

We currently have two long-form video content projects on air: Chicken Soup for the Soul’s Hidden Heroes and Project Dad, a Chicken Soup for the
Soul Original. The multi-award winning Hidden Heroes is hosted by Brooke Burke-Charvet and is currently airing its second season on CBS. Project Dad is
airing on the TLC network and two other Discovery networks. A segment of Hidden Heroes can be seen at https:/cssentertainment.com/hiddenheroes. A
short overview of Project Dad can be seen at https://cssentertainment.com/what-we-do/television/project-dad. In addition, we have delivered our short-form
videos, including Sips, to multiple customers including Hilton Grand Vacations, American Humane and the Emily Griffith Technical College, and are in
negotiations with numerous others. A recent Hilton Grand Vacations Sip can be seen at https://cssentertainment.com/what-we-do/online-video/the-sip and a
recent American Humane video can be seen at https://cssentertainment.com/what-we-do/television.

In addition, we have agreements-in-principal for our third long-form video content series called Paycation Homes with sponsors and cable networks.
This show will give viewers the information and inspiration needed to realize their dreams of using real estate entrepreneurship to obtain financial success.

We have an exciting pipeline of new long-form and short-form video content projects in various stages of development. For example, we have
entered into exclusive co-production agreements for two additional long-form shows with Peacock Productions, the non-fiction production division of
NBCUniversal.

We partner with highly-regarded independent producers to develop and produce our video content. Using this approach provides us with access to a
diverse pool of creative ideas for new video content projects and allows us to scale our business on a variable cost basis. We seek committed funding prior to
moving forward with a project.

Our Opportunity

Recent advancements in video, internet, and mobile technologies have reduced the barriers to entry for video content creation and distribution. These
changes in technology have meaningfully impacted consumer viewing habits. Traditional video content distribution channels, such as broadcast and cable
television networks, are losing ground to alternative distribution platforms, including internet-delivered networks, such as social media, and “over-the-top”
(“OTT”) and DTC networks. This has fractionalized the viewing audience, making it more difficult for advertisers to reach their target audiences.

In addition, traditional cable subscriber fees and linear television advertising are coming under significant pressure as consumers migrate towards
“cord cutting,” “skinny bundles,” OTT, and DTC offerings. As these trends continue, we anticipate that many industry participants will face constrained
programming budgets and network failures. Recent examples of the effect of these trends include the shutdown in October 2016 of Pivot TV, a digital cable
and satellite television network targeted at young adults between 18 and 34 years old, and the announcement of the conversion of Esquire TV Network to a
digital-only service in January 2017. These trends are providing new opportunities not previously available.

One of our fundamental objectives is to continue to grow our CSS Network as we continue to grow our content offerings to critical mass. Our
strategy is to build our library of video content through a combination of Chicken Soup for the Soul original video content and opportunistic acquisitions of
third-party video content libraries or other rights to video content as failing networks seek to monetize their library value. Industry dislocation is also enabling
us to purchase broadcast airtime in attractive time slots and on attractive terms to further exhibit our video content as networks seek to fill their schedules in
the face of declining budgets.




Our relationship with A Plus allows us to accelerate the growth of our video content offerings and to develop and distribute high quality, empathetic
short-form videos and articles to millions of people worldwide. The themes of the content developed and distributed by A Plus are complementary to the
Chicken Soup for the Soul brand. A Plus has celebrity influencers such as Ashton Kutcher, Britney Spears, Lil Wayne and George Takei among many others
with over 480 million combined followers.

We believe that having an established brand with strong awareness, such as the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand, a clear and consistent message and
a reputation for high-quality, entertaining video content, will be a key differentiating factor that enables individuals to successfully locate the video content
they desire and allows providers to better reach their targeted audiences in an environment characterized by a proliferation of content creators and distribution
platforms and fractionalized audiences.

Corporate Information

We are a Delaware corporation formed on May 4, 2016. CSS Productions LLC (“CSS Productions”), our predecessor and immediate parent
company, was formed in December 2014 by Chicken Soup for the Soul, LLC (“CSS”), a publishing and consumer products company, and initiated operations
in January 2015. We were formed to create a discrete entity focused on video content opportunities using the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand. The Chicken
Soup for the Soul brand is owned and licensed to us by CSS. Chicken Soup for the Soul Holdings, LLC (“CSS Holdings”), is the parent company of CSS and
our ultimate parent company. Our business address is 132 E. Putnam Avenue, Floor 2W, Cos Cob, Connecticut 06807, and our telephone number is (855)
398-0443. Our web address is http://www.cssentertainment.com. Our website is not part of this offering circular.




Securities being offered by the company

Securities being offered by certain existing
stockholders

Best efforts offering

Securities outstanding prior to this offering

Securities outstanding after this offering

Two classes of common stock

Listing of securities and proposed symbols

THE OFFERING
Up to 641,983 shares of Class A common stock, at $12.00 per share (“Shares™).

Certain of our non-management, non-employee stockholders may sell up to an aggregate of 258,017
shares of our Class A common stock in this offering at $12.00 per share (“Selling Stockholder Shares”
and, together with the Shares, the “Offering Shares™).

There is no minimum number of Offering Shares that we must sell in order to conduct a closing in this
offering. If all the Offering Shares are sold in the offering, we will have the option to sell up to
1,600,000 additional newly issued shares in the offering in our discretion (“Additional Shares”). Our
directors and officers shall be entitled to purchase Shares in the offering.

1,249,090 shares of Class A common stock
8,071,955 shares of Class B common stock
678,822 Class W warrants

130,618 Class Z warrants

1,891,073 shares of Class A common stock
8,071,955 shares of Class B common stock
678,822 Class W warrants

130,618 Class Z warrants

Holders of shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock have substantially identical
rights, except that holders of shares of Class A common stock are entitled to one (1) vote per share and
holders of shares of Class B common stock are entitled to ten (10) votes per share. Holders of shares
of Class A common stock and Class B common stock vote together as a single class on all matters
(including the election of directors) submitted to a vote of stockholders, unless otherwise required by
law or our charter documents. See “Description of Securities” for a description of the terms of our
Class A and Class B common stock.

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for our common stock. We have applied to have
our Class A common stock listed on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol CSSE no later than
the final closing of this offering. If our Class A common stock is not approved for listing on the
Nasdaq Global Market, we expect our Class A common stock will be listed on the Nasdaq Capital
Market. We currently meet the financial listing requirements for the Nasdaq Capital Market. Giving
effect to the sale of all of the Shares and at least 220,000 Additional Shares in the offering, we expect
we will meet the financial listing requirements for the Nasdaq Global Market. See “Plan of
Distribution.”




Lock-up agreements with our company

Lock-up agreements with the joint bookrunning
managers

Use of proceeds

Each existing non-management, non-affiliated holder (collectively, the “Unaffiliated Holders”) of our
Class A common stock and Class B common stock, other than one non-management, non-affiliated
holder of our Class B common stock, has entered into a lock-up agreement with us that provides he,
she or it will not sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any of our Class A common stock, Class B
common stock, Class W warrants or shares underlying the Class W warrants (collectively, the

“Company Securities”) until after the goth day following the day our Class A common stock first
trades on Nasdagq; provided that sales of the Selling Stockholder Shares in this offering shall not be
subject to this lock-up.

Each of our parent stockholder and its affiliates, directors and executive officers and a former
executive officer (collectively, the “Insiders”) has entered into an agreement with us (“Company Lock-
up”) pursuant to which he, she or it has agreed to not sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any
Company Securities for an initial period of 18 months following the date our Class A common stock
first trades on Nasdaq. After such time, the Company Lock-up will automatically end with respect to
1/24 of each class of the Company Securities owned by such holder on each monthly anniversary date
of the expiration of the initial 18-month period.

We may elect to release any holder from its lock-up at any time or from time to time for any reason or
no reason with respect to any or all of the Company Securities or any portion thereof. No such release
shall be deemed to obligate us to grant any future releases to such holder or any other holder.

Each of our Unaffiliated Holders, other than one non-management, non-affiliated holder of our Class
B common stock, has entered into a lock-up agreement with the joint bookrunning managers that
provides he, she or it will not sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any Company Securities until after

the 90" day following the day our Class A common stock first trades on Nasdaq; provided that sales
of the Selling Stockholder Shares in this offering shall not be subject to this lock-up.

Each of the Insiders has entered into an agreement with the joint bookrunning managers pursuant to
which he, she or it has agreed to not sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any Company Securities for
an initial period of 180 days following the day our Class A common stock first trades on Nasdag.

The joint bookrunning managers may elect to release any holder from its lock-up at any time or from
time to time for any reason or no reason with respect to any or all of the Company Securities or any
portion thereof. No such release shall be deemed to obligate the joint bookrunning managers to grant
any future releases to such holder or any other holder.

In the event the joint booking running managers elect to release their lock-up with respect to any
Company Securities held by any officer or director of our company, they will notify us of the
impending release and will announce the impending release through a major news service at least two
business days prior to the effective date of the release.

See “Description of Securities Lock-up Agreements.”

Assuming we sell all of the Shares, we estimate that the net proceeds to us from the offering, after
deducting the selling agents’ discounts, commissions and non-accountable expense allowance and
other estimated offering expenses payable by us, will be approximately $6,082,492 (or $23,312,492 if
we sell all of the Additional Shares).

Our Term Notes (as defined in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Result of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources — Debt Private Placement”) shall be repaid at
the time of the initial closing of this offering as required by the terms thereof, as amended, and we
may use a portion of the net proceeds of this offering for such repayment. We intend to use any
remaining net proceeds of this offering for: (a) financing production and associated development and
operating costs and expenses for our video content; (b) strategic acquisitions, including acquiring
video content distribution companies, assets and video content libraries; (c) servicing our obligations
under the Credit Facility; and (d) working capital and general corporate purposes.

See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations —
Liquidity and Capital Resources — Credit Facility” and “—Debt Private Placement” for a description
of the terms of the Term Notes and Credit Facility. See “Use of Proceeds” for further information on
our use of proceeds from this offering.




We will pay all of the expenses of this offering (other than the selling agents’ discounts and
commissions of 4% payable with respect to the Selling Stockholder Shares sold in this offering), but
will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of the Selling Stockholder Shares in this offering.

Risk Factors Prospective investors should carefully consider the Risk Factors beginning on page 9 before investing
in the shares offered hereby.




SUMMARY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The summary consolidated financial information set forth below summarizes relevant financial data for our business. The financial data was derived
from our audited consolidated financial statements, and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes,
which are included elsewhere in this offering circular. In addition, the financial data should be read in conjunction with Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, also included elsewhere in this offering circular.

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2016 2015
Operating Data:
Total revenue $ 8,118,632 $ 1,506,818
Gross profit 4,962,964 853,023
Gross profit % 61.1% 56.6%
Operating expenses 3,182,775 1,606,499
Operating income (loss) 1,780,189 (753,476)
Net income (loss) (@ () 781,133 (753,463)
Basic net income (loss) per common share 0.09 (0.09)
Diluted net income (loss) per common share 0.09 (0.09)
Weighted average common shares outstanding: ©
Basic 8,835,930 8,760,000
Diluted 8,996,636 8,760,000
Adjusted EBITDA @ 3,776,676 38,524
@ Net income (loss) includes non-cash share-based compensation expense of $1,542,044 (primarily related to a former officer of the Company)

and $792,000 for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. Non-cash share-based compensation expense is included in
selling, general and administrative expense in the consolidated statements of operations included elsewhere in this offering circular.

(b) Net income includes non-cash amortization of debt discounts and amortization of deferred financing costs totaling $424,571 for the year
ended December 31, 2016. These costs are included in interest expense in the consolidated statement of operations included elsewhere in this offering
circular.

© Basic and diluted weighted average common shares outstanding assumes that Class B common stock of the Company is issued and
outstanding as of January 1, 2015. For the year ended December 31, 2016, diluted weighted average common shares outstanding gives effect to Class W
Warrants issued between May 2016 and December 2016, as if they were issued and outstanding on January 1, 2016. See Notes 1 and 8 to the consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in this offering circular.

@ See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations", "Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measure" -
"Reconciliation of Historical Results to Adjusted EBITDA" included elsewhere in this offering circular for further discussion.




December 31, 2016

Pro Forma
Actual Pro Forma As Adjusted @
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 507,247 $ 4,445,407 $ 6,445,899
Total assets 11,817,917 16,206,077 18,206,570
Total liabilities 8,193,371 9,398,859 5,316,859
Stockholders’ equity 3,624,546 6,807,218 12,889,711

(@) The “Pro Forma” information gives effect to net proceeds of approximately $3.5 million of securities in the 2017 Equity Private Placement,
the Debt Private Placement, and two individual equity private placements after December 31, 2016, and through June 13, 2017. Total assets and stockholders’
equity includes Class A common stock issued pursuant to the Collaboration Agreement. The Pro Forma information also includes 102,060 shares of Class A
common stock issued in June 2017 pursuant to the conversion of an aggregate principal amount of $0.9 million of our Term Notes. The Pro Forma
information reflects net advances received under the Credit Facility of approximately $0.5 million after December 31, 2016, and through June 13, 2017. In
March 2017, the Credit Facility was amended to increase the net advances available to the Company to $4.5 million. The 2017 Equity Private Placement, the
Debt Private Placement, the Credit Facility, the Term Note conversions to Class A common stock, and other private placements are described in “
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources” and elsewhere herein. The Pro
Forma information for the Term Notes sold in the Debt Private Placement after December 31, 2016, includes an additional debt discount to the carrying
amount of the Term Notes payable and a corresponding credit to additional paid-in capital of approximately $0.3 million, which represents the estimated fair
value of the warrants issued with the Term Notes. In addition, the Pro Forma information with respect to the Credit Facility includes an additional debt
discount to the carrying amount of the Credit Facility and a corresponding credit to additional paid-in capital of approximately $0.1 million, which represents
the estimated fair value of the additional warrants issued pursuant to the increase in the amount available under the Credit Facility.

If payment obligations are still outstanding under the Credit Facility at its maturity date, or if prior to the maturity date there is an event of default as
prescribed by the Credit Facility, then at the Company’s option, (a) all principal and interest may be exchanged into shares of Class A common stock of the
Company on the same terms as the Company’s most recently completed equity financing; provided, that under no circumstances shall the pre-money
valuation used for this exchange be less than $52,560,000, (b) the maturity date of the Credit Facility may be extended as happened in January 2017 by
mutual agreement of the parties, or (c) all principal and interest may be paid in full.

) The “Pro Forma As Adjusted” information gives effect to the sale of all of the Shares by us in the offering and the application of the
estimated net proceeds derived therefrom (including repayment of all remaining Term Notes), but does not give effect to the sale of any Additional Shares.
We will pay all of the expenses of the offering (other than the selling agents’ discounts and commissions of 4% payable with respect to the Selling
Stockholder Shares sold in this offering), but will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of the Selling Stockholder Shares in this offering.




RISK FACTORS

An investment in the securities offered by this offering circular involves a high degree of risk. You should consider carefully all of the material risks
described below, together with the other information contained in this offering circular, before making a decision to invest in the CSS Entertainment shares.

Risks associated with our business
We do not have a long operating history on which to evaluate our company.

Our predecessor, CSS Productions, was formed in December 2014 and we were formed in May 2016 to succeed to CSS Productions’ assets in order
to create a discrete, focused entity to pursue video content opportunities using the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand. We face all the risks faced by newer
companies in the media industry, including significant competition from existing and emerging media producers and distributors, many of which are
significantly more established, larger and better financed than our company.

It is only recently that we debuted our video content and accordingly do not have a long history on which to evaluate our ability to produce and
distribute video content that will be desired by our target consumers across multiple media offerings. Similarly, we do not have a long-term operating or
financial history that can be reviewed in evaluating an investment in our company.

All of our assets are pledged to secure existing indebtedness.

All of our assets are pledged under pari passu first priority security interests to secure our repayment obligations under indebtedness owed to the
noteholders under the Term Notes (to the extent not repaid in full at the time of this offering) and the facility lender under the Credit Facility. In the event the
holders of such indebtedness take action with respect to our assets in connection with any default under the Term Notes (to the extent not repaid in full from
the proceeds of this offering) or the Credit Facility, we may not be able to continue our operations.

Certain conflicts of interest may arise between us and our dffiliated companies and we have waived certain rights with respect thereto.

Our certificate of incorporation includes a provision stating that we renounce any interest or expectancy in any business opportunities that are
presented to us or our officers, directors or stockholders or affiliates thereof, including but not limited to CSS Productions and its affiliates (collectively, the
“CSS Companies”), except as may be set forth in any written agreement between us and any of the CSS Companies (such as the CSS License Agreement
under which CSS has agreed that all video content operations shall be conducted only through CSS Entertainment). This provision also states that, to the
fullest extent permitted by Delaware law, our officers, directors and employees shall not be liable to us or our stockholders for monetary damages for breach
of any fiduciary duty by reason of any of our activities or any activities of any of the CSS Companies. As a result of these provisions, there may be conflicts
of interest among us and our officers, directors, stockholders or their affiliates, including the CSS Companies, relating to business opportunities, and we have
waived our right to monetary damages in the event of any such conflict.

Our long-term results of operations are difficult to predict and depend on the commercial success of our video content and the continued strength of the
Chicken Soup for the Soul brand.

Our ability in the long-term to obtain sponsorships and licensing arrangements and to distribute our video content will depend, in part, upon the
commercial success of the content that we initially distribute and, in part, on the continued strength of the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand. We cannot predict
whether our initial video content will be accepted by audiences at a level that will create strong demand for our future video content. Further, the continued
strength of the brand will be affected in large part by the operations of CSS and its other business operations, none of which we control. CSS utilizes the
brand through its other subsidiaries for various commercial purposes, including the sale of books (including educational curriculum products), pet foods and
other consumer products. Negative publicity relating to CSS or its other subsidiaries or the brand, or any diminution in the perception of the brand could have
a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, operating results, liquidity and prospects. We cannot assure you that we will manage the
production and distribution of all of our video content successfully, that all or any portion of our video content will be met with critical acclaim or will be
embraced by audiences on a one-time or repeated basis, or that the strength of the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand will not diminish over time.




Our reliance on third parties for production and distribution could limit our control over the quality of the finished video content.

We currently have limited internal production and distribution capabilities and are reliant on relationships with third parties for much of these
capabilities. Working with third parties is an integral part of our strategy to produce and distribute video content on a cost efficient basis, and our reliance on
such third parties could lessen the control we have over the projects, despite our approval rights. Should the third party producers we rely upon not produce
completed projects to the standards we expect and desire, critical and audience acceptance of such projects could suffer, which could have an adverse effect
on our ability to produce and distribute future projects. Further, we cannot be assured of entering into favorable agreements with such third party producers on
economically favorable terms or on terms that provide us with satisfactory intellectual property rights in the completed projects.

An integral part of our strategy is to initially minimize our production and distribution costs by utilizing funding sources provided by others, however,
such sources may not be readily available.

The production and distribution of video content require a significant amount of capital. As part of our strategy, we will initially seek to fund the
production and distribution of our video content through the payment of upfront fees by sponsors, licensors, broadcast, cable and satellite outlets and other
producers and distributors, as well as through other initiatives, such as government tax incentives. Funding for our video content projects from the
aforementioned sources or other sources may not be available on attractive terms or at all as and when we need such funding. To the extent we are not able to
secure agreements by which upfront fees are paid to us, we may need to curtail the amount of video content being produced, or use our operating or other
funds to pay for such video content, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, operating results, liquidity and prospects.

As we grow we may seek to fund and produce more of our video content directly, subjecting us to significant additional risks.

Our current strategy of funding the production and distribution of our video content through the payment of upfront fees by third parties may limit
the backend return to us. If we should determine to use our own funds to produce and distribute more of our video content in order to capture greater backend
returns, we would face significant additional risks, such as the need to internally advance funds ahead of revenue generation and cost recoupment and the
need to divert some of our resources and efforts away from other operations. In order to reduce these risks, we may determine to raise additional equity or
incur additional indebtedness. In such event, our stockholders and the company will be subjected to the risks associated with issuing more of our shares or
increasing our debt obligations.

We have derived our revenue to date from a limited number of video content offerings and clients and have funded our projects from a limited number of
sources.

To date, we have derived all of our revenue from a limited number of video content offerings and clients. We will need to expand and broaden our
video content offerings, the distribution channels into which they are placed, the clients to which we sell and the production and financing relationships
utilized to create such video content to ensure that we are not reliant on a limited number of offerings or distribution partners in the future. A failure to expand
and broaden our video content offerings, client base or distribution, production and financing relationships could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, operating results, liquidity and prospects.

We are required to make continuing payments to our dffiliates, which may reduce our cash flow and profits.

We are required to make significant payments to our affiliates as described under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations — Affiliate Resources and Obligations — CSS Management Agreement,” “—CSS License Agreement” and “~A Plus Distribution
Agreement” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources.” Accordingly,
in the aggregate, at least 10% of our gross revenue will be paid to our affiliates on a continuous basis and will not be otherwise available to us.

If a project we are producing incurs substantial budget overruns, we may have to seek additional financing from outside sources to complete production
or fund the overrun ourselves.

If a production we are funding incurs substantial budget overruns, we may have to seek additional financing from outside sources to complete
production or fund the overrun ourselves. We cannot be certain that any required financing will be available to us on commercially reasonable terms or at all,
or that we will be able to recoup the costs of overruns. Increased costs incurred with respect to a particular project may result in the production not being
ready for release at the intended time, which could cause a decline in the commercial performance of the project. Budget overruns could also prevent a project
from being completed or released at all.
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Our operating results may fluctuate.

Our operating results are dependent, in part, on management’s estimates of revenue to be earned over the life of a project. We will regularly review
and revise our revenue estimates. This review may result in a change in the rate of amortization and/or a write-down of the video content asset to its estimated
realizable value. Results of operations in future years depend upon our amortization of our video content costs. Periodic adjustments in amortization rates
may significantly affect these results.

Further, as many of our third-party relationships will be on a project-by-project basis, the profits, if any, generated from various projects will
fluctuate based on the terms of the agreements between us and our third-party producers and distributors.

Because of our current stage of development, we generate a significant portion of our annual revenue in the fourth quarter of our fiscal year. We
anticipate that our revenue may be more evenly distributed throughout the year in the future as we expand our business and diversify our video content
offerings. Until such time, our quarter to quarter financial results may not be comparable within any single fiscal year or from fiscal year to fiscal year.

As aresult of the foregoing and other factors, our results of operations may fluctuate significantly from period to period, and the results of any one
period may not be indicative of the results for any future period.

Distributors’ failure to promote our video content could adversely affect our revenue and could adversely affect our business results.

We will not always control the timing and manner in which our licensed distributors distribute our video content offerings. However, their decisions
regarding the timing of release and promotional support are important in determining success. Any decision by those distributors not to distribute or promote
our video content or to promote our competitors’ video content to a greater extent than they promote our intent could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, operating results, liquidity and prospects.

We are smaller and less diversified than many of our competitors.

Many of the producers and studios with which we compete are part of large diversified corporate groups with a variety of other operations, including
television networks, cable channels and other diversified companies such as Amazon, which can provide both the means of distributing their products and
stable sources of earnings that may allow them to better offset fluctuations in the financial performance of their operations. In addition, the major studios have
more resources with which to compete for ideas, storylines and scripts created by third parties as well as for actors, and other personnel required for
production. The resources of the major producers and studios may also give them an advantage in acquiring other businesses or assets, including video
content libraries, that we might also be interested in acquiring.

We must successfully respond to rapid technological changes and alternative forms of delivery or storage to remain competitive.

The entertainment industry in general continues to undergo significant developments as advances in technologies and new methods of product
delivery and storage, or certain changes in consumer behavior driven by these developments, emerge. Consumers are spending an increasing amount of time
online and on mobile devices, and are increasingly viewing content on a time-delayed or on-demand basis online, on their televisions and on handheld or
portable devices. Our distributors and we must adapt our businesses to changing consumer behavior and preferences and exploit new distribution channels.
Our strategy is to seek to take advantage of these changes and thereby to create new revenue streams and other opportunities for our video content. If we
cannot successfully utilize these and other emerging technologies, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, operating
results, liquidity and prospects.

We face risks from doing business internationally.

We intend to distribute our video content outside the U.S. and derive revenue in foreign jurisdictions. As a result, our business is subject to certain
risks inherent in international business, many of which are beyond our control. These risks include:

laws and policies affecting trade, investment and taxes, including laws and policies relating to the repatriation of funds and withholding taxes,
and changes in these laws;
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the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and similar laws regulating interactions and dealings with foreign government officials;
changes in local regulatory requirements, including restrictions on video content;

differing cultural tastes and attitudes;

differing degrees of protection for intellectual property;

financial instability and increased market concentration of buyers in foreign television markets;

the instability of foreign economies and governments;

fluctuating foreign exchange rates;

the spread of communicable diseases in such jurisdictions, which may impact business in such jurisdictions; and

war and acts of terrorism.

Events or developments related to these and other risks associated with international trade could adversely affect our revenue from non-U.S. sources,
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, operating results, liquidity and prospects.

Protecting and defending against intellectual property claims may have a material adverse effect on our business.

Our ability to compete depends, in part, upon successful protection of our intellectual property relating to our video content and the protection of the
Chicken Soup for the Soul brand. We will attempt to protect proprietary and intellectual property rights to our productions through available copyright and
trademark laws and licensing and distribution arrangements with reputable international companies in specific territories and media. Under the terms of the
CSS License Agreement, CSS has the primary right to take actions to protect the brand, and, if it does not, and we reasonably deem any infringement thereof
is materially harmful to our business, we may elect to seek action to protect the brand ourselves. Although in the former case, we would equitably share in
any recovery, and in the latter case, we would retain the entirety of any recovery, should CSS determine not to prosecute infringement of the brand, we could
be materially harmed and could incur substantial cost in prosecuting an infringement of the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand.

Others may assert intellectual property infringement claims against us.

One of the risks of the video content production and distribution business is the possibility that others may claim that our productions and production
techniques misappropriate or infringe the intellectual property rights of third parties with respect to their previously developed content, stories, characters and
other entertainment or intellectual property. Although CSS is obligated to indemnify us for claims related to our use of the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand in
accordance with the CSS License Agreement, we could face lawsuits with respect to claims relating thereto. Irrespective of the validity or the successful
assertion of any such claims, we could incur significant costs and diversion of resources in defending against them, which could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, operating results, liquidity and prospects.

Our business involves risks of liability claims for video content, which could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.
As a producer and distributor of video content, we may face potential liability for defamation, invasion of privacy, negligence and other claims based
on the nature and content of the materials distributed. These types of claims have been brought, sometimes successfully, against producers and distributors of

video content. Any imposition of liability that is not covered by insurance or is in excess of insurance coverage could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, operating results, liquidity and prospects.
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Piracy of video content may harm our business.

Video content piracy is extensive in many parts of the world, including South America, Asia, and certain Eastern European countries, and is made
easier by technological advances and the conversion of video content into digital formats. This trend facilitates the creation, transmission and sharing of high
quality unauthorized copies of video content on DVDs, Blu-ray discs, from pay-per-view through set-top boxes and other devices and through unlicensed
broadcasts on free television and the internet. The proliferation of unauthorized copies of our video content could have an adverse effect on our business.

We rely upon a number of partners to offer streaming of content to various devices.

We currently offer viewers the ability to receive streaming content through a host of internet-connected devices, including internet-enabled
televisions, digital video players, game consoles and mobile devices, using third-party platforms. We intend to continue to broaden our capability to instantly
stream content to other platforms and partners over time. We do not own any of the technology utilized in the distribution of our content and rely on third-
party platforms. If we are not successful in maintaining existing and creating new relationships, or if we encounter technological, content licensing or other
impediments to our streaming content, our ability to grow our business could be adversely impacted. In addition, technology changes may require that our
partners update their platforms. If partners do not update or otherwise modify their platforms, our service and our viewers’ use and enjoyment could be
negatively impacted.

Any significant disruption in the computer systems of third parties that we utilize in our operations could result in a loss or degradation of service and
could adversely impact our business.

Our reputation and ability to attract, retain and serve our viewers is dependent upon the reliable performance of the computer systems of third parties
that we utilize in our operations. These systems may be subject to damage or interruption from earthquakes, adverse weather conditions, other natural
disasters, terrorist attacks, power loss, telecommunications failures, computer viruses, computer denial of service attacks or other attempts to harm these
systems. Interruptions in these systems, or to the internet in general, could make our content unavailable or impair our ability to deliver such content.

Our online activities are subject to a variety of laws and regulations relating to privacy, which, if violated, could subject us to an increased risk of
litigation and regulatory actions.

In addition to our websites, we use third-party applications, websites, and social media platforms to promote our video content offerings and engage
consumers, as well as monitor and collect certain information about consumers. There are a variety of laws and regulations governing individual privacy and
the protection and use of information collected from such individuals, particularly in relation to an individual’s personally identifiable information. Many
foreign countries have adopted similar laws governing individual privacy, some of which are more restrictive than similar United States laws. If our online
activities were to violate any applicable current or future laws and regulations, we could be subject to litigation and regulatory actions, including fines and
other penalties.

If government regulations relating to the internet or other areas of our business change, we may need to alter the manner in which we conduct our
business or incur greater operating expenses.

The adoption or modification of laws or regulations relating to the internet or other areas of our business could limit or otherwise adversely affect the
manner in which we currently conduct our business. In addition, the continued growth and development of the market for online commerce may lead to more
stringent consumer protection laws, which may impose additional burdens on us. If we are required to comply with new regulations or legislation or new
interpretations of existing regulations or legislation, this compliance could cause us to incur additional expenses or alter our operations.

If we experience rapid growth, we may not manage our growth effectively, execute our business plan as proposed or adequately address competitive
challenges.

We anticipate continuing to grow our business and operations rapidly. Our growth strategy includes organic initiatives and acquisitions. Such growth
could place a significant strain on the management, administrative, operational and financial infrastructure we utilize, most of which is made available to us
by our affiliates under the CSS Management Agreement. Our long-term success will depend, in part, on our ability to manage this growth effectively, obtain
the necessary support and resources under the CSS Management Agreement and grow our own internal resources as required, including internal management
and staff personnel. To manage the expected growth of our operations and personnel, we also will need to increase our internal operational, financial and
management controls, and our reporting systems and procedures. Failure to effectively manage growth could result in difficulty or delays in producing our
video content, declines in overall project quality and increases in costs. Any of these difficulties could adversely impact our business financial condition,
operating results, liquidity and prospects.
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Our exclusive license to use the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand could be terminated in certain circumstances.

We do not own the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand or any other Chicken Soup for the Soul-related assets (including books), other than those assets
transferred to us under the CSS Contribution and Trema Contribution Agreements as described under “Certain Transactions — Contribution Agreements.” The
brand is licensed to us by CSS under the terms of the CSS License Agreement as described under “Certain Transactions — CSS License Agreement.” CSS
controls the brand, and the continued integrity and strength of the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand will depend in large part on the efforts and businesses of
CSS and how the brand is used, promoted and protected by CSS, which will be outside of the immediate control of our company. Although the license
granted to us under the CSS License Agreement is perpetual, there are certain circumstances in which it may be terminated by CSS, including our breach of
the CSS License Agreement.

We are subject to risks associated with possible acquisitions, business combinations, or joint ventures.

From time to time, we will engage in discussions and activities with respect to possible acquisitions, sale of assets, business combinations, or joint
ventures intended to complement or expand our business, some of which may be significant transactions for us. We may not realize the anticipated benefit
from any of the transactions we pursue. Regardless of whether we consummate any such transaction, the negotiation of a potential transaction could require
us to incur significant costs and cause diversion of management's time and resources.

Integrating any business that we acquire may be distracting to our management and disruptive to our business and may result in significant costs to
us. We could face several challenges in the consolidation and integration of information technology, accounting systems, personnel and operations. Any such
transaction could also result in impairment of goodwill and other intangibles, development write-offs and other related expenses. Any of the foregoing could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, operating results, liquidity and prospects.

Claims against us relating to any acquisition or business combination may necessitate our seeking claims against the seller for which the seller may not
indemnify us or that may exceed the seller's indemnification obligations.

There may be liabilities assumed in any acquisition or business combination that we did not discover or that we underestimated in the course of
performing our due diligence. Although a seller generally may have indemnification obligations to us under an acquisition or merger agreement, these
obligations usually will be subject to financial limitations, such as general deductibles and maximum recovery amounts, as well as time limitations. We
cannot assure you that our right to indemnification from any seller will be enforceable, collectible or sufficient in amount, scope or duration to fully offset the
amount of any undiscovered or underestimated liabilities that we may incur. Any such liabilities, individually or in the aggregate, could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, operating results, liquidity and prospects.

We may require and not be able to obtain additional funding to meet increased capital needs after an acquisition.

Our ability to grow through acquisitions, business combinations and joint ventures and our ability to fund our operating expenses after one or more
acquisitions may depend upon our ability to obtain funds through equity financing, debt financing (including credit facilities) or the sale or syndication of
some or all of our interests in certain projects or other assets or businesses. If we do not have access to such financing arrangements, and if other funds do not
become available on terms acceptable to us, there could be a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, operating results, liquidity and
prospects.

Our success depends on our management and relationships with our dffiliated companies.
Our success depends to a significant extent on the performance of our management personnel and key employees, including production and creative

personnel, made available to us through the CSS Management Agreement. The loss of the services of such persons or the resources supplied to us by our
affiliated companies could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, operating results, liquidity and prospects.
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To be successful, we need to attract and retain qualified personnel.

Our success will depend to a significant extent on our ability to identify, attract, hire, train and retain qualified professional, creative, technical and
managerial personnel. Competition for the caliber of talent required to produce and distribute our video content continues to increase. We cannot assure you
that we will be successful in identifying, attracting, hiring, training and retaining such personnel in the future. If we were unable to hire, assimilate and retain
qualified personnel in the future, such inability could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, operating results, liquidity and
prospects.

We are an “emerging growth company” under the JOBS Act of 2012 and we cannot be certain if the reduced disclosure requirements applicable to
emerging growth companies will make our Class A common stock less attractive to investors.

We are an “emerging growth company”, as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (“JOBS Act”), and we may take advantage of
certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not “emerging growth companies” including,
but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure
obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements, and exemptions from the requirements of holding a non-binding
advisory vote on executive compensation and shareholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously approved. We cannot predict if investors
will find our Class A common stock less attractive because we may rely on these exemptions. If some investors find our Class A common stock less attractive
as a result, there may be a less active trading market for our Class A common stock and our stock price may be more volatile.

In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act also provides that an “emerging growth company” can take advantage of the extended transition period
provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act for complying with new or revised accounting standards. In other words, an “emerging growth company”
can delay the adoption of certain accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies. We are choosing to take advantage
of the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards.

>

We will remain an “emerging growth company” for up to five years, although we will lose that status sooner if our revenue exceeds $1 billion, if we
issue more than $1 billion in non-convertible debt in a three-year period, or if the market value of our common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds
$700 million as of June 30 of any year.

Our status as an “emerging growth company” under the JOBS Act of 2012 may make it more difficult to raise capital as and when we need it.

Because of the exemptions from various reporting requirements provided to us as an “emerging growth company” and because we will have an
extended transition period for complying with new or revised financial accounting standards, we may be less attractive to investors and it may be difficult for
us to raise additional capital as and when we need it. Investors may be unable to compare our business with other companies in our industry if they believe
that our financial accounting is not as transparent as other companies in our industry. Any inability to raise additional capital as and when we need it, could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, operating results, liquidity and prospects.

Our chairman and chief executive officer will effectively control our company.

We have two classes of common stock — Class A common stock, each share of which entitles the holder thereof to one vote on any matter submitted
to our stockholders, and Class B common stock, each share of which entitles the holder thereof to ten votes on any matter submitted to our stockholders. Our
chairman and chief executive officer, William J. Rouhana, Jr., has control over the vast majority of all the outstanding voting power as represented by our
outstanding Class B and Class A common stock and effectively controls CSS Holdings and CSS, which controls CSS Productions, and, in turn, our company.
Further, our bylaws provide that any member of our board may be removed with or without cause by the majority of our outstanding voting power, thus Mr.
Rouhana will exert significant control over our board. This concentration of ownership and decision making may make it more difficult for other stockholders
to effect substantial changes in our company and may also have the effect of delaying, preventing or expediting, as the case may be, a change in control of our
company.
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We may issue shares of our capital stock or debt securities in the future, whether to complete any acquisition, a business combination or to raise
additional funds, which would reduce the equity interest of our stockholders and might cause a change in control of our ownership.

Our certificate of incorporation authorizes the issuance of up to 70 million shares of Class A common stock, par value $.0001 per share, 20 million
shares of Class B common stock, par value $.0001 per share, and 10 million shares of preferred stock, par value $.0001 per share. Assuming we sell all of the
Shares in this offering (but no Additional Shares), we will have 68,108,927 authorized but unissued shares of our Class A common stock remaining available
for issuance, 11,928,045 authorized but unissued shares of our Class B common stock remaining available for issuance and 10,000,000 authorized but
unissued shares of our preferred stock remaining available for issuance immediately after the offering. We also may issue a substantial number of additional
Shares of our common stock or preferred stock, or a combination of common and preferred stock, to raise additional funds or in connection with any
acquisition or business combination in the future.

Risks associated with this offering
Our outstanding warrants may have an adverse effect on the market price of our common stock.

We have outstanding Class W warrants to purchase up to an aggregate of 678,822 shares of Class A common stock and Class Z warrants to purchase
up to an aggregate of 130,618 shares of Class A common stock. The sale, or even the possibility of sale, of the Class W warrants and the Class Z warrants or
the shares underlying the Class W warrants and the Class Z warrants, could have an adverse effect on the market price for our securities or on our ability to
obtain future public financing. Furthermore, we might issue warrants or other securities convertible or exchangeable for shares of common stock in the future
in order to raise funds or to effect acquisitions or business combinations. If and to the extent our warrants are exercised, or we issue additional securities to
raise funds or consummate any acquisition or business combination, you may experience dilution to your holdings.

We do not intend to pay any dividends on our common stock at this time.

We have not paid any cash dividends on our shares of common stock to date. The payment of cash dividends on our common stock in the future will
be dependent upon our revenue and earnings, if any, capital requirements and general financial condition as well as the limitations on dividends and
distributions that exist under the laws and regulations of the State of Delaware and will be within the discretion of our board of directors. It is the present
intention of our board of directors to retain all earnings, if any, for use in our business operations and, accordingly, our board of directors does not anticipate
declaring any dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. As a result, any gain you will realize on our common stock (including shares of
common stock obtained upon exercise of our warrants) will result solely from the appreciation of such shares.

You will experience immediate and substantial dilution.

The difference between the public offering price per share of our Class A common stock and the pro forma as adjusted net tangible book value per
share of our Class A common stock and Class B common stock, combined, after this offering constitutes the dilution to the investors of shares in this offering.
Our existing stockholders acquired their securities prior to this offering at prices less than investors are paying in this offering, contributing to this dilution.
Upon consummation of this offering, investors will incur immediate dilution of approximately $11.37 per share (the difference between the pro forma as
adjusted net tangible book value per share and the initial offering price of $12.00 per share). This is because investors in this offering purchasing shares will
be contributing approximately 50.7% of the total amount paid to us for our outstanding securities after this offering but will only own 6.4% of our outstanding
securities. Accordingly, the per-share purchase price investors of the shares will be paying exceeds our per share pro forma as adjusted net tangible book
value. In addition, in the future, holders of our common stock will experience substantial dilution upon any exercise of our outstanding warrants.

If our securities becomes subject to the SEC's penny stock rules, broker-dealers may experience difficulty in completing customer transactions and
trading activity in our securities may be adversely affected.

If at any time we have net tangible assets of $5,000,000 or less and our common stock has a market price per share of less than $5.00, transactions in
our securities may be subject to the “penny stock” rules promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Under these rules, broker-dealers who

recommend such securities to persons other than institutional accredited investors must:

make a special written suitability determination for the purchaser;
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receive the purchaser's written agreement to the transaction prior to sale;

provide the purchaser with risk disclosure documents which identify certain risks associated with investing in “penny stocks” and which
describe the market for these “penny stocks” as well as a purchaser's legal remedies; and

obtain a signed and dated acknowledgment from the purchaser demonstrating that the purchaser has actually received the required risk
disclosure document before a transaction in a “penny stock” can be completed.

If our securities become subject to these rules, broker-dealers may find it difficult to effectuate customer transactions and trading activity in our
securities may be adversely affected. As a result, the market price of our securities may be depressed, and you may find it more difficult to sell our securities.

Nasdaq may, dfter listing, delist our Class A common stock from quotation on its exchange, which could limit investors’ ability to sell and purchase our
shares and subject us to additional trading restrictions.

We anticipate that our Class A common stock will be listed on Nasdaq, a national securities exchange, no later than the final closing of this offering.
Although, we currently meet the financial listing requirements of the Nasdaq Capital Market, and after giving effect to the sale of all of the Shares and at least
220,000 Additional Shares in the offering, we expect we will meet the financial listing requirements of the Nasdaq Global Market, if our common stock is not
listed on Nasdaq at any time after this offering, we could face significant material adverse consequences, including:

a limited availability of market quotations for our common stock;

reduced liquidity with respect to our common stock;

a determination that our common stock is “penny stock” which will require brokers trading in our shares to adhere to more stringent rules,
possibly resulting in a reduced level of trading activity in the secondary trading market for our common stock;

a limited amount of news and analyst coverage for our company; and
a decreased ability to issue additional securities or obtain additional financing in the future.
The determination for the offering price of our shares is more arbitrary compared with the pricing of securities for an established operating company.

Prior to this offering there has been no public market for any of our securities. The public offering price of our shares was negotiated between us and
the joint bookrunning managers. Factors considered in determining the prices and terms of the Shares (and the Additional Shares) offered hereby include:

the history and prospects of companies similar to our company;
prior offerings of those companies;

our prospects;

our capital structure;

an assessment of our management;

general conditions of the securities markets at the time of the offering; and
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other factors as were deemed relevant.

However, although these factors were considered, the determination of the offering prices is more arbitrary than the pricing of securities for an
established operating company.

Following this offering, the price of our Class A common stock may vary significantly due to general market or economic conditions as well as other
factors. Furthermore, an active trading market for the securities may never develop or, if developed, may not be sustained. You may be unable to sell your
securities unless a market can be established and sustained.

A portion of the proceeds of this offering will be used to repay our Term Notes and Credit Facility.

A portion of the proceeds of this offering will be used, in our discretion, to repay amounts outstanding under our Credit Facility (approximately $4.0
million as of the date of this offering circular) and, as required by the terms of our Term Notes, as amended, to repay such Term Notes (approximately $4.1
million as of the date of this offering circular). The amounts used to repay indebtedness will not be available to us for our operations. The Credit Facility will
remain available to us until June 2018. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and
Capital Resources — Credit Facility” and “—Debt Private Placement” for a description of the terms of the Term Notes and Credit Facility.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The statements contained in this offering circular that are not purely historical are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements include,
but are not limited to, statements regarding expectations, hopes, beliefs, intentions or strategies regarding the future. In addition, any statements that refer to
projections, forecasts or other characterizations of future events or circumstances, including any underlying assumptions, are forward-looking statements. The
words “anticipate,” “believe,” “continue,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “might,” “plan,” “possible,” “potential,” “predicts,” “project,”
“should,” “would” and similar expressions may identify forward-looking statements, but the absence of these words does not mean that a statement is not
forward-looking. Forward-looking statements in this offering circular may include, for example, statements about our:

» « 2« » «  « » «

limited operating history and ability to maintain or increase profitability;

reliance on third parties for production and distribution;

results of operations;

ability to manage growth;

ability to minimize our production and distribution costs by utilizing funding sources provided by others;
regulatory or operational risks;

success in retaining or recruiting, or changes required in, our officers, key employees or directors;
capital structure;

ability to obtain additional financing when and if needed; and

liquidity and trading of our securities.

The forward-looking statements contained in this offering circular are based on current expectations and beliefs concerning future developments and
their potential effects on us. There can be no assurance that future developments will be those that have been anticipated. These forward-looking statements
involve a number of risks, uncertainties (some of which are beyond our control) or other assumptions that may cause actual results or performance to be
materially different from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, those
factors described under the heading “Risk Factors.” Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should any of our assumptions prove
incorrect, actual results may vary in material respects from those projected in these forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to update or

revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as may be required under applicable
securities laws.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

We estimate that the net proceeds of this offering will be $6,082,492 if we sell all of the Shares (or $23,312,492 if we sell all of the Additional
Shares).

Our Term Notes shall be repaid at the time of the initial closing of this offering as required by the terms thereof, as amended, and we may use a
portion of the net proceeds of this offering (up to $4.1 million) for such repayment. We intend to use any remaining net proceeds of this offering for:

financing production and associated development and operating costs and expenses for our video content;
strategic acquisitions, including acquiring video content distribution companies, assets and video content libraries;
servicing our obligations under the Credit Facility; and

working capital and general corporate purposes.

We believe that the net proceeds of the offering, after giving effect to the use of a portion thereof to repay our Term Notes, together with our current
resources, will allow us to operate for at least the next 12 months.

See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources — Credit Facility”
and “—Debt Private Placement” for a description of the terms of the Credit Facility and Term Notes.

We cannot estimate the amounts to be used for each purpose set forth above. We also reserve the right to change the use of the proceeds in
accordance with our strategic plans or if all of the Shares are not sold in this offering. Accordingly, our management will have significant flexibility in
allocating the net proceeds of this offering.

We will pay all of the expenses of the offering (other than the selling agents’ discounts and commissions of 4% payable with respect to the Selling

Stockholders Shares sold in this offering), but will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of the Selling Stockholder Shares in this offering.
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DILUTION

The difference between the offering price per share of our Class A common stock in this offering and the Pro Forma As Adjusted net tangible book
value per share after this offering constitutes the dilution to investors in this offering. Net tangible book value per share is determined by dividing our net
tangible book value, which is our total tangible assets less total liabilities, by the total number of outstanding shares of Class A common stock and Class B
common stock.

As of December 31, 2016, on an Actual basis and a Pro Forma basis, our net tangible book value is as follows:

Actual Pro Forma

Net book value - Actual $ 3,624,546 $ 3,624,546

Less: intangible asset (5,000,000) (5,000,000)
Net tangible book value - Actual (1,375,454) (1,375,454)
Add:

Sale of Class A common stock in private placements, net 1,863,160

Exchange of Term Notes for Class A common stock 918,000

Fair value of warrants issued with Term Notes 293,012

Fair value of warrants issued issued with Credit Facility 108,500
Net tangible book value $ (1,375,454) $ 1,807,218
Total common shares outstanding - Pro Forma 9,321,045
Net tangible book value per common share - Pro Forma $ 0.19

After giving effect to the sale of the Shares (but excluding Additional Shares) in this offering, on a Pro Forma As Adjusted basis, our net tangible
book value would be $5,592,300, or $.63 per common share, after deducting selling agents’ discounts, commissions, a non-accountable expense allowance
and expenses of this offering totaling approximately $1,621,000. This represents an immediate increase in Pro Forma As Adjusted net tangible book value of
$.44 per share to our existing stockholders and an immediate dilution of $11.37 per share to investors purchasing shares in this offering.

The following table illustrates the dilution to new investors on a per-share basis:

Offering price per share $ 12.00
Pro Forma net tangible book value per share before this offering $ 0.19
Increase in Pro Forma As Adjusted net tangible book value per share attributable to investors purchasing
shares in this offering 0.44
Pro Forma As Adjusted net tangible book value per share after this offering 0.63
Dilution in Pro Forma As Adjusted net tangible book value per share to investors in this offering $ 11.37
The following table sets forth information with respect to our existing stockholders and the new investors as follows:
Average
Price Per
Shares Purchased Total Consideration Share
Number Percent Amount Percent
Existing stockholders 9,321,045 93.6% $ 7,488,970 49.3% $ .80
New investors 641,983 6.4 7,703,796 50.7 12.00
Total 9,963,028 100.0% $ 15,192,766 100.0%
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth our capitalization as of December 31, 2016 on an actual basis, on a pro forma basis to give effect to the events

described in footnote (1), below, and on a pro forma as adjusted basis to give effect to the events described in footnote (2), below.

Pro Forma
Actual Pro Forma ( As Adjusted @

Term Notes payable, net of unamortized debt discount and unamortized

deferred financing costs totaling $359,894 actual and $894,799 pro forma $ 2,610,106 $ 4,105,201 $ —
Net advances under Credit Facility, net of unamortized debt discount

and unamortized deferred financing costs totaling $163,512 actual;

$272,012 proforma, and $272,012 pro forma as adjusted 3,316,488 3,702,988 3,702,988

$ 5,926,594 $ 7,808,189 $ 3,702,988

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; 10,000,000 shares

authorized; none issued or outstanding $ — $ — $ —

Class A Common stock, $0.0001 par value, 70,000,000 shares

authorized, 893,369 shares issued and outstanding actual;
1,249,090 shares issued and outstanding pro forma; 1,891,073
shares issued and outstanding, pro forma as adjusted 89 124 189

Class B Common stock, $0.0001 par value, 20,000,000 shares

authorized, 8,071,955 shares issued and outstanding actual,

pro forma, and pro forma as adjusted 807 807 807
Additional paid-in capital 4,074,646 7,257,283 13,339,711
Accumulated deficit (450,996) (450,996) (450,996)

Total stockholders' equity 3,624,546 6,807,218 12,889,711

Total capitalization $ 9,551,140 $ 13,939,300 $ 16,592,699

(1) The "Pro Forma" information gives effect to net proceeds of approximately $3.5 million of securities in the 2017 Equity Private Placement, the Debt

@

Private Placement, and two individual equity private placements after December 31, 2016, and through June 13, 2017. Total stockholder's equity includes
Class A common stock issued pursuant to the Collaboration Agreement. The Pro Forma information also includes 102,060 shares of Class A common
stock issued in June 2017 pursuant to the conversion of an aggregate principal amount of $0.9 million of our Term Notes. The Pro Forma information
reflects net advances received under the Credit Facility of approximately $0.5 million after December 31, 2016, and through June 13, 2017. In March
2017, the Credit Facility was amended to increase the net advances available to the Company to $4.5 million. The 2017 Equity Private Placement, the
Debt Private Placement, the Credit Facility, the Term Note conversions to Class A common stock, and other private placements are described in
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity and Capital Resources" and elsewhere herein. The
Pro Forma information for the Term Notes sold in the Debt Private Placement after December 31, 2016, includes an additional debt discount to the
carrying amount of the Term Notes payable and a corresponding credit to additional paid-in capital of approximately $0.3 million, which represents the
estimated fair value of the warrants issued with the Term Notes. In addition, the Pro Forma information with respect to the Credit Facility includes an
additional debt discount to the carrying amount of the Credit Facility and a corresponding credit to additional paid-in capital of approximately $0.1
million, which represents the estimated fair value of the additional warrants issued pursuant to the increase in the amount available under the Credit
Facility.

If payment obligations are still outstanding under the Credit Facility at its maturity date, or if prior to the maturity date there is an event of default as
prescribed by the Credit Facility, then at the Company’s option, (a) all principal and interest may be exchanged into shares of Class A common stock of
the Company on the same terms as the Company’s most recently completed equity financing; provided, that under no circumstances shall the pre-money
valuation used for this exchange be less than $52,560,000, (b) the maturity date of the Credit Facility may be extended as happened in January 2017 by
mutual agreement of all parties, or (c) all principal and interest will be paid in full.

The “Pro Forma As Adjusted” information gives effect to the sale of all of the Shares by us in the offering and the application of the estimated net
proceeds derived therefrom (including repayment of all remaining Term Notes), but does not give effect to the sale of any Additional Shares. We will pay
all of the expenses of the offering (other than the selling agents’ discounts and commissions of 4% payable with respect to the Selling Stockholder Shares
sold in this offering), but will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of the Selling Stockholder Shares in this offering.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our consolidated financial condition and results of operations should be read together with our consolidated
financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this offering circular. Some of the information contained in this discussion and analysis or set
forth elsewhere in this offering circular, including information with respect to our plans and strategy for our business and related financing, includes forward-
looking statements involving risks and uncertainties and should be read together with the "Risk Factors" section of this offering circular for a discussion of
important factors which could cause actual results to differ materially from the results described in or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in
the following discussion and analysis.

Business Overview
CSS Entertainment curates and shares video stories that bring out the best of the human spirit.

We create and distribute our video content under the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand. Since our inception in January 2015, our business has grown
rapidly and is profitable. Our 2016 revenue was $8.1 million, as compared to 2015 revenue of $1.5 million. We had net income of $0.8 million in 2016, as
compared to a net loss of $0.8 million in 2015. Our 2016 Adjusted EBITDA was $3.8 million, as compared to 2015 Adjusted EBITDA of $0.0 million.

We are aggressively growing our business through a combination of organic growth, licensing and distribution arrangements, acquisitions, and
strategic relationships.

We partner with highly-regarded independent producers to develop and produce our video content. Using this approach provides us with access to a
diverse pool of creative ideas for new video content projects and allows us to scale our business on a variable cost basis. We seek committed funding prior to
moving forward with a project. Since we seek to secure both the committed funding and production capabilities for our video content prior to moving forward
with a project, we have high visibility into the profitability of a particular project before committing to proceed with such project. In addition, we take limited
financial risk on developing our projects (usually less than $25,000 per project).

We are a Delaware corporation formed on May 4, 2016. CSS Productions, our predecessor and immediate parent company, was formed in December
2014 by CSS, a publishing and consumer products company, and initiated operations in January 2015. We were formed to create a discrete entity focused on
video content opportunities using the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand. The Chicken Soup for the Soul brand is owned and licensed to us by CSS. CSS
Holdings is the parent company of CSS and our ultimate parent company.

In connection with our succession to the operations of CSS Productions, and pursuant to the terms of the Contribution Agreement and Trema
Contribution Agreement described in “Certain Transactions — Contribution Agreements,” all video content assets owned by CSS and any of its affiliates,
including all rights and obligations related thereto, were transferred to us in May 2016. Thereafter, CSS Productions’ operating activities substantially ceased
and CSS Entertainment continued the business operations of producing and distributing the video content.

Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We use a non-GAAP financial measure to evaluate our results of operations and as a supplemental indicator of our operating performance. The non-
GAAP financial measure that we use is Adjusted EBITDA. Adjusted EBITDA is considered a non-GAAP financial measure as defined by Regulation G
promulgated by the SEC under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Due to the significance of non-cash and non-recurring expenses recognized in the
years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the likelihood of material non-cash and non-recurring expenses to occur in future periods, we believe that this
non-GAAP financial measure will enhance the understanding of our historical and current financial results. Further, we believe that Adjusted EBITDA
enables our board of directors and management to analyze and evaluate financial and strategic planning decisions that will directly effect operating decisions
and investments. The presentation of Adjusted EBITDA should not be construed as an inference that our future results will be unaffected by unusual or non-
recurring items or by non-cash items. This non-GAAP financial measure should be considered in addition to, rather than as a substitute for, our actual
operating results included in our consolidated financial statements. See “Use of non-GAAP Financial Measure” below for further discussion.
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Results of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2015
Basis of Presentation

CSS began evaluating the possibility of using the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand for the development, distribution and sale of its video content in
early 2014. Our predecessor and parent company, CSS Productions was formed in December 2014 to pursue video content opportunities using the Chicken
Soup for the Soul brand. CSS Productions began operations in January 2015. As such, and in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin Topic 1 B, opening
members’ deficit as of January 1, 2015 includes $478,666 of pre-formation allocated expenses for the year ended December 31, 2014. The pre-formation
allocated expenses were derived from the financial statements of CSS, based on allocations of costs incurred attributable to the development of the video
content business prior to the formation of the CSS Productions.

This discussion of results of operations, affiliate resources and obligations, and liquidity and capital resources gives effect to the combined
consolidated results of CSS Entertainment and the results of CSS Productions prior to CSS Entertainment succeeding to its operations.

These results should be read together with our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included elsewhere in this offering circular
and together with Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates included below.

Revenue
Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015
Television $ 7,341,918 $ 1,506,818
Online 776,714 -
Total Revenue $ 8,118,632 $ 1,506,818

Television revenue

Television revenue was 90% and 100% of total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2016 (“2016”) and for the year ended December 31, 2015
(“2015”), respectively. Our television revenue includes revenue generated from the exhibition of our long-form video content on television. Our television
revenue for 2016 and 2015 was derived from our two episodic television series. Revenue is recognized as each individual episode becomes available for
delivery or becomes available for broadcast.

During 2016, our first episodic television series, Hidden Heroes, completed its first season on the CBS. The Hidden Heroes slate is comprised of
half-hour episodes totaling 26 episodes, each airing twice over a 52-week season. Hidden Heroes’ first season premiered on CBS in October 2015 and its
season one episodes continued to air through September 2016. In October 2016, Hidden Heroes season two began airing on CBS and will continue airing
through September 2017. The sponsor for Hidden Heroes, a stockholder of our company, has agreed to fund the series for a third season.

During 2016, our second episodic television series, Project Dad, was produced and aired on Discovery’s Discovery Life network in November and
December 2016. The Project Dad slate for season one is comprised of eight, one-hour episodes. The show premiered on Discovery Life in November 2016,
and aired on Discovery’s TLC network and Discovery Family in 2017. The sponsor for Project Dad has agreed to fund a different parenting series, which is
expected to air in the fourth quarter of 2017.
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During 2015, Hidden Heroes began airing in October and revenue was recognized for the individual episodes that were delivered or were available
for broadcast by December 31, 2015. We also received a $75,000 non-refundable deposit pursuant to an extension option agreement for a feature film. The
feature film has not started production and there is no commitment or contract to produce a feature film.

Because of our current stage of development, we generate a significant portion of our annual revenue in the fourth quarter of our fiscal year. We
anticipate that our revenue may be more evenly distributed throughout the year in the future as we expand our business and diversify our video content
offerings. Until such time, our quarter to quarter financial results may not be comparable within any single fiscal year or from fiscal year to fiscal year.

Online revenue

Online revenue was 10% and 0% of total revenue for 2016 and 2015, respectively. Our online revenue includes revenue generated from the
exhibition of our video content online, primarily our short-form video content, including Sips and video content net revenue through our Distribution
Agreement with A Plus. See “Affiliate Resources and Obligations,” below for further discussion.

Revenue from Sips and our other online video content is recognized as the video content is posted on the applicable web site for viewing.

Under the terms of the A Plus Distribution Agreement, we receive a net distribution fee equal to 40% of gross revenue generated by the distribution
of the A Plus video content, and 15% of gross revenue generated by the distribution of the A Plus editorial content, until the A Plus Advance (as defined and
described in “—Affiliate Resources and Obligations,” below) has been repaid to us in full. After full repayment, the foregoing distribution fee payable to us
will be reduced to 30% and 5%, respectively, and A Plus shall receive the remainder (“A Plus Revenue”) of such gross revenue. We recoup the A Plus
Advance by retaining our fee plus the portion of gross revenue otherwise payable by the Company to A Plus and applying such A Plus Revenue to the
recoupment of the A Plus Advance. We will not pay A Plus any A Plus Revenue until such time as the A Plus Advance has been recouped in full by us.
Producer payments due to A Plus through the Distribution Agreement are recorded as a reduction to our recorded amount of revenue.

Cost of Revenue

Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015
Programming costs $ 3,155,668 $ 653,795

We initially capitalize our programming costs incurred to produce and develop our long-form and short-form video content. We capitalize all direct
production and financing costs, capitalized interest, when applicable, and production overhead.

The costs of producing our long-form and short-form video contents are amortized using the individual-film-forecast method. This method provides
that costs are amortized to cost of revenue in the proportion that the current period’s revenue compares to our estimate of the ultimate revenue expected to be
recognized, which may span several years.

For 2016, 96% of programming costs included in cost of revenue consisted of amortization of programming costs for Hidden Heroes seasons one

and two and Project Dad season one, to the extent the episodes were recognized as revenue. For 2015, all programming costs included in our cost of revenue
consisted of amortization of programming costs for Hidden Heroes seasons one, to the extent the episodes were recognized as revenue.
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Operating expenses

Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015
Selling, general and administrative $ 2,370,912 $ 1,327,749
Management and license fees due to affiliate 811,863 278,750
Total Operating Expenses $ 3,182,775 $ 1,606,499

Selling, general and administrative expenses

For 2016, our selling, general and administrative expenses consisted primarily of non-cash share-based compensation expense of $1,542,044 or 65%
of total selling, general and administrative expense. In addition, payroll and related benefits and professional fees totaled $458,605 and $172,165,
respectively. These three expense categories made up 91% of total selling general and administrative expenses in 2016. The non-cash share-based
compensation expense of $1,542,041 resulted primarily from the issuance of shares to a former officer of the Company. We believe that selling, general and
administrative expenses will increase in 2017 and beyond, as a result of costs associated with being a publicly traded company.

For 2015, our selling, general and administrative expenses consisted primarily of non-cash share-based compensation expense, payroll and related
benefits and professional fees, and totaled $792,000, $360,751 and $93,176, respectively, or 64% of total selling, general and administrative expenses. These
three expense categories made up 94% of total selling general and administrative expenses in 2015. The non-cash share-based compensation expense of
$792,000 (60% of total selling, general and administrative expense) resulted from the issuance of certain Class B membership interests in CSS Productions to
Trema in satisfaction of certain rights Trema owned in the Subject Assets.

See “~Use of non-GAAP Financial Measure,” below for further discussion relating to selling, general and administrative expenses.

In addition, during 2016 and 2015 we had a consulting agreement with a company that provided executive production services to us, including all
activities necessary to establish and maintain relationships regarding our proposed feature length film and a possible talk show and, to oversee the production
of each. The consulting agreement was with a writer and director of feature films who is the son of our chairman and chief executive officer. We made
payments under the consulting agreement of $35,000 and $60,000 for 2016 and 2015, respectively. In July 2016, the company and the provider of executive
production services mutually agreed to terminate the agreement.

Management and license fees due to affiliate

During 2016, we paid $811,863 to CSS for management and license fees incurred relating to the CSS License Agreement and the CSS Management
Agreement (see “—Affiliate Resources and Obligations,” below). These fees totaled 10% of our total revenue.

During 2015, we paid CSS 4% and 1% in management services and license fees, respectively, based on cash revenue collected. The total fees paid in
2015 were $278,750. These fees were paid relating to a management and license fee agreement between CSS Productions and CSS in effect during 2015.
These 2015 agreements were terminated and replaced with the CSS License Agreement and CSS Management Agreement noted above, as part of the
formation of CSS Entertainment.
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Interest expense

During 2016, we recorded interest expense totaling $560,069. Of this amount, $110,091, or 20%, was paid in cash. The cash interest paid on the
Credit Facility and the Term Notes totaled $107,022, and $3,069 was paid to CSS as interest on the CSS License Note for the time it was outstanding (see “—
CSS License Agreement,” below). During 2016, we issued Class W warrants to the lender under our Credit Facility and to the purchasers of the Term Notes.
We recorded the fair value of the Class W warrants issued as a discount to the carrying value of the Credit Facility and the Term Notes. At the time of
issuance of the Class W warrants, the fair value totaled $863,371. During 2016, we recorded the amortization of the debt discount to interest expense in the
amount of $383,712, or 69% of total interest expense reported for 2016. The unamortized balance of $479,659 will be charged to interest expense during
2017. Also during 2016, we charged $40,859 of deferred financing costs to interest expense, or 7% of total interest expense reported for 2016. See “~Use of
non-GAAP Financial Measure,” below for further discussion relating to interest expense. The Credit Facility had not been established and the Term Notes had
not been sold during 2015, therefore there was no interest expense in 2015.

Provision for income taxes

Our provision for income taxes consists of federal and state income taxes. We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for future tax
consequences attributable to differences between our financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. We
measure deferred tax assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to reverse. We recognize the effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities resulting from a change in tax rates in income in the period that includes the
date of the change.

We were formed on May 4, 2016 as a C corporation for federal and state income tax purposes. As such, we are required to file our first tax returns
for the year ended December 31, 2016. For 2016, our provision for income taxes consists of federal and state taxes that are deferred until future periods. The
taxes deferred until future periods total $439,000. The primary reason that our taxes are not currently payable is that all programming costs are deductible for
federal and state income tax purposes. A portion of our programming costs incurred during 2016 remain on our balance sheet and are amortized to future
periods for accounting purposes, but are currently deductible for income tax purposes. In addition, we have net operating losses of approximately $1,049,000
that expire in 2036. The ultimate realization of the net operating losses is dependent upon our future taxable income, if any, and may be limited in any one
year by alternative minimum tax rules.

There is no provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2015, as CSS Productions had elected to be treated as a partnership for
federal and state income tax purposes and, accordingly, no provision is made for income taxes. Any taxable income or loss for CSS Productions during 2015
is passed along to its members as CSS Productions is a limited liability company.

Affiliate Resources and Obligations
CSS License Agreement

In May 2016, we entered into a trademark and intellectual property license agreement with CSS, which we refer to as the “CSS License Agreement.”
Under the terms of the CSS License Agreement, we have been granted a perpetual, exclusive, worldwide license to produce and distribute video content using
the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand and related content, such as stories published in the Chicken Soup for the Soul books.

We paid CSS a one-time license fee of $5 million comprised of a $1.5 million cash payment and the concurrent issuance to CSS of the CSS License
Note, having a principal amount of $3.5 million and bearing interest at 0.5% per annum. The CSS License Note has been repaid as of December 31, 2016. See
“~Liquidity and Capital Resources,” below.

We also pay CSS an incremental recurring license fee equal to 4% of our gross revenue for each calendar quarter, and a marketing fee of 1% of our
gross revenue for each calendar quarter, with each quarterly fee payable on or prior to the 45th day after the end of the calendar quarter to which it relates.
Under the terms of the CSS License Agreement, the first quarterly fee was payable by us with respect to the quarter ended March 31, 2016, as CSS had
already been rendering services to our predecessor with respect to the video content business. Provided that the CSS License Agreement remains in place,
CSS has agreed that it will not engage, and will not cause or permit its subsidiaries (other than us) to engage, in the production or distribution of video
content, including that which is unrelated to the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand, except in connection with the marketing of their other products and
services.

We believe that the terms and conditions of the CSS License Agreement, which provides us with the rights to use the trademark and intellectual
property in connection with our video content, are more favorable to us than any similar agreement we could have negotiated with an independent third party.
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CSS Management Agreement

In May 2016, we entered into a management services agreement, that has an initial term of five years and automatically renews for additional one-
year terms at the discretion of the parties thereto, which we refer to as the “CSS Management Agreement.” Under the terms of the CSS Management
Agreement, we are provided with the broad operational expertise of CSS and its subsidiaries and personnel, including the services of our chairman and chief
executive officer, Mr. Rouhana, our vice chairman and chief strategy officer, Mr. Seaton, our senior brand advisor and director, Ms. Newmark, and our chief
financial officer, Mr. Pess. The CSS Management Agreement also provides for services, such as accounting, legal, marketing, management, data access and
back-office systems, and provides us with office space and equipment usage.

We pay CSS a management fee equal to 5% of our gross revenue for each calendar quarter, with each quarterly payable on or prior the 45th day after
the end of the calendar quarter to which it relates. The first quarterly fee was payable by us with respect to the quarter ended March 31, 2016, as CSS had
already been rendering services to our predecessor with respect to the video content business.

In addition, for any sponsorship which is arranged by CSS or its affiliates for (i) our video content or (ii) a multi-element transaction for which we
receive a portion of such revenue and CSS receives the remaining revenue (for example, a transaction that relates to both our video content and CSS’ printed
products), we shall pay a sales commission to CSS equal to 20% of the portion of such revenue we receive. Each sales commission shall be paid within 30
days of the end of the month in which we receive it. If CSS collects the entire fee from such multi-element transaction, CSS will remit our portion of such fee
to us after deducting its sales commission.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, we recognized $405,932 of expense under this agreement.

We believe that the terms and conditions of the CSS Management Agreement are more favorable and cost effective to us than if we hired the full
staff to operate the company.

A Plus Distribution Agreement

In September 2016, we entered into the A Plus Distribution Agreement. A Plus develops and distributes high quality, empathetic short-form videos
and articles to millions of people worldwide. The A Plus Distribution Agreement has an initial term ending in September 2023. Under the terms of the A Plus
Distribution Agreement, we have the exclusive worldwide rights to distribute all video content (in any and all formats) and all editorial content (including
articles, photos and still images) created, produced, edited or delivered by A Plus. Under the terms of the A Plus Distribution Agreement, we paid A Plus an
advance of $3 million (the “A Plus Advance”). We recoup the A Plus Advance by retaining the portion of gross revenue otherwise payable by the Company
to A Plus and applying such A Plus Revenue to the recoupment of the A Plus Advance. We will not pay A Plus its portion of gross revenue until such time as
the A Plus Advance has been recouped in full. A Plus is a digital media company founded, chaired, and partially owned by actor and investor Ashton Kutcher.
Mr. Kutcher owns 23%, third parties own 2%, and our affiliate, Chicken Soup for the Soul Digital, LLC, owns 75%, of A Plus.

Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In addition to the results reported in accordance GAAP, we use a non-GAAP financial measure, which is not recognized under GAAP, as a
supplemental indicator of our operating performance. This non-GAAP financial measure is provided to enhance the readers understanding of our historical
and current financial performance. Management believes that this measure provides useful information in that it excludes amounts that are not indicative of
our core operating results and ongoing operations and provide a more consistent basis for comparison between periods. The non-GA AP financial measure that
we currently use is Adjusted EBITDA which is defined as follows:

“Adjusted EBITDA” means earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and share-based compensation expense, and also includes
adjustments for other identified charges such as severance costs for a former officer who was not replaced and the costs incurred to form our Company and to
prepare for this offering of our common stock to the public. Identified charges also include the cost of maintaining a board of directors prior to being a
publicly traded company. After we are a publicly traded company, director fees will be deducted from Adjusted EBITDA. Adjusted EBITDA is not an
earnings measure recognized by GAAP and does not have a standardized meaning prescribed by GAAP; accordingly, Adjusted EBITDA may not be
comparable to similar measures presented by other companies. Management believes Adjusted EBITDA to be a meaningful indicator of our performance that
provides useful information to investors regarding our financial condition and results of operations. The most comparable GAAP measure is operating
income.
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Reconciliation of Historical Results to Adjusted EBITDA

Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015
Net income (loss), as reported $ 781,133 $ (753,463)
Provision for income taxes 439,000 -
Interest expense, net of interest income (a) 560,056 13)
Share-based compensation expense (b) 1,542,041 792,000
Severance costs 225,828 -
Organization costs and directors costs (@) 228,615 -
Adjusted EBITDA $ 3,776,673  $ 38,524

(a) Includes non-cash amortization of debt discounts and amortization of deferred financing costs of $424,571 for the year ended December 31, 2016.
(b) For 2016, this includes the fair value of shares of Class A common stock at the date of issuance, issued to a former officer of our company, to our
outside directors and to individuals for services rendered. For 2015, this includes a share-based payment resulting from the issuance of certain Class B
membership interests in CSS Productions to Trema in satisfaction of certain rights Trema owned in the Subject Assets.

(c) Includes the costs incurred to form our company and to prepare for this offering of our common stock to the public. This includes the costs of

maintaining a board of directors prior to being a publicly traded company.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Credit Facility

On May 12, 2016, we entered into the Credit Facility with the facility lender, an affiliate of Mr. Rouhana. Under the terms of the Credit Facility, as
amended as of December 12, 2016, January 24, 2017 and March 27, 2017, we may borrow, repay and reborrow up to an aggregate of $4.5 million through
June 30, 2018. Our payment obligations under the Credit Facility are senior obligations and secured by a first priority security interest in all of our assets, thus
having the same priority as the security interest granted by us to the holders of the Term Notes. The proceeds of the loans made under the Credit Facility are
used by us for working capital and general corporate purposes.

In connection with our formation in May 2016, and our acquisition of all video content and related assets owned by CSS and its affiliates, we
borrowed $1.5 million under the Credit Facility to pay a portion of the $5 million one-time payment required under the CSS License Agreement.

Loans under the Credit Facility bear interest at 5% per annum, payable monthly in arrears in cash. We are also obligated to pay the facility lender an
annual fee equal to 0.75% of the unused portion of the Credit Facility. Principal under the Credit Facility (and all accrued but unpaid interest thereon) shall be
paid by us on or prior to June 30, 2018 (the “Facility Maturity Date”). If the Credit Facility is still outstanding at the Facility Maturity Date, or, if prior to that
date there is an event of default as prescribed by the Credit Facility, then (a) all principal and interest may be exchanged into shares of Class A common stock
of the Company on the same terms as the Company’s most recently completed equity financing, provided that under no circumstances shall the pre-money
valuation used for this exchange be less than $52,560,000, (b) the Facility Maturity Date may be extended as happened in January 2017 by mutual agreement
of all parties, or (c) all principal and interest will be paid in full.

As of June 13, 2017, we have outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility of approximately $4.0 million. A portion of the proceeds of this
offering may be used to pay, in whole or in part, the balance due under the Credit Facility, in which case the amount repaid will be available to be re-
borrowed.

Debt Private Placement

Pursuant to our financing plan prior to this initial public offering, we sold a total of $5.0 million of senior secured term notes (“Term Notes™) and
Class W warrants in a private placement. Beginning in July 2016 and through December 31, 2016, we sold in a private placement (“Debt Private Placement”)
to accredited investors $3.0 million aggregate principal amount of Term Notes and Class W warrants to purchase an aggregate of 252,450 shares of Class A
common stock. From January 1, 2017 through May 3, 2017, we sold an additional $2.0 million aggregate principal amount of Term Notes and Class W
warrants to purchase an additional aggregate of 172,550 shares of Class A common stock in the Debt Private Placement.

The Term Notes bear interest at 5% per annum, payable monthly in arrears in cash. The principal of the Term Notes (including all accrued, but
unpaid interest thereon) were originally payable by us on the earlier of (a) June 30, 2017 and (b) the third business day following consummation of (i) an
initial public offering (including this offering) and (ii) any future equity offering (other than as a result of the exercise of our Class W warrants) resulting in
gross proceeds to us of at least $7 million (the “Term Notes Original Maturity Date”). The Term Notes and Class W warrants have the terms described herein
under “Description of Securities — Term Notes” and “— Class W Warrants,” respectively.

In June 2017, we requested that the holders of our Term Notes extend the maturity date thereof to the earlier of (a) July 31, 2017 and (b) the date that
is three business days following the consummation of the initial closing of the IPO (such earlier date, the “Term Notes Extended Maturity Date”). As of the
date of this offering circular, all holders (100%) of the Term Notes have agreed to the Term Notes Extended Maturity Date. In connection with the extension,
we offered all holders of our Term Notes the opportunity to purchase shares of our Class A common stock at $9.00 per share (with three Class Z warrants also
being issued to them for each ten shares purchased) through the payment of cash or conversion of principal under their Term Notes. As of the date of this
offering circular, holders of $0.9 million aggregate principal amount of the Term Notes, including three of our executive officers, have elected to convert such
principal amount into an aggregate of 102,060 shares of Class A common stock and 30,618 Class Z warrants. As of the date of this offering circular, a total of
$4.1 million principal amount of the Term Notes remains due on the Term Notes Extended Maturity Date.

A portion of the proceeds of this offering may be used to pay, in whole or part, the principal (and any interest due and unpaid thereon) of the Term
Notes.

Equity Private Placements

Pursuant to our financing plan prior to this initial public offering, we sold a total of approximately $2.5 million of Class A common stock and
warrants in private placements. Beginning in June 2016 and through November 2016, we sold in a separate private placement (the “2016 Equity Private
Placement”) to accredited investors $1.0 million of units, consisting of an aggregate of 170,960 shares of Class A common stock and Class W warrants to
purchase an aggregate of 51,288 shares of Class A common stock.

Beginning in December 2016 and through March 2017, we sold in a separate private placement (the “2017 Equity Private Placement”) to accredited
investors $975,710 of units, consisting of an aggregate of 150,112 shares of Class A common stock and Class W warrants to purchase an aggregate of 45,034
shares of Class A common stock.

During May and June 2017, we sold in two separate equity private placements, a total of an aggregate of 55,000 shares of Class A common stock

and Class Z warrants to purchase an aggregate of 100,000 shares of Class A common stock.
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Other than the Credit Facility, we do not have any available credit, bank financing or other external sources of liquidity. In order to meet our
commitments, to expand our operations and to fund our activities, we need to obtain additional capital. The net proceeds from this offering, as well as private
placements of debt and equity completed prior to the effective date of this offering, should be sufficient to meet our cash requirements for at least the next
twelve months. However, any projections of future cash needs and cash flows are subject to substantial uncertainty. Even if we are able to raise the funds
required, it is possible that we could incur unexpected costs and expenses in the future, fail to collect significant amounts that may be owed to us, or
experience unexpected cash requirements that would force us to seek additional financing. If we seek additional financing, we would likely issue additional
equity or debt securities, and as a result, stockholders may experience additional dilution or the new debt or equity securities may have rights, preferences or
privileges more favorable than those of existing holders of our debt or equity. In this event, if additional financing is not available or is not available on
acceptable terms, we may be required to delay, reduce the scope of or eliminate our video content production plans.

Over the next twelve months and assuming our Term Notes have been repaid from the proceeds of the offering, we expect to use the funds from this
offering for the following purposes:

financing production and associated development and operating costs and expenses for our video content;
strategic acquisitions, including acquiring video content distribution companies, assets and video content libraries;
servicing our obligations under the Credit Facility; and
working capital and general corporate purposes.
We cannot estimate the amounts to be used for each purpose set forth above. We also reserve the right to change the use of the proceeds in
accordance with our strategic plans or if all Shares are not sold in this offering. Accordingly, our management will have significant flexibility in allocating the

net proceeds of this offering.

Cash flow summary information is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities $ (2,479,473) $ 2,594,301
Investing activities (5,000,000) -
Financing activities 7,982,642 (2,590,223)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 503,169 $ 4,078

Our operating activities required a net use of cash in 2016 totaling $2,479,473. The net use of cash in 2016 was primarily due to our investment of
$5,120,254 in programming costs for our video content that was on air and in-development, and to complete episodes of Hidden Heroes and Project Dad.
This investment in programming costs was offset, in part, by the amortization of such costs totaling $3,155,668, which was included in cost of revenue in
2016. In addition, operating cash was generated from an increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses of $671,337, but this was more than offset by a
decrease in deferred revenue of $3,428,571.

Our operating activities generated net cash in 2015 totaling $2,594,301. The net cash generated in 2015 was primarily due to the receipt of
sponsorship payments and other advances of $3,500,000 for video content to be produced. Sponsorship payments and other advances received were offset, in
part, by our investment of $1,597,364 in programming costs for our video content in development and to complete episodes of Hidden Heroes season one,
which began airing on CBS in October 2015. Our investment in programming costs was offset, in part, by the amortization of such costs totaling $646,295 for
Hidden Heroes, which is included in cost of revenue in 2015.
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Our investing activities required a net use of cash in 2016 totaling $5,000,000. This was due to our purchase of the perpetual trademark and
intellectual property license from CSS for $5,000,000. There was no net cash used in or provided by investing activities for 2015.

Our financing activities generated net cash in 2016 totaling $7,982,642. The net cash generated in 2016 was primarily due to net advances under the
Credit Facility of $3,480,000, the sale of Term Notes of $2,970,000 pursuant to the Debt Private Placement, and $1,075,809 of gross cash generated from the
sale of Class A common stock in the 2016 Equity Private Placement and 2017 Equity Private Placement. The cash generated was offset, in part, by stock
issuance costs and financing costs of $282,206.

Our financing activities required a net use of cash in 2015 totaling $2,590,223. The cash used in financing activities was primarily due to license
payments made by us to CSS under the CSS License Agreement.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
We have significant cash obligations and commitments as follows:
to repay the Term Notes at the Term Notes Maturity Date,
to make interest payments in accordance with the terms of the Term Notes,

to make quarterly payments to CSS based on reported gross revenue in accordance with the CSS License Agreement and the CSS
Management Agreement,

to make interest payments in accordance with the terms of the Credit Facility,
to repay the Credit Facility in full no later than June 30, 2018, subject to its terms.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our critical accounting policies and estimates are those related to our revenue recognition, the fair value of financial instruments, share-based
compensation expense, our programming costs and how we account for the fair value of financial instruments.

Use of Estimates

When we prepare our consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP, we must make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during each reporting
period. Our significant estimates include those related to revenue recognition, accounts receivable allowances, intangible assets, share-based compensation
expense, income taxes and programming costs. Actual results included in this offering circular, and in future financial results, could differ from the original
estimates.

Revenue recognition
We recognize revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the fee is fixed and determinable, delivery has occurred, and collection of
the resulting receivable is deemed probable. For episodic television programs, revenue is recognized as each episode becomes available for delivery or

becomes available for broadcast, and for short-form online videos, revenue is recognized when the videos are posted to a website for viewing. Revenue from
the distribution of short-form online media content is included in online revenue in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
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Fair value

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. To increase the comparability of fair value measurements, a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs
used in the valuation methodologies, is as follows:

Level 1 - Valuations based on quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in active markets.

Level 2 - Valuations based on observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets and
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 - Valuations based on unobservable inputs reflecting our own assumptions, consistent with reasonably available assumptions made
by other market participants. These valuations require significant judgment.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the fair value of our financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and accrued expenses and accrued programming costs, approximated their carrying value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Programming Costs

Programming costs include the unamortized costs of completed, in-process, or in-development long-form and short-form video content. For video
content we produce, capitalized costs include all direct production and financing costs, capitalized interest when applicable, and production overhead.

The costs of producing our video content are amortized using the individual-film-forecast method. These costs are accrued and amortized in the
proportion that current period’s revenue bears to management’s estimate of ultimate revenue expected to be recognized from each production.

For an episodic television series, the period over which ultimate revenue is estimated cannot exceed ten years following the date of delivery of the
first episode, or, if still in production, five years from the date of delivery of the most recent episode, if later.

Programming costs are stated at the lower of amortized cost or estimated fair value. The valuation of programming costs is reviewed on a title-by-
title basis, when an event or change in circumstances indicates that the fair value may be less than its unamortized cost and the valuation is based on a
discounted cash flows (“DCF”) methodology with assumptions for cash flows. Key inputs employed in the DCF methodology include estimates of a
program’s ultimate revenue and costs as well as a discount rate. The discount rate utilized in the DCF is based on the weighted average cost of capital of the
Company plus a risk premium representing the risk associated with producing a particular program. We perform an annual impairment analysis for
unamortized programming costs. Additional amortization is recorded in the amount by which the unamortized costs exceed the estimated fair value. Estimates
of future revenue involve measurement uncertainty and it is therefore possible that reductions in the carrying value of programming costs may be required as
a consequence of changes in management’s future revenue estimates.
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Included in cost of revenue in the consolidated statement of operations for 2016 and 2015, is amortization of programming costs totaling $3,155,668
and $646,295, respectively.

Share-based Payments

We account for share-based payments in accordance with the authoritative guidance issued on share-based compensation. Share-based compensation
expense is measured at the grant date, based on the fair value of the award, and is recognized as an expense over the requisite service period, net of estimated
forfeitures. We estimate the fair value of share-based payments using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. During 2016, share-based awards were issued
to a former officer of the Company, non-employee directors and individuals for services rendered and were recorded at their fair value. All share-based

awards were fulfilled with new shares of Class A common stock.

During 2015, we recorded share-based compensation for Class B membership interests issued to Trema in satisfaction of certain rights Trema owned
in the Subject Assets. We estimated the fair value of the share-based payment using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.

Controls and Procedures

We are not currently required to maintain an effective system of internal controls as defined by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. We will be
required to comply with the internal control requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2018. As of the date of this
offering circular, we have not completed an assessment, nor have our auditors tested our systems, of internal controls.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of May 15, 2017, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of Regulation S-K.
Effect of Inflation and Changes in Prices

We do not believe that inflation and changes in prices will have a material effect on our operations.
JOBS Act

On April 5, 2012, the JOBS Act was signed into law. The JOBS Act contains provisions that, among other things, relax certain reporting
requirements for qualifying public companies. We will qualify as an “emerging growth company” and under the JOBS Act will be allowed to comply with
new or revised accounting pronouncements based on the effective date for private (not publicly traded) companies. We are electing to delay the adoption of
new or revised accounting standards, and as a result, we may comply with new or revised accounting standards on the relevant dates on which adoption of

such standards is required for non-emerging growth companies. As such, our financial statements may not be comparable to companies that comply with
public company effective dates.
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BUSINESS
Overview
CSS Entertainment curates and shares video stories that bring out the best of the human spirit.

We create and distribute our video content under the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand. Since our inception in January 2015, our business has grown
rapidly and is profitable. Our 2016 revenue was $8.1 million, as compared to 2015 revenue of $1.5 million. We had net income of $0.8 million in 2016, as
compared to a net loss of $0.8 million in 2015. Our 2016 Adjusted EBITDA was $3.8 million, as compared to 2015 Adjusted EBITDA of $0.0 million.

We are aggressively growing our business through a combination of organic growth, licensing and distribution arrangements, acquisitions, and
strategic relationships.

In October 2015, we premiered our first show, Chicken Soup for the Soul’s Hidden Heroes on CBS. In 2016, we had two shows on the air, Hidden
Heroes and Project Dad, a Chicken Soup for the Soul Original, which aired on Discovery’s TLC network.

In September 2016, we entered into the A Plus Distribution Agreement with A Plus. The A Plus Distribution Agreement significantly expands our
ability to share our content by providing us access to A Plus’ celebrity influencers, including A Plus’ founder and chairman, Ashton Kutcher. These celebrity
influencers have more than 480 million followers combined.

In March 2017, we launched the CSS Network, our branded DTC network. The CSS Network will allow more consumers to view our growing
library of Chicken Soup for the Soul original and third-party video content on a fee-per-view, subscription, or advertising-supported basis.

In June 2017, we entered into a three-year collaboration agreement with Kutcher. Kutcher will serve as an executive producer and collaborate with
us on all business and creative elements of two new television series for us relating to the positive content of A Plus and the Chicken Soup for the Soup brand.

We believe that increasing consumer demand for hopeful and enduring real life stories will continue to drive our growth. We intend to continue to
expand our content offerings and distribution capabilities at our current rapid pace in order to bring the positive Chicken Soup for the Soul message to as
many people as possible.

Our Opportunity

Recent advancements in video, internet, and mobile technologies have reduced the barriers to entry for video content creation and distribution. These
changes in technology have meaningfully impacted consumer viewing habits. Traditional video content distribution channels, such as broadcast and cable
television networks, are losing ground to alternative distribution platforms, including internet-delivered networks, such as social media, and OTT and DTC
networks. This has fractionalized the viewing audience, making it more difficult for advertisers to reach their target audiences.

In addition, traditional cable subscriber fees and linear television advertising are coming under significant pressure as consumers migrate towards
“cord cutting,” “skinny bundles,” OTT, and DTC offerings. As these trends continue, we anticipate that many industry participants will face constrained
programming budgets and network failures. Recent examples of the effect of these trends include the shutdown in October 2016 of Pivot TV, a digital cable
and satellite television network targeted at young adults between 18 and 34 years old, and the announcement of the conversion of Esquire TV Network to a
digital-only service in January 2017. These trends are providing new opportunities not previously available with traditional linear broadcast and cable
networks, both domestically and internationally.

We believe that brands have become more important to attract viewers and sponsors and, accordingly, that an opportunity exists for companies that
have access to sustainable brands. These companies can exploit their brands to “break through the noise” presented by the wide array of consumer viewing
choices in order to provide video content that is readily identifiable to, and desired by, consumers. Companies such as Hallmark (family), Disney (family) and
National Geographic (nature) have been able to use their brands to present programming targeted at specific areas of interest and attract viewers seeking such
programming.

The Chicken Soup for the Soul Brand

We have an exclusive, perpetual and worldwide license from CSS to create and distribute our video content under the Chicken Soup for the Soul
brand.
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The Chicken Soup for the Soul brand is best known for its series of Chicken Soup for the Soul books, with more than 250 published titles. More than
500 million Chicken Soup for the Soul books have been sold worldwide during the past 23 years. The brand has garnered considerable awareness within its
highly-prized female demographic with more than 80% of social media followers of Chicken Soup for the Soul on Facebook, Twitter and Instagram being
women.

The Chicken Soup for the Soul brand has been experiencing significant growth in its media and social media presence:
The brand had more than 2.6 million combined Facebook fans as of March 2017, which is up approximately 28 times since December 2011.

The Chicken Soup for the Soul daily podcast, which was launched in February 2016, has had more than 1.4 million digital downloads since
inception.

The Chicken Soup for the Soul brand had over 10 billion content views (which include impressions, video views and podcast downloads) across all
platforms including Facebook, Twitter, YouTube and Instagram during the 12-month period ended March 31, 2017, with 1 billion content views in March
2017.

We believe the significant awareness and reach of the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand, the demographics to which the brand appeals, and the
growing social media presence and highly engaged fan base associated with the brand will translate into meaningful recognition and demand for our video
content offerings.

Distribution Agreement

We have an exclusive distribution relationship with A Plus. A Plus develops and distributes high quality, empathetic short-form videos and articles to
millions of people worldwide.

In September 2016, we entered into the A Plus Distribution Agreement. The A Plus Distribution Agreement has an initial term ending in September
2023. Under the terms of the A Plus Distribution Agreement, we have the exclusive worldwide rights to distribute all video content (in any and all formats)
and all editorial content (including articles, photos and still images) created, produced, edited or delivered by A Plus. Under the terms of the Distribution
Agreement, we were required to pay A Plus the A Plus Advance of $3 million. As of March 31, 2017, the A Plus Advance has been paid in full by us to A
Plus.

Under the terms of the A Plus Distribution Agreement, we receive a net distribution fee equal to 40% of gross revenue generated by the distribution
of the A Plus video content, and 15% of gross revenue generated by the distribution of the A Plus editorial content, until the A Plus Advance (as defined and
described in “—Affiliate Resources and Obligations,” below) has been repaid to us in full. After full repayment, the foregoing distribution fee payable to us
will be reduced to 30% and 5%, respectively, and A Plus shall receive the remainder (“A Plus Revenue”) of such gross revenue. We recoup the A Plus
Advance by retaining the portion of gross revenue otherwise payable by the Company to A Plus and applying such A Plus Revenue to the recoupment of the
A Plus Advance. We will not pay A Plus any A Plus Revenue until such time as the A Plus Advance has been recouped in full by us.

Collaboration Agreement and Strategic Investment

In June 2017, we entered into a three-year collaboration agreement (“Collaboration Agreement”) with Kutcher. Under the terms of the Collaboration
Agreement, Kutcher will serve as an executive producer and collaborate with us on all business and creative elements of two new television series for us
relating to the positive content of A Plus and the Chicken Soup for the Soup brand. As compensation for acting as executive producer, Kutcher was issued
shares of our Class A common stock, Class Z warrants to purchase additional shares of our Class A common stock and a significant profit participation in the
production and exploitation of the two series.

Concurrently with the execution of the Collaboration Agreement, Kutcher purchased additional shares of our Class A common stock and Class Z
Warrants to purchase additional shares.

Our Strategy

One of our fundamental objectives is to continue to grow our CSS Network as we continue to grow our content offerings to critical mass. Our
strategy is to build our library of video content through a combination of Chicken Soup for the Soul original video content and opportunistic acquisitions of
third-party video content libraries or other rights to video content as failing networks seek to monetize their library value. Industry dislocation is also enabling
us to purchase broadcast airtime in attractive time slots and on attractive terms to further exhibit our video content as networks seek to fill their schedules in
the face of declining budgets.

Our relationship with A Plus allows us to accelerate the growth of our video content offerings and to develop and distribute high quality, empathetic
short-form videos and articles to millions of people worldwide. The themes of the content developed and distributed by A Plus are complementary to the
Chicken Soup for the Soul brand. A Plus has celebrity influencers such as Ashton Kutcher, Britney Spears, Lil Wayne and George Takei among many others
with over 480 million combined followers.

We believe that having an established brand with strong awareness such as the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand, a clear and consistent message and a
reputation for high-quality, entertaining video content, will be a key differentiating factor that enables individuals to successfully locate the video content they
desire and allows providers to better reach their targeted audiences in an environment characterized by a proliferation of content creators and distribution
platforms and fractionalized audiences.
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The key elements of our strategy to seize our opportunity and drive growth over the next few years include:

growing our existing video content production and distribution business, by covering many themes (e.g., relationships, health and wellness and
positive living) consistent with the messaging of the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand in many formats (e.g., short-form, longer-form and
episodic);

enhancing our revenue potential from our short-form video content (including from our long-form video content by repurposing such video
content into short-form video content) for syndication through our short-form video content syndication platforms, including A Plus;

expanding our existing, and developing, new relationships with sponsors, television networks and independent producers to create new video
content in a variety of formats under, or which are consistent with, the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand;

building our library (including long-form video content, short-form video content and long-form content developed from our short-form content)
and acquiring third-party libraries of video content that are consistent with the messaging of the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand, which we
believe will offer the potential for additional revenue and profitability;

soliciting, aggregating and curating crowd-sourced video content that is consistent with the messaging of the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand
and creating related Chicken Soup for the Soul channels to display such crowd-sourced video content;

selling advertising on our CSS Networks;
formulating and implementing an e-commerce strategy for video content-related merchandising; and
seeking to opportunistically acquire video content production, distribution and related technology companies and/or assets.

We are seeking access to the public capital markets to avail ourselves of the capital resources provided by such capital markets and to establish our
common stock as a public currency to enable us to pursue these growth strategies.

Our Video Content

We utilize the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand, together with our management’s industry experience and expertise, to generate revenue through the
production and distribution of video content. Following our innovative business model, we seek to secure committed funding for the production costs of our
video content in advance of production through sponsorships, product integration and licensing fees received from corporations, foundations, video content
networks (e.g., cable, broadcast and online) and other organizations.

Corporate and foundation sponsors with which we work include Hilton Grand Vacations, American Humane, the Boniuk Foundation and the
Morgridge Family Foundation and we are currently in discussions with numerous others. We endeavor to retain meaningful back-end rights to our video
content in these relationships, which provides opportunities for improved profitability and enhances our library value.

We partner with highly-regarded independent producers to develop and produce our video content. Using this approach provides us with access to a
diverse pool of creative ideas for new video content projects and allows us to scale our business on a variable cost basis. We seek committed funding prior to
moving forward with a project.

We currently have producer agreements or arrangements in place with a number of these producers, including Litton Entertainment, a Hearst

company, Peacock Productions, an NBCUniversal company, and Soul Pancake, a company owned by Participant Media. We anticipate entering into
relationships with additional independent producers.
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Our long-form video content consists of 30 to 60 minute episodic programs typically distributed initially on traditional television or cable networks.
Our current long-form video content projects include:

Chicken Soup for the Soul’s Hidden Heroes (“Hidden Heroes”). The multi-award winning Hidden Heroes is hosted by Brooke Burke-Charvet
and is currently airing its second season on CBS. During its first season, the show averaged approximately one million viewers per original
episode and received multiple prestigious awards. A segment of Hidden Heroes can be seen at https://cssentertainment.com/hiddenheroes.
Hidden Heroes has been renewed for its second season and new episodes premiered in October 2016.

Chicken Soup for the Soul’s Project Dad. Our second long-form video content project is a show in which the camera follows three celebrity
dads as they put their careers on the sidelines and get to know their children, resulting in a humorous look at the pitfalls and joys of being a
father. The show is based on an original, on-going series produced by KBS, the flagship public service broadcaster in Korea. It is a top-rated
show in Korea, where more than 100 episodes have aired. The show is also popular in China, where more than 50 episodes of the Chinese
version have aired. We have rights to the format in all markets around the world except Korea, China and Turkey. The show premiered on
Discovery Life in November 2016, aired on Discovery’s TLC network and Discovery Family in 2017. A short overview of Project Dad can be
seen at https://cssentertainment.com/what-we-do/television/project-dad.

Paycation Homes. We have agreements-in-principal for our third long-form video content series called Paycation Homes with sponsors and
cable networks. This show gives viewers the information and inspiration needed to realize their dreams of using real estate entrepreneurship to
obtain financial success.

Our short-form video content, including our branded short-form video content known as Sips, is typically exhibited through online video content
distribution and social media platforms, such as YouTube, Facebook, Yahoo, Diply, Gateway Media, SheKnows, Rumble and Liquid Social among others, as
well as on the social media of Chicken Soup for the Soul and our sponsors. Our current short-form video content projects include:

Hilton Grand Vacation Sips. A series of seven short-form videos illustrating that a life without vacations is not complete. These Sips are
scheduled to be delivered in October 2016 and became available for viewing in January 2017. A recent Hilton Grand Vacations Sip can be seen
at https://cssentertainment.com/what-we-do/online-video/the-sip.

Emily Griffith Technical College Sips. A series of ten short-form videos highlighting the success in overcoming adversity of graduates of the
Emily Griffith Technical College. All ten Sips were funded by the Morgridge Family Foundation and delivered in June 2016. These Sips can be
viewed on the social media of Emily Griffiths Technical College and Chicken Soup for the Soul, as well as Rumble.

American Humane. A series of six Hidden Heroes integrations that are also being made available on A Plus. American Humane has agreed to
sponsor six additional integrations in season three of Hidden Heroes. A recent American Humane video can be seen at
https://test.cssentertainment.com/what-we-do/television.

We have an exciting pipeline of new long-form and short-form video content projects in various stages of development. For example, we have
entered into exclusive co-production agreements for two additional long-form shows with Peacock Productions, the non-fiction production division of
NBCUniversal.

Brand Licensing
Subject to the terms of the CSS License Agreement, we also seek opportunities to license use of the brand in connection with other video content

projects, including films. In these circumstances, we will maintain certain approval rights to ensure the project’s message is consistent with the Chicken Soup
for the Soul brand.
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Management and Affiliate Resources and Relationships

Our management team, led by our chairman and chief executive officer, William J. Rouhana, Jr., our vice chairman and chief strategy officer, Scott
W. Seaton, our senior brand advisor and director, and Amy L. Newmark, possesses extensive expertise in the technology, media and telecommunications
(“TMT?”) industries. Mr. Rouhana played a pioneering role in several innovative TMT companies, including Winstar Communications, Inc. (“Winstar”). As
chief executive officer, Mr. Rouhana built Winstar from a three-person start-up enterprise to a Nasdag-listed public company that employed approximately
5,000 people, serviced more than 1 million customers and generated annual revenue of approximately $1 billion. Mr. Seaton was a senior investment banker
covering companies in the TMT sectors for Credit Suisse First Boston, Bank of America and Oppenheimer & Co. and served as a director of Mediacom
Communications Corporation, currently the fifth largest cable television operator in the United States. Ms. Newmark has been the publisher and editor-in-
chief of the Chicken Soup for the Soul series of books. She was previous a highly ranked equity research analyst covering the TMT sectors.

We have entered into agreements with our affiliate companies that provide us with access to important assets and resources. These agreements
include:

A trademark and intellectual property license agreement, which we refer to as the “CSS License Agreement,” between us and CSS through
which we have been granted a perpetual, exclusive, worldwide license to produce and distribute video content using the brand and related
content, such as stories published in the Chicken Soup for the Soul books. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations — Affiliate Resources and Obligations — CSS License Agreement” for a discussion of the terms of the CSS License
Agreement.

A management services agreement, which we refer to as the “CSS Management Agreement,” between us and CSS through which we are
provided with the broad operational expertise of CSS and its subsidiaries and personnel, including the services of our chairman and chief
executive officer, Mr. Rouhana, and our vice chairman Mr. Seaton. The CSS Management Agreement also provides for services, such as
accounting, legal, marketing, management, data access and back-office systems, and provides us with office space and equipment usage. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Affiliate Resources and Obligations — CSS
Management Agreement” for a discussion of the terms of the CSS Management Agreement.

A distribution agreement, which we refer to the “A Plus Distribution Agreement,” with A Plus through which we have the exclusive worldwide
rights to distribute all video content (in any and all formats) and all editorial content (including articles, photos and still images) created,
produced, edited or delivered by A Plus. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations —
Affiliate Resources and Obligations — A Plus Distribution Agreement”

Intellectual Property

We are party to the CSS License Agreement with CSS through which we have been granted the perpetual, exclusive, worldwide license to produce
and distribute video content using the brand and related content, such as stories published in the Chicken Soup for the Soul books. Chicken Soup for the Soul
and related names are trademarks owned by CSS. We have the proprietary rights (including copyrights) in all of our Sips and company-produced content.

We intend to rely on a combination of confidentiality procedures, contractual provisions and other similar measures to protect our proprietary
information and intellectual property rights.

Competition

Video content production and distribution direct to consumers are highly competitive businesses. We face competition from companies within the
entertainment business and from alternative forms of leisure entertainment, such as travel, sporting events, outdoor recreation, video games, the internet and
other cultural and computer-related activities. We compete with the major studios, numerous independent motion picture and television production
companies, television networks, pay television systems and online media platforms for the services of performing artists, producers and other creative and
technical personnel and production financing, all of which are essential to the success of our businesses. In addition, our video content competes for media
outlet and audience acceptance with video content produced and distributed by other companies. As a result, the success of any of our video content is
dependent not only on the quality and acceptance of a particular production, but also on the quality and acceptance of other competing video content available
in the marketplace at or near the same time.
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Given such competition, and our stage of development, we intend to initially emphasize a lower cost structure, risk mitigation, reliance on financial
partnerships and innovative financial strategies. Our cost structures are designed to utilize our flexibility and agility as well as the entrepreneurial spirit of our
employees, partners and affiliates, in order to provide creative, desirable video content.

Facilities

We are provided with office space from CSS under the terms of the CSS Management Agreement. This office space is located at 132 E. Putnam
Avenue, Floor 2W, Cos Cob, Connecticut 06807.

We consider these facilities adequate for our current operations.

Periodic Reporting

We have registered the securities offered by this offering circular under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and will have reporting
obligations, including the requirement to file annual and quarterly reports with the SEC, following this offering. In accordance with the requirements of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, our annual reports will contain financial statements audited and reported on by an independent registered public accounting
firm.

Employees

We have two direct employees. The services of our personnel, including our chairman and chief executive officer, vice chairman and chief strategy
officer, our senior brand advisor and director, and chief financial officer, are provided to us under the CSS Management Agreement. We also utilize many
consultants in the ordinary course of our business and hire additional personnel on a project-by-project basis. We believe that our employee and labor
relations are good.
Legal Proceedings

There is no material litigation, arbitration or governmental proceeding currently pending against us, or any of our officers or in their capacity acting

as such under the CSS Management Agreement, and neither we, nor our officers have been subject to any such proceeding in the 12 months preceding the
date of this offering circular.
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MANAGEMENT
Executive Officers, Key Employees and Directors

Our current executive officers, key employees and directors are as set forth below.

Name Age Position

William J. Rouhana, Jr.* 64 Chairman of the Board and CEO

Scott W. Seaton* 57 Vice Chairman, Chief Strategy Officer and Director
Daniel M. Pess* 64 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Michael A. Winter 48 SVP of Programming and Development

Elana B. Sofko 49 SVP of Business Development and Distribution
Amy L. Newmark* 60 Director

Peter J. Dekom 70 Director

Fred M. Cohen 73 Director

Christina Weiss Lurie 57 Director

Diana Wilkin 58 Director

*  Services Provided pursuant to the CSS Management Agreement.

William J. Rouhana, Jr. Mr. Rouhana has been our chairman since the formation of our predecessor in December 2014, has been our chief
executive officer since January 1, 2017 and has been the Chief Executive Officer of each of CSS Holding and CSS since April 2008. Mr. Rouhana has been a
leader in the media, entertainment and communications industries for more than 35 years. He was the founder and Chief Executive Officer of Winstar
Communications, a wireless broadband pioneer, and Winstar New Media, one of the earliest online video content companies, from 1993 until 2001. During
his career, Mr. Rouhana has led the acquisition of numerous media companies including Virgin Vision, a Virgin Group worldwide film distribution venture, in
the 1980s. As an entertainment and finance lawyer from 1977 to 1985, he developed new film financing models for major producers such as Blake Edwards.
He received his B.A. from Colby College, where he is currently trustee emeritus; and his J.D. from Georgetown Law School. He is the co-founder of The
Humpty Dumpty Institute, which created the International Film Exchange, and the Chairman of the Global Creative Forum, which connects the United
Nations with major film and television executives and talent. Among other qualifications, Mr. Rouhana brings to our Board extensive executive leadership in
the communications, media and entertainment industries including production and distribution of content, and broad experience in business financings and
acquisitions. Mr. Rouhana is the husband of Amy Newmark, a member of our board of directors.

Scott W. Seaton. Mr. Seaton has been our vice chairman, chief strategy officer and a member of our board since our formation in May 2016. He has
been the Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of CSS Holdings and CSS since April 2012. He has more than 25 years of media and
telecommunications investment banking experience. Prior to joining the CSS companies, he was a Managing Director at Credit Suisse First Boston where he
worked from 1988 to 2002, at Bank of America from 2002 to 2009 and at Oppenheimer & Co from 2010 to March 2012. He served on the board of
Mediacom Communications Corporation from 2009 to 2011 when Mediacom was taken private for $3.7 billion. He received his A.B. from Stanford
University and his M.B.A. from Harvard University. Among other qualifications, Mr. Seaton brings to our Board extensive public company and media-related
financing, merger and acquisition transactional experience and important operating experience relating to the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand and related
operations and media company board experience.

Daniel M. Pess. Mr. Pess has been our executive vice president and chief financial officer since January 1, 2017. He has been the Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of CSS Holdings and CSS since May 2012. He began his career as a CPA at a Big Four accounting firm and has more
than 35 years as a senior financial executive for both publicly-traded and private companies. Prior to joining the CSS companies, he was the Corporate
Controller at Uniforce Services (Comforce), a publicly-traded company where he worked from 1991 to 1994. He also worked as Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer at QueryObject Systems, a publicly-traded technology company from 1994 to 2001, at White Amber, Inc., a software company sold to
Taleo (Oracle) from 2002 to 2004, and at Certpoint Systems, Inc. from 2004 to April 2012, a software company, prior to its sale to Infor Software Solutions.
He served on the board of QueryObject Systems from 1997 to 2001, when its assets were sold to its largest distributor. He received his B.S. from the C.W.
Post School of Professional Accountancy, Long Island University.
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Michael A. Winter. Mr. Winter became Senior Vice President of Programming and Development for our company in February 2017. He has been a
television producer and executive for 20 years. From 2010 to March 2014, he was Vice President of Development for independent producer Leopard Films,
overseeing the production of more than 300 episodes of the megahit House Hunters International. From 2006 to 2010, he was an executive producer for the
Scripps Network, where he created and executive produced approximately 30 series and specials for HGTYV, including many of the network’s most successful
shows. From 2004 to 2006, he was the first director of programming for Comcast’s Outdoor Life Network, which became NBC Sports Network. Mr. Winter
started his television career as a producer working on shows for ABC, Fox, MTV, VH1, A&E and others. He received his B.A. from American University.

Elana B. Sofko. Ms. Sofko became Senior Vice President of Business Development and Distribution for our company in September 2016. Ms.
Sofko brings more than two decades of media and entertainment experience to our company. From January 2013 to August 2016, Ms. Sofko led the digital
business growth initiatives for WWE, a leading entertainment company, including WWE’s localization of digital products and the launch and international
expansion of WWE Network, a subscription based video over-the-top (OTT) service. From 2011 to December 2012, she led a technology innovation
development program at ESPN and prior to that, from 2007 to 2011, headed global content strategy for Nokia’s mobile app storefront. From 2003 to 2007,
Ms. Sofko launched digital businesses for A&E Television Networks. From 1997 to 2003, Ms. Sofko worked on the launch of satellite radio as part of the
start-up team at SiriusXM. From 1991 to 1997, Ms. Sofko built and launched commercial background music services for News Corp. She received her B.A.
from the State University of New York at Albany and an M.B.A. from the University of Connecticut.

Amy L. Newmark. Ms. Newmark has been a member of our board of since our formation in May 2016. She has more than 30 years of media and
telecommunications industry and investment banking experience. Ms. Newmark has been the Publisher, Editor-in-Chief and an author for CSS since April
2008, and has co-authored the publication of more than 150 books during her tenure. From 1981 to 1986, she was a Managing Director at CJ Lawrence, a
brokerage firm, and was a top-ranked telecom equity analyst during her tenure. Ms. Newmark founded and managed Information Age Partners, a hedge fund
from 1993 to 1996. From 1995 to 1997, she was an executive at Winstar Communications. From 1998 to 2007, she served on the Boards of a variety of
different technology companies. She received her A.B. and C.F.A. from Harvard University. Among other qualifications, Ms. Newmark brings to our Board
important financing experience, content publications expertise and an intimate knowledge of the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand and related operations. Ms.
Newmark is the wife of Mr. Rouhana, our chairman and chief executive officer.

Peter J. Dekom. Mr. Dekom has been a member of our board of since June 2016. He has more than 40 years of media and entertainment legal,
consulting and entrepreneurial experience. In 1989, he was named one of Forbes’ top 100 lawyers in the United States. He has been named one of Premiere
Magazine’s 50 most powerful people in Hollywood. From 2003 to 2011 he was “of counsel” with Weissmann Wolff Bergman Coleman Grodin & Evall. From
1976 to 1995, he was a partner with Bloom, Dekom, Hergott and Cook. During his career, his clients have included George Lucas, Paul Haggis, Keenen Ivory
Wayans, John Travolta, Ron Howard, Rob Reiner, Andy Davis, Robert Towne and Larry David. His corporate clients have included Sears, Pacific Telesis and
Japan Victor Corporation (JVC). He is a former member of the board of each of Imagine Films Entertainment, Will Vinton Studios and Cinebase Software.
He is a Member of the Academy of Television Arts and Sciences and Academy Foundation. He received his B.A. from Yale University and his J.D. from the
UCLA School of Law. Among other qualifications, Mr. Dekom brings to our Board extensive legal and business experience in the media and entertainment
industries.

Fred M. Cohen. Mr. Cohen has been a member of our board of since June 2016. He has more than 35 years of media and entertainment experience.
Since 2004, he has been the Chairman of the International Academy of Television Arts & Sciences (Emmys), and, since 2000, the Chairman of its
Foundation. Previously, he was the Executive Vice President of CBS Broadcast International, President of King World International Productions, and
President of HBO International. Since 2006, he has served as strategic advisor to Harpo Productions on the international distribution of its television
properties including The Oprah Winfrey Show and Dr. Oz. He is Chair Emeritus of PCI — Media Impact, a New York based international NGO (non-
governmental organization). He received his B.A. from The University of Michigan and his M.S. from Stanford University. Among other qualifications, Mr.
Cohen brings to our Board extensive executive and operational experience in the media and entertainment industries, including the international segments of
such industries.
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Christina Weiss Lurie. Ms. Weiss Lurie has been a member of our board of since June 2016. Her multi-faceted career spans the worlds of sports,
entertainment and philanthropy. She is an owner of the Philadelphia Eagles and President of Eagles Charitable Foundation (formerly Eagles Youth
Partnership). She is also an Oscar award-winning film producer. As executive producer, Ms. Weiss Lurie received an Oscar for Inside Job (2011), which
tackles the consequences of systematic corruption of the U.S. by the financial services industry, and Inocente (2013), which features the struggles of a
homeless, undocumented teen. She is the co-founder of two independent film companies, Vox3 Films and Tango Pictures. She is also a noted philanthropist.
Under her leadership, the Philadelphia Eagles earned the coveted 2011 Beyond Sports Team of the Year award for their work in the community and for
trailblazing environmental programs in professional sports. She received her B.A. from Yale University. Among other qualifications, Ms. Weiss Lurie brings
to our Board extensive content production experience and broad management skills.

Diana Wilkin. Ms. Wilkin has been a member of our board of since June 2016. She has over 20 years of experience in the media industry. Since
January 2017, Ms. Wilkin has been the President of Broadcast of Share Rocket, a social media measurement company. She has been Managing Director of
Twelve 24 Media, a broadcast and media consulting firm, since February, 2014. Formerly she served as President of CBS Affiliate Relations from 2008 to
December 2013, where she was responsible for network agreements with all major broadcast groups’ television stations. From 2000 to 2008, she was
involved in the management of both CBS and FOX affiliates as Vice President, General Manager in numerous markets. She received her B.S. from the
University of Southern California. Among other qualifications, Ms. Wilkin brings to our Board, extensive management and operational experience in the
media and entertainment industries, particularly in the television broadcasting industry.

Each of our directors will hold office until the next annual meeting of stockholders and until his or her successor is elected and qualified.
Conflicts of Interest
Our certificate of incorporation provides that:
we renounce any interest or expectancy in, or being offered an opportunity to participate in, any business opportunities that are presented to us
or our officers, directors or stockholders or affiliates thereof, including but not limited to, CSS Productions and its affiliates (including A Plus),

collectively referred to in this section as the “CSS Companies,” except as may be prescribed by any written agreement with us;

our officers and employees will not be liable to our company or our stockholders for monetary damages for breach of any fiduciary duty by
reason of any activities of us or any of the CSS Companies to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law;

Pursuant to the CSS License Agreement, the CSS Companies have agreed not to produce and distribute video content. Accordingly, if any of our
executive officers or directors becomes aware of a non-video content opportunity which is suitable for an entity to which he or she has current fiduciary or
contractual obligations, he or she will be entitled to present those opportunities to the CSS Companies prior to presenting them to us.

Director Independence

Currently Peter Dekom, Fred Cohen, Christina Weiss Lurie and Diana Wilkin would each be considered an “independent director” under the listing
standards of national securities exchanges such as Nasdaq, which is defined generally as a person other than an officer or employee of the company or its
subsidiaries or any other individual having a relationship, which, in the opinion of the company’s board of directors would interfere with the director’s
exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director. Our independent directors will have regularly scheduled meetings at which
only independent directors are present.

Committees

Effective as of the date of this offering circular, we will have standing audit, nominating and compensation committees.
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Audit Committee
Effective as of the date of this offering circular, we will establish an audit committee of the board of directors, which will consist of Mr. Dekom
(committee chairman), Mr. Cohen and Ms. Wilkin, each of whom is an independent director under Nasdaq’s listing standards. The audit committee’s duties,

which are specified in the Audit Committee Charter, include, but are not limited to:

reviewing and discussing with management and the independent auditor the annual audited financial statements, and recommending to the board
whether the audited financial statements should be included in our annual reports;

discussing with management and the independent auditor significant financial reporting issues and judgments made in connection with the
preparation of our financial statements;

discussing with management major risk assessment and risk management policies;
monitoring the independence of the independent auditor;

verifying the rotation of the lead (or coordinating) audit partner having primary responsibility for the audit and the audit partner responsible for
reviewing the audit as required by law;

reviewing and approving all related-party transactions;
inquiring and discussing with management our compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

pre-approving all audit services and permitted non-audit services to be performed by our independent auditor, including the fees and terms of the
services to be performed;

appointing or replacing the independent auditor;

determining the compensation and oversight of the work of the independent auditor (including resolution of disagreements between
management and the independent auditor regarding financial reporting) for the purpose of preparing or issuing an audit report or related work;
and

establishing procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by us regarding accounting, internal accounting controls
or reports, which raise material issues regarding its financial statements or accounting policies.

Financial Experts on Audit Committee

The audit committee will at all times be composed exclusively of “independent directors” who are “financially literate” as defined under Nasdaq
listing standards. Nasdaq listing standards define “financially literate” as being able to read and understand fundamental financial statements, including a
balance sheet, income statement and cash flow statement.

In addition, the audit committee will have, and we must certify to Nasdaq annually that the audit committee does have, at least one member who has
past employment experience in finance or accounting, requisite professional certification in accounting, or other comparable experience or background that
results in the individual’s financial sophistication. The board of directors has determined that Mr. Dekom qualifies as an “audit committee financial expert,” as
defined under rules and regulations of the SEC.

Nominating Committee
Effective as of the date of this offering circular, we will establish a nominating committee of the board of directors, which will consist of Mr. Cohen
(committee chairman), Mr. Dekom and Ms. Weiss Lurie, each of whom is an independent director under Nasdaq’s listing standards. The nominating

committee is responsible for overseeing the selection of persons to be nominated to serve on our board of directors. The nominating committee considers
persons identified by its members, management, stockholders, investment bankers and others.
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The guidelines for selecting nominees, which are specified in the Nominating Committee Charter, generally provide that persons to be nominated:
should have demonstrated notable or significant achievements in business, education or public service;

should possess the requisite intelligence, education and experience to make a significant contribution to the board of directors and bring a range
of skills, diverse perspectives and backgrounds to its deliberations; and

should have the highest ethical standards, a strong sense of professionalism and intense dedication to serving the interests of the stockholders.

The Nominating Committee will consider a number of qualifications relating to management and leadership experience, background and integrity
and professionalism in evaluating a person’s candidacy for membership on the board of directors. The nominating committee may require certain skills or
attributes, such as financial or accounting experience, to meet specific board needs that arise from time to time and will also consider the overall experience
and makeup of its members to obtain a broad and diverse mix of board members.

Compensation Committee
Effective as of the date of this offering circular, we will establish a compensation committee of the board of directors, which will consist of Ms.
Weiss Lurie (committee chairwoman), Ms. Wilkin and Mr. Cohen, each of whom is an independent director under Nasdaq’s listing standards. The
compensation committee’s duties, which are specified in the Compensation Committee Charter, include, but are not limited to:
reviewing and approving on an annual basis the corporate goals and objectives relevant to the Chief Executive Officer’s compensation,
evaluating the Chief Executive Officer’s performance in light of such goals and objectives and determining and approving the remuneration (if

any) of the Chief Executive Officer’s based on such evaluation;

reviewing and approving the compensation of all of other executive officers (including through our management services agreements described
below);

reviewing executive compensation policies and plans;
implementing and administering incentive compensation equity-based remuneration plans;
assisting management in complying with proxy statement and annual report disclosure requirements;

approving all special perquisites, special cash payments and other special compensation and benefit arrangements for executive officers and
employees;

if required, producing a report on executive compensation to be included in the annual proxy statement; and
reviewing, evaluating and recommending changes, if appropriate, to the remuneration for.
Executive Compensation

We have entered into the CSS Management Agreement pursuant to which we compensate CSS for providing us with certain management services, as
described immediately below, including the services of our executive officers. None of our executive officers is directly employed by us and we have not paid
them any cash or other compensation to date, except that such officers are eligible to participate, and certain of such officers have participated, in our
Incentive Plan. See “— Option Grants” immediately below.

CSS Management Agreement

We entered into the CSS Management Agreement with our parent operating company, CSS, on May 12, 2016. Under the terms of the CSS
Management Services Agreement, are provided with the broad operational expertise of the CSS companies’ personnel, including our chairman and chief
executive officer, vice chairman and chief strategy officer, senior brand advisor and director and chief financial officer. The CSS Management Agreement also
provides for us to receive numerous other services, including accounting, legal, marketing, social media support, management, data access and back office
systems, and requires CSS to provide us with office space and equipment usage. The terms of the CSS Management Agreement and payments made by us to
date thereunder are described in this offering circular under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations —
Affiliate Resources and Obligations — CSS Management Agreement.”
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Option Grants

In January 2017, we granted five-year options to purchase up to 100,000 shares of our Class A common stock to each Mr. Seaton, Ms. Newmark and
Mr. Pess that vest in eight equal quarterly installments commencing March 31, 2017 and which are exercisable at $6.50 per share. In 2017, we granted
additional options to non-management grantees to purchase up to an aggregate of 155,000 shares at exercise prices between $6.50 and $7.50. All of these
options were granted under our Incentive Plan described below under “—Incentive Plan.”

Director Compensation

We have agreed to pay each of our independent directors, beginning in June 2016, $50,000 per year in two equal semi-annual installments, payable
50% in cash and 50% in shares of Class A common stock. See “Security Ownership of Management and Certain Security Holders.”

Code of Ethics

Effective upon consummation of this offering, we will adopt a code of ethics that applies to all of our respective executive officers, directors and
employees. The code of ethics will codify the business and ethical principles that govern all aspects of our business.

Incentive Plan
Our board of directors and stockholders adopted our 2017 Equity Incentive Plan (“Incentive Plan”) as of January 1, 2017.
Purpose

The purpose of the Incentive Plan is to enable us to offer employees, officers, directors and consultants of our company and our parent and
subsidiary companies whose past, present and/or potential future contributions to us have been, are, or will be important to our success, an opportunity to
acquire a proprietary interest in us.

Administration

The Incentive Plan will be administered by our compensation committee. The compensation committee will be comprised solely of “outside
directors,” as defined in the regulations issued under Section 162(m) of the Code, and “non-employee” directors, as defined in Rule 16b-3 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Subject to the provisions of the Incentive Plan, the compensation committee determines, among other things,
the persons to whom from time to time awards may be granted and the specific type of awards to be granted.

Stock Subject to the Incentive Plan

Our board of directors has reserved 1,000,000 shares of our Class A common stock for issuance under the Incentive Plan. Shares of stock subject to
awards that are forfeited or terminated without payment to the holder in the form of Class A common stock will be available for future award grants under the
Incentive Plan. If a holder has shares of Class A common stock otherwise issuable upon exercise withheld, or surrenders outstanding shares, to make payment
in connection with an award or to cover the withholding tax liability associated an award, the shares surrendered by the holder or withheld by us will not be
available for future award grants under the Incentive Plan.

Under the plan, in the event of a change in the number of shares of our Class A common stock as a result of a dividend on shares of Class A common
stock payable in shares of Class A common stock, Class A common stock forward split or reverse split, exchange of shares of Class A common stock or other
extraordinary or unusual event that results in a change in the shares of Class A common stock as a whole, the compensation committee shall determine
whether such change equitably requires an adjustment in the terms of any award in order to prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefits available under the
plan, or in the aggregate number of shares reserved for issuance under the plan.
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Eligibility

We may grant awards under the Incentive Plan to employees, officers, directors, and consultants of our company or our parent and subsidiary
companies and affiliates who are deemed to have rendered, or to be able to render, significant services to us and who are deemed to have contributed, or to
have the potential to contribute, to its success. An “incentive stock option” as defined in Section 422 of the Code may be granted under the plan only to a
person who, at the time of the grant, is an employee of our company or our parent or subsidiary companies.

Types of Awards

Options. The compensation committee may grant incentive stock options and options not qualifying as incentive options, or “non-qualified
options.” The compensation committee determines the exercise price per share of Class A common stock purchasable under an incentive or non-qualified
stock option, which may not be less than 100% of the fair market value on the day of the grant. However, the exercise price of an incentive stock option
granted to a person possessing more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of our stock, or a “10% holder,” may not be less than 110% of
the fair market value on the date of grant. An incentive stock option may only be granted within 10 years from the effective date of the Incentive Plan. An
incentive stock option may only be exercised within ten years from the date of the grant, or within five years in the case of an incentive stock option granted
to a 10% holder. The stock options generally will vest over a number of years.

Stock Appreciation Rights. The compensation committee may grant stock appreciation rights to participants who have been, or are being, granted
stock options under the plan as a means of allowing the participants to exercise their stock options without the need to pay the exercise price in cash, or the
compensation committee may grant them alone and unrelated to an option. A stock appreciation right entitles the holder to receive a number of shares of
Class A common stock having a fair market value equal to the excess fair market value of one share of Class A common stock over the exercise price of the
stock appreciation right, multiplied by the number of shares subject to the stock appreciation rights.

Restricted Stock. The compensation committee may grant shares of restricted stock. The compensation committee determines, among other things,
the number of shares to be awarded, the time or times within which awards of restricted stock may be subject to forfeiture, any applicable performance goals,
and all other terms and conditions of the restricted stock awards.

Other Stock-Based Awards. The compensation committee may grant other stock-based awards, subject to limitations under applicable law, that are
denominated or payable in, valued in whole or in part by reference to, or otherwise based on, or related to, shares of Class A common stock, as deemed
consistent with the purposes of the plan. These other stock-based awards may be in the form of purchase rights, shares of Class A common stock awarded that
are not subject to any restrictions or conditions, convertible or exchangeable debentures or other rights convertible into shares of Class A common stock and
awards valued by reference to the value of securities of, or the performance of, specified subsidiaries. These other stock-based awards may include
performance shares or options, whose award is tied to specific performance criteria.

Incentive Bonuses. The compensation committee may grant incentive bonus awards, which will confer upon the recipient the opportunity to earn a
future payment tied to the level of achievement with respect to one or more performance goals established for a performance period by the compensation
committee. The award agreement will establish, among other things, the target and maximum amount payable as an incentive bonus, the performance goals
and level of achievement versus the performance goals that shall determine the amount of such payment and the term of the performance period as to which
performance shall be measured for determining the amount of any payment.

Performance Awards
The compensation committee may determine at the time an award is granted or at any time thereafter whether such award is intended to qualify as
“performance based compensation” within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code. Restricted stock awards, other stock-based awards and incentive

bonus awards that are intended to qualify as performance based compensation under Section 162(m) of the Code shall be subject to the following provisions,
which shall control over any conflicting provision in the Incentive Plan or any Agreement:
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To the extent necessary to comply with the requirements of Section 162(m)(4)(C) of the Code, no later than 90 days following the
commencement of any performance period or any designated fiscal period or period of service (or such earlier time as may be required under
Section 162(m) of the Code), the compensation committee shall, in writing, (a) designate the recipient to receive such award (b) select the
performance criteria applicable to the performance period, (c) establish the performance goals, and amounts of such awards, as applicable,
which may be earned for such performance period based on the performance criteria, and (d) specify the relationship between performance
criteria and the performance goals and the amounts of such awards, as applicable, to be earned by each covered employee for such performance
period.

Following the completion of each performance period, the compensation committee shall certify in writing whether and the extent to which the
applicable performance goals have been achieved for such performance period. In determining the amount earned under such awards, the
compensation committee may reduce or eliminate (but not to increase) the amount payable at a given level of performance to take into account
additional factors that the compensation committee may deem relevant, including the assessment of individual or corporate performance for the
performance period.

No adjustment to any award may be permitted to the extent that such adjustment would cause such award to fail to so qualify as performance
based compensation, unless the compensation committee determines that the award should not so qualify.

Accelerated Vesting and Exercisability

If any one person, or more than one person acting as a group, acquires the ownership of stock of our company that, together with the stock held by
such person or group, constitutes more than 50% of the total voting power of the stock of our company, and our board of directors does not authorize or
otherwise approve such acquisition, then immediately prior to the closing of such acquisition, the vesting periods of any and all stock options and other
awards granted and outstanding under the Incentive Plan shall be accelerated and all such stock options and awards will immediately and entirely vest, and
the respective holders thereof will have the immediate right to purchase and/or receive any and all Class A common stock subject to such stock options and
awards on the terms set forth in the plan and the respective agreements respecting such stock options and awards. An increase in the percentage of stock
owned by any one person, or persons acting as a group, as a result of a transaction in which our company acquires its stock in exchange for property is not
treated as an acquisition of stock.

The compensation committee may, in the event of an acquisition by any one person, or more than one person acting as a group, together with
acquisitions during the 12-month period ending on the date of the most recent acquisition by such person or persons, of assets from our company that have a
total gross fair market value equal to or more than 50% of the total gross fair market value of all of the assets of our company immediately before such
acquisition or acquisitions, or if any one person, or more than one person acting as a group, acquires the ownership of stock of our company that, together
with the stock held by such person or group, constitutes more than 50% of the voting power of the stock of our company, which has been approved by our
board of directors, (i) accelerate the vesting of any and all stock options and other awards granted and outstanding under the Incentive Plan, or (ii) require a
holder of any award granted under the plan to relinquish such award to our company upon the tender by us to the holder of cash in an amount equal to the
repurchase value of such award. For this purpose, gross fair market value means the value of our assets, or the value of the assets being disposed of,
determined without regard to any liabilities associated with such assets.

Notwithstanding any provisions of the Incentive Plan or any award granted thereunder to the contrary, no acceleration shall occur with respect to any
award to the extent such acceleration would cause the plan or an award granted thereunder to fail to comply with Section 409A of the Code

Term and Amendments
Unless terminated by our board, the Incentive Plan shall continue to remain effective until no further awards may be granted and all awards granted
under the plan are no longer outstanding. Notwithstanding the foregoing, grants of incentive stock options may be made only until ten years from the effective

date of the plan. The board may at any time, and from time to time, amend the plan or any award agreement, but no amendment will be made that would
impair the rights of a holder under any agreement entered into pursuant to the plan without the holder’s consent.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SECURITYHOLDERS
The following table sets forth information regarding the beneficial ownership of our shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock as
of the date of this offering circular and as adjusted to reflect the sale of all of the Shares offered by this offering circular (assuming none of the individuals
listed purchase shares in this offering), by:
each person known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of our outstanding shares;
each of our executive officers and directors; and
all of our executive officers and directors as a group.
Unless otherwise indicated, we believe that all persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares

beneficially owned by them. Additionally, except as otherwise indicated, beneficial ownership reflected in the table has been determined in accordance with
Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Shares Beneficially Owned Prior to Offering Shares Beneficially Owned After Offering
Class A Class B Class A Class B
% of Total % of

Voting Power Total Voting
Name and Address of Prior to Power After
Beneficial Owner™® Shares % Shares % Offering(Z) Shares % Shares % Offering(z)
William J. Rouhana, Jr. 157,50003) 11.2%  7,813,938(4) 96.8% 95.6% 157,500 7.7% 7,813,938(4) 96.8%
Amy L. Newmark(® 73,964(6) 6.3% — * * 73,964 3.9% — * *
Scott W. Seaton 32,160(7) 2.5% — * * 32,160 1.7% — * *
Daniel M. Pess 24,782(8) 2.0% — * * 24,782 1.3% — * *
Peter J. Dekom 2,083 & — & & 2,083 & — & &
Fred M. Cohen 2,083 * — * * 2,083 * — * *
Christina Weiss Lurie 18,753 1.5% — &3 & 18,753 & — & 5
Diana Wilkin 7,083 * — * * 7,083 * — * *
Chicken Soup for the Soul Productions, LLC — * 7,654,506 94.8% 93.5% — * 7,654,506 94.8%
Trema, LLC 157,50003) 11.2% 159,432 2.0% 157,50005) 7.7% 159,432 2.0%
All directors and executive officers as a group (8
individuals) 318,388(9) 22.0% 7,813,938 96.8% 95.6% 318,388 15.3% 7,813,938 96.8%

*  Less than 1%

(1) Unless otherwise indicated, the business address of each of the individuals is 132 E. Putnam Avenue, Floor 2W, Cos Cob, Connecticut 06807.

(2) Percentage of total voting power represents voting power with respect to all shares of our Class A and Class B common stock, as a single class.
The holders of our Class B common stock are entitled to ten votes per share, and holders of our Class A common stock are entitled to one vote
per share. For more information about the voting rights of our Class A and Class B common stock, see “Description of Securities — Common
Stock.”

(3) Represents shares issuable upon exercise of Class W warrants held by an affiliate of Mr. Rouhana.

(4) Represents (i) 159,432 shares of Class B common stock beneficially owned by an affiliate of Mr. Rouhana and (ii) all of the shares of Class B
common stock owned by CSS Productions. The ultimate parent of CSS Productions is CSS Holdings, which in turn is ultimately controlled by

Mr. Rouhana.

(5) Ms. Newmark is the spouse of Mr. Rouhana, but disclaims all beneficial ownership over the shares beneficially owned by him.
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(6) Includes 12,500 shares purchasable under options that vested and became exercisable on March 31, 2017. Does not include 87,500 shares
purchasable under options that do not vest within 60 days of the date of this offering circular. All of these options were granted under our 2017
Incentive Plan, vest in eight equal quarterly installments beginning on March 31, 2017 and are exercisable at $6.50 per share. Also includes
33,150 shares underlying Class W warrants purchased in the Debt Private Placement and 6,534 shares underlying Class Z warrants issued in
connection with the conversion of certain Term Notes.

(7) Includes 12,500 shares purchasable under options that vested and became exercisable on March 31, 2017. Does not include 87,500 shares
purchasable under options that do not vest within 60 days of the date of this offering circular. All of these options were granted under our 2017
Incentive Plan, vest in eight equal quarterly installments beginning on March 31, 2017 and are exercisable at $6.50 per share. Also includes
10,625 shares underlying Class W warrants purchased in the Debt Private Placement and 2,085 shares underlying Class Z warrants issued in
connection with the conversion of certain Term Notes.

(8) Includes 12,500 shares purchasable under options that vested and became exercisable on March 31, 2017. Does not include 87,500 shares
purchasable under options that do not vest within 60 days of the date of this offering circular. All of these options were granted under our 2017
Incentive Plan, vest in eight equal quarterly installments beginning on March 31, 2017 and are exercisable at $6.50 per share. Also includes
7,225 shares underlying Class W warrants purchased in the Debt Private Placement and 1,167 shares underlying Class Z warrants issued in
connection with the conversion of certain Term Notes.

(9) Represents all of the shares beneficially owned by the individuals listed above and as set forth in footnotes (3), (4), (6), (7) and (8), above.

William J. Rouhana, Jr., and CSS Productions are our “promoters,” as that term is defined under the Federal securities laws.
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CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

Other than compensation arrangements, we describe below transactions and series of similar transactions, since our inception, to which we were a
party or will be a party, in which:

the amounts involved exceeded or will exceed the lesser of $120,000 or 1% of the average of our total assets at year-end for the last two
completed fiscal years; and

any of our directors, executive officers, or holders of more than 5% of our capital stock, or any member of the immediate family of the
foregoing persons, had or will have a direct or indirect material interest.

CSS License Agreement

We entered into the CSS License Agreement in May 2016 pursuant to which we have been granted a perpetual, exclusive, worldwide license to
produce and distribute video content using the brand and related content, such as stories published in the Chicken Soup for the Soul books. We paid CSS a
one-time license fee of $5 million, representing an allocation of the original purchase price of the Brand, comprised of an upfront cash payment of $1.5
million and the concurrent issuance of a $3.5 million principal amount License Note bearing interest at 0.5% per annum. The License Note has been repaid in
full. For a further description of the CSS License Agreement, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
— Affiliates Resources and Obligations — CSS License Agreement.”

CSS Management Agreement

We entered into the CSS Management Agreement in May 2016 with CSS pursuant to which we are provided with the broad operational expertise of
CSS and its subsidiaries and personnel, including the services of our chairman and chief executive officer, Mr. Rouhana, our vice chairman and chief strategy
officer, Mr. Seaton, our senior brand advisor and director, Amy Newmark and our chief financial officer, Mr. Pess. The CSS Management Agreement also
provides for services, such as accounting, legal, marketing, management, data access and back-office systems, as well as office space and equipment usage.
For a further description of the CSS Management Agreement, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
— Affiliate Resources and Obligations — CSS Management Agreement.”

Distribution Agreement

In September 2016, we entered into the A Plus Distribution Agreement. A Plus develops and distributes high quality, empathetic short-form videos
and articles to millions of people worldwide. The A Plus Distribution Agreement has an initial term ending in September 2023. Under the terms of the A Plus
Distribution Agreement, we have the exclusive worldwide rights to distribute all video content (in any and all formats) and all editorial content (including
articles, photos and still images) created, produced, edited or delivered by A Plus. Under the terms of the Distribution Agreement, we were required to pay A
Plus the A Plus Advance of $3 million. As of March 31, 2017, the A Plus Advance has been paid in full by us to A Plus.

Under the terms of the A Plus Distribution Agreement, we receive a net distribution fee equal to 40% of gross revenue generated by the distribution
of the A Plus video content, and 15% of gross revenue generated by the distribution of the A Plus editorial content, until the A Plus Advance (as defined and
described in “—Affiliate Resources and Obligations,” below) has been repaid to us in full. After full repayment, the foregoing distribution fee payable to us
will be reduced to 30% and 5%, respectively, and A Plus shall receive the remainder (“A Plus Revenue”) of such gross revenue. We recoup the A Plus
Advance by retaining our fee plus the portion of gross revenue otherwise payable by the Company to A Plus and applying such A Plus Revenue to the
recoupment of the A Plus Advance. We will not pay A Plus any A Plus Revenue until such time as the A Plus Advance has been recouped in full by us.

A Plus is a digital media company founded, chaired, and partially owned by actor and investor Ashton Kutcher. Mr. Kutcher owns 23%, third parties
own 2%, and our affiliate, Chicken Soup for the Soul Digital, LLC, owns 75%, of A Plus.
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Credit Facility

In May 2016, we entered into the Credit Facility with the facility lender, an affiliate of Mr. Rouhana. Under the terms of the Credit Facility, as
amended as of December 12, 2016, January 24, 2017 and March 27, 2017, we may borrow, repay and reborrow up to an aggregate of $4.5 million through
June 30, 2018. Our payment obligations under the Credit Facility are senior obligations and secured by a first priority security interest in all of our assets (thus
having the same priority as the security interest granted by us in connection with the Term Notes). The proceeds of the loans made under the Credit Facility
shall be used by us for working capital and general corporate purposes. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

In connection with the Credit Facility, we issued Class W warrants to the facility lender to purchase an aggregate of 157,500 shares of our Class A
common stock. The facility lender has been given registration rights with respect to such shares and the securities issuable upon conversion of the principal
amount outstanding under the Credit Facility as described herein under “Description of Securities — Registration Rights.”

Contribution Agreements

In May 2016, pursuant to the terms of the contribution agreement among CSS, CSS Productions and CSS Entertainment (“Contribution
Agreement”), all video content assets (the “Subject Assets”) owned by CSS, CSS Productions and their CSS subsidiaries were transferred to us in
consideration for our issuance to CSS Productions of 8,600,568 shares of our Class B common stock. Since the date of the CSS Contribution Agreement, CSS
Production has transferred certain of these shares of Class B common stock to third parties in certain transactions. Concurrently with the consummation of the
CSS Contribution Agreement, certain rights to receive payments under certain agreements comprising part of the Subject Assets owned by Trema, a company
principally owned and controlled by William J. Rouhana, Jr., our chairman and chief executive officer, were assigned to us under a contribution agreement
(“Trema Contribution Agreement”) in consideration for our issuance to Trema of 159,432 shares or our Class B common stock. Trema has certain demand
and piggyback registration rights with respect to these shares that would be effective after consummation of this offering.

Equity Exchange

In July 2016, we entered into an exchange agreement with a former executive of CSS Productions, in which he exchanged all membership interest in
CSS Productions, which had been issued or were issuable to him in the future, for 430,028 shares of our Class B common stock then owned by CSS
Productions, which he simultaneously elected to convert into a like number of shares of our Class A common stock. The exchange agreement was related to,
and in connection with, the amended employment agreement of the former executive and his separation from CSS Productions.

Consulting Agreement

CSS Productions had a consulting agreement with Low Profile Films, Inc. (“Low Profile”). Low Profile provided executive production services for
CSS Productions that included all activities necessary to establish and maintain relationships regarding CSS Productions’ proposed feature length film and a
possible talk show. Low Profile was to oversee the production to facilitate the public viewing or distribution of same. The owner of Low Profile is the son of
our chairman and chief executive officer.

In July 2016, CSS Productions and Low Profile mutually agreed to terminate the production services agreement relating to a potential feature length
film to be produced by Alcon Entertainment. For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, CSS Productions paid Low Profile $35,000 and $60,000,
respectively, for services provided, which are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations.

Promotions License Agreement

During 2016, we entered into a Promotions License Agreement with One Last Thing LLC (“OLT”), under which we paid $100,000 for the right to
integrate certain products into a feature film produced by OLT, such amount being recoupable from the gross revenue of such film. OLT is controlled by the
son of our chairman and chief executive officer.

Conversion of Term Notes

In June 2017, Scott W. Seaton, our vice chairman, Daniel M. Pess, our chief financial officer, and Amy L. Newmark, a director, participated in the
conversion of our Term Notes on the same terms as offered all holders of our Term Notes. These three officers converted an aggregate of $293,500 principal
amount of Term Notes in exchange for an aggregate of 32,620 shares of Class A common stock and 9,786 Class Z warrants.

Indemnification Agreements

We have entered into indemnification and reimbursement agreements with each of our executive officers and directors. Pursuant to these agreements,
we will indemnify, and advance amounts to, each of our executive officers and to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, as in effect on the date of the
agreement or to such greater extent as applicable law may later permit, in connection with any proceedings brought against such individuals by reason of his
or her status as a director, officer, employee, agent or fiduciary of our company, any subsidiary of our company, or any other enterprise which such person is
or was serving at our request.
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All ongoing and future transactions between us and any of our officers and directors or their respective affiliates will be on terms believed by us to
be no less favorable to us than are available from unaffiliated third parties. Such transactions will require prior approval by a majority of our disinterested and
independent directors (to the extent we have any) or the members of our board who do not have an interest in the transaction, in either case who had access, at
our expense, to our attorneys or independent legal counsel. We will not enter into any such transaction unless our disinterested and independent directors (or,
if there are no “independent” directors, our disinterested directors) determine that the terms of such transaction are no less favorable to us than those that
would be available to us with respect to such a transaction from unaffiliated third parties.

Purchase of Shares by Director

In May 2017, Diana Wilkin, a member of our board of directors, purchased 5,000 shares of Class A common stock for $37,500, or $7.50 per share.
All of these shares are subject to the applicable lock-ups described under “Description of Securities — Lock-up Agreements.”

Related Party Policy

Our Code of Ethics requires each company to avoid, wherever possible, all related party transactions that could result in actual or potential conflicts
of interests, except under guidelines approved by the board of directors. Related party transactions are defined under SEC rules as transactions in which (1)
the aggregate amount involved will or may be expected to exceed the lesser of $120,000 or one percent of the average of our total assets at year-end for the
last two completed fiscal years, (2) we or any of our subsidiaries is a participant, and (3) any (a) executive officer, director or nominee for election as a
director, (b) greater than 5% beneficial owner of our shares of common stock, or (c) immediate family member, of the persons referred to in clauses (a) and
(b), has or will have a direct or indirect material interest (other than solely as a result of being a director or a less than 10% beneficial owner of another
entity). A conflict of interest situation can arise when a person takes actions or has interests that may make it difficult to perform his or her work objectively
and effectively. Conflicts of interest may also arise if a person, or a member of his or her family, receives improper personal benefits as a result of his or her
position.

No director may participate in the approval of any transaction in which he is a related party, but that director is required to provide the other
members of the board with all material information concerning the transaction. Additionally, we require each of our directors and executive officers to
complete a directors’ and officers’ questionnaire that elicits information about related party transactions.

These procedures are intended to determine whether any such related party transaction impairs the independence of a director or presents a conflict

of interest on the part of a director, employee or officer.
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DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES
General

We are authorized to issue 70 million shares of Class A common stock, par value $.0001, 20 million shares of Class B common stock, par value
$.0001, and 10 million shares of preferred stock, par value $.0001. As of the date of this offering circular, 1,249,000 shares of our Class A common stock are
outstanding, 8,071,955 shares of our Class B common stock are outstanding and no shares of our preferred stock are outstanding.

Common Stock
Voting Rights

Holders of shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock have substantially identical rights, except that holders of shares of Class A
common stock are entitled to one vote per share and holders of shares of Class B common stock are entitled to ten votes per share. Holders of shares of Class
A common stock and Class B common stock vote together as a single class on all matters (including the election of directors) submitted to a vote of
stockholders, unless otherwise required by law or our charter. See “—Certain Anti-Takeover Provisions of our Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws,”
below.

There is no cumulative voting with respect to the election of directors, with the result that the holders of more than 50% of the shares voted for the
election of directors can elect all of the directors.

Dividend Rights

Shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock shall be treated equally, identically and ratably, on a per share basis, with respect to any
dividends or distributions as may be declared and paid from time to time by the board of directors out of any assets legally available therefor.

No Preemptive or Similar Rights
Our common stock is not entitled to preemptive rights and is not subject to conversion, redemption or sinking fund provisions.
Right to Receive Liquidation Distributions

Subject to the preferential or other rights of any holders of preferred stock then outstanding, upon our dissolution, liquidation or winding up, whether
voluntary or involuntary, holders of Class A common stock and Class B common stock will be entitled to receive ratably all of our assets available for
distribution to our stockholders unless disparate or different treatment of the shares of each such class with respect to distributions upon any such liquidation,
dissolution or winding up is approved in advance by the affirmative vote (or written consent if action by written consent of stockholders is permitted at such
time under our Certificate of Incorporation) of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock, each
voting separately as a class.

Merger or Consolidation

In the case of any distribution or payment in respect of the shares of Class A common stock or Class B common stock upon our consolidation or
merger with or into any other entity, or in the case of any other transaction having an effect on stockholders substantially similar to that resulting from a
consolidation or merger, such distribution or payment shall be made ratably on a per share basis among the holders of the Class A common stock and Class B
common stock as a single class; provided, however, that shares of one such class may receive different or disproportionate distributions or payments in
connection with such merger, consolidation or other transaction if (i) the only difference in the per share distribution to the holders of the Class A common
stock and Class B common stock is that any securities distributed to the holder of a share Class B common stock have ten times the voting power of any
securities distributed to the holder of a share of Class A common stock, or (ii) such merger, consolidation or other transaction is approved by the affirmative
vote (or written consent if action by written consent of stockholders is permitted at such time under our Certificate of Incorporation) of the holders of a
majority of the outstanding shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock, each voting separately as a class.
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Conversion

The outstanding shares of Class B common stock are convertible at any time as follows: (1) at the option of the holder, a share of Class B common
stock may be converted at any time into one share of Class A common stock or (2) upon the election of the holders of a majority of the then outstanding
shares of Class B common stock, all outstanding shares of Class B common stock may be converted into shares of Class A common stock. Once converted
into Class A common stock, the Class B common stock will not be reissued.

Preferred Stock

Our certificate of incorporation currently authorizes the issuance of 10 million shares of blank check preferred stock. No shares of our preferred
stock are being issued in this offering. The blank check preferred stock may be issued in the future by our board of directors, without stockholder approval,
with such designation, rights and preferences as it may be determined from time to time. Accordingly, such preferred stock could adversely affect the voting
power or other rights of the holders of common stock.

Class W Warrants

Each outstanding Class W warrant entitles the registered holder to purchase one share of our Class A common stock at a price of $7.50 per share,
subject to adjustment as discussed below. Each warrant is exercisable at any time through June 30, 2021 at 5:00 p.m., New York City time.

If our Class A common stock is traded, listed or quoted on any U.S. market or electronic exchange, and the closing per-share sales price of the Class
A common stock for any twenty (20) trading days during a consecutive thirty (30) trading days period (the “Measurement Period”) exceeds $15.00 (subject to
adjustment for forward and reverse stock splits, recapitalizations, stock dividends and the like), then we may call for cancellation of all or any portion of the
Class W warrants for which a notice of exercise has not yet been delivered to us for consideration equal to $.01 per Class W warrant, in accordance with the
provisions of the Class W warrants. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, we shall not make a call of the Class W warrants prior to January 31, 2018.

The right to exercise will be forfeited unless the Class W warrants are exercised prior to the date specified in the call notice. On and after the call
date, a record holder of a warrant will have no further rights except to receive the call price for such holder’s warrant upon surrender of such warrant.

The criteria for calling our Class W warrants for consideration have been established at a price which is intended to provide warrant holders a
reasonable premium to the initial exercise price and provide a sufficient differential between the then-prevailing share price and the warrant exercise price so
that if the share price declines as a result of our call, the call will not cause the share price to drop below the exercise price of the Class W warrants.

If the resale of the Class A common stock issuable upon exercise of the Class W warrants is not covered by an effective registration statement or an
exemption from registration (a) at the time of a call by us of the Class W warrants as described above, (b) at any time the Class A common stock is traded,
listed or quoted on a U.S. trading market or electronic exchange or (c) after January 31, 2018, the holders of the Class W warrants shall be afforded cashless
exercise rights as further described in the Class W warrants. In such event, each holder would pay the exercise price by surrendering the Class W warrants for
that number of shares of common stock equal to the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the product of the number of shares of Class A common stock
underlying the Class W warrants, multiplied by the difference between the exercise price of the Class W warrants and the “fair market value” (defined below)
by (y) the fair market value. The “fair market value” for this purpose will mean the average reported last sale price of the shares of common stock for the ten
trading days ending on the trading day prior to the date of exercise.

The exercise price and number of shares of Class A common stock issuable on exercise of the Class W warrants may be adjusted in certain

circumstances including in the event of a share dividend, extraordinary dividend or our recapitalization, reorganization, merger or consolidation. However, the
Class W warrants will not be adjusted for issuances of shares of any equity or equity based securities at a price below their respective exercise prices.
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The Class W warrants may be exercised upon surrender of the warrant certificate on or prior to the expiration date at the offices of the warrant agent,
with the exercise form on the reverse side of the warrant certificate completed and executed as indicated, accompanied by full payment of the exercise price,
by certified or official bank check or wire transfer payable to us, for the number of Class W warrants being exercised. The warrant holders do not have the
rights or privileges of holders of shares of common stock and any voting rights until they exercise their Class W warrants and receive shares of Class A
common stock. After the issuance of shares of common stock upon exercise of the Class W warrants, each holder will be entitled to one vote for each share
held of record on all matters to be voted on by stockholders.

No fractional shares will be issued upon exercise of the Class W warrants. If, upon exercise of the Class W warrants, a holder would be entitled to
receive a fractional interest in a share, we will, upon exercise, round up to the nearest whole number the number of shares of Class A common stock to be
issued to the warrant holder.

Any Class W warrants purchased in the open market will be re-issued in name of the buyer in registered form under a warrant agreement between
Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Co., Inc. (“Continental“), as warrant agent, and us. The warrant agreement provides that the terms of the Class W
warrants may be amended without the consent of any holder solely to cure any ambiguity or correct any defective provision.

Class Z Warrants

Each outstanding Class Z warrant entitles the registered holder to purchase one share of our Class A common stock at a price of $12.00 per share,
subject to adjustment as discussed below. Each warrant is exercisable at any time through June 30, 2022 at 5:00 p.m., New York City time.

If our Class A common stock is traded, listed or quoted on any U.S. market or electronic exchange, and the closing per-share sales price of the Class
A common stock for any twenty (20) trading days during a consecutive thirty (30) trading days period (the “Measurement Period”) exceeds $18.00 (subject to
adjustment for forward and reverse stock splits, recapitalizations, stock dividends and the like), then we may call for cancellation of all or any portion of the
Class Z warrants for which a notice of exercise has not yet been delivered to us for consideration equal to $.01 per Class Z warrant, in accordance with the
provisions of the Class Z warrants. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, we shall not make a call of the Class Z warrants prior to January 31, 2018.

The right to exercise will be forfeited unless the Class Z warrants are exercised prior to the date specified in the call notice. On and after the call
date, a record holder of a warrant will have no further rights except to receive the call price for such holder’s warrant upon surrender of such warrant.

The criteria for calling our Class Z warrants for consideration have been established at a price which is intended to provide warrant holders a
reasonable premium to the initial exercise price and provide a sufficient differential between the then-prevailing share price and the warrant exercise price so
that if the share price declines as a result of our call, the call will not cause the share price to drop below the exercise price of the Class Z warrants.

If the resale of the Class A common stock issuable upon exercise of the Class Z warrants is not covered by an effective registration statement or an
exemption from registration (a) at the time of a call by us of the Class Z warrants as described above, (b) at any time the Class A common stock is traded,
listed or quoted on a U.S. trading market or electronic exchange or (c) after January 31, 2018, the holders of the Class Z warrants shall be afforded cashless
exercise rights as further described in the Class Z warrants. In such event, each holder would pay the exercise price by surrendering the Class Z warrants for
that number of shares of common stock equal to the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the product of the number of shares of Class A common stock
underlying the Class Z warrants, multiplied by the difference between the exercise price of the Class Z warrants and the “fair market value” (defined below)
by (y) the fair market value. The “fair market value” for this purpose will mean the average reported last sale price of the shares of common stock for the ten
trading days ending on the trading day prior to the date of exercise.

The exercise price and number of shares of Class A common stock issuable on exercise of the Class Z warrants may be adjusted in certain

circumstances including in the event of a share dividend, extraordinary dividend or our recapitalization, reorganization, merger or consolidation. However, the
Class Z warrants will not be adjusted for issuances of shares of any equity or equity based securities at a price below their respective exercise prices.
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The Class Z warrants may be exercised upon surrender of the warrant certificate on or prior to the expiration date at the offices of the warrant agent,
with the exercise form on the reverse side of the warrant certificate completed and executed as indicated, accompanied by full payment of the exercise price,
by certified or official bank check or wire transfer payable to us, for the number of Class Z warrants being exercised. The warrant holders do not have the
rights or privileges of holders of shares of common stock and any voting rights until they exercise their Class Z warrants and receive shares of Class A
common stock. After the issuance of shares of common stock upon exercise of the Class Z warrants, each holder will be entitled to one vote for each share
held of record on all matters to be voted on by stockholders.

No fractional shares will be issued upon exercise of the Class Z warrants. If, upon exercise of the Class Z warrants, a holder would be entitled to
receive a fractional interest in a share, we will, upon exercise, round up to the nearest whole number the number of shares of Class A common stock to be
issued to the warrant holder.

Term Notes

As of June 20, 2017, we had outstanding approximately $4.1 million principal amount of our Term Notes. The principal of the Term Notes
(including all accrued, but unpaid interest thereon) was originally payable by us on the earlier of (a) June 30, 2017 and (b) the third business day following
consummation of (i) an initial public offering (including this offering) and (ii) any future equity offering (other than as a result of the exercise of our Class W
warrants) resulting in gross proceeds to us of at least $7.0 million (such earlier date, the “Term Notes Original Maturity Date”).

In June 2017, we requested that the holders of our Term Notes extend the maturity date thereof to the earlier of (a) July 31, 2017 and (b) the date that
is three business days following the consummation of the initial closing of the IPO (such earlier date, the “Term Notes Extended Maturity Date”). As of the
date of this offering circular, all holders (100%) of the Term Notes have agreed to the Term Notes Extended Maturity Date. In connection with the extension,
we offered all holders of our Term Notes the opportunity to purchase shares of our Class A common stock at $9.00 per share (with three Class Z warrants also
being issued to them for each ten shares purchased) through the payment of cash or conversion of principal under their Term Notes. As of the date of this
offering circular, holders of $0.9 million aggregate principal amount of the Term Notes, including three of our executive officers, have elected to convert such
principal amount into an aggregate of 102,060 shares of Class A common stock and 30,618 Class Z warrants. As of the date of this offering circular, a total of
$4.1 million principal amount of the Term Notes remains due on the Term Notes Extended Maturity Date.

The Term Notes bear interest at the rate of 5% per annum. Interest is payable in cash monthly in arrears on the basis of a 365-day year and actual
days elapsed.

The Term Notes rank pari passu with our existing senior secured debt, including the Credit Facility, and senior to any of our other existing or future
indebtedness. The Term Notes are secured by a first priority security interest and lien in all of our tangible and intangible assets.

We may repay the Term Notes at any time prior to their maturity date, at our election and without notice to the holders thereof, by paying the holder
101% of the then outstanding aggregate principal of the Term Notes, together with all interest accrued and unpaid thereon through the date of such payment.

Dividends

We have not paid any cash dividends on our shares of Class A common stock to date. The payment of cash dividends on our shares of Class A
common stock in the future will be entirely within the discretion of our board of directors and will be dependent upon our revenue and earnings, if any, capital
requirements and general financial condition as well as the limitations on dividends and distributions that exist under the laws and regulations of the State of
Delaware. It is the present intention of our board of directors to retain all earnings, if any, for use in our business operations and, accordingly, our board of
directors does not anticipate declaring any dividends in the foreseeable future.

Exchange Act Registration

We will seek to have our Class A common stock registered under Section 12(b) if the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, concurrently
with the qualification with the Commission of the offering statement of which this offering circular is a part.

Our Transfer Agent and Warrant Agent

The transfer agent for our securities and the warrant agent for our Class W warrants is Continental.
Listing of Our Securities

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for our common stock. We have applied to have our Class A common stock listed on the
Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol CSSE no later than the final closing of this offering. If our Class A common stock is not approved for listing on the
Nasdaq Global Market, we expect our Class A common stock will be listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market. We currently meet the financial listing

requirements for the Nasdaq Capital Market. Giving effect to the sale of all of the Shares and at least 220,000 Additional Shares in the offering, we expect we
will meet the financial listing requirements for the Nasdaq Global Market.
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Certain Anti-Takeover Provisions of our Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws
Special meeting of stockholders

Our bylaws provide that special meetings of our stockholders may be called only by a majority vote of our board of directors, or by our chairman and
chief executive officer or by our secretary at the request in writing of stockholders owning a majority of our issued and outstanding capital stock entitled to
vote.

Advance notice requirements for stockholder proposals and director nominations

Our bylaws provide that stockholders seeking to bring business before our annual meeting of stockholders, or to nominate candidates for election as
directors at our annual meeting of stockholders must provide timely notice of their intent in writing. To be timely, a stockholder’s notice will need to be
delivered to our principal executive offices not later than the close of business on the oth day nor earlier than the close of business on the goth day prior to the
scheduled date of the annual meeting of stockholders. In the event that less than 70 days’ notice or prior public disclosure of the date of the annual meeting of

stockholders is given, a stockholder’s notice shall be timely if delivered to our principal executive offices not later than the 10t day following the day on
which public announcement of the date of our annual meeting of stockholders is first made or sent by us. Our bylaws also specify certain requirements as to
the form and content of a stockholders’ meeting. These provisions may preclude our stockholders from bringing matters before our annual meeting of
stockholders or from making nominations for directors at our annual meeting of stockholders.

Dual Voting Structure

Our certificate of incorporation provides for two classes of common stock. Holders of shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock
have substantially identical rights, except that holders of shares of Class A common stock are entitled to one vote per share and holders of shares of Class B
common stock are entitled to ten votes per share. Holders of shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock vote together as a single class on all
matters (including the election of directors) submitted to a vote of stockholders, unless otherwise required by law. Accordingly, the holders of shares of Class
B common stock will exert significant control over our actions.

Removal and Appointment of Directors

Our entire board of directors or any individual director may be removed from office with or without cause by a majority vote of the holders of the
outstanding voting power of the shares then entitled to vote at an election of directors. In such case, new directors may be elected by the stockholders then
holding a majority of our voting power. Immediately following this offering, our chairman and chief executive officer shall control the substantial majority of
our voting power and therefore will be able to unilaterally exercise the foregoing rights.

Class B Approval Required for Charter Amendments

Any amendment to our certificate of incorporation requires the approval of the majority of the outstanding Class B common stock. This approval
requirement is separate and in addition to any general stockholder approval that would be required under our certificate of incorporation and law.

Exclusive Forum Selection

Our certificate of incorporation requires, to the fullest extent permitted by law, that derivative actions brought in our name, actions against directors,
officers and employees for breach of fiduciary duty and other similar actions may be brought only in the Court of Chancery in the State of Delaware and, if
brought outside of Delaware, the stockholder bringing the suit will be deemed to have consented to service of process on such stockholder’s counsel.
Although we believe this provision benefits our company by providing increased consistency in the application of Delaware law in the types of lawsuits to
which it applies, the provision may have the effect of discouraging lawsuits against our and officers.

Registration Rights

We have entered into an agreement with an affiliate of Mr. Rouhana and another stockholder of our company, pursuant to which these stockholders
shall have the right to demand, on one occasion commencing one year from the date of this offering, that we register under the Securities Act the resale of the
shares of Class A common stock issuable to them upon exchange of their Class B common stock (“Registrable Shares”) if and only if the Registrable Shares
cannot be freely sold by such holders without volume restrictions under Rule 144. In addition, these stockholders have certain “piggyback” registration rights
with respect to certain registration statements filed by us after this offering. We will bear the expenses incurred in connection with the filing of any such
registration statement.
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We granted certain registration and related rights in connection with our 2016 Equity Private Placement and 2017 Equity Private Placement and Debt
Private Placement. If we complete this offering and our Class A common stock is traded on a national stock exchange in the United States (a “Qualified
IPO”), the shares of Class A common stock, Class W warrants and Class A common stock underlying the Class W warrants sold in the Equity Offerings and
Debt Offering (collectively, the “Subject Securities”) shall be entitled to unlimited piggy-back registration rights, subject to underwriter approval, unless a
resale exemption otherwise exists for the Subject Securities.

If we have not completed a Qualified ITPO by June 30, 2017, or a public trading market has not otherwise then developed for the Subject Securities,
we shall take commercially reasonable steps to enable public trading for such securities by filing such forms or documents reasonably necessary to facilitate
such public trading.

Repurchases

We may seek to repurchase shares of our outstanding Class A common stock and Class B common stock from time to time in market or private
transactions.

Lock-Up Agreements
Agreements with Our Company

Each existing non-management, non-affiliated holder (collectively, the “Unaffiliated Holders”) of our Class A common stock and Class B common
stock, other than one non-management, non-affiliated holder of our Class B common stock, has entered into a lock-up agreement with us that provides he, she
or it will not sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any of our Class A common stock, Class B common stock, Class W warrants, Class Z warrants or shares
underlying the Class W warrants or Class Z warrants (collectively, the “Company Securities”) until after the goth day following the day our Class A common
stock commences to trade on Nasdaq; provided that sales of the Selling Stockholder Shares in this offering shall not be subject to this lock-up.

Each of our parent stockholder and its affiliates, directors and executive officers and a former executive officer (collectively, the “Insiders”) has
entered into an agreement with us (“Company Lock-up”) pursuant to which he, she or it has agreed to not sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any Company
Securities for an initial period of 18 months following the day our Class A common stock commences to trade on Nasdaq. After such time, the Company
Lock-up will automatically end with respect to 1/24 of each class of the Company Securities owned by such holder on each monthly anniversary date of the
expiration of the initial 18-month period.

We may elect to release any holder from its lock-up at any time or from time to time for any reason or no reason with respect to any or all of the
Company Securities or any portion thereof. No such release shall be deemed to obligate us to grant any future releases to such holder or any other holder.

Agreements with the Joint Bookrunning Managers

Each of our unaffiliated holders, other than one non-management, non-affiliated holder of our Class B common stock, has entered into a lock-up
agreement with the joint bookrunning managers that provides he, she or it will not sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any Company Securities until after the
goth day following the day our Class A common stock commences to trade on Nasdaq; provided that sales of the Selling Stockholder Shares in this offering
shall not be subject to this lock-up.

Each of the Insiders has entered into an agreement with the joint bookrunning managers pursuant to which he, she or it has agreed to not sell, transfer
or otherwise dispose of any Company Securities for an initial period of 180 days following the date our Class A common stock commences to Trade on
Nasdagq.

The joint bookrunning managers may elect to release any holder from its lock-up at any time or from time to time for any reason or no reason with
respect to any or all of the Company Securities or any portion thereof. No such release shall be deemed to obligate the joint bookrunning managers to grant
any future releases to such holder or any other holder.

In the event the joint booking running managers elect to release their lock-up with respect to any Company Securities held by any officer or director

of our company, they will notify us of the impending release and will announce the impending release through a major news service at least two business days
prior to the effective date of the release.
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SELLING STOCKHOLDERS

The following table sets forth the name of the selling stockholders, the number of shares of Class A common stock beneficially owned by them prior
to this offering, the number of Selling Stockholder Shares being offered pursuant to this offering circular and the number of shares and percentage of
outstanding shares of Class A common stock to be beneficially owned by them after this offering, assuming that all of the Selling Stockholder Shares are sold
in the offering.

The Selling Stockholder Shares sold in the offering shall be allocated pro rata among the selling stockholders. None of the Selling Stockholders are
directors, officers, employees or affiliates of our company. None of the Selling Stockholder Shares were acquired in the 2016 Equity Private Placement or
2017 Equity Private Placement.

We will pay all of the expenses of the offering (other than the selling agents’ discounts and commissions of 4% payable with respect to the Selling
Stockholder Shares sold in the offering), but will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of Selling Stockholder Shares in the offering. See “Plan of

Distribution.”

% of Class A Number of Shares % of Class A

Number of Common Stock To Be Sold Common Stock

Name Shares Owned Prior to Offering in Offering After to Offering
Quattro Holdings, LLC 64,504 6.3% 64,504 0%
Bertrand Faure 64,503 6.3% 64,503 0%
Trinity Credit Company, LLC 129,010 12.7% 129,010 0%
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SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE

Prior to this offering, we have 1,249,090 shares of Class A common stock outstanding and 8,071,955 shares of Class B common stock outstanding.
All of our Class B common stock is convertible into an equal number of shares of our Class A common stock at any time. The vast majority of our
outstanding shares are subject to one or more of the lock-up agreements described in “Description of Securities — Lock-Up Agreements.” Subject to the
applicable lock-up agreements and Rule 144 (including volume restrictions applicable to affiliates of our company), all of these shares will be freely tradeable
within 12 months after this offering.

Rule 144

A person who has beneficially owned restricted shares of common stock, preferred stock or Class W or Class Z warrants for at least six months
would be entitled to sell their securities provided that (i) such person is not deemed to have been an affiliate of the subject company at the time of, or at any
time during the three months preceding, a sale and (ii) the subject company is subject to the Exchange Act periodic reporting requirements for at least three
months before the sale. Persons who have beneficially owned restricted shares of common stock for at least six months but who are an affiliate of the subject
company at the time of, or any time during the three months preceding, a sale, would be subject to additional restrictions under which such person would be
entitled to sell within any three-month period a number of shares that does not exceed the greater of either of the following:

1% of the number of shares of our Class A common stock then outstanding, which will equal 18,911 shares of Class A common stock
immediately after this offering (or 34,910 shares of Class A common stock immediately after this offering if we sell all of the Shares and
Additional Shares); and

if our Class A common stock is listed on a national securities exchange, the average weekly trading volume of the shares of Class A common
stock during the four calendar weeks preceding the filing of a notice on Form 144 with respect to the sale.

Giving effect to the conversion of all of our Class B common stock into Class A common stock, 1% of the number of shares of our Class A common
stock outstanding immediately after this offering would be 99,630 shares (or 115,630 shares of Class A common stock immediately after this offering if we
sell all of the Shares and Additional Shares).

Sales under Rule 144 are also limited by manner of sale provisions and notice requirements and to the availability of current public information

about the subject company.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

The Shares, Selling Stockholder Shares and Additional Shares are being sold through HCFP/Capital Markets LLC and which have
agreed to act as the joint bookrunning managers for this offering.

This is an offering of 900,000 shares of our Class A common stock comprised of up to (a) 641,983 Shares to be sold by us and (b) 258,017 Selling
Stockholder Shares that may be sold by certain of our non-management, non-affiliated existing stockholders. None of our officers, directors, or affiliates is
selling any securities in this offering.

We will have the option to sell up to 1,600,000 Additional Shares, if all of the Offering Shares have been sold in the offering. There is no minimum
number of Offering Shares that we must sell in order to conduct a closing in this offering.

The joint bookrunning managers are not purchasing any of the Offering Shares or Additional Shares and are not required to sell any specific number
or dollar amount of securities, but will instead arrange for the sale of securities to investors on a “best efforts” basis, meaning that they need only use their
best efforts to sell the securities. The joint bookrunning managers may sell some of the Offering Shares and Additional Shares through selected dealers.

The offering price of the Offering Shares and Additional Shares was determined by the joint bookrunning managers and us. This determination was
done without reference to our book value or asset values or by the application of any customary, established models for valuing companies or securities.
Accordingly, the offering price may not be indicative of any amounts you might receive should you seek to sell your shares or should there be a liquidation of
our company. In addition, such prices are not necessarily indicative of any prices at which our securities may trade, or any value that might be ascribed to our
company after the completion of the offering.

Our officers and directors shall be entitled to purchase Offering Shares in the offering. Any such purchases shall be conducted in compliance with
the applicable provisions of Regulation M.

Procedures for Subscribing

We plan to market this offering to potential investors through the joint bookrunning managers This offering will terminate on , 2017, subject
to extension for up to ninety (90) days with the mutual consent of us and the joint bookrunning managers. We will hold an initial closing on any number of
Offering Shares at any time during the Offering Period when we and the joint bookrunning managers determine and thereafter may hold one or more
additional closings until we determine to cease having any additional closings during the Offering Period. We will close on proceeds based upon the order in
which they are received. No closing will be conducted unless we have been approved for listing on the Nasdaq Global Market or Nasdaq Capital Market,
although we will elect to delay listing and trading thereon until after the final closing of the offering. We and the joint bookrunning managers will consider
various factors in determining the timing of any additional closings following the initial closing, including the amount of proceeds received at the initial
closing and any prior additional closings, and coordination with the commencement of our listing on Nasdag.

The Company is utilizing an online platform operated by " "), a Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FINRA") member
and SEC-registered clearing broker-dealer, in connection with the offering. is not affiliated with the Company. Investors who are purchasing their
Shares through their broker which is a selected dealer for this offering can use their account with such broker. We shall pay escrowless closing and
book entry fees equal to 0.9% of the gross proceeds from the sale of Offering Shares and Additional Shares through and a platform fee equal to
0.1% of the gross proceed from the sale of Offering Shares and Additional Shares through

To purchase Offering Shares and Additional Shares in the offering through the platform, a prospective investor must have a brokerage
account with . Using the online platform, prospective investors will be able to access and view offering materials, including the
offering circular, and submit subscription requests to purchase Offering Shares and Additional Shares in the offering. When submitting a subscription request,
a prospective investor will be required to agree to various terms and conditions by checking boxes and will be required to review and electronically sign any
necessary documents.

Prospective investors utilizing the platform must deposit the funds intended for the purchase of Offering Shares and Additional Shares in
the offering in their accounts. The funds can be provided by check, wire, Automated Clearing House ("ACH") push, ACH pull, direct deposit,
Automated Customer Account Transfer Service ("ACATS") or non-ACATS transfer. The funds that are deposited will remain at in the investors’
accounts pending instructions to release the funds to the Escrow Agent named below when all conditions and contingencies relating to the offering have been
met. Until such conditions and contingencies have been met and a closing occurs, the funds are owned and controlled by the prospective investors. The funds
in the prospective investors’ accounts are swept into FDIC-insured bank accounts on a daily basis as part of ’s cash sweep program
until the conditions and contingencies of the offering are satisfied and the offering closes. This process, under which the prospective investors’ funds remain
in accounts at until a closing of the offering occurs, complies with Exchange Act Rule 15c2-4 pursuant to a no-action letter provided to

by the staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission dated July 15, 2015.

After all conditions and contingencies for a closing have been met, the Company will notify and other brokers holding funds when it will
conduct such closing. All such funds will then be transferred, if not previously transferred, to an escrow account with Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Co.,
Inc. (“Continental” or the “Escrow Agent”) until the earlier of the date of a closing with respect to such proceeds (at which time such proceeds shall be used
to complete share purchases in the offering) and the end of the Offering Period (at which time, such proceeds shall be returned to the applicable investors
without interest or deduction). Pursuant to Rule 15c2-4, unless there is a closing with respect to escrowed proceeds in the offering, we will not have any
access to such proceeds. We may begin accepting investment proceeds into escrow at any time beginning two days after this offering circular has been
qualified by the Commission. After a closing, and other brokers will thereafter send trade confirmations to the investors.
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We may decide to close the offering early or cancel it, in our sole discretion. If we extend the offering, we will provide that information in an
amendment to this offering circular. If we close the offering early or cancel it, we may do so without notice to you, although if we cancel the offering all funds
that may have been provided by any investors will be promptly returned without interest or deduction.

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for our common stock. We have applied to have our Class A common stock listed on the
Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol CSSE no later than the final closing of this offering. If our Class A common stock is not approved for listing on the
Nasdaq Global Market, we expect our Class A common stock will be listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market. We cannot guarantee that our securities will be
approved for listing on Nasdaq. We currently meet the financial listing requirements for the Nasdaq Capital Market. Giving effect to the sale of all of the
Shares and at least 220,000 Additional Shares in the offering, we expect we will meet the financial listing requirements for the Nasdaq Global Market.

Discounts, Commissions and Expenses

We will pay the joint bookrunning managers an aggregate discount and commission equal to % of the gross proceeds of the sale of Shares and
Additional Shares in the offering sold by the Company and the Selling Stockholders will pay 4% of the gross proceeds on the sale of Selling Stockholder
Shares. If the joint bookrunning managers sell any Offering Shares and Additional Shares through selected dealers, they may remit a portion of their fee to
such dealers. We have also paid the joint bookrunning managers a retainer of $25,000 and will pay an additional retainer of $25,000 upon qualification of the
offering statement.

We will pay the joint bookrunning managers an aggregate non-accountable expense allowance equal to 2% of the gross proceeds of the sale of
Offering Shares and Additional Shares in the offering. In addition, we shall be responsible for and pay all expenses relating to the offering, including, without
limitation, (a) all filing fees and expenses relating to the registration of the Shares and Additional Shares to be sold in the offering with the SEC and the filing
of the offering materials with FINRA, as applicable; (b) all fees and expenses relating to the listing of our shares of Class A common stock on Nasdag; (c) all
fees and expenses relating to the registration or qualification of the Offering Shares (and any Additional Shares); as required under the “blue sky” laws,
including the fees of counsel selected by us; (d) all fees payable to (other than discounts and commissions related to in its capacity as
a dealer, which shall be paid by the joint bookrunning managers from their commissions); (e) the costs of all mailing and printing of the offering documents;
(f) the costs of preparing, printing and delivering certificates representing such securities; (g) fees and expenses of the transfer agent for such shares; (h) our
road show expenses; and (i) the fees and expenses of our accountants and the fees and expenses of our legal counsel and other agents and representatives.

Agency Agreement and Related Matters

The agreement between us and the joint bookrunning managers provides that the respective obligations of the parties are subject to certain customary
conditions precedent, including the absence of any material adverse changes in our business and the receipt by the joint bookrunning managers of certain
customary legal opinions, letters and certificates prior to the completion of the offering.

The joint bookrunning managers are underwriters of this offering within the meaning of Section 2(a)(11) of the Securities Act and any commissions
received by them may be deemed to be underwriting compensation. The joint bookrunning managers will be required to comply with the requirements of the
Securities Act and the Exchange Act, including, without limitation, Rule 10b-5 and Regulation M under the Exchange Act.

We have agreed to indemnify the joint bookrunning managers against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Exchange Act. We have also
agreed to contribute to payments the joint bookrunning managers may be required to make in respect of such liabilities.

Offer Restrictions Outside the United States

Other than in the United States, no action has been taken by us or the joint bookrunning managers that would permit a public offering of the
securities offered by this offering circular in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. The securities offered by this offering circular may not
be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, nor may this offering circular or any other offering material or advertisements in connection with the offer and sale of
any such securities be distributed or published in any jurisdiction outside of the U.S., except under circumstances that will result in compliance with the
applicable rules and regulations of that jurisdiction. Persons into whose possession this offering circular comes are advised to inform themselves about and to
observe any restrictions relating to the offering and the distribution of this offering circular. This offering circular does not constitute an offer to sell or a
solicitation of an offer to buy any securities offered by this offering circular in any jurisdiction in which such an offer or a solicitation is unlawful.
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LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the securities offered in this offering circular are being passed upon for us by Graubard Miller, New York, New York. Greenberg
Traurig, McLean, Virginia, is acting as counsel for the joint bookrunning managers in this offering. Graubard Miller and certain of its partners and family
members own equity interests in CSS Holdings, our ultimate parent company, and in CSS Entertainment. Certain partners of Graubard Miller and their
affiliates participated in our Debt Placement and 2017 Equity Private Placement. An affiliate of HCFP/Capital Markets owns certain equity interests in CSS
Holdings. Certain affiliates of HCFP/Capital Markets participated in our Debt Private Placement, 2016 Equity Private Placement and 2017 Equity Private
Placement. Graubard Miller has, from time to time, represented HCFP/Capital Markets and its affiliates in legal matters unrelated to our company or this
offering.

EXPERTS

The financial statements of CSS Entertainment and predecessor included in this offering circular and elsewhere in the offering statement of which
this offering circular forms a part have been so included in reliance upon the report of Rosenfield and Company, PLLC, independent registered public
accountants, upon the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

We have filed with the SEC a Regulation A Offering Statement on Form 1-A, which includes exhibits, schedules and amendments, under the
Securities Act, with respect to this offering of securities. Although this offering circular, which forms a part of the Form 1-A, contains all material information
included in the Form 1-A, parts of the Form 1-A have been omitted as permitted by rules and regulations of the SEC. We refer you to the Form 1-A and its
exhibits for further information about us, our securities and this offering. The Form 1-A and its exhibits, as well as each of our other reports filed with the
SEC, can be inspected and copied at the SEC's public reference room at 100 F. Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. The public may obtain information
about the operation of the public reference room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, the SEC maintains a website at http://www.sec.gov
which contains the Form 1-A and other reports, proxy and information statements and information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment Inc. as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Chicken Soup for the
Soul Entertainment Inc. as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s ROSENFIELD AND COMPANY, PLLC

Orlando, Florida
May 15, 2017




Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net

Prepaid expenses

Intangible asset - video content license
Prepaid distribution fees

Due from affiliated companies
Programming costs, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY/MEMBERS' DEFICIT

Senior secured notes payable, net of unamortized debt discount of $318,992
and unamortized deferred financing costs of $40,902 as of December 31, 2016

Senior secured notes payable to related party under revolving line of credit, net of unamortized
debt discount of $160,667 and unamortized deferred financing costs of
$2,845 as of December 31, 2016

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accrued programming costs

Deferred tax liability, net

Deferred revenue

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Members' deficit

Stockholders' equity:

Preferred stock, $.0001 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized,;
none issued or outstanding

Class A Common stock, $.0001 par value, 70,000,000 shares
authorized; 893,369 shares issued and outstanding

Class B Common stock, $.0001 par value, 20,000,000 shares
authorized; 8,071,955 shares issued and outstanding

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated deficit

Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity/members' deficit

2016 2015
507,247 4,078
151,417 -
216,397 16,198

5,000,000 -
592,786 -
1,372,517 2,111,556
3,977,553 951,069
11,817,917 3,082,901
2,610,106 -
3,316,488 -
694,368 23,030
1,061,980 -
439,000 -
71,429 3,500,000
8,193,371 3,523,030
- (440,129)
89 -
807 -
4,074,646 -
(450,996) -
3,624,546 -
11,817,917 3,082,901

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Revenue:

Television
Online

Total revenue
Cost of revenue

Gross profit
Operating expenses:

Selling, general and administrative (including $1,542,044
and $792,000 of non-cash share-based compensation
expense in 2016 and 2015, respectively)

Management and license fees due to affiliate

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Interest income

Interest expense (including non-cash amortization of debt
discount of $383,712 and amortization of deferred
financing costs of $40,859 in 2016)

Income (loss) before income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Net income (loss)

Net income (loss) per common share:

Basic net income (loss) per common share
Diluted net income (loss) per common share
Weighted average basic shares outstanding

Weighted average diluted shares outstanding

2016 2015
7,341,918 1,506,818
776,714 -
8,118,632 1,506,818
3,155,668 653,795
4,962,964 853,023
2,370,912 1,327,749
811,863 278,750
3,182,775 1,606,499

1,780,189 (753,476)
13 13
(560,069) -

1,220,133 (753,463)
439,000 -

781,133 (753,463)

0.09 (0.09)

0.09 (0.09)
8,835,930 8,760,000
8,996,636 8,760,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Balance, January 1, 2015 (1)

Fair value of Class B membership interest issued to
Trema in exchange for contract rights

Net loss
Balance, December 31, 2015

Recapitalization as successor to the operations of
Chicken Soup for Soul Productions, LLC

Shares issued in exchange of Class B membership
interest to Trema pursuant to recapitalization

Sale of Class A Common Stock, net of stock issuance

costs of $197,600
Fair value of warrants issued with Term Notes

Fair value of warrants issued with Credit Facility

Former executive officer exchange of Class B shares
for Class A shares pursuant to severance agreement

Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity/Members' Deficit
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Fair value of Class A shares issued to former executive

officer pursuant to severance agreement

Shares issued to directors and others for services
rendered

Conversion of Class B shares to Class A shares upon

sale by minority stockholder

Net income

Balance, December 31, 2016

C Stock
Class A Class B Additional
Preferred Par Par Paid-In Members' Accumulated
Stock Shares Value Shares Value Capital Deficit Deficit Total

$ - - % - -3 - - $ (478,666) $ - $ (478,666)
- - - - - - 792,000 - 792,000
. - - 5 = 5 (753,463) S (753,463)
- = = - = = (440,129) = (440,129)
- - - 8,600,568 860 - 1,232,129 (1,232,129) 860
- - - 159,432 16 792,000 (792,000) - 16
- 178,660 17 - - 877,234 - 877,251
- - - - - 553,192 - 553,192
- - - - - 310,179 - 310,179
- 430,028 43 (430,028) (43) - - -
) . ; ; - 1,436,204 - 1436294
- 26,664 3 - - 105,747 - 105,750
258,017 26 (258,017) (26) 5 . 5
- - - - - - 781,133 781,133
$ S 893,369 $ 89 8,071,955 $ 807 $4,074,646 $ - $ (450,996) $ 3,624,546

(1) Consists of pre-formation operating expenses of $478,666 for the year ended December 31, 2014. Also includes Class A member interests and Class B

member interests with a book value of $0.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Cash flows from Operating Activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
(used in) provided by operating activities:
Share-based compensation
Amortization of programming costs
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Amortization of original issue discount
Deferred income taxes
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Programming costs
Prepaid distribution fees
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenues

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities
Cash flows from Investing Activities:

Purchase of video content license from affiliate
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from Financing Activities:

Proceeds from revolving credit facility

Repayments of revolving credit facility

Payment of deferred financing cost

Due from affiliated companies

Payment of stock issuance cost

Proceeds from notes payable

Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental data:
Interest paid

Income taxes paid

Non-cash financing activities
Fair value of warrants issued with notes and revolving credit

Fair value of shares issued for Trema rights

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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2016

2015

781,133

1,542,044
3,155,668
40,859
383,712
439,000

(151,417)
(200,199)
(5,120,254)
(592,786)
671,338
(3,428,571)

(753,463)

792,000
646,295

(16,198)
(1,597,364)

23,031
3,500,000

(2,479,473)

2,594,301

(5,000,000)

(5,000,000)

4,530,000
(1,050,000)
(84,606)
739,039
(197,600)
2,970,000
1,075,809

(2,590,223)

7,982,642

(2,590,223)

503,169

4,078

4,078

507,247

4,078

110,092

863,370

792,000




Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

Note 1 — The Company and Nature of Operations

Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc. (the “Company”) is a Delaware corporation formed on May 4, 2016. CSS Productions, LLC (“CSS
Productions”), the Company’s predecessor and immediate parent company, was formed in December 2014 by Chicken Soup for the Soul, LLC (“CSS”), a
publishing and consumer products company, and initiated operations in January 2015. The Company was formed to create a discrete entity focused on video
content opportunities using the Chicken Soup for the Soul brand (the “Brand”). The Brand is owned and licensed to the Company by CSS. Chicken Soup for
the Soul Holdings, LL.C (“CSS Holdings”), is the parent company of CSS and the Company’s ultimate parent company.

The Company creates and distributes video content under the Brand. The Company has an exclusive, perpetual and worldwide license from CSS to create and
distribute video content under the Brand (Notes 6 and 10).

In May 2016, pursuant to the terms of the contribution agreement among CSS, CSS Productions and the Company (the “CSS Contribution Agreement”), all
video content assets (the “Subject Assets”) owned by CSS, CSS Productions and their CSS subsidiaries were transferred to the Company in consideration for
its issuance to CSS Productions of 8,600,568 shares of the Company’s Class B common stock. Since the date of the CSS Contribution Agreement, CSS
Production has transferred certain of these shares of Class B common stock to third parties in certain transactions (Note 8). Concurrently with the
consummation of the CSS Contribution Agreement, certain rights to receive payments under certain agreements comprising part of the Subject Assets owned
by Trema, LLC (“Trema”), a company principally owned and controlled by William J. Rouhana, Jr., the Company’s chairman and chief executive officer,
were assigned to the Company under a contribution agreement (the “Trema Contribution Agreement”) in consideration for the Company’s issuance to Trema
of 159,432 shares or our Class B common stock (Note 8).

Thereafter, CSS Productions’ operating activities substantially ceased and the Company continued the business operations of producing and distributing the
video content.

Note 2 — Liquidity, Management’s Plans and Business Risks

In order to accomplish its business objectives, the Company has raised capital through debt and equity offerings as described in Notes 7 and 8, and continues
to raise capital subsequent to December 31, 2016. Funds raised and to be raised through debt and equity offerings, cash generated from operations, and
together with the availability of funds under the Secured Revolving Line of Credit (“Credit Facility”), should enable the Company to meet its working capital
needs for at least the next twelve months. The Company's ability to fund its longer term cash requirements is subject to multiple risks, many of which are
beyond its control. Should additional funding be required, the Company may need to raise additional capital through the sale of equity or debt securities.
Additional financing may not be available at all, or may only be available in amounts or on terms that may be unacceptable to the Company. Any failure to
obtain additional financing may have a material adverse effect upon the Company’s ability to grow, and as such, could result in a substantial reduction in the
planned scope of the Company’s operations.

Note 3 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Conselidation

(a) The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary. The consolidated financial
statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). All intercompany balances
and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

(b) As described in Note 1, The Company and Nature of Operations, CSS Productions began operations during January 2015. CSS first contemplated
commercially selling its video content during 2014, prior to the formation of CSS Productions in December 2014. As such, and in accordance with Staff
Accounting Bulletin Topic 1 B, opening members’ deficit as of January 1, 2015 includes $478,666 of pre-formation allocated expenses for the year ended
December 31, 2014. The pre-formation allocated expenses were derived from the financial statements of CSS, based on allocations of costs incurred
attributable to the development of the video content business prior to the formation of the Company.
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Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(c) As of December 31, 2016, the Company operates in one business segment, the production and distribution of video content, and currently operates solely
in the United States. The Company is an early stage and emerging growth company and, as such, the Company is subject to all of the risks associated with
early stage and emerging growth companies.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expense during the reporting period. The Company’s significant estimates include those related to revenue recognition, accounts receivable allowances,
intangible assets, share-based compensation expense, income taxes and programming costs. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and consist primarily of money market funds.
Such investments are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.

Fair Value

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. To increase the comparability of fair value measurements, a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in the
valuation methodologies, is as follows:

Level 1—Valuations based on quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in active markets.

Level 2—Valuations based on observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active
markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by
observable market data.

Level 3—Valuations based on unobservable inputs reflecting our own assumptions. These valuations require significant judgment and estimates.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the fair value of the Company’s financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and accrued expenses and accrued programming costs, approximated their carrying value due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amounts management expects to collect. An allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded based on a combination of
historical experience, aging analysis and information on specific accounts. Account balances are written off against the allowance after all means of
collections have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. Accounts are considered past due or delinquent based on contractual
terms and how recently payments have been received. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, an allowance for uncollectible accounts was not considered
necessary.

Programming Costs

Programming costs include the unamortized costs of completed, in-process, or in-development long-form and short-form video content. For video content, the
Company’s capitalized costs include all direct production and financing costs, capitalized interest when applicable, and production overhead.
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Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

The costs of producing video content are amortized using the individual-film-forecast method. These costs are amortized in the proportion that current
period’s revenue bears to management’s estimate of ultimate revenue expected to be recognized from each production.

For an episodic television series, the period over which ultimate revenue is estimated cannot exceed ten years following the date of delivery of the first
episode, or, if still in production, five years from the date of delivery of the most recent episode, if later.

Programming costs are stated at the lower of amortized cost or estimated fair value. The valuation of programming costs is reviewed on a title-by-title basis,
when an event or change in circumstances indicates that the fair value may be less than its unamortized cost and the valuation is based on a discounted cash
flows (“DCF”) methodology with assumptions for cash flows. Key inputs employed in the DCF methodology include estimates of a program’s ultimate
revenue and costs as well as a discount rate. The discount rate utilized in the DCF is based on the weighted average cost of capital of the Company plus a risk
premium representing the risk associated with producing a particular program. The Company performs an annual impairment analysis for unamortized
programming costs. An impairment charge is recorded in the amount by which the unamortized costs exceed the estimated fair value. Estimates of future
revenue involve measurement uncertainties and it is therefore possible that reductions in the carrying value of programming costs may be required as a
consequence of changes in management’s future revenue estimates.

Included in cost of revenue in the consolidated statements of operations for 2016 and 2015, is amortization of programming costs totaling $3,155,668 and
$646,295, respectively. There was no impairment charge recorded in 2016 and 2015.

Income Taxes

The Company was formed on May 4, 2016 as a Sub-Chapter C corporation for federal and state tax purposes. As such, the Company will file its first tax
return for the year ended December 31, 2016. CSS Productions has elected to be treated as a partnership for federal and state income tax purposes and,
accordingly, no provision is made for income taxes for the taxable income included in the Company’s consolidated results of operations. CSS Productions has
not been audited by the taxing authorities since its formation. If taxable income is adjusted as a result of an audit, then CSS Productions may be required to
make distributions to satisfy its members’ tax obligations. Any such distributions would not be made from, or be the responsibility of, the Company.

The Company records income taxes under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred taxes are
also recognized for operating losses that are available to offset future taxable income. A valuation allowance is established, when necessary, to reduce
deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be realized or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in
tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

The Company accounts for uncertain tax positions in accordance with the authoritative guidance issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740 Income Taxes, which addresses the determination of whether tax benefits claimed or expected to be
claimed on a tax return, should be recorded in the financial statements. Pursuant to the authoritative guidance, the Company may recognize the tax benefit
from an uncertain tax position only if it meets the “more likely than not” threshold that the position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authority,
based on the technical merits of the position or expiration of statutes. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a position should be
measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. In addition, the authoritative
guidance addresses de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties on income taxes, accounting in interim periods, and also requires increased
disclosures. The Company includes interest and penalties related to its uncertain tax positions as part of income tax expense within its consolidated statement
of operations. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company did not have any unrecognized tax benefits or liabilities. See Note 9 Income Taxes for additional
information.




Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may
not be recoverable. If the sum of the expected future cash flows, undiscounted and without interest, is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an
impairment loss is recognized as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the production and distribution of television programs and short-form video content in accordance with Accounting
Standards Codification Topic 926: Entertainment — Films (“ASC 926”) as amended. Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement
exists, the fee is fixed and determinable, delivery has occurred, and collection of the resulting receivable is deemed probable. For episodic television
programs, revenue is recognized as each episode becomes available for delivery or becomes available for broadcast, and for short-form online videos, revenue
is recognized when the videos are posted to a website for viewing. Revenue from the distribution of short-form online media content is included in online
revenue in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Revenue generated under the distribution agreement with A Plus (See Note 10) will be reported on the net basis as the Company earns a commission on the
distribution of A Plus’ content.

Cash advances are recorded as deferred revenue until all the conditions of revenue recognition have been met.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company received a $75,000 non-refundable deposit pursuant to an option agreement for a feature film, which is
included in television revenue in the consolidated statement of operations. The option agreement has expired.

Share-based Payments

The Company accounts for share-based payments in accordance with ASC 718: Share-based compensation, which establishes the accounting for transactions
in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. Under the provisions of the authoritative guidance, share-based compensation
expense is measured at the grant date, based on the fair value of the award, and is recognized as an expense over the requisite service period, net of estimated
forfeitures. Shares issued for services are based upon current selling prices of the Company’s Class A common stock or independent valuations. The
Company estimates the fair value of share-based instruments, options, etc., using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. For the year ended December 31,
2016, share-based awards were issued to a former officer of the Company, non-employee directors and individuals for services rendered and were recorded at
their fair value. All share-based awards were fulfilled with new shares of Class A common stock.

Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. The Company did not incur any advertising costs for the years ending December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings or loss per common share is computed based on the weighted average number of shares of all classes of common stock outstanding. Diluted
earnings per common share is computed based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding increased by dilutive common stock
equivalents, comprised of Class W Warrants outstanding (the “Warrant Shares”).

Basic and diluted net earnings or loss per common share assumes that Class B common stock of the Company issued pursuant to the Contribution Agreement
and the resulting recapitalization of the Company is issued and outstanding for all periods presented (as of January 1, 2015). See Notes 1 and 8. As a result,
the basic weighted average shares outstanding used in the computation is 8,835,930 and 8,760,000 for the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, diluted weighted average shares outstanding gives effect to the Warrant Shares issued between May 2016 and
December 2016, as if they were issued and outstanding on January 1, 2016.
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Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

In applying the treasury stock method, the Company assumed a share price of $12 per share based on the estimated offering price of its Class A common
stock. As a result, 160,706 incremental shares were added to the weighted average basic shares outstanding to arrive at 8,996,636 weighted average diluted
shares outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2016. No Class W Warrants were issued and outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains cash balances at its bank. Accounts for each entity are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation subject to certain
limitations. At various times during the fiscal year, the Company’s cash in bank balances exceeded the federally insured limits. The uninsured balance is
immaterial.

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash in bank, revenue and accounts
receivable. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable and revenue are significant due to the small number of customers comprising the
Company’s customer base.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company had three customers that accounted for 94% of total revenue (the largest of which accounted for 46%),
and for the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company had one customer that accounted for 95% of total revenue. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the
Company had one customer in each year that accounted for all of its accounts receivable.

JOBS Act Accounting Election

The Company is an “emerging growth company,” as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”). Under the JOBS Act,
emerging growth companies can delay adopting new or revised accounting standards issued subsequent to the enactment of the JOBS Act until such time as
those standards apply to private companies. The Company has irrevocably elected to avail itself of this exemption from new or revised accounting standards,
and, therefore, will not be subject to the same new or revised accounting standards as public companies that are not emerging growth companies.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

(a) In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)” (“ASU 2014-
09”). ASU 2014-09 removes inconsistencies and differences in existing revenue requirements between GAAP and International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and requires a company to recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Once effective, ASU 2014-09 can be applied
retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial adoption recognized at the date of initial
application.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-08, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Principal versus Agent Considerations (Reporting
Revenue Gross versus Net)” (“ASU 2016-08”). The amendments in ASU 2016-08 clarify the implementation guidance on principal versus agent
considerations. In April 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-10, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Identifying Performance Obligations
and Licensing” (“ASU 2016-10”). The amendments in ASU 2016-10 clarify aspects relating to the identification of performance obligations and improve the
operability and understandability of the licensing implementation guidance. In May 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-12, “Update 2016-12—Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Narrow-Scope Improvements and Practical Expedients” (“ASU 2016-12"). The amendments in ASU 2016-12 address
certain issues identified on assessing collectability, presentation of sales taxes, noncash consideration, and completed contracts and contract modifications at
transition. The effective date for all ASUs noted above for public companies is annual and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. For
private companies, the effective date is annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company is currently evaluating the impact these
ASUs will have on its consolidated financial statements.
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Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

(b) In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, “Financial Instruments—Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities” (“ASU 2016-01”). The amendments in ASU 2016-01 address certain aspects of recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of financial instruments. ASU 2016-01 is effective for the Company for annual and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017.
The Company is currently evaluating the impact ASU 2016-01 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

(c) In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, “Leases” (Topic 842) (“ASU 2016-02”). The amendments in ASU 2016-02 address certain aspects in
lease accounting, with the most significant impact for lessees. The amendments in ASU 2016-02 require lessees to recognize all leases on the balance sheet
by recording a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, and lessor accounting has been updated to align with the new requirements for lessees. The new standard
also provides changes to the existing sale-leaseback guidance. ASU 2016-02 is effective for the Company for annual and interim reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2019. The Company is currently evaluating the impact ASU 2016-02 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

(d) In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, “Compensation—Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment
Accounting” (“ASU 2016-09”). The amendments in ASU 2016-09 address several aspects of the accounting for share-based payment transactions, including
the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, and classification on the statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-09 is
effective for the Company for annual and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The Company is currently evaluating the impact ASU
2016-09 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

Note 4 — Episodic Television Programs

(a) In September 2014, CSS and a charitable foundation (the “Foundation”), on whose advisory board the Company’s chief executive officer sits, entered
into an agreement under which the Foundation agreed to sponsor a Saturday morning family television show (See Note 10, Related Party Transactions). The
Foundation is a not-for-profit charity that promotes tolerance, compassion and respect. In October 2015, the first season of Chicken Soup for the Soul’s
Hidden Heroes (“Hidden Heroes”), a half-hour hidden-camera family friendly show, premiered on the CBS Television Network (“CBS”). The Hidden Heroes
slate is comprised of 26 episodes (22 originals and four “best ofs”) that aired weekly in its initial season of 52 consecutive weekly time slots (“HH-17). At
December 31, 2016, Hidden Heroes is airing its second season on CBS, sponsored by the Foundation (“HH-2”). The Foundation has agreed to fund Hidden
Heroes for a third, 26-episode/52-week season, with possible commitments for up to two additional seasons thereafter.

In accordance with ASC 926, the Company recognizes revenue for the Hidden Heroes series as the episodes become available for delivery and broadcast. For
the year ended December 31, 2016, 13 original episodes of HH-1 and 11 original episodes of HH-2 either aired on CBS or the content was available for
broadcast. For the year ended December 31, 2015, nine original episodes of HH-1 aired on CBS or the content was available for broadcast.

In December 2014, CSS Productions entered into a co-production and distribution agreement with Litton Entertainment (“Litton”) whereby Litton provided
all co-production services for HH-1 for a turn-key fee (the “Co-Production Fee”). The Co-Production fee was payable to Litton, based on the completion and
delivery of the episodes. In addition, Litton agreed to make available within its Saturday morning programming block on CBS, time slots approved by CSS
Productions to air HH-1. In April 2016, Litton exercised its option to produce HH-2 under similar terms and conditions as HH-1. Litton has an option, if the
Company agrees, to extend the Hidden Heroes series, including spin-off’s, for additional seasons.

b) In September 2015, CSS Productions received corporate sponsorship funding from a company (the “Sponsor”), to develop the Company’s second

episodic television series entitled Project Dad, a Chicken Soup for the Soul Original (“Project Dad”). Project Dad presents three busy celebrity dads as they
put their careers on the “sidelines” and get to know their children like never before.
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December 31, 2016 and 2015
The Project Dad slate is comprised of eight, one-hour episodes that aired weekly on Discovery Communications, LLC’s Discovery Life network in
November and December 2016. In addition, in January 2017, Project Dad began airing on Discovery Communications, LLC’s TLC network. The Sponsor of
Project Dad has agreed to fund a different parenting series, which is expected to air in the fourth quarter of 2017.
In May 2016, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, BD Productions, LLC, entered into a production services agreement with BD Productions, Inc., a
wholly owned subsidiary of DB Goldline Entertainment, Inc. (“BD Inc.”), whereby BD Inc. would produce eight one-hour episodes to be included in the
Project Dad series.
The production services agreement requires periodic payments to BD Inc. based on the production services budget for the show.
Note 5 — Programming Costs

Programming costs, net of amortization, consists of the following:

December 31,

2016 2015
Released, net of accumulated amortization of $3,801,963
and $646,295 in 2016 and 2015, respectively $ 3,228,440 $ 688,576
In production 100,000 104,614
In development 649,113 157,879
$ 3,977,553 $ 951,069

The Company expects that approximately 14% or $571,000 of the above programming costs will be amortized during the year ending December 31, 2017.
The Company expects that 80% of the unamortized balance for released programming, or $2,583,000, will be amortized during the three years ending
December 31, 2019. See Note 11, Commitments and Contingencies.

Note 6 — Intangible Asset - Video Content License

The Company has been granted a perpetual, exclusive license from CSS to utilize the Brand and related content, for visual exploitation on a worldwide basis
(“Perpetual License”). In granting the Perpetual License, CSS required an initial purchase price of $5,000,000, which approximated its costs to CSS, and was
paid by the Company during 2016. The Company has recorded the initial purchase price of the Perpetual License at the estimated cost to CSS in its
consolidated balance sheet. See Note 10, Related Party Transactions.

Note 7 — Notes Payable and Secured Revolving Line of Credit

Notes Payable

Beginning in July 2016 and through December 31, 2016, the Company sold in a private placement (“Debt Private Placement”) $2,970,000 aggregate principal
amount of 5% senior secured term notes (the “Term Notes”) and Class W warrants to purchase an aggregate of 252,450 shares of Class A common stock (the
“Warrants”).

The principal of the Term Notes (including all accrued, but unpaid interest thereon) is due on the earlier of (a) June 30, 2017 or (b) the third business day

following consummation of (i) an initial public offering of the Company’s common stock or (ii) mandatorily repaid at 101% of par value from any future
equity offering (other than as a result of the exercise of the Warrants) resulting in gross proceeds of at least $7,000,000.
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The Term Notes rank pari passu with the Credit Facility and senior to any existing or future indebtedness of the Company. The Term Notes are secured by a
first priority security interest and lien in all tangible and intangible assets of the Company, subject to an intercreditor agreement with respect to the Credit
Facility.

The Warrants are exercisable at $7.50 per share at any time prior to June 30, 2021 and are accounted for as equity warrants. The Warrants are callable under
certain circumstances, but in no event prior to January 31, 2018.

The Term Notes and the Warrants are accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification Topic 470: Debt (“ASC 470”) which provides,
among other things, that the fair value is allocated between the debt and the related warrants. The fair value of the Warrants issued was determined to be
$679,894 using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the relative fair value of the warrants was recorded as a discount to the Term Notes with a
corresponding credit to additional paid-in capital. In determining the fair value the following assumptions were used from the date of issuance of the
Warrants:

- aterm range of 4.56 years to 4.98 years,

- arisk free interest rate range of .97% to 1.90%.
- expected volatility of 60%, and

- no expected dividend yield.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, amortization of the debt discount of $234,201, amortization of deferred financing costs of $37,304, and cash interest
expense paid on the Term Notes of $50,727 is included in interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

Officers of the Company and of CSS, and their family members, have participated in the Debt Private Placements on the same terms and conditions as other
investors (see Note 10, “Related Party Transactions”. In addition, the Company continued to sell the Debt Private Placement subsequent to December 31,
2016 (see Note 12, “Subsequent Events™).

Secured Revolving Line of Credit

On May 12, 2016, the Company entered into the Credit Facility with an entity controlled by its chief executive officer (the “Lender”). Under the original
terms of the Credit Facility, the Company could borrow up to an aggregate of $3,000,000, which was increased to $3,500,000 on December 12, 2016 pursuant
to an amendment (“Amendment 1”). Payment obligations under the Credit Facility are senior and secured by a first priority security interest in all assets of the
Company subject to the intercreditor agreement with the Term Noteholders.

Advances made under the Credit Facility can be used for working capital and general corporate purposes, and were used in part, for payments due to CSS
pursuant to the license agreement (Note 10). Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest at 5% per annum and an annual fee equal to 0.75% of the
unused portion of the Credit Facility, payable monthly in arrears in cash. Principal obligations (and all accrued but unpaid interest thereon) was due on the
earlier of (a) June 30, 2017 or (b) the third business day following consummation of (i) an initial public offering of the Company’s common stock and (ii) any
future debt or equity offering resulting in gross proceeds to the Company of at least $7,000,000 (“Maturity Date”).

On January 24, 2017, the Maturity Date criteria was extended to June 30, 2018 by amendment (“Amendment 2”) to the Credit Facility and the requirement
for repayment upon the initial public offering of the Company’s common stock or an equity offering resulting in gross proceeds to the Company of at least
$7,000,000, was eliminated. The Credit Facility was further increased by amendment to $4,500,000 on March 27, 2017 (“Amendment 3”). See Note 12,
“Subsequent Events.”

If payment obligations under the Credit Facility are still outstanding at the Maturity Date, or, if prior to the Maturity Date there is an event of default as
prescribed by the Credit Facility, then, at the option of the Company, (a) all principal and interest may be exchanged into shares of Class A common stock of
the Company on the same terms as the Company’s most recently completed equity financing, provided, that under no circumstances shall the pre-money
valuation used for this exchange be less than $52,560,000, (b) the Maturity Date of the Credit Facility may be extended by mutual agreement of the parties,
and (c) all principal and interest will be paid in full. In connection with the Credit Facility, on May 12, 2016, the Company issued Class W warrants (the
“Warrants”) to the Lender to purchase an aggregate of 105,000 shares of the Company’s Class A common stock at an exercise price of $7.50 per share.
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On December 12, 2016, pursuant to Amendment 1, which increased the amount of the Credit Facility to $3,500,000, the Company issued an additional 17,500
Warrants to the Lender. On March 27, 2017, pursuant to Amendment 3, which increased the amount of the Credit Facility to $4,500,000, the Company issued
an additional 35,000 Warrants to the Lender.

All Warrants issued to the Lender expire on May 12, 2021 and are accounted for as equity warrants.

The Credit Facility and the related Warrants are accounted for in accordance with ASC 470 which provides, among other things, that the fair value is
allocated between the debt and the related warrants. The fair value of the Warrants issued during 2016 was determined to be $340,375 using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model and the relative fair value of the warrants was recorded as a discount to the Credit Facility with a corresponding credit to
additional paid-in capital. In determining the fair value the following assumptions were used from the date of issuance of the Warrants:

- aterm range of 4.55 years to 5.00 years,

- arisk free interest rate range of 1.22% to 1.90%.
- expected volatility of 60%, and

- no expected dividend yield.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, amortization of the debt discount of $149,511, amortization of deferred financing costs of $3,555 and cash interest
expense paid on the Credit Facility of $81,703 is included in interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. As of December 31,
2016, the balance payable by the Company under the Credit Facility was $3,480,000.

Note 8 — Stockholders’ Equity and Members’ Deficit

(a) Equity Structure

The Company is authorized to issue 70,000,000 shares of Class A common stock, par value $.0001 (“Class A Stock”), 20,000,000 shares of Class B common
stock, par value $.0001 (“Class B Stock™), and 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $.0001. As of December 31, 2016, the Company has 893,369
shares of Class A Stock outstanding, 8,071,955 shares of Class B Stock outstanding and no shares of preferred stock outstanding. A general description of
these securities is as follows:

Common Stock

Holders of Class A Stock and Class B Stock have identical voting rights, except that holders of Class A Stock are entitled to one vote per share and holders of
Class B Stock are entitled to ten votes per share. Class A Stock and Class B Stock vote together as a single class on all matters (including the election of
directors) submitted to a vote of stockholders, unless otherwise required by law or our charter documents. There is no cumulative voting with respect to the
election of directors, with the result that the holders of more than 50% of the shares voted for the election of directors can elect all of the directors.

Holders of Class A Stock and Class B Stock shall be treated equally, identically and ratably, on a per share basis, with respect to any dividends or distributions

as may be declared and paid from time to time by the board of directors out of any assets legally available thereof. Holders of common stock of the Company
are not entitled to preemptive rights and are not subject to conversion, redemption or sinking fund provisions.
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Subject to preferential or other rights of any holders of preferred stock then outstanding, upon the dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the Company,
whether voluntary or involuntary, holders of Class A Stock and Class B Stock will be entitled to receive ratably all assets of the Company available for
distribution to its stockholders unless disparate or different treatment of the shares with respect to distributions upon any such liquidation, dissolution or
winding up is approved in advance by the affirmative vote (or written consent if action by written consent of stockholders is permitted at such time under the
Company’s Certificate of Incorporation) of the holders of a majority of the outstanding Class A Stock and Class B Stock, each voting separately as a class.

In the case of a merger or consolidation that results in any distribution or payment in respect of the shares of Class A Stock or Class B Stock upon such
consolidation or merger with or into any other entity, or in the case of any other transaction having an effect on stockholders substantially similar to that
resulting from a consolidation or merger, such distribution or payment shall be made ratably on a per share basis among the holders of Class A Stock and
Class B Stock as a single class; provided, however, that shares of one such class may receive different or disproportionate distributions or payments in
connection with such merger, consolidation or other transaction if (i) the only difference in the per share distribution to the holders of the Class A Stock and
Class B Stock is that any securities distributed to the holder of a share of Class B Stock have ten times the voting power of any securities distributed to the
holder of a share of Class A Stock, or (ii) such merger, consolidation or other transaction is approved by the affirmative vote (or written consent if action by
written consent of stockholders is permitted at such time under the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation) of the holders of a majority of the outstanding
shares of Class A Stock and Class B Stock, each voting separately as a class.

The outstanding shares of Class B Stock are convertible at any time as follows: (1) at the option of the holder, a share of Class B Stock may be converted at
any time into one share of Class A Stock or (2) upon the election of the holders of a majority of the then outstanding shares of Class B Stock, all outstanding
shares of Class B Stock may be converted into shares of Class A Stock. Once converted into Class A Stock, the Class B Stock will not be reissued.

Preferred Stock

The certificate of incorporation of the Company currently authorizes the issuance of 10,000,000 shares of blank check preferred stock. The blank check
preferred stock may be issued in the future by the Company’s board of directors, without stockholder approval, with such designation, rights and preferences
as it may be determined from time to time. Accordingly, such preferred stock could adversely affect the voting power or other rights of the holders of
common stock.

Class W Warrants

As of December 31, 2016, the Company has a total of 428,548 Class W warrants (the “Warrants”) outstanding. Each Warrant entitles the registered holder to
purchase one share of Class A Stock at a price of $7.50 per share, subject to adjustment as discussed below. Each Warrant is exercisable at any time through
June 30, 2021 at 5:00 p.m., New York City time.

If the Company’s Class A Stock is traded, listed or quoted on any U.S. market or electronic exchange, and the closing per-share sales price of the Class A
Stock for any twenty (20) trading days during a consecutive thirty (30) trading days period (the “Measurement Period”) exceeds $15.00 (subject to adjustment
for forward and reverse stock splits, recapitalizations, stock dividends and the like), then the Company may call for cancellation of all or any portion of the
Warrants for which a notice of exercise has not yet been delivered for consideration equal to $.01 per Warrant, in accordance with the provisions of the
Warrants. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, we shall not make a call of the Warrants prior to January 31, 2018.
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If the resale of the Class A Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants is not covered by an effective registration statement or an exemption from
registration (a) at the time of a call by the Company of the Warrants as described above, (b) at any time the Class A Stock is traded, listed or quoted on a U.S.
trading market or electronic exchange or (c) after January 31, 2018, the holders of the Warrants shall be afforded cashless exercise rights as further described
in the Warrant agreement. In such event, each holder would pay the exercise price by surrendering the Warrants for that number of shares of common stock
equal to the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the product of the number of shares of Class A Stock underlying the Warrants, multiplied by the difference
between the exercise price of the Warrants and the “fair market value” (defined below) by (y) the fair market value. The “fair market value” for this purpose
will mean the average reported last sale price of the shares of common stock for the ten trading days ending on the trading day prior to the date of exercise.

The right to exercise will be forfeited unless the Warrants are exercised prior to the date specified in the notice of redemption. On and after the redemption
date, a record holder of a Warrant will have no further rights except to receive the redemption price for such Warrant upon surrender thereof.

The redemption criteria for the Warrants has been established at a price which is intended to provide holders a reasonable premium to the initial exercise price
and provide a sufficient differential between the then-prevailing share price and the warrant exercise price so that if the share price declines as a result of a
redemption call, the redemption will not cause the share price to drop below the exercise price of the Warrants.

The exercise price and number of shares of Class A Stock issuable on exercise of the Warrants may be adjusted in certain circumstances including in the event
of a share dividend, extraordinary dividend or our recapitalization, reorganization, merger or consolidation. However, the Warrants will not be adjusted for
issuances of shares of Class A Stock at a price below their respective exercise prices. Holders of the Warrants do not have the rights or privileges of holders of
shares of common stock or any voting rights until they exercise the Warrants and receive shares of Class A Stock. After the issuance of shares of common
stock upon exercise of the Warrants, each holder will be entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters to be voted on by stockholders. No
fractional shares will be issued upon exercise of the Warrants. If, upon exercise of the Warrants, a holder would be entitled to receive a fractional interest in a
share, we will, upon exercise, round up to the nearest whole number the number of shares of Class A Stock to be issued to the holder.

(b) Equity Private Placements

Beginning in June 2016 and through November, 2016, the Company sold in a private placement (the “2016 Equity Private Placement™) a total of 17,096 units
with aggregate proceeds of $1,025,760, consisting of an aggregate of 170,960 shares of Class A common stock and Warrants to purchase an aggregate of
51,288 shares of Class A common stock. The purchase price of each unit was $60 and each unit consisted of 10 shares of Class A common stock and 3
Warrants exercisable at $7.50 each. The Warrants are exercisable at any time prior to June 30, 2021 and are accounted for as equity warrants. The Warrants
are callable under certain circumstances, but in no event prior to January 31, 2018.

Beginning in November 2016 and through December 31, 2016, the Company sold in a private placement (the “2017 Equity Private Placement™) a total of 770
units with aggregate proceeds of $50,050 consisting of an aggregate of 7,700 shares of Class A common stock and Warrants to purchase an aggregate of 2,310
shares of Class A common stock. The purchase price of each unit was $65 and each unit consisted of 10 shares of Class A common stock and 3 Warrants
exercisable at $7.50 each. The Warrants are exercisable at any time prior to June 30, 2021 and are accounted for as equity warrants. The Warrants are callable
under certain circumstances, but in no event prior to January 31, 2018. The 2017 Equity Private Placement activity continued through March 2017 (See Note
12, “Subsequent Events™).

Family members of officers of the Company and of CSS have participated in the 2016 Equity Private Placement and the 2017 Equity Private Placement on

the same terms and conditions as other investors (see Note 10, “Related Party Transactions”. In addition, the Company continued to sell the 2017 Equity
Private Placement subsequent to December 31, 2016 (see Note 12, “Subsequent Events”).
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(c) Contribution Agreements

As described in Note 1, on May 12, 2016, pursuant to the terms of the Contribution Agreement, all of the Subject Assets owned by CSS, CSS Productions and
CSS affiliates were transferred to the Company in consideration for the issuance to CSS Productions of 8,600,568 shares of Class B common stock. Since the
date of the CSS Contribution Agreement, CSS Productions has transferred certain of these shares of Class B common stock to third parties in certain
transactions.

Concurrently with the consummation of the CSS Contribution Agreement, certain rights to receive payments under certain agreements comprising part of the
Subject Assets owned by Trema, a company principally owned and controlled by William J. Rouhana, Jr., the Company’s chairman and chief executive
officer, were assigned to the Company under the Trema Contribution Agreement.

In October 2015, Trema acquired certain rights held by a third party relating to the Subject Assets. Among the rights acquired by Trema, was the right to
receive contractual payments from CSS or its affiliates for a period of time. The contractual cash payments were based on a fixed percentage of revenue less
direct operating expenses resulting from television and film activities of CSS. As a result, CSS Productions exchanged 1.82% of Class B membership
interests to Trema in full satisfaction of its projected liability for the contractual payments (the “Class B Exchange”). As of December 31, 2015, the Class B
membership interests included in the Class B Exchange was determined to have a fair value of $792,000, based on an independent valuation of CSS
Productions. As a result, the Company recorded share-based compensation expense during the year ended December 31, 2015 of $792,000, which is included
in selling, general and administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

Concurrently with the consummation of the CSS Contribution Agreement, the rights held by Trema to the Subject Assets were assigned to the Company in
consideration for the issuance of 159,432 shares of Class B common stock valued at $792,000. Such Class B common stock has certain demand and
piggyback registration rights with respect to these shares that would be effective only after an initial public offering of common stock by the Company.

(d) Members’ Deficit and Equity Exchange

As described in Note 3, CSS Productions was formed in December 2014 and began operations in January 2015. During the period September 2014 through
January 2015, CSS hired an individual to assist in developing a plan for the future of its television and film business, and based on that plan, to become a co-
founder of CSS Productions (the “Co-Founder”). The related costs of the Co-Founder have been included in the costs allocated by CSS to pre-formation
expenses and are included in opening members’ deficit as of January 1, 2015.

On February 13, 2015, CSS Productions and CSS entered into an agreement with the Co-Founder whereby he became an executive officer (“EO”) of CSS
Productions. On that date, CSS Productions issued a Class B membership award (the “Founder Award”) to the EO that contained provisions that required the
EO to return certain amounts of the Founder Award if he left the Company prior to the completion of five years with CSS Productions. The Founder Award, if
it had become fully earned, would have represented an aggregate of 10% profits interest in the CSS Productions, subject to future dilution along with CSS
Productions.

Management determined that the Founder Award issued to the EO had minimal value when issued as the business plan had not been developed, CSS
Productions had not as yet obtained the right to exploit the video content, and no material revenue had been recorded.

In July 2016, the EO and CSS Productions agreed that the EO’s last day of employment would be July 31, 2016. As a result, the EO and the Company agreed

that the EO would receive 50% of the Founder Award as severance even though he had not vested in any portion of the profits interest. Further, CSS agreed to
exchange the 50% retained for Class B membership interests that CSS owned in CSS Productions.
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Effective July 31, 2016, the Company entered into an exchange agreement with the EO, in which he exchanged all membership interests in CSS Productions
which had been issued to him by CSS, for 430,028 shares of the Company’s Class B common stock then owned by CSS Productions. The EO simultaneously
elected to convert the Class B common stock into a like number of shares of the Company’s Class A common stock. There are certain piggyback registrations
rights with respect to these shares that would be effective only after an initial public offering of common stock by the Company. The fair value of the shares
was determined to be $1,436,294 based on an independent valuation of the Company’s shares and is included in selling, general and administrative expense in
the statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2016, with a corresponding credit to additional paid-in capital.

On September 30, 2015, CSS made a charitable donation of 6% of the membership interests it owned in CSS Productions to the Foundation. After this
donation, CSS owned 94% of the Class A membership interests in CSS Productions. The Company’s chairman and chief executive officer is a member of the
Foundation’s advisory board.

Note 9 — Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes consists of the following:

December 31,

2016 2015
Current tax provision:
Federal $ - 8 -
State - -
Deferred tax provision:
Federal 355,000 -
State 84,000 -
439,000 -
Total provision for income taxes $ 439,000 $ =
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The components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

December 31,
2016 2015
Deferred tax assets:
Other liabilities $ 36,000 $ -
Net operating loss carryover 481,000 =
Total deferred tax assets 517,000 -
Deferred tax liabilities:
Programming costs 886,000 =
Other assets 70,000 -
Total deferred tax liabilities 956,000 -
Net deferred tax liabilities $ 439,000 $ =

The difference between the provision for income taxes computed at the federal statutory rate and the actual income tax provision is as follows:

December 31,
2016 2015
Tax at federal statutory rate 34.0% 0.0%
State taxes, net of federal benefit 7.0% 0.0%
Tax on pre-incorporation income of predecessor -14.5% 0.0%
Others, net 9.6% 0.0%
36.1% 0.0%

The Company has net operating losses of approximately $1,049,000 that expire in 2036. The ultimate realization of the net operating losses is dependent upon
future taxable income, if any, of the Company and may be limited in any one period by alternative minimum tax rules.

Internal Revenue Code Section 382 imposes limitations on the use of net operating loss carryovers when the stock ownership of one or more 5% stockholders
(stockholders owning 5% or more of the Company’s outstanding capital stock) has increased by more than 50 percentage points. Public trading of company
stock poses a risk of an ownership change beyond the control of the Company that could trigger a limitation of the use of the loss carryover.

Note 10 — Related Party Transactions

(a) Affiliate Resources and Obligations

For the year ended December 31, 2015, CSS Productions and CSS were parties to a management services agreement and a license agreement. During 2015,
CSS Productions paid CSS 4% and 1%, respectively, pursuant to the management services and license agreement, based on actual cash revenue collected. For
the year ended December 31, 2015, CSS paid $278,750 to CSS Productions.

In May 2016, the Company entered into agreements with CSS and affiliated companies that provide the Company with access to important assets and
resources as described below (the “2016 Agreements”). The 2016 Agreements include a management services agreement and a license agreement. A
summary of the 2016 Agreements is as follows:

Management Services Agreement

The Company is a party to a Management Services Agreement with CSS (the “Management Agreement”). Under the terms of the Management
Agreement, the Company is provided with the operational expertise of the CSS companies’ personnel, including its chief executive officer.
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The Management Agreement also provides that the Company receives other services, including accounting, legal, marketing, management, data access
and back office systems, and requires CSS to provide office space and equipment usage.

Under the terms of the Management Agreement, commencing with the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2016, the Company shall pay a quarterly fee to
CSS equal to 5% of the gross revenue as reported under GAAP for each fiscal quarter. If the Company or its successor, then reports under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Act”), the quarterly fee will be based on gross revenue as reported in the applicable public filing under
the Exchange Act for each fiscal quarter. For the year ended December 31, 2016, CSS was paid $405,932 by the Company.

Each quarterly amount due shall be paid on or prior to the later of the 45th day after the end of such quarter, or the 10th day after the filing of the
applicable Exchange Act report for such quarter.

In addition, for any sponsorship that is arranged by CSS for the Company’s video content or that contains a multi-element transaction for which the
Company receives a portion of such revenue and CSS receives the remaining revenue (for example, a transaction that relates to both video content and
CSS’s printed products), the Company shall pay a sales commission to CSS equal to 20% of the portion of such revenue earned. Each sales commission
shall be paid within 30 days of the end of the month in which received. If CSS actually collects the Company’s portion of such fee, CSS will remit the
revenue due to the Company after deducting the sales commission. There were no sales commissions paid to CSS during the year ended December 31,
2016.

The term of the Management Agreement is five years, with automatic one-year renewals thereafter unless either party elects to terminate by delivering
written notice at least 90 days prior to the end of the then current term. The Management Agreement is terminable earlier by either party by reason of
certain prescribed and uncured defaults by the other party. The Management Agreement will automatically terminate in the event of the Company’s
bankruptcy or a bankruptcy of CSS or if the Company no longer has licensed rights from CSS under the License Agreement described below.

License Agreement

The Company is a party to a trademark and intellectual property license agreement with CSS (the “License Agreement”). Under the terms of the License
Agreement, the Company has been granted a perpetual, exclusive license to utilize the Brand and related content, such as stories published in the Chicken
Soup for the Soul books, for visual exploitation worldwide, subject only to the rights relating to scripted audio and visual content previously granted by
CSS to Alcon Entertainment LLC (“Alcon”). The rights previously granted to Alcon have expired.

In consideration of the License Agreement, in May 2016 the Company paid to CSS a one-time license fee of $5,000,000, comprised of a $1,500,000 cash
payment and the concurrent issuance to CSS of the CSS License Note, having a principal amount of $3,500,000 and bearing interest at 0.5% per annum
(the “Note”). The Note provided that it could be prepaid at any time in the discretion of the Company. The Note was due on the earlier of (a) five
business days after the date of written demand by CSS and (b) the third business day following the closing date of an initial public offering of the
common stock of the Company. The Note was repaid in full by September 16, 2016. Included in interest expense in the accompanying consolidated
statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2016, is $3,069 of interest paid to CSS while the Note was outstanding.

Under the terms of the License Agreement, commencing with the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2016, the Company also pays an incremental recurring
license fee to CSS equal to 4% of gross revenue as reported under GAAP for each fiscal quarter. If the Company or its successor then reports under the
Exchange Act, the quarterly fee will be based on gross revenue as reported in the applicable public filing under the Exchange Act for each fiscal quarter.
Each quarterly amount shall be paid on or prior to the later of the 45th day after the end of such quarter, or the 10t
Exchange Act report for such quarter.

day after the filing of the applicable
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In addition, CSS shall provide marketing support for the Company’s productions through its email distribution, blogs and other marketing and public
relations resources. Commencing with the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2016, the Company shall pay a quarterly fee to CSS equal to 1% of gross
revenue as reported under GAAP for each fiscal quarter for such support. For the year ended December 31, 2016, CSS was paid $405,932 by the
Company.

If the Company or its successor then reports under the Exchange Act, the quarterly fee will be based on gross revenue as reported in the applicable public
filing under the Exchange Act for each such fiscal quarter. Each quarterly amount shall be paid on or prior to the later of the 45th day after the end of

such quarter, or the 10

day after the filing of the applicable Exchange Act report for such quarter.

(b) Distribution Agreement with A Plus

In September 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CSS acquired a majority of the issued and outstanding common stock of A Sharp, Inc., d/b/a A Plus (“A
Plus”). A Plus develops and distributes high quality, empathetic short-form videos and articles to millions of people worldwide. A Plus is a digital media
company founded, chaired, and partially owned by actor and investor Ashton Kutcher. Mr. Kutcher owns 23%, third parties own 2%, and the CSS subsidiary
owns 75% of A Plus.

In September 2016, the Company entered into a distribution agreement with A Plus (the “A Plus Distribution Agreement”). The A Plus Distribution
Agreement has an initial term ending in September 2023. Under the terms of the A Plus Distribution Agreement, the Company has the exclusive worldwide
rights to distribute all video content (in any and all formats) and all editorial content (including articles, photos and still images) created, produced, edited or
delivered by A Plus.

Under the terms of the A Plus Distribution Agreement, the Company was obligated to pay A Plus an advance of $3,000,000 by March 31, 2017 (the “A Plus
Advance”).

The Company is entitled to retain a net distribution fee of 30% (40% while any portion of the A Plus Advance remains outstanding) of gross revenue
generated by the distribution of A Plus video content and 5% (15% while any portion of the A Plus Advance remains outstanding) of gross revenue generated
by the distribution of A Plus editorial content. The Company recoups the A Plus Advance by retaining the portion of gross revenue otherwise payable by the
Company to A Plus under the A Plus Distribution Agreement and applying same to the recoupment of the A Plus Advance. The Company will not pay A Plus
its portion of gross revenue until such time as the A Plus Advance has been recouped in full. As of December 31, 2016, the Company had paid $592,786 of
the A Plus Advance required by the A Plus Distribution Agreement. As of March 31, 2017, the A Plus Advance has been paid in full.

Online revenue in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2016, includes $398,142 of net distribution fees
earned by the Company under the A Plus Distribution Agreement.

(c) Debt Private Placement and Equity Private Placements

Officers of the Company and of CSS, and their family members (“Related Parties”), have made purchases under the Debt Private Placement, the 2016 Equity
Private Placement, and the 2017 Equity Private Placement on the same terms and conditions as offered to other investors. As of December 31, 2016, Related
Parties have purchased $1,340,000 under the Debt Private Placement and $200,040 under the 2016 Equity Private Placement.
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(d) Consulting Agreement

CSS Productions had a consulting agreement with Low Profile Films, Inc. (“Low Profile”). Low Profile provided executive production services for the
Company that included all activities necessary to establish and maintain relationships regarding CSS Productions proposed feature length film, a possible talk
show and, Low Profile was to oversee the production to facilitate the public viewing or distribution of same. The owner of Low Profile is the son of the
Company’s chairman and chief executive officer.

The Company’s agreement with Alcon for a feature length film expired on July 15, 2016 and as a result, the Company and Low Profile mutually agreed to
terminate the executive production services agreement as of July 15, 2016. For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company paid Low Profile
$35,000 and $60,000, respectively, for services provided, which are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations.

(e) Promotions License Agreement

During 2016, the Company entered into a Promotions License Agreement with One Last Thing (“OLT”) under which the Company paid $100,000 for the
right to integrate certain products into a feature film produced by OLT, such amount being recoupable from the gross revenue of such film. The company is
controlled by the son of the Company’s chairman and chief executive officer. The payment of $100,000 is included in programming costs in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2016.

(f) Sponsorship by the Foundation

CSS and the Company have several agreements with the Foundation, on whose advisory board the Company’s chief executive
officer sits. One such agreement includes sponsorship by the Foundation for a Saturday morning family television show. See Note 4
for a description of the agreement. For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company recognized revenue of
$3,734,884 and $1,431,818, respectively, from this sponsorship.

Note 11 — Commitments and Contingencies

As of December 31, 2016, the Company has commitments to make cash payments to unrelated third parties for programming costs during 2017 totaling
approximately $2,218,000.

In the normal course of business, from time-to-time, the Company may be subject to claims in legal proceedings. The Company does not believe it is
currently a party to any pending legal actions. Legal proceedings are subject-to inherent uncertainties, and an unfavorable outcome could include monetary
damages, and in such event, could result in a material adverse impact on the Company's business, financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Note 12 — Subsequent Events

(a) Subject Offering of CSS Entertainment Class A Common Stock

The Company is offering to sell newly issued shares of its Class A common stock at a per share price of $12 per share (“Subject Offering”), which excludes
shares that may be sold by certain of its existing stockholders as the Company will not receive any of the net proceeds of those shares sold by existing
stockholders. The Company has the option to sell additional newly issued shares in its sole discretion. There is no minimum number of shares that must be
sold in order to conduct a closing of the Subject Offering.

Prior to the Subject Offering, there has been no public market for the Company’s common stock. The Company expects that its Class A common stock will be
quoted for trading on the Nasdaq Capital Market, or Nasdaq, under the symbol CSSE. The Company cannot assure that its Class A common stock will be
approved for listing on Nasdaq. The Subject Offering is a Regulation A+ Tier 2 offering.

(b) Continued Sales of the Debt Private Placement and the 2017 Equity Private Placement
From January 1, 2017 through May 5, 2017, the Company has sold in the Debt Private Placement, an additional $2,030,000 aggregate principal amount Term
Notes and issued Warrants to purchase an aggregate of 172,550 shares of Class A common stock, on the same terms and conditions as previously sold.

From January 1, 2017 through May 5, 2017, the Company has sold in the 2017 Equity Private Placement, an additional 14,241 units with aggregate proceeds

of $925,660, consisting of an aggregate of 142,412 shares of Class A common stock and Warrants to purchase an aggregate of 42,724 shares of Class A
common stock, on the same terms and conditions as previously sold.
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Officers of the Company and of CSS, and their family members, have participated in the above placements on the same terms and conditions as other
investors.

(c) Amendment to Credit Facility

On January 24, 2017, the Credit Facility was amended to extend the Maturity Date from June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018, and the requirement for repayment
of the Credit Facility upon the initial public offering of the Company’s common stock or an equity offering resulting in gross proceeds to the Company of at
least $7,000,000, was eliminated. The Credit Facility was further increased to $4,500,000 on March 27, 2017 pursuant to Amendment 3.

(d) 2017 Equity Incentive Plan
Effective January 1, 2017, the Company’s board of directors and stockholders adopted the 2017 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan provides for the
issuance of up to one million common stock equivalents subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan.

Between January 1, 2017 and March 31, 2017, pursuant to the Plan, the Company granted five-year options to purchase up to a total of 455,000 shares of
Class A common stock which are exercisable at $6.50 to $7.50 per share (the “Options™). The Options vest quarterly over terms ranging from two years to
three years.

The Company will account for the Options in accordance with the authoritative guidance issued by the FASB on share-based compensation, in which an
entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. Under the provisions of the authoritative guidance, share-based compensation expense is
measured at the grant date of the Options, based on their fair value, and is recognized as an expense over the requisite employee service period (generally the
vesting period), net of estimated forfeitures.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Regulation A, the issuer certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for
filing on Form 1-A and has duly caused this offering statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Cos
Cob, State of Connecticut, on June 20, 2017.

CHICKEN SOUP FOR THE SOUL ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

By: /s/ William J. Rouhana, Jr.

William J. Rouhana, Jr.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

By: /s/ Daniel M. Pess

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Form 1-A has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates
indicated.

Name Position Date

/s/ William J. Rouhana, Jr. Chairman and Chief Executive Officer June 20, 2017
William J. Rouhana, Jr.

/s/ Scott W. Seaton Vice Chairman and Director June 20, 2017
Scott W. Seaton

/sl * Director June 20, 2017
Amy Newmark
/s/ * Director June 20, 2017

Peter Dekom

/sl * Director June 20, 2017
Fred Cohen
/s] * Director June 20, 2017

Christina Weiss Lurie

/sl * Director June 20, 2017
Diana Wilkin

* By Power of Attorney
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Exhibit 1.1
JOINT BOOKRUNNING MANAGER AGREEMENT
[],2017
HCFP/Capital Markets LLC
420 Lexington Avenue, Suite 300

New York, NY 10170
Attn: Robert J. Gibson

[ ]
Attn:

Gentlemen:

Introduction. This agreement (this “Agreement”) constitutes the agreement between Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (the “Company”), the stockholders of the Company named in Schedule I hereof (‘Selling Stockholders”), HCFP/Capital Markets LLC (“HCFP”)
and “ ), pursuant to which HCFP and shall serve as joint bookrunning managers (“Managers”) for the Company and the
Selling Stockholders in connection with the proposed Offering (as defined below) to investors (“Investors”) under Tier 2 of Regulation A under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended (“Securities Act”), of up to an aggregate of $30,000,000, or 2,500,000 shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock (“Shares”),
of which up to 641,983 Shares are initially being sold by the Company (“Company Shares”) and up to 258,071 Shares are being sold by the Selling
Stockholders (“Selling Stockholder Shares”). To the extent less than 900,000 Shares are sold in the Offering, the aggregate number of Shares sold in the
Offering will be allocated pro rata between the Company Shares and Selling Stockholder Shares and the Selling Stockholder Shares will be allocated pro rata
among the Selling Stockholders. In the event all of such 900,000 Shares are sold, the Managers shall have the right to sell up to an additional 1,600,000
Shares in the Offering. As between HCFP and , HCFP shall be the sole representative of the Managers (“Representative”) and all actions of the
Representative hereunder shall be binding upon . The Company and the Selling Stockholders hereby confirm their agreement with the Managers as
follows:

Section 1. Agreement to Act as Managers.

(a) On the basis of the representations, warranties and agreements of the Company and the Selling Stockholders herein contained, and subject
to all the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Managers shall be the exclusive Managers in connection with the offering and sale by the Company and
the Selling Stockholders of the Shares pursuant to the Company’s Offering Statement (as defined below), with the terms of such offering (the “Offering”) to
be subject to market conditions and negotiations between the Company and the Managers. The Managers will act on a commercially reasonable best efforts
basis and the Company and the Selling Stockholders agree and acknowledge that there is no guarantee of the successful sale of the Shares, or any portion
thereof, in the prospective Offering. Under no circumstances will the Managers or any of their Affiliates (as defined below) be obligated to underwrite or
purchase any of the Shares for their own account or otherwise provide any financing. The Managers shall act solely as the Company’s and the Selling
Stockholders’ agents and not as principals. The Managers shall have no authority to bind the Company or the Selling Stockholders with respect to any
prospective offer to purchase Shares and the Company shall have the sole right to accept offers to purchase Company Shares and may reject any such offer, in
whole or in part. The Managers may rely on soliciting dealers who are members of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”) to participate in
placing a portion of the Offering. The Managers may also retain other brokers or dealers to act as sub-managers or selected dealers on their behalf in
connection with the Offering. Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, payment of the purchase price for, and delivery of, the Shares shall be made at one
or, at the discretion of the Representative and the Company, more closings (each, a “Closing” and the date on which a Closing occurs, a “Closing Date”). As
compensation for services rendered, the Company and the Selling Stockholders shall pay to the Managers the fees and expenses set forth below:




@) Retainer Fees: Two retainer fees (the “Retainer Fees”) of $25,000 each with the first of such fees already having been paid
and the second to be paid upon qualification of the Offering Statement (as defined below).

(ii) Commission: On each Closing Date, ___ % of the gross proceeds received by the Company from the sale of the Shares at
each Closing and ___ % of the gross proceeds received by the Selling Stockholders at each Closing (the “Selling Stockholder
Commission”), which such commission will be allocated by the Managers among the Managers and the members of the selling syndicate
and soliciting dealers in their sole discretion.

(iii) Expenses: On each Closing Date and subject to compliance with FINRA Rule 5110(f)(2)(B), the Company agrees to pay
the Representative a non-accountable expense fee equal to 2.0% (“Expense Fee”) of the gross proceeds received by the Company and the
Selling Stockholders from the sale of the Shares at each Closing which such Expense Fee will be allocated by the Managers among the
Managers and the members of the selling syndicate and soliciting dealers in their sole discretion; provided, however, that such expense fee
in no way limits or impairs the indemnification and contribution provisions of this Agreement. In addition, the Company shall reimburse
each Agent for fees and expenses which are customarily the responsibility of the Company to pay in securities offerings, including, without
limitation, management background report fees, custody fees and third party investment platform fees if such fees are paid by an Agent. In
no event will the Managers incur a reimbursable cost in excess of $2,500 without the consent of the Company.

@iv) Expenses if no Closing: In the event following the date of qualification of the offering statement (“Qualification Date”)
that there is no Closing, subject to compliance with FINRA Rules 5110(f)(2)(D), the Company agrees to pay the Managers up to $50,000
towards application of expenses that the Managers actually incurred in connection with the Offering; provided, however, that such expense
cap in no way limits or impairs the indemnification and contribution provisions of this Agreement.

Other than the payment of any Selling Stockholder Commission, the Selling Stockholders shall not be liable to pay any other fees, commissions or expenses
set forth in this Section 1(a).

(b) The term of the Managers’ exclusive engagement will be until the completion of the Offering. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary
contained herein, the provisions concerning confidentiality, indemnification and contribution contained herein and the Company’s and the Selling
Stockholders’ obligations contained in the indemnification provisions will survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement, and the Company’s
obligation to pay fees actually earned and payable and to reimburse expenses actually incurred and reimbursable pursuant to Section 1 hereof and which are
permitted to be reimbursed under FINRA Rule 5110(f)(2)(D), will survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall
be construed to limit the ability of any Agent or its Affiliates to pursue, investigate, analyze, invest in, or engage in investment banking, financial advisory or
any other business relationship with Persons (as defined below) other than the Company and the Selling Stockholders. As used herein (i) “Persons” means an
individual or corporation, partnership, trust, incorporated or unincorporated association, joint venture, limited liability company, joint stock company,
government (or an agency or subdivision thereof) or other entity of any kind and (ii) “Affiliate” means any Person that, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, controls or is controlled by or is under common control with a Person as such terms are used in and construed under Rule 405 under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”).

(o) The Managers and the Company agree to utilize the (- ) platform to enable purchasers who are not purchasing
through a broker which is an agent or a dealer to purchase Shares in the Offering. As of the date hereof, the Company has entered into an agreement with
and agrees that all of the fees due under such agreement shall not constitute any of the non-accountable expense payment to the Managers. The
Company agrees that may also become a dealer for this Offering.




Section 2. Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the Company. The Company hereby represents, warrants and covenants to the
Managers, as of the date hereof, and as of each Closing Date, as follows:

(a) Filings. In connection with the offering herein contemplated, on May 16, 2017, the Company filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “Commission”) an offering statement on Form 1-A (Registration File No. 024-10704 under the Securities Act and the rules and regulations
(the “Rules and Regulations™) of the Commission promulgated thereunder filed Amendment No. 1 thereto with the Commission on June 1, 2017 and filed
Amendment No. 2 of June __, 2017. At the time of such filings, the Company met the requirements for an offering statement of a Tier 2 offering under
Regulation A of the Securities Act. The Company will file with the Commission under the Securities Act, a final Offering Circular included in such Offering
Statement (as defined below) relating to the offering of the Shares and the plan of distribution thereof and has advised the Managers of all further information
(financial and other) with respect to the Company required to be set forth therein. Such Offering Statement, including the exhibits thereto, as amended at the
date of this Agreement and as the same may be hereafter amended from time to time, is hereinafter called the “Offering Statement”; such Offering Circular in
the form in which it appears in the Offering Statement as amended at the date of this Agreement and as hereinafter amended is called the “Offering Circular”;
and any supplement to the Offering Circular filed after qualification of the Offering Statement is hereafter referred to as a “Circular Supplement”. All
references in this Agreement to financial statements and schedules and other information that is “contained,” “included,” “described,” “referenced,” “set
forth” or “stated” in the Offering Statement, the Offering Circular or the Circular Supplement (and all other references of like import) shall be deemed to
mean and include all such financial statements and schedules and other information that is or is deemed to be incorporated by reference in the Offering
Statement or any Circular Supplement, as the case may be.

(b) Assurances. The Offering Statement (and any further documents to be filed with the Commission) contains all exhibits and schedules as
required by the Securities Act. Each of the Offering Statement and any post-qualification amendment thereto, at the time it became qualified, complied in all
material respects with the Securities Act and the applicable Rules and Regulations and did not and, as amended or supplemented, if applicable, will not,
contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not
misleading (provided, however, that the preceding representations and warranties contained in this sentence shall not apply to any statements or omissions
made in reliance upon and in conformity with information furnished in writing to the Company by the Managers expressly for use therein (the “Agent
Information”)). The Offering Statement, the Offering Circular, and any Circular Supplement, each as of its respective date, comply in all material respects
with the Securities Act and the applicable Rules and Regulations. Each of the Offering Circular and the Circular Supplement, as amended or supplemented,
did not and will not contain as of the date thereof any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the
statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading (provided, however, that the preceding representations and
warranties contained in this sentence shall not apply to any Agent Information). All post-qualification amendments to the Offering Statement reflecting facts
or events arising after the date thereof which represent, individually or in the aggregate, a fundamental change in the information set forth therein will have
been so filed with the Commission. There are no documents required to be filed with the Commission in connection with the transaction contemplated hereby
that (x) have not been filed as required pursuant to the Securities Act or (y) will not be filed within the requisite time period. There are no contracts or other
documents required to be described in the Offering Circular, any Circular Supplement, or to be filed as exhibits or schedules to the Offering Statement, that
have not been described or filed as required.

(o) Offering Materials. The Company has delivered, or will as promptly as practicable deliver, to the Managers complete conformed copies of
the Offering Statement and of each consent and certificate of experts filed as a part thereof, and conformed copies of the Offering Statement (without
exhibits) and any Circular Supplement, as amended or supplemented, in such quantities and at such places as the Managers reasonably request. Neither the
Company nor any of its directors and officers has distributed and none of them will distribute, prior to a Closing Date, any offering material in connection
with the offering and sale of the Shares other than the Offering Circular, any Circular Supplement, and any other materials permitted by the Securities Act,
including any testing the waters communications under Regulation A.

(d) Subsidiaries. The Company has no subsidiaries.




(e) Organization and Qualification. The Company is an entity duly incorporated or otherwise organized, validly existing and in good standing
(where applicable) under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation or organization, with the requisite power and authority to own and use its properties
and assets and to carry on its business as currently conducted. The Company is not in violation or default of any of the provisions of its certificate of
incorporation, bylaws or other organizational or charter documents. The Company is duly qualified to conduct business and is in good standing as a foreign
corporation or other entity in each jurisdiction in which the nature of the business conducted or property owned by it makes such qualification necessary,
except where the failure to be so qualified or in good standing, as the case may be, could not reasonably be expected to result in: (i) a material adverse effect
on the legality, validity or enforceability of this Agreement or any other agreement entered into between the Company and the Investors, (ii) a material
adverse effect on the results of operations, assets, business, prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company or (iii) a material adverse effect on
the Company’s ability to perform in any material respect on a timely basis its obligations under this Agreement or the transactions contemplated under the
Offering Statement (any of (i), (ii) or (iii), a “Material Adverse Effect”) and no action, claim, suit, investigation or proceeding (including, without limitation,
an informal investigation or partial proceeding, such as a deposition), whether commenced or threatened (“Proceeding”) has been instituted in any such
jurisdiction revoking, limiting or curtailing or seeking to revoke, limit or curtail such power and authority or qualification.

® Authorization; Enforcement. The Company has the requisite corporate power and authority to enter into and to consummate the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement and the Offering Statement and otherwise to carry out its obligations hereunder and thereunder. The execution and delivery
of this Agreement by the Company and the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly authorized by all necessary action on
the part of the Company and no further action is required by the Company, the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board of Directors “) or the Company’s
shareholders in connection therewith other than in connection with the Required Approvals (as defined below). This Agreement has been duly executed by
the Company and, when delivered in accordance with the terms hereof, will constitute the valid and binding obligation of the Company enforceable against
the Company in accordance with its terms, except (i) as limited by general equitable principles and applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
moratorium and other laws of general application affecting enforcement of creditors’ rights generally, (ii) as limited by laws relating to the availability of
specific performance, injunctive relief or other equitable remedies and (iii) insofar as indemnification and contribution provisions may be limited by
applicable law.

() No Conflicts. The execution, delivery and performance by the Company of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby do not
and will not (i) conflict with or violate any provision of the Company’s certificate of incorporation, bylaws or other organizational or charter documents, or
(ii) conflict with, or constitute a default (or an event that with notice or lapse of time or both would become a default) under, result in the creation of any Lien
upon any of the properties or assets of the Company, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation (with or without
notice, lapse of time or both) of, any agreement, credit facility, debt or other instrument (evidencing a Company debt or otherwise) or other understanding to
which the Company is a party or by which any property or asset of the Company is bound or affected, or (iii) subject to the Required Approvals, conflict with
or result in a violation of any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment, injunction, decree or other restriction of any court or governmental authority to which the
Company is subject (including federal and state Shares laws and regulations), or by which any property or asset of the Company is bound or affected; except
in the case of each of clauses (ii) and (iii), such as could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.

(h) Filings, Consents and Approvals. The Company is not required to obtain any consent, waiver, authorization or order of, give any notice to,
or make any filing or registration with, any court or other federal, state, local or other governmental authority or other Person in connection with the
execution, delivery and performance by the Company of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, other than: (i) the filing with the
Commission of the Offering Statement and any Circular Supplement, (ii) application(s) to the NASDAQ Global Market or Capital Market (the “Trading
Market”) for the listing of the Shares for trading thereon in the time and manner required thereby and (iii) such filings as are required to be made under

applicable state securities laws (collectively, the “Required Approvals”).




(6] Issuance of the Shares. The Shares are duly authorized and, when issued and paid for in accordance with this Agreement and the Offering
Circular, will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, free and clear of all Liens imposed by the Company. The Company has reserved from
its duly authorized capital stock the maximum number of shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to the Offering Circular.

1) Capitalization. The capitalization of the Company is as set forth in the Offering Circular. The Company has not issued any capital stock
since the date of filing of its latest periodic report pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Shares Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)
or, in the event that the Company is not required to file periodic reports pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the Company has not issued
any capital stock since the date of filing of the Offering Circular other than pursuant to the exercise of employee stock options under the Company’s stock
option plans, the issuance of shares of Common Stock to employees pursuant to the Company’s employee stock purchase plans and pursuant to the
conversion and exercise of securities of the Company which would entitle the holder thereof to acquire at any time any Common Stock, including, without
limitation, any debt, preferred stock, rights, options, warrants or other instrument that is at any time convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for, or
otherwise entitles the holder thereof to receive, Common Stock (“Common Stock Equivalents”) outstanding as of the date of the filing of the Offering
Circular or any Circular Supplement. No Person has any right of first refusal, preemptive right, right of participation, or any similar right to participate in the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the transactions contemplated pursuant to the Offering Statement. Except as a result of the purchase and sale
of the Shares and except for stock options issued pursuant to the Company’s stock option plans or as described in the offering Circular, including with respect
to the Company’s Class W and Class Z warrants and its Trema Credit facility promissory note, there are no outstanding options, warrants, scrip rights to
subscribe to, calls or commitments of any character whatsoever relating to, or shares, rights or obligations convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for,
or giving any Person any right to subscribe for or acquire, any shares of Common Stock, or contracts, commitments, understandings or arrangements by
which the Company is or may become bound to issue additional shares of Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents. The issuance and sale of the Shares
will not obligate the Company to issue shares of Common Stock or other shares to any Person (other than the Investors) and will not result in a right of any
holder of shares to adjust the exercise, conversion, exchange or reset price under any of such shares. All of the outstanding shares of capital stock of the
Company are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, have been issued in compliance with all federal and state Shares laws, and none of such
outstanding shares was issued in violation of any preemptive rights or similar rights to subscribe for or purchase Shares. No further approval or authorization
of any shareholder, the Board of Directors or others is required for the issuance and sale of the Shares. There are no shareholders agreements, voting
agreements or other similar agreements with respect to the Company’s capital stock to which the Company is a party or, to the knowledge of the Company,
between or among any of the Company’s shareholders.

k) Financial Statements, Material Changes; Undisclosed Events, Liabilities or Developments. The audited financial statements of the
Company including related schedules, disclosures and notes included or referenced in the Offering Circular fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition of the Company as of the dates indicated and the results of operations and cash flows for the periods specified. The unaudited financial statements
(including the related notes and disclosures) included or referenced in the Offering Circular comply as to form and in all material respects to the applicable
accounting requirements of Regulation A and Regulation S-X under the Securities Act. Such unaudited financial statements fairly present in all material
respects the financial position, results of operations and other information purported to be shown therein at the respective dates and for the respective periods
indicated. Since the date of the latest audited financial statements included within the Offering Statement (i) there has been no event, occurrence or
development that has had or that could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect, (ii) the Company has not incurred any liabilities
(contingent or otherwise) other than (A) trade payables and accrued expenses incurred in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice and (B)
liabilities not required to be reflected in the Company’s financial statements pursuant to GAAP or disclosed in filings made with the Commission, (iii) the
Company has not altered its method of accounting, (iv) the Company has not declared or made any dividend or distribution of cash or other property to its
shareholders or purchased, redeemed or made any agreements to purchase or redeem any shares of its capital stock and (v) the Company has not issued any
equity securities to any officer, director or Affiliate, except pursuant to existing Company stock option plans. The Company does not have pending before the
Commission any request for confidential treatment of information. Except for the issuance of the Shares contemplated by the Offering Circular or disclosed in
any Circular Supplement, no event, liability, fact, circumstance, occurrence or development has occurred or exists or is reasonably expected to occur or exist
with respect to the Company or its business, prospects, properties, operations, assets or financial condition that would be required to be disclosed by the
Company under applicable securities laws at the time this representation is made or deemed made that has not been publicly disclosed at least one Trading
Day prior to the date that this representation is made.




) Litigation. There is no action, suit, inquiry, notice of violation, proceeding or investigation pending or, to the knowledge of the Company,
threatened against or affecting the Company or any of its properties before or by any court, arbitrator, governmental or administrative agency or regulatory
authority (federal, state, county, local or foreign) (collectively, an “Action”) which (i) adversely affects or challenges the legality, validity or enforceability of
any of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated pursuant to the Offering Statement or the Shares or (ii) could, if there were an unfavorable decision,
reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. Neither the Company nor any director or officer thereof, is or has within the last 10 years been
the subject of any Action involving a claim of violation of or liability under federal or state securities laws or a claim of breach of fiduciary duty. Neither the
Company, any predecessor of the Company, any executive officer or other officer of the Company nor any beneficial holder of 20% or more of the
Company’s outstanding voting securities is subject to the disqualification provisions of Rule 262 under the Securities Act. There has not been, and to the
knowledge of the Company, there is not pending or contemplated, any investigation by the Commission involving the Company or any current or former
director or officer of the Company. To the Company’s knowledge, the Commission has not issued any stop order or other order suspending the qualification of
any Offering Statement filed by the Company under the Exchange Act or the Securities Act.

(m) Labor Relations. No material labor dispute exists or, to the knowledge of the Company, is imminent with respect to any of the employees of
the Company, which could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. None of the Company’s employees is a member of a union that
relates to such employee’s relationship with the Company, and the Company is not a party to a collective bargaining agreement, and the Company believes
that its relationships with its employees are good. No executive officer, to the knowledge of the Company, is, or is now expected to be, in violation of any
material term of any employment contract, confidentiality, disclosure or proprietary information agreement or non-competition agreement, or any other
contract or agreement or any restrictive covenant in favor of any third party, and the continued employment of each such executive officer does not subject the
Company to any liability with respect to any of the foregoing matters. The Company is in compliance with all U.S. federal, state, local and foreign laws and
regulations relating to employment and employment practices, terms and conditions of employment and wages and hours, except where the failure to be in
compliance could not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(n) Compliance. The Company: (i) is not in default under or in violation of (and no event has occurred that has not been waived that, with
notice or lapse of time or both, would result in a default by the Company under), nor has the Company received notice of a claim that it is in default under or
that it is in violation of, any indenture, loan or credit agreement or any other agreement or instrument to which it is a party or by which it or any of its
properties is bound (whether or not such default or violation has been waived), (ii) is not in violation of any judgment, decree or order of any court, arbitrator
or governmental body or (iii) is not or has not been in violation of any statute, rule, ordinance or regulation of any governmental authority, including without
limitation all foreign, federal, state and local laws relating to taxes, environmental protection, occupational health and safety, product quality and safety and
employment and labor matters, except in each case as could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.

(o) Regulatory Permits. The Company possesses all certificates, authorizations and permits issued by the appropriate federal, state, local or
foreign regulatory authorities necessary to conduct its business as described in the Offering Circular, except where the failure to possess such permits could
not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect (“Material Permits”), and the Company has not received any notice of proceedings relating
to the revocation or modification of any Material Permit.




) Title to Assets. The Company has good and marketable title in fee simple to all real property owned by it and good and marketable title in
all personal property owned by it that is material to the business of the Company, in each case free and clear of all Liens, except for Liens disclosed in the
Offering Circular, Liens as do not materially affect the value of such property and do not materially interfere with the use made and proposed to be made of
such property by the Company and Liens for the payment of federal, state or other taxes, the payment of which is neither delinquent nor subject to penalties.
Any real property and facilities held under lease by the Company are held by it under valid, subsisting and enforceable leases with which the Company is in
compliance.

() Patents and Trademarks. The Company has, or has rights to use, all patents, patent applications, trademarks, trademark applications, service
marks, trade names, trade secrets, inventions, copyrights, licenses and other intellectual property rights and similar rights necessary or material for use in
connection with their respective businesses as described in the Offering Circular and which the failure to so have could have a Material Adverse Effect
(collectively, the “Intellectual Property Rights”). The Company has not received a notice (written or otherwise) that any of, the Intellectual Property Rights
has expired, terminated or been abandoned, or is expected to expire or terminate or be abandoned, within two (2) years from the date of this Agreement. The
Company has not received, since the date of the latest audited financial statements included within the Offering Circular, a notice (written or otherwise) of a
claim or otherwise has any knowledge that the Intellectual Property Rights violate or infringe upon the rights of any Person, except as would not have a
Material Adverse Effect. To the knowledge of the Company, all such Intellectual Property Rights are enforceable and there is no existing infringement by
another Person of any of the Intellectual Property Rights. The Company has taken reasonable security measures to protect the secrecy, confidentiality and
value of all of their intellectual properties, except where failure to do so could not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect.

) Insurance. The Company is insured by insurers of recognized financial responsibility against such losses and risks and in such amounts as
are prudent and customary in the business in which the Company is engaged, including, but not limited to, directors and officers insurance coverage. The
Company has no reason to believe that it will not be able to renew its existing insurance coverage as and when such coverage expires or to obtain similar
coverage from similar insurers as may be necessary to continue its business without a significant increase in cost.

(s) Transactions With Affiliates and Employees. Except as set forth in the Offering Circular, none of the officers or directors of the Company
and, to the knowledge of the Company, none of the employees of the Company is presently a party to any transaction with the Company (other than for
services as employees, officers and directors), including any contract, agreement or other arrangement providing for the furnishing of services to or by,
providing for rental of real or personal property to or from, or otherwise requiring payments to or from any officer, director or such employee or, to the
knowledge of the Company, any entity in which any officer, director, or any such employee has a substantial interest or is an officer, director, trustee or
partner, in each case in excess of $120,000 other than for (i) payment of salary or consulting fees for services rendered, (ii) reimbursement for expenses
incurred on behalf of the Company and (iii) other employee benefits, including stock option agreements under any stock option plan of the Company.

® Sarbanes-Oxley; Internal Accounting Controls. Except as set forth in the Offering Circular: (I) the Company is in compliance in all material
respects with any and all applicable requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that are effective as of the date hereof, and any and all applicable rules
and regulations promulgated by the Commission thereunder that are effective as of the date hereof and as of each Closing Date; (IT) the Company maintains a
system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that: (i) transactions are executed in accordance with management’s general
or specific authorizations, (ii) transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP and to maintain
asset accountability, (iii) access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management’s general or specific authorization, and (iv) the recorded
accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with respect to any differences; and (I1I)
the Company has established disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the Company and designed
such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports it files or submits under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Commission’s rules and forms.




(w) Certain Fees. Except as set forth herein and in the Offering Circular, no brokerage or finder’s fees or commissions are or will be payable by
the Company to any broker, financial advisor or consultant, finder, placement agent, investment banker, bank or other Person with respect to the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement and the transactions contemplated pursuant to the Offering Circular. The Investors shall have no obligation with respect to
any fees or with respect to any claims made by or on behalf of other Persons for fees of a type contemplated in this Section 2(u) that may be due in connection
with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the transactions contemplated pursuant to the Offering Circular.

W) Investment Company. The Company is not, and is not an Affiliate of, and immediately after receipt of payment for the Shares, will not be or
be an Affiliate of, an “investment company” within the meaning of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. The Company shall conduct its
business in a manner so that it will not become an “investment company” subject to registration under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

(w) Registration Rights. Except as set forth in the Offering Circular, no Person has any right to cause the Company to effect the registration
under the Securities Act of any Shares of the Company.

x) Listing and Maintenance Requirements. The Common Stock is registered pursuant to Section 12(b) or 12(g) of the Exchange Act, and the
Company has taken no action designed to, or which to its knowledge is likely to have the effect of, terminating the registration of the Common Stock under
the Exchange Act nor has the Company received any notification that the Commission is contemplating terminating such registration.

) Disclosure. Except with respect to the material terms and conditions of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the
transactions contemplated pursuant to the Offering Statement, the Company confirms that neither it nor any other Person acting on its behalf has provided any
of the Investors or their agents or counsel with any information that it believes constitutes or might constitute material, non-public information which is not
otherwise disclosed in the Offering Statement or any free writing prospectus. The Company understands and confirms that the Investors will rely on the
foregoing representation in effecting transactions in Shares of the Company. All of the disclosure furnished by or on behalf of the Company to the Investors
regarding the Company, its business and the transactions contemplated hereby is true and correct and does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements made therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading. The press releases disseminated by the Company during the twelve months preceding the date of this Agreement taken as a whole do not contain
any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in
light of the circumstances under which they were made and when made, not misleading.

(z) No Integrated Offering. Neither the Company, nor any of its Affiliates, nor any Person acting on its or their behalf has, directly or indirectly,
made any offers or sales of any security or solicited any offers to buy any security, under circumstances that would, to its knowledge, cause this offering of
the Shares to be integrated with prior offerings by the Company.

(aa) Solvency. The Company does not intend to incur debts beyond its ability to pay such debts as they mature (taking into account the timing
and amounts of cash to be payable on or in respect of its debt). The Company has no knowledge of any facts or circumstances which lead it to believe that it
will file for reorganization or liquidation under the bankruptcy or reorganization laws of any jurisdiction within one year from the final Closing Date. The
Offering Circular sets forth as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 all outstanding secured and unsecured Indebtedness of the Company or for
which the Company has commitments. For the purposes of this Agreement, “Indebtedness” means (x) any liabilities for borrowed money or amounts owed in
excess of $50,000 (other than trade accounts payable incurred in the ordinary course of business), (y) all guaranties, endorsements and other contingent
obligations in respect of indebtedness of others, whether or not the same are or should be reflected in the Company’s balance sheet (or the notes thereto),
except guaranties by endorsement of negotiable instruments for deposit or collection or similar transactions in the ordinary course of business; and (z) the
present value of any lease payments in excess of $50,000 due under leases required to be capitalized in accordance with GAAP. The Company is not in
default with respect to any Indebtedness.




(bb) Tax Status. Except for matters that would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse
Effect, the Company (i) has made or filed all United States federal and state income and all foreign income and franchise tax returns, reports and declarations
required by any jurisdiction to which it is subject, (ii) has paid all taxes and other governmental assessments and charges that are material in amount, shown
or determined to be due on such returns, reports and declarations and (iii) has set aside on its books provision reasonably adequate for the payment of all
material taxes for periods subsequent to the periods to which such returns, reports or declarations apply. There are no unpaid taxes in any material amount
claimed to be due by the taxing authority of any jurisdiction, and the officers of the Company know of no basis for any such claim.

(co) Foreign Corrupt Practices. Neither the Company, nor to the knowledge of the Company, any agent or other person acting on behalf of the
Company, has (i) directly or indirectly, used any funds for unlawful contributions, gifts, entertainment or other unlawful expenses related to foreign or
domestic political activity, (ii) made any unlawful payment to foreign or domestic government officials or employees or to any foreign or domestic political
parties or campaigns from corporate funds, (iii) failed to disclose fully any contribution made by the Company (or made by any person acting on its behalf of
which the Company is aware) which is in violation of law, or (iv) violated in any material respect any provision of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977,
as amended.

(dd) Accountants. The Company’s accounting firm is set forth in the Offering Circular. To the knowledge and belief of the Company, such
accounting firm (i) is a registered public accounting firm as required by the Exchange Act and (ii) has expressed its opinion with respect to the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2016.

(ee) Regulation M Compliance. The Company has not, and to its knowledge no one acting on its behalf has, (i) taken, directly or indirectly, any
action designed to cause or to result in the stabilization or manipulation of the price of any security of the Company to facilitate the sale or resale of any of the
Shares, (ii) sold, bid for, purchased, or, paid any compensation for soliciting purchases of, any of the Shares, or (iii) paid or agreed to pay to any Person any
compensation for soliciting another to purchase any other Shares of the Company, other than, in the case of clauses (ii) and (iii), compensation paid to the
Managers in connection with the placement of the Shares.

(f) Office of Foreign Assets Control. Neither the Company nor, to the Company’s knowledge, any director, officer, agent, employee or affiliate
of the Company is currently subject to any U.S. sanctions administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Treasury Department (“OFAC”).

(gg) U.S. Real Property Holding Corporation. The Company is not and has never been a U.S. real property holding corporation within the
meaning of Section 897 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

(hh) Bank Holding Company Act. The Company is not subject to the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (the “BHCA”) and to
regulation by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve”). The Company does not own or control, directly or indirectly,
five percent (5%) or more of the outstanding shares of any class of voting securities or twenty-five percent (25%) or more of the total equity of a bank or any
entity that is subject to the BHCA and to regulation by the Federal Reserve. The Company does not exercise a controlling influence over the management or
policies of a bank or any entity that is subject to the BHCA and to regulation by the Federal Reserve.

(ii) Certificates. Any certificate signed by an officer of the Company and delivered to any of the Managers or to counsel for any of the
Managers shall be deemed to be a representation and warranty by the Company to the Managers as to the matters set forth therein.

() Reliance. The Company acknowledges that the Managers will rely upon the accuracy and truthfulness of the foregoing representations and
warranties and hereby consents to such reliance.

(kk) Forward-Looking Statements. No forward-looking statement (within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of
the Exchange Act) contained in either the Offering Statement, the Offering Circular or any Circular Supplement has been made or reaffirmed without a
reasonable basis or has been disclosed other than in good faith.




an Statistical or Market-Related Data. Any statistical, industry-related and market-related data included or incorporated by reference in the
Offering Statement or any Circular Supplement, are based on or derived from sources that the Company reasonably and in good faith believes to be reliable
and accurate, and such data agree with the sources from which they are derived.

(mm) FINRA Affiliations. Except as set forth on Schedule 2(mm), there are no affiliations with any FINRA member firm among the Company’s
officers, directors or, to the knowledge of the Company, except as set forth on Schedule 2(mm), any five percent (5%) or greater shareholder of the Company.

Section 3. Representations and Warranties of Selling Stockholders. Each of the Selling Stockholders individually and not jointly represents
and warrants to, and agrees with the Managers and the Company that:

(a) Consents.  All consents, approvals, authorizations and orders necessary for the execution and delivery by such Selling Stockholder of this
Agreement, the Custody Agreement and POA hereinafter referred to, and for the sale and delivery of the Shares to be sold by such Selling Stockholder
hereunder, have been obtained; and such Selling Stockholder has full right, power and authority to enter into this Agreement, the Custody Agreement and
POA and to sell, assign, transfer and deliver the Shares to be sold by such Selling Stockholder hereunder.

(b) No Conflict.  The sale of the Shares to be sold by such Selling Stockholder hereunder and the compliance by such Selling Stockholder
with this Agreement, the Custody Agreement and POA and the consummation of the transactions herein and therein contemplated will not (A) conflict with
or result in a breach or violation of any of the terms or provisions of, or constitute a default under, any statute, indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, loan
agreement, lease or other agreement or instrument to which such Selling Stockholder is a party or by which such Selling Stockholder is bound or to which
any of the property or assets of such Selling Stockholder is subject, (B) result in any violation of the provisions of the Selling Stockholders’ organizational or
charter documents, or (C) result in the violation of any statute or any order, rule or regulation of any court or governmental agency or body having
jurisdiction over such Selling Stockholder or any of its subsidiaries or any property or assets of such Selling Stockholder, except for such conflicts, breaches,
violations defaults, in the case of clause (A) as would not reasonably be expected to impair in any material respect the ability of such Selling Stockholder to
perform its obligations under this Agreement, the Custody Agreement and POA; and no consent, approval, authorization, order, registration or qualification of
or with any such court or governmental body or agency is required for the performance by such Selling Stockholder of its obligations under this Agreement,
the Custody Agreement and POA and the consummation by such Selling Stockholder of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, the Custody
Agreement and POA in connection with the Shares to be sold by such Selling Stockholder hereunder, except the registration under the Act of the Shares, and
such consents, approvals, authorizations, orders, registrations or qualifications as may be required under state securities or Blue Sky laws in connection with
the purchase and distribution of the Shares by the Managers.

(o) Title. Such Selling Stockholder has, and immediately prior to each Closing at which Shares of such Selling Stockholder are being sold
such Selling Stockholder will have, good and valid title to the Shares to be sold by such Selling Stockholder hereunder at such Time of Delivery, free and
clear of all Liens; and, upon delivery of such Shares and payment therefor pursuant hereto, good and valid title to such Shares, free and clear of all Liens, will
pass to the Managers.

(d) No Manipulation. Such Selling Stockholder will not take, directly or indirectly, any action that is designed to or that has constituted or
might reasonably be expected to cause or result in stabilization or manipulation of the price of any security of the Company to facilitate the sale or resale of
the Shares.
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(e) Information.  To the extent that any statements or omissions made in the Offering Statement any Circular Supplement thereto are made in
reliance upon and in conformity with written information furnished to the Company by such Selling Stockholder expressly for use therein, such Offering
Statement or any Circular Supplement will, when they become qualified or are filed with the Commission, as the case may be, conform in all material
respects to the requirements of the Act and the rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder and not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading, it being understood and agreed that the
only such information furnished by such Selling Stockholder consists of (A) the legal name, address and the number of shares of Common Stock owned by
such Selling Stockholder and (B) the other information with respect to such Selling Stockholder (excluding percentages) which appear in the table (and
corresponding footnotes) under the caption “Selling Stockholders” (with respect to each Selling Stockholder, the “Selling Stockholder Information”).

® Tax Compliance.  In order to document the Managers’ compliance with the reporting and withholding provisions of the Tax Equity and
Fiscal Responsibility Act of 1982 with respect to the transactions herein contemplated, such Selling Stockholder will deliver to the Representative a properly
completed and executed United States Treasury Department Form W-9 (or other applicable form or statement specified by Treasury Department regulations in
lieu thereof).

() Custody. Certificates in negotiable form representing all of the Shares to be sold by such Selling Stockholder hereunder have been placed
in custody under a Custody Agreement and Power of Attorney, in the forms heretofore furnished to you (the “Custody Agreement” and “POA™)), duly
executed and delivered by such Selling Stockholder to Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as custodian (the “Custodian”).

Section 4 . Delivery and Payment. Each Closing shall occur at the offices of the Representative (or at such other place as shall be agreed upon
by the Representative and the Company).

Until any Closing, upon any Agent’s receipt of any and all checks, drafts, and money orders received from prospective purchasers of the Shares, the
Agent shall deliver same to Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, acting as escrow agent for the Offering, for deposit in a segregated escrow account
by noon of the next business day following the receipt, together with a written account of each purchaser which sets forth, among other things, the name and
address of the purchaser, the number of Shares purchased and the amount paid therefor. Any checks received which are made payable to any party other than
“CST&T CSSE Escrow Account” shall be returned to the purchaser who submitted the check and not accepted.

Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, and except as may otherwise be agreed or arranged between the parties, at the Closing payment of the
purchase price for the Shares sold on a Closing Date shall be made by Federal Funds wire transfer, against delivery of such Shares, and such Shares shall be
registered in such name or names and shall be in such denominations, as an Agent may request at least one business day before the time of purchase (as
defined below).

Except as may otherwise be agreed or arranged between the parties, deliveries of the documents with respect to the purchase of the Shares, if any,
shall be made at the offices of HCFP. All actions taken at a Closing shall be deemed to have occurred simultaneously.

Section 5. Covenants and Agreements of the Company. The Company further covenants and agrees with the Managers as follows:

(a) Offering Statement Matters. The Company will advise the Representative promptly after it receives notice thereof of the time when any
amendment to the Offering Statement has been filed or becomes qualified or any amendment to the Offering Statement and any Circular Supplement have
been filed and will furnish the Managers with copies thereof. The Company will file promptly all reports and any definitive proxy or information statements
required to be filed by the Company with the Commission pursuant to Section 13(a), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act subsequent to the date of any Circular
Supplement and for so long as the delivery of an Offering Circular is required in connection with the Offering. The Company will advise the Representative,
promptly after it receives notice thereof (i) of any request by the Commission to amend the Offering Statement or to amend any Circular Supplement or for
additional information, and (ii) of the issuance by the Commission of any stop order suspending the qualification of the Offering Statement or any post-
qualification amendment thereto or any order preventing or suspending the use of the Offering Statement or any amendment or supplement thereto or any
post-qualification amendment to the Offering Statement, of the suspension of the qualification of the Shares for offering or sale in any jurisdiction, of the
institution or threatened institution of any proceeding for any such purpose, or of any request by the Commission for the amending or supplementing of the
Offering Statement or any Circular Supplement or for additional information. The Company shall use its best efforts to prevent the issuance of any such stop
order or prevention or suspension of such use. If the Commission shall enter any such stop order or order or notice of prevention or suspension at any time,
the Company will use its best efforts to obtain the lifting of such order at the earliest possible moment, or will file a new Offering Statement and use its best
efforts to have such new Offering Statement declared qualified as soon as practicable.
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(b) Blue Sky Compliance. The Company will cooperate with the Representative in endeavoring to qualify the Shares for sale under the
securities laws of such jurisdictions (United States and foreign) as the Representative may reasonably request and will make such applications, file such
documents, and furnish such information as may be reasonably required for that purpose, provided the Company shall not be required to qualify as a foreign
corporation or to file a general consent to service of process in any jurisdiction where it is not now so qualified or required to file such a consent, and
provided further that the Company shall not be required to produce any new disclosure document other than a Circular Supplement. The Company will, from
time to time, prepare and file such statements, reports and other documents as are or may be required to continue such qualifications in effect for so long a
period as the Representative may reasonably request for distribution of the Shares. The Company will advise the Representative promptly of the suspension of
the qualification or registration of (or any such exemption relating to) the Shares for offering, sale or trading in any jurisdiction or any initiation or threat of
any proceeding for any such purpose, and in the event of the issuance of any order suspending such qualification, registration or exemption, the Company
shall use its best efforts to obtain the withdrawal thereof at the earliest possible moment.

(0) Amendments and Supplements to Offering Statement, any Circular Supplement and Other Matters. The Company will comply with the
Securities Act and the Exchange Act, and the rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder, so as to permit the completion of the distribution of the
Shares as contemplated in this Agreement and any Offering Circular. If during the period in which an offering circular is required by law to be delivered in
connection with the distribution of Shares contemplated by the Offering Circular (the “Circular Delivery Period”), any event shall occur as a result of which,
in the judgment of the Company or in the opinion of any of the Managers or counsel for any of the Managers, it becomes necessary to amend or supplement
the Offering Circular in order to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, as the case may be, not
misleading, or if it is necessary at any time to amend or supplement any Circular Supplement to comply with any law, the Company will promptly prepare
and file with the Commission, and furnish at its own expense to the Managers and to dealers, an appropriate amendment to the Offering Statement or
supplement to the Offering Statement or any Circular Supplement that is necessary in order to make the statements therein as so amended or supplemented, in
the light of the circumstances under which they were made, as the case may be, not misleading, or so that the Offering Statement or any Circular Supplement,
as so amended or supplemented, will comply with law. Before amending the Offering Statement or supplementing any Offering Circular in connection with
the Offering, the Company will furnish the Managers with a copy of such proposed amendment or supplement and will not file any such amendment or
supplement to which the Managers reasonably object.

(d) Copies of any Amendments and Supplements. The Company will furnish an Agent, without charge, during the period beginning on the date

hereof and ending on the final Closing Date of the Offering, as many copies of any Offering Circular and any amendments and supplements thereto as any
Agent may reasonably request.

(e) Transfer Agent. The Company will maintain, at its expense, a registrar and transfer agent for the Common Stock.
® Earnings Statement. As soon as practicable and in accordance with applicable requirements under the Securities Act, but in any event not
later than 18 months after the last Closing Date, the Company will make generally available to its security holders and to the Managers an earnings statement,

covering a period of at least 12 consecutive months beginning after the last Closing Date, that satisfies the provisions of Section 11(a) and Rule 158 under the
Securities Act.
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(8 Periodic Reporting Obligations. During the Offering Circular Delivery Period, the Company will duly file, on a timely basis, with the
Commission all reports and documents required to be filed under the Exchange Act within the time periods and in the manner required by the Exchange Act.

(h) Additional Documents. The Company will enter into any subscription, purchase or other customary agreements as the Managers deem
reasonably necessary or appropriate to consummate the Offering, all of which will be in form and substance reasonably acceptable to the Company and the
Managers. The Company agrees that the Managers may rely upon, and each is a third party beneficiary of, the representations and warranties set forth in any
such purchase, subscription or other agreement with Investors in the Offering.

(6] No Manipulation of Price. The Company will not take, directly or indirectly, any action designed to cause or result in, or that has constituted
or might reasonably be expected to constitute, the stabilization or manipulation of the price of any Shares of the Company.

G Acknowledgment. The Company acknowledges that any advice given by any of the Managers to the Company is solely for the benefit and
use of the Board of Directors of the Company and may not be used, reproduced, disseminated, quoted or referred to, without such Agent’s prior written
consent.

Section 6. Conditions of the Obligations of the Managers. The obligations of the Managers hereunder shall be subject to the accuracy of the
representations and warranties on the part of the Company set forth in Section 2 hereof and of the Selling Stockholders set forth in Section 3 hereto, in all
cases as of the date hereof and as of a Closing Date as though then made, to the timely performance by the Company of its covenants and other obligations
hereunder on and as of such dates, and to each of the following additional conditions:

(@ Accountants’ Comfort Letter. On the date hereof, the Representative shall have received, and the Company shall have caused to be
delivered to the Representative, a letter from Rosenfield & Company, PLLC, the independent registered public accounting firm of the Company
(“Rosenfield”), addressed to the Representative, dated as of the date hereof, in form and substance satisfactory to the Representative. The letter shall not
disclose any change in the condition (financial or other), earnings, operations, business or prospects of the Company from that set forth in the Offering
Circular or the applicable Circular Supplement, which, in the Representative’s sole judgment, is material and adverse and that makes it, in the
Representative’s sole judgment, impracticable or inadvisable to proceed with the Offering of the Shares as contemplated by such Offering Statement any
Circular Supplement.

Supplement shall have been duly filed with the Commission, as appropriate; no stop order suspending the qualification of the Offering Statement or any part
thereof shall have been issued and no proceeding for that purpose shall have been initiated or threatened by the Commission; no order preventing or
suspending the use of any Offering Circular shall have been issued and no proceeding for that purpose shall have been initiated or threatened by the
Commission; no order having the effect of ceasing or suspending the distribution of the Shares or any other securities of the Company shall have been issued
by any securities commission, securities regulatory authority or stock exchange and no proceedings for that purpose shall have been instituted or shall be
pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, contemplated by any securities commission, securities regulatory authority or stock exchange; all requests for
additional information on the part of the Commission shall have been complied with; and the FINRA shall have raised no objection to the fairness and
reasonableness of the placement terms and arrangements.

(b) Compliance with Registration Requirements; No Stop Order; No Objection from the FINRA. The Offering Statement and any Circular

(o) Corporate Proceedings. All corporate proceedings and other legal matters in connection with this Agreement, the Offering Statement and
any Circular Supplement, and the registration, sale and delivery of the Shares, shall have been completed or resolved in a manner reasonably satisfactory to
each Agent’s counsel, and such counsel shall have been furnished with such papers and information as it may reasonably have requested to enable such
counsels to pass upon the matters referred to in this Section 6.
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(d) No Material Adverse Change. Subsequent to the execution and delivery of this Agreement and prior to any Closing Date, there shall not
have occurred any Material Adverse Effect.

(e) Opinion of Counsel for the Company. The Representative shall have received on each Closing Date the favorable opinion of legal counsel
to the Company, dated as of such Closing Date, including, without limitation, a negative assurance letter, addressed to the Representative in form and
substance reasonably satisfactory to the Representative.

® Officers’ Certificate. The Representative shall have received on each Closing Date a certificate of the Company, dated as of such Closing
Date, signed by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, to the effect that the signers of such certificate have reviewed the
Offering Statement, any Circular Supplement, and this Agreement and to the further effect that:

@) The representations and warranties of the Company in this Agreement are true and correct, as if made on and as of such
Closing Date, and the Company has, in all material respects, complied with all the agreements and satisfied all the conditions on its part to
be performed or satisfied at or prior to such Closing Date;

(ii) No stop order suspending the qualification of the Offering Statement or the use of the Offering Circular or any Circular
Supplement has been issued and no proceedings for that purpose have been instituted or are pending or, to the Company’s knowledge,
threatened under the Securities Act; no order having the effect of ceasing or suspending the distribution of the Shares or any other Shares of
the Company has been issued by any Shares commission, Shares regulatory authority or stock exchange in the United States and no
proceedings for that purpose have been instituted or are pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, contemplated by any Shares
commission, Shares regulatory authority or stock exchange in the United States;

(iii) When the Offering Statement became qualified, at the time of sale, and at all times subsequent thereto up to the delivery
of such certificate, the Offering Statement, when it became qualified, contained all material information required to be included therein by
the Securities Act and the applicable rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder, as the case may be, and in all material respects
conformed to the requirements of the Securities Act and the applicable rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder, as the case may
be, and the Offering Statement, did not and does not include any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required
to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading (provided, however, that the preceding representations and warranties contained in this paragraph (iii) shall not apply to any
statements or omissions made in reliance upon and in conformity with the Agent Information) and, since the Qualification Date, there has
occurred no event required by the Securities Act and the rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder to be set forth in the Offering
Statement which has not been so set forth; and

@iv) Subsequent to the respective dates as of which information is given in the Offering Statement and any Circular
Supplement, there has not been: (a) any Material Adverse Effect; (b) any transaction that is material to the Company except transactions
entered into in the ordinary course of business; (c) any obligation, direct or contingent, that is material to the Company, incurred by the
Company, except obligations incurred in the ordinary course of business; (d) any material change in the capital stock (except changes
thereto resulting from the exercise of outstanding stock options or warrants) or outstanding indebtedness of the Company; (e) any dividend
or distribution of any kind declared, paid or made on the capital stock of the Company; or (f) any loss or damage (whether or not insured) to
the property of the Company which has been sustained or will have been sustained which has a Material Adverse Effect.
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(8 Bring-down Comfort Letter. On each subsequent Closing Date, the Managers shall have received from Rosenfield or such other
independent registered public accounting firm engaged by the Company at such time, a letter dated as of such Closing Date, in form and substance
satisfactory to the Managers, to the effect that they reaffirm the statements made in the letter furnished pursuant to subsection (a) of this Section 6, except that
the specified date referred to therein for the carrying out of procedures shall be no more than three business days prior to such Closing Date.

(h) Stock Exchange Listing. The Shares shall be registered under the Exchange Act effective at the date of qualification, shall be approved for
listing on the principal Trading Market by the initial Closing and shall be listed on or about the final Closing and tradable promptly thereafter on a date
established by the Representative, and the Company shall not have taken any action designed to terminate, or likely to have the effect of terminating, the
registration of the Shares under the Exchange Act or delisting or suspending from trading the Shares from the principal Trading Market, nor shall the
Company have received any information suggesting that the Commission or the principal Trading Market is contemplating terminating such registration or
listing.

@) Lock-Up Agreements. On or before the initial Closing Date, the Representative shall have received executed lock-up agreements (in form
and substance acceptable to the Representative in its sole discretion) from the holders identified in the Offering Statement that accurately reflect the lock-up
provisions set forth in the Offering Statement applicable to such holders based on their status.

)] Additional Documents. On or before each Closing Date, the Representative and counsel for the Representative shall have received such
information and documents as they may reasonably require for the purposes of enabling them to pass upon the issuance and sale of the Shares as
contemplated herein, or in order to evidence the accuracy of any of the representations and warranties, or the satisfaction of any of the conditions or
agreements, herein contained. If any condition specified in this Section 6 is not satisfied when and as required to be satisfied, this Agreement may be
terminated by the Representative by notice to the Company at any time on or prior to such Closing Date, which termination shall be without liability on the
part of any party to any other party, except that Section 7 (Payment of Company Expenses), Section 8 (Indemnification and Contribution) and Section 10
(Representations and Indemnities to Survive Delivery) shall at all times be effective and shall survive such termination.

Section 7. Payment of Company Expenses. In addition to the Expense Fee, the Company agrees to pay all costs, fees and expenses incurred
by the Company and the Selling Stockholders in connection with the performance of its obligations hereunder and in connection with the transactions
contemplated hereby, including, without limitation: (i) all expenses incident to the issuance, delivery and qualification of the Shares (including all printing
and engraving costs); (ii) all fees and expenses of the registrar and transfer agent of the Common Stock; (iii) all necessary issue, transfer and other stamp
taxes in connection with the issuance and sale of the Shares; (iv) all fees and expenses of the Company’s counsel, independent public or certified public
accountants and other advisors; (v) all costs and expenses incurred in connection with the preparation, printing, filing, shipping and distribution of the
Offering Statement (including financial statements, exhibits, schedules, consents and certificates of experts), the Offering Circular and each Circular
Supplement, and all amendments and supplements thereto, and this Agreement; (vi) all filing fees, reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses incurred by the
Company in connection with qualifying or registering (or obtaining exemptions from the qualification or registration of) all or any part of the Shares for offer
and sale under the state securities or blue sky laws or the securities laws of any other country, and, if reasonably requested by any of the Managers, preparing
and printing a “Blue Sky Survey,” an “International Blue Sky Survey” or other memorandum, and any supplements thereto, advising the Representative of
such qualifications, registrations and exemptions; (vii) if applicable, the filing fees incident to the review and approval the FINRA of any Agent’s
participation in the offering and distribution of the Shares; (viii) the fees and expenses associated with including the Shares on the Trading Market; (ix) all
costs and expenses incurred by the Company in connection with any “roadshows” including the travel and accommodation of the Company’s employees on
the “roadshow,” if any, and (x) all other fees, costs and expenses referred to in Part II of the Offering Statement. In no event shall the Company be obligated
to pay, or pay, any expenses incurred by the Managers, it being understood that the Expense Fee is to include reimbursement to the Managers for all expenses
they incur, provided, however, such expense incurred by the Managers is not an expense otherwise payable by the Company. In addition, in no event will the
Selling Stockholders be liable to pay any of the fees or expenses set forth in this Section 7.
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Section 8. Indemnification and Contribution.

(a) The Company agrees to indemnify the Managers in accordance with the provisions of Schedule A hereto, which is incorporated by
reference herein and made a part hereof.

(b) Each of the Selling Stockholders severally and not jointly up to the number of Shares to be sold by such Selling Stockholder hereunder
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Managers, their affiliates, directors and officers and each person, if any, who controls an Agent within the meaning
of Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act against any and all loss, liability, claim, damage and expense described in Schedule A
hereto, in each case only insofar as such losses, claims, damages or liabilities arise out of, or are based upon, any untrue statement or omission or alleged
untrue statement or omission made in reliance upon and in conformity with any information relating to such Selling Stockholder constituting Selling
Stockholder Information furnished by such Selling Stockholder for inclusion in the Offering Statement or any Circular Supplement or any amendment or
supplement thereto; provided, however, that the provisions of this Section 8 shall not require any such Selling Stockholder with respect to the indemnity
provided under this subsection (b) or otherwise with respect to this Section 8 to indemnify or hold harmless the Managers in excess of the net proceeds
received by such Selling Stockholder from the Shares sold by such Selling Stockholder pursuant to this Offering.

(o) Each Agent agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Company, its directors, officers, employees, agents, and counsel, and each person, if
any, who control the Company within the meaning of Section 15 of the Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act against any and all loss, liability, claim,
damage and expense described in the foregoing indemnity from the Company to the Managers, as incurred, but only with respect to untrue statements or
omissions, or alleged untrue statements or omissions, made in the Offering Statement or any Circular Supplement or any amendment or supplement thereto or
in any application, in reliance upon, and in strict conformity with, the Agent Information. In case any action shall be brought against the Company or any
other person so indemnified based on the Offering Statement or any Circular Supplement or any amendment or supplement thereto or any application, and in
respect of which indemnity may be sought against any Agent, such Agent shall have the rights and duties given to the Company, and the Company and each
other person so indemnified shall have the rights and duties given to the several Agent by the provisions provided in Schedule A.

Section 9. Representations and Warranties of the Managers. Each of the Managers hereby represents, warrants and covenants to the
Company and the Selling Stockholders, as of the date hereof, and as of each Closing Date, as follows:

(©) Agent is a member in good standing of FINRA or a registered representative thereof and is a broker-dealer registered as such under the
Exchange Act. Each Agent is in compliance with all material rules and regulations applicable to it generally and applicable to its participation in the Offering.

(b) Agent has requisite power and authority to execute, deliver and perform this Agreement and consummate the transactions contemplated
hereby.

(o) This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed, and delivered by each Agent and is the legal, valid, and binding obligation of each
Selling, enforceable against each Agent in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, or other laws

affecting the rights of creditors generally.

(d) Agent will not intentionally take any action that it reasonably believes would cause the Offering to violate the provision of the Securities
Act, the Exchange Act or the respective rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
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Section 10. Representations and Indemnities to Survive Delivery. The respective indemnities, agreements, representations, warranties and
other statements of the Company or any person controlling the Company, of its officers, of the Selling Stockholders and of the Managers set forth in or made
pursuant to this Agreement will remain in full force and effect, regardless of any investigation made by or on behalf of the Managers, the Selling
Stockholders, the Company, or any of its or their partners, officers or directors or any controlling person, as the case may be, and will survive delivery of and
payment for the Shares sold hereunder and any termination of this Agreement until the earlier of the expiration of any applicable statute of limitations and the
seventh anniversary of the final Closing Date, at which time the representations, warranties and agreements shall terminate and be of no further force and
effect. A successor to either of the Managers, to the Selling Stockholders, or to the Company, its directors or officers or any person controlling the Company,
shall be entitled to the benefits of the indemnity, contribution and reimbursement agreements contained in this Agreement.

Section 11. Notices. All communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be mailed, hand delivered or telecopied and confirmed to the
parties hereto as follows:

If to the Managers, to the addresses set forth above.

With a copy to:

Greenberg Traurig, LLP

1750 Tysons Boulevard

McLean, VA 22102

Attention: Mark J. Wishner, Esq.

If to the Company:

Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc.

With a copy to:

Graubard Miller

405 Lexington Avenue

New York, New York 10174

Attention: David Alan Miller, Esq. and Brain L. Ross, Esq.

If to any Selling Stockholder:

To the address set forth in Schedule I hereto.

Any party hereto may change the address for receipt of communications by giving written notice to the others.

Section 12. Successors. This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto, and to the benefit of the employees,
officers and directors and controlling persons referred to in Section 8 hereof, and to their respective successors, and personal representative, and no other
person will have any right or obligation hereunder.

Section 13. Partial Unenforceability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any section, paragraph or provision of this Agreement shall not
affect the validity or enforceability of any other section, paragraph or provision hereof. If any Section, paragraph or provision of this Agreement is for any

reason determined to be invalid or unenforceable, there shall be deemed to be made such minor changes (and only such minor changes) as are necessary to
make it valid and enforceable.
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Section 14. Governing Law Provisions. This Agreement shall be deemed to have been made and delivered in New York City and both this
Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby shall be governed as to validity, interpretation, construction, effect and in all other respects by the
internal laws of the State of New York, without regard to the conflict of laws principles thereof. Each of the Managers, the Selling Stockholders and the
Company: (i) agrees that any legal suit, action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby shall be
instituted exclusively in New York Supreme Court, County of New York, or in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York, (ii)
waives any objection which it may now or hereafter have to the venue of any such suit, action or proceeding, and (iii) irrevocably consents to the jurisdiction
of the New York Supreme Court, County of New York, and the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York in any such suit, action or
proceeding. Each of the Managers, the Selling Stockholders and the Company further agrees to accept and acknowledge service of any and all process which
may be served in any such suit, action or proceeding in the New York Supreme Court, County of New York, or in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York and agrees that service of process upon the Company mailed by certified mail to the Company’s address shall be deemed in
every respect effective service of process upon the Company, in any such suit, action or proceeding, and service of process upon the Managers mailed by
certified mail to the Agent address shall be deemed in every respect effective service process upon such Managers, in any such suit, action or proceeding.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the Company and the Selling Stockholders agree that none of the Managers, any of their
affiliates, any of the officers, directors, employees, agents and representatives of the Managers or any of their respective affiliates and each other person, if
any, controlling any of the Managers or any of their respective affiliates (each a “Relevant Person”), shall have any liability (whether direct or indirect, in
contract or tort or otherwise) to the Company and the Selling Stockholders arising out of the processing of orders for Shares in respect of which the Managers
have not engaged in selling efforts, except for any loss, claim, damage, liability, deficiencies, actions, suits, proceedings, costs or legal or other expenses that
are finally judicially determined to have resulted from the bad faith or gross negligence of such Relevant Person.

Section 15. General Provisions.

(©) This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties to this Agreement and supersedes all prior written or oral and all
contemporaneous oral agreements, understandings and negotiations with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may be executed in two or
more counterparts, each one of which shall be an original, with the same effect as if the signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument. This
Agreement may not be amended or modified unless in writing by all of the parties hereto, and no condition herein (express or implied) may be waived unless
waived in writing by each party whom the condition is meant to benefit. Section headings herein are for the convenience of the parties only and shall not
affect the construction or interpretation of this Agreement.

(b) The Company and the Selling Stockholders acknowledge that in connection with the Offering of the Shares: (i) the Managers have acted at
arm’s length, are not agents of, and owe no fiduciary duties to the Company, the Selling Stockholders or any other person, (ii) the Managers owe the
Company and the Selling Stockholders only those duties and obligations set forth in this Agreement and (iii) the Managers may have interests that differ from
those of the Company and the Selling Stockholders. The Company and the Selling Stockholders waive, to the full extent permitted by applicable law, any
claims they may have against any of the Managers arising from an alleged breach of fiduciary duty in connection with the offering of the Shares.

[The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank.]
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If the foregoing is in accordance with your understanding of our agreement, please sign below whereupon this instrument, along with all counterparts
hereof, shall become a binding agreement in accordance with its terms.

Very truly yours,

Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc.

By:
Name:
Title:
By:
Name:
Title:

As Attorney-in-Fact acting on behalf of each of the Selling Stockholders
named in Schedule I of this Agreement.

The foregoing Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement is hereby confirmed and accepted as of the date first above written.

HCFP/Capital Markets
By:

Name:

Title:
[ ]
By:

Name:

Title:
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SCHEDULE A — INDEMNIFICATION

The Company hereby agrees to indemnify and hold the Managers, their officers, directors, principals, employees, affiliates, and shareholders, and
their respective successors and assigns, harmless from and against any and all loss, claim, damage, liability, deficiencies, actions, suits, proceedings, costs and
legal expenses or expense whatsoever (including, but not limited to, reasonable legal fees and other expenses and reasonable disbursements incurred in
connection with investigating, preparing to defend or defending any action, suit or proceeding, including any inquiry or investigation, commenced or
threatened, or any claim whatsoever, or in appearing or preparing for appearance as witness in any proceeding, including any pretrial proceeding such as a
deposition) (collectively, “Losses™) arising out of, based upon, or in any way related or attributed to, any breach of a representation, warranty or covenant by
the Company contained in this Agreement.

If an Agent receives written notice of the commencement of any legal action, suit or proceeding with respect to which the Company is or may be
obligated to provide indemnification pursuant to this Schedule A , then such Agent, shall, within thirty (30) days of the receipt of such written notice, give the
Company written notice thereof (a “Claim Notice). Failure to give such Claim Notice within such thirty (30) day period shall not constitute a waiver by the
Agent, of its respective right to indemnity hereunder with respect to such action, suit or proceeding. Upon receipt by the Company of a Claim Notice from an
Agent with respect to any claim for indemnification which is based upon a claim made by a third party (“Third Party Claim”), the Company may assume the
defense of the Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing, as described below. The Agent shall cooperate in the defense of the Third Party Claim and
shall furnish such records, information and testimony and attend all such conferences, discovery proceedings, hearings, trial and appeals as may be reasonably
required in connection therewith. The Agent shall have the right to employ its own counsel in any such action, which shall be at the Company’s expense if (i)
the Company and the Agent shall have mutually agreed in writing to the retention of such counsel, (ii) the Company shall have failed in a timely manner to
assume the defense and employ counsel or experts reasonably satisfactory to the Agent in such litigation or proceeding or (iii) the named parties to any such
litigation or proceeding (including any impleaded parties) include the Company and the Agent and representation of the Company and the Agent by the same
counsel or experts would, in the reasonable opinion of the Agent be inappropriate due to actual or potential differing interests between the Company and the
Agent, as applicable. The Company shall not satisfy or settle any Third Party Claim for which indemnification has been sought and is available hereunder,
without the prior written consent of the Agent, which consent shall not be delayed and which shall not be required if the Agent, is granted a general release in
connection therewith. The indemnification provisions hereunder shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

The Company further agrees, upon demand by the Agent, to promptly reimburse the Agent for, or pay, any reasonable fees, expenses or
disbursements as to which the Agent has been indemnified herein with such reimbursement to be made currently as such fees, expenses or disbursements are
incurred by the Agent. Notwithstanding the provisions of the aforementioned indemnification, any such reimbursement or payment by the Company of fees,
expenses, or disbursements incurred by the Agent shall be repaid by the Agent in the event of any proceeding in which a final judgment (after all appeals or
the expiration of time to appeal) is entered in a court of competent jurisdiction against or the Agent based solely upon its gross negligence or intentional
misconduct in the performance of its duties hereunder, and provided further, that the Company shall not be required to make reimbursement or payment for
any settlement effected without the Company’s prior written consent (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed).

If for any reason the foregoing indemnification is unavailable or is insufficient to hold any of the Agent harmless, the Company agrees to contribute
the amount paid or payable by any Agent in such proportion as to reflect not only the relative benefits received by the Company, on the one hand, and the
applicable Agent, on the other hand, but also the relative fault of the Company and any of the Agent as well as any relevant equitable considerations. In no
event shall any Agent contribute in excess of the fees actually received by it pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

For purposes of this Agreement, each officer, director, shareholder, and employee or affiliate of any Agent and each person, if any, who controls
Agent (or any affiliate) within the meaning of either Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act, shall have the same rights as Agent
with respect to matters of indemnification by the Company hereunder.




Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the Company agrees that none of the Agent, any of its affiliates, any of its officers,
directors, employees, agents and representatives or any of their respective affiliates and each other person, if any, controlling the Agent or any of its affiliates
(each a “Relevant Person”), shall have any liability (whether direct or indirect, in contract or tort or otherwise) to the Company arising out of the processing
of orders for Shares in respect of which the Agent has not engaged in selling efforts, except for any loss, claim, damage, liability, deficiencies, actions, suits,
proceedings, costs or legal or other expenses that are finally judicially determined to have resulted from the bad faith or gross negligence of such Relevant
Person.




SCHEDULE I - SELLING STOCKHOLDERS

Name Number of Shares Owned
Quattro Holdings, LL.C 64,504

Bertrand Faure 64,503
Trinity Credit Company, LLC 129,010

Number of Shares to Be

Sold in Offering

64,504
64,503
129,010




Exhibit 3.1

CSA-00__ INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE Hok Hok

CHICKEN SOUP FOR THE SOUL ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CUSIP 16842Q 100 See Reverse Side For
Certain Definitions
TOTAL AUTHORIZED ISSUE 100,000,000 SHARES

70,000,000 SHARES PAR VALUE $.0001 EACH 20,000,000 SHARES PAR VALUE $.0001 EACH 10,000,000 SHARES PAR VALUE $.0001 EACH
CLASS A COMMON STOCK CLASS B COMMON STOCK BLANK CHECK PREFERRED STOCK

This is to Certify that is the owner of
kg ek
FULLY PAID AND NON-ASSESSABLE SHARES OF CLASS A COMMON STOCK OF
CHICKEN SOUP FOR THE SOUL ENTERTAINMENT, INC. (the "Corporation")
transferrable on the books of the Corporation by the holder hereof, in person or by duly authorized Attorney, upon surrender of this Certificate, properly
endorsed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the signature of the Corporation's duly authorized officer is set forth below.

Dated:

William J. Rouhana, Jr. Executive Chairman Scott W. Seaton, Vice Chairman




Exhibit 6.5

INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT

This Agreement, made and entered into as of the day of , 2017 (“Agreement”), by and between Chicken Soup for the
Soul Entertainment, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Corporation”), and (“Indemnitee”):

WHEREAS, highly competent persons recently have become more reluctant to serve as directors, officers, or in other capacities of publicly
held corporations and other corporations that have non-employee investors among their stockholders or conduct operations in regulated industries unless they
are provided with better protection from the risk of claims and actions against them arising out of their services to and activities on behalf of such corporation;
and

WHEREAS, the adoption of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and other laws, rules and regulations being promulgated have increased the
potential for liability of officers and directors; and

WHEREAS, the Corporation has determined that the inability to attract and retain such persons is detrimental to the best interests of the
Corporation’s stockholders and that such persons should be assured that they will have better protection in the future; and

WHEREAS, it is reasonable, prudent and necessary for the Corporation to obligate itself contractually to indemnify such persons to the
fullest extent permitted by applicable law so that such persons will serve or continue to serve the Corporation free from undue concern that they will not be
adequately indemnified; and

WHEREAS, this Agreement is a supplement to and in furtherance of the Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Corporation, each
as may be amended from time to time, and any resolutions adopted pursuant thereto and shall neither be deemed to be a substitute therefor nor diminish or
abrogate any rights of Indemnitee thereunder; and

WHEREAS, Indemnitee is willing to continue to serve and to take on additional service for or on behalf of the Corporation on the condition
that he or she be indemnified according to the terms of this Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the covenants contained herein, the Corporation and Indemnitee do hereby
covenant and agree as follows:




1. Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement:

1.1 “Change in Control” means a change in control of the Corporation occurring after the date hereof of a nature that would be required to be
reported in response to Item 6(e) of Schedule 14A of Regulation 14A (or in response to any similar item on any similar schedule or form) promulgated under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Act”), whether or not the Corporation is then subject to such reporting requirement provided, however,
that, without limitation, such a Change in Control shall be deemed to have occurred if after the date hereof (i) any “person” (as such term is used in Sections
13(d) and 14(d) of the Act), other than a person who is an officer or director of the Corporation on , 2017 (and any of such person’s affiliates),
is or becomes “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Act) directly or indirectly, of securities of the Corporation representing 50% or more of
the combined voting power of the then outstanding securities of the Corporation without the prior approval of at least two-thirds of the members of the Board
in office immediately prior to such person attaining such percentage interest; (ii) the Corporation is a party to a merger, consolidation, sale of assets or other
reorganization, or a proxy contest, as a consequence of which members of the Board of Directors (“Board”) in office immediately prior to such transaction or
event constitute less than a majority of the Board thereafter; (iii) during any period of two consecutive years, individuals who at the beginning of such period
constituted the Board (including for this purpose any new director whose election or nomination for election by the Corporation’s stockholders was approved
by a vote of at least two-thirds of the directors then still in office who were directors at the beginning of such period) cease for any reason to constitute at least
a majority of the Board; (iv) a sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company; or (v) a liquidation or dissolution of the
Company.

1.2 “Corporate Status” means the status of a person who is or was a director, officer, employee, agent or fiduciary of the Corporation or of any
subsidiary of the Corporation or any other corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise which such person is or was
serving at the request of the Corporation.

1.3 “Disinterested Director” means a director of the Corporation who is not and was not a party to the Proceeding in respect of which
indemnification is sought by Indemnitee.

14 “Expenses” means all reasonable attorneys’ fees, retainers, court costs (including trial and appeals), transcript costs, fees of experts, witness
fees, travel expenses, duplicating costs, printing and binding costs, telephone charges, postage, delivery service fees, and all other disbursements or expenses
of the types customarily incurred in connection with prosecuting, defending, preparing to prosecute or defend, appealing, preparing to appeal, investigating,
or being or preparing to be a witness in a Proceeding.

1.5 “Independent Counsel” means a law firm, or a member of a law firm, that is experienced in matters of corporation law and neither presently
is, nor in the past five years has been, retained to represent: (i) the Corporation or Indemnitee in any other matter material to either such party, or (ii) any other
party to the Proceeding giving rise to a claim for indemnification hereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the term “Independent Counsel” does not include
any person who, under the applicable standards of professional conduct then prevailing, would have a conflict of interest in representing either the
Corporation or Indemnitee in an action to determine Indemnitee’s rights under this Agreement. Except as provided in the first sentence of Section 9.3 hereof,
Independent Counsel shall be selected by (a) the Disinterested Directors or (b) a committee of the Board consisting of two or more Disinterested Directors or
if (a) and (b) above are not possible, then by a majority of the full Board.




1.6 “Proceeding” means any action, suit, arbitration, alternate dispute resolution mechanism, investigation, administrative hearing or any other
proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, except one initiated by an Indemnitee pursuant to Section 11 of this Agreement to enforce
his rights under this Agreement.

2. Services by Indemnitee.

Indemnitee agrees to continue to serve as a director, officer or employee of the Corporation or one or more of its subsidiaries. Indemnitee may at any
time and for any reason resign from such position (subject to any other contractual obligation or any obligation imposed by operation of law).

3. Indemnification - General.
The Corporation shall indemnify, and advance Expenses to, Indemnitee as provided in this Agreement to the fullest extent permitted by applicable
law in effect on the date hereof and to such greater extent as applicable law may thereafter from time to time permit. The rights of Indemnitee provided under

the preceding sentence shall include, but not be limited to, the rights set forth in the other Sections of this Agreement.

4. Proceedings Other Than Proceedings by or in the Right of the Corporation.

Indemnitee shall be entitled to the rights of indemnification provided in this Section if, by reason of his Corporate Status, he was or is threatened to
be made, a party to any threatened, pending or completed Proceeding, other than a Proceeding by or in the right of the Corporation. Pursuant to this Section,
Indemnitee shall be indemnified against Expenses, judgments, penalties, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him or on
his behalf in connection with any such Proceeding or any claim, issue or matter therein, if he acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be
in or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation, and, with respect to any criminal Proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was
unlawful.

5. Proceedings by or in the Right of the Corporation.

Indemnitee shall be entitled to the rights of indemnification provided in this Section if, by reason of his Corporate Status, he is, was or is threatened
to be made, a party to any threatened, pending or completed Proceeding brought by or in the right of the Corporation to procure a judgment in its favor.
Pursuant to this Section, Indemnitee shall be indemnified against Expenses and amounts paid in settlement (such settlement amounts not to exceed, in the
judgment of the Board, the estimated expense of litigating the Proceeding to conclusion) actually and reasonably incurred by him or on his behalf in
connection with any such Proceeding if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the
Corporation. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no indemnification against such Expenses or amounts paid in settlement shall be made in respect of any claim,
issue or matter in any such Proceeding as to which Indemnitee has been adjudged to be liable to the Corporation if applicable law prohibits such
indemnification unless the court in which such Proceeding shall have been brought, was brought or is pending, shall determine that indemnification against
Expenses or amounts paid in settlement may nevertheless be made by the Corporation.




6. Indemnification for Expenses of Party Who is Wholly or Partly Successful.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, to the extent that Indemnitee is, by reason of his Corporate Status, a party to and is
successful, on the merits or otherwise, in any Proceeding, he or she shall be indemnified against all Expenses (and, when eligible hereunder, amounts paid in
settlement) actually and reasonably incurred by him or on his behalf in connection therewith. If Indemnitee is not wholly successful in such Proceeding but is
successful, on the merits or otherwise, as to one or more but less than all claims, issues or matters in such Proceeding, the Corporation shall indemnify
Indemnitee against all Expenses (and, when eligible hereunder, amounts paid in settlement) actually and reasonably incurred by him or on his behalf in
connection with each successfully resolved claim, issue or matter. For purposes of this Section, the term “successful, on the merits or otherwise,” includes, but
is not limited to, (i) any termination, withdrawal, or dismissal (with or without prejudice) of any Proceeding against the Indemnitee without any express
finding of liability or guilt against him, and (ii) the expiration of 90 days after the making of any claim or threat of a Proceeding without the institution of the
same and without any promise or payment made to induce a settlement.

7. Indemnification for Expenses as a Witness.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, to the extent that Indemnitee is, by reason of his Corporate Status, a witness in any
Proceeding, he shall be indemnified against all Expenses actually and reasonably incurred by him on his behalf in connection therewith.

8. Advancement of Expenses and Other Amounts.

The Corporation shall advance all Expenses, judgments, penalties, fines and, when eligible hereunder, amounts paid in settlement, incurred by or on
behalf of Indemnitee in connection with any Proceeding within thirty (30) days after the receipt by the Corporation of a statement or statements from
Indemnitee requesting such advance or advances from time to time, whether prior to or after final disposition of such Proceeding. Such statement or
statements shall reasonably evidence the Expenses, judgments, penalties, fines and amounts paid in settlement, incurred by Indemnitee and shall include or be
preceded or accompanied by an agreement by or on behalf of Indemnitee to repay any Expenses, judgments, penalties, fines and amounts paid in settlement
advanced if it shall ultimately be determined that Indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified against such Expenses, judgments, penalties, fines and, when
eligible hereunder, amounts paid in settlement.




9. Procedure for Determination of Entitlement to Indemnification.

9.1 To obtain indemnification under this Agreement in connection with any Proceeding, and for the duration thereof, Indemnitee shall submit to
the Corporation a written request, including therein or therewith such documentation and information as is reasonably available to Indemnitee and is
reasonably necessary to determine whether and to what extent Indemnitee is entitled to indemnification. The Secretary of the Corporation shall, promptly
upon receipt of any such request for indemnification, advise the Board in writing that Indemnitee has requested indemnification.

9.2 Upon written request by Indemnitee for indemnification pursuant to Section 9.1 hereof, a determination, if required by applicable law, with
respect to Indemnitee’s entitlement thereto shall be made in such case: (i) if a Change in Control shall have occurred, by Independent Counsel (unless
Indemnitee shall request that such determination be made by the Board or the stockholders, in which case in the manner provided for in clauses (ii) or (iii) of
this Section 9.2) in a written opinion to the Board, a copy of which shall be delivered to Indemnitee; (ii) if a Change of Control shall not have occurred, (A)
by the Board by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of Disinterested Directors, or (B) if a quorum of the Board consisting of Disinterested Directors is not
obtainable, by a majority of a committee of the Board consisting of two or more Disinterested Directors, or (C) by Independent Counsel in a written opinion
to the Board, a copy of which shall be delivered to Indemnitee, or (D) by the stockholders of the Corporation, by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of
stockholders who are not parties to the proceeding, or if no such quorum is obtainable, by a majority vote of stockholders who are not parties to such
proceeding; or (iii) as provided in Section 10.2 of this Agreement. If it is so determined that Indemnitee is entitled to indemnification, payment to Indemnitee
shall be made within ten (10) days after such determination. Indemnitee shall cooperate with the person, persons or entity making such determination with
respect to Indemnitee’s entitlement to indemnification, including providing to such person, persons or entity upon reasonable advance request any
documentation or information which is not privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure and which is reasonably available to Indemnitee and reasonably
necessary to such determination. Any costs or expenses (including attorneys’ fees and disbursements) incurred by Indemnitee in so cooperating with the
person, persons or entity making such determination shall be borne by the Corporation (irrespective of the determination as to Indemnitee’s entitlement to
indemnification) and the Corporation hereby indemnifies and agrees to hold Indemnitee harmless therefrom.




9.3 If a Change of Control shall have occurred, Independent Counsel shall be selected by Indemnitee (unless Indemnitee shall request that such
selection be made by the Board), and Indemnitee shall give written notice to the Corporation advising it of the identity of Independent Counsel so selected. In
either event, Indemnitee or the Corporation, as the case may be, may, within seven days after such written notice of selection shall have been given, deliver to
the Corporation or to Indemnitee, as the case may be, a written objection to such selection. Such objection may be asserted only on the ground that
Independent Counsel so selected does not meet the requirements of “Independent Counsel” as defined in Section 1 of this Agreement, and the objection shall
set forth with particularity the factual basis of such assertion. If such written objection is made, Independent Counsel so selected may not serve as
Independent Counsel unless and until a court has determined that such objection is without merit. If, within 20 days after submission by Indemnitee of a
written request for indemnification pursuant to Section 9.1 hereof, no Independent Counsel shall have been selected and not objected to, either the
Corporation or Indemnitee may petition the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware or other court of competent jurisdiction, for resolution of any
objection which has been made by the Corporation or Indemnitee to the other’s selection of Independent Counsel and/or for the appointment as Independent
Counsel of a person selected by such court or by such other person as such court shall designate, and the person with respect to whom an objection is so
resolved or the person so appointed shall act as Independent Counsel under Section 9.2 hereof. The Corporation shall pay any and all reasonable fees and
expenses of Independent Counsel incurred by such Independent Counsel in connection with its actions pursuant to this Agreement, and the Corporation shall
pay all reasonable fees and expenses incident to the procedures of this Section 9.3, regardless of the manner in which such Independent Counsel was selected
or appointed. Upon the due commencement date of any judicial proceeding pursuant to Section 11.1(iii) of this Agreement, Independent Counsel shall be
discharged and relieved of any further responsibility in such capacity (subject to the applicable standards of professional conduct then prevailing).

10. Presumptions and Effects of Certain Proceedings.

10.1 In making a determination with respect to entitlement to indemnification hereunder, the person or persons or entity making such
determination shall presume that Indemnitee is entitled to indemnification under this Agreement if Indemnitee has submitted a request for indemnification in
accordance with Section 9.1 of this Agreement, and the Corporation shall have the burden of proof to overcome that presumption by clear and convincing
evidence in connection with the making by any person, persons or entity of any determination contrary to that presumption.




10.2 If the person, persons or entity empowered or selected under Section 9 of this Agreement to determine whether Indemnitee is entitled to
indemnification shall not have made a determination within thirty (30) days after receipt by the Corporation of the request therefor, the requisite
determination of entitlement to indemnification shall be deemed to have been made and Indemnitee shall be entitled to such indemnification, absent (i) a
misstatement by Indemnitee of a material fact, or an omission of a material fact necessary to make Indemnitee’s statement not materially misleading, in
connection with the request for indemnification, or (ii) prohibition of such indemnification under applicable law; provided, however, that such 30-day period
may be extended for a reasonable time, not to exceed an additional thirty (30) days, if the person, persons or entity making the determination with respect to
entitlement to indemnification in good faith require(s) such additional time for the obtaining or evaluating of documentation and/or information relating
thereto; and provided, further, however, that the foregoing provisions of this Section 10.2 shall not apply (i) if the determination of entitlement to
indemnification is to be made by the stockholders pursuant to Section 9.2 of this Agreement and if (A) within 15 days after receipt by the Corporation of the
request for such determination the Board has resolved to submit such determination to the stockholders for their consideration at an annual meeting thereof to
be held within 75 days after such receipt and such determination is made thereat, or (B) a special meeting of stockholders is called within 15 days after such
receipt for the purpose of making such determination, such meeting is held for such purpose within 60 days after having been so called and such
determination is made thereat, or (ii) if the determination of entitlement to indemnification is to be made by Independent Counsel pursuant to Section 9.2 of
this Agreement. In connection with each meeting at which a stockholder determination will be made, the Corporation shall solicit proxies that expressly
include a proposal to indemnify or reimburse the Indemnitee. The Corporation shall afford the Indemnitee ample opportunity to present evidence of the facts
upon which the Indemnitee relies for indemnification in any Corporation proxy statement relating to such shareholder determination. Subject to the fiduciary
duties of its members under applicable law, the Board will not recommend against indemnification or reimbursement in any proxy statement relating to the
proposal to indemnify or reimburse the Indemnitee.

10.3 The termination of any Proceeding or of any claim, issue or matter therein, by judgment, order, settlement or conviction, or upon a plea of
nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not (except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement) of itself adversely affect the right of Indemnitee to
indemnification or create a presumption that Indemnitee did not act in good faith and in a manner which he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed
to the best interests of the Corporation or, with respect to any criminal Proceeding, that Indemnitee had reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was
unlawful.

10.4 Reliance as Safe Harbor. For purposes of this Agreement, the Indemnitee shall be deemed to have acted in good faith and in a manner he
reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation, or, with respect to any criminal Proceeding, to have had no reasonable
cause to believe his conduct was unlawful, if his action is based on (i) the records or books of account of the Corporation, or another enterprise, including
financial statements, (ii) information supplied to him by the officers of the Corporation or another enterprise in the course of their duties, (iii) the advice of
legal counsel for the Corporation or another enterprise, or of an independent certified public accountant or an appraiser or other expert selected with
reasonable care by the Corporation or another enterprise. The term “another enterprise” as used in this Section shall mean any other corporation or any
partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise of which the Indemnitee is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a
director, officer, partner, trustee, employee or agent. The provisions of this Section shall not be deemed to be exclusive or to limit in any way the other
circumstances in which the Indemnitee may be deemed to have met the applicable standard of conduct set forth herein. Whether or not the foregoing
provisions of this Section 10.4 are satisfied, it shall in any event be presumed that Indemnitee has at all times acted in good faith and in a manner he
reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation, or, with respect to any criminal Proceeding, to have had no reasonable
cause to believe Indemnitee’s conduct was unlawful. Anyone seeking to overcome this presumption shall have the burden of proof and the burden of
persuasion by clear and convincing evidence.




11. Remedies of Indemnitee.

11.1 In the event that (i) a determination is made pursuant to Section 9 of this Agreement that Indemnitee is not entitled to indemnification under
this Agreement, (ii) advancement of Expenses is not timely made pursuant to Section 8 of this Agreement, (iii) the determination of indemnification is to be
made by Independent Counsel pursuant to Section 9.2 of this Agreement and such determination shall not have been made and delivered in a written opinion
within 30 days after receipt by the Corporation of the request for indemnification, (iv) payment of indemnification is not made pursuant to Section 7 of this
Agreement within thirty (30) days after receipt by the Corporation of a written request therefor, or (v) payment of indemnification is not made within thirty
(30) days after a determination has been made that Indemnitee is entitled to indemnification or such determination is deemed to have been made pursuant to
Section 9 or 10 of this Agreement, Indemnitee shall be entitled to an adjudication in an appropriate court of the State of Delaware, or in any other court of
competent jurisdiction, of his entitlement to such indemnification or advancement of Expenses, judgments, penalties, fines or, when eligible hereunder,
amounts paid in settlement. The Corporation shall not oppose Indemnitee’s right to seek any such adjudication.

11.2 In the event that a determination shall have been made pursuant to Section 9 of this Agreement that Indemnitee is not entitled to
indemnification, any judicial proceeding commenced pursuant to this Section shall be conducted in all respects as a de novo trial on the merits and Indemnitee
shall not be prejudiced by reason of that adverse determination.

11.3 If a determination shall have been made or deemed to have been made pursuant to Section 9 or 10 of this Agreement that Indemnitee is
entitled to indemnification, the Corporation shall be bound by such determination in any judicial proceeding commenced pursuant to this Section, absent (i) a
misstatement by Indemnitee of a material fact, or an omission of a material fact necessary to make Indemnitee’s statement not materially misleading, in
connection with the request for indemnification, or (ii) prohibition of such indemnification under applicable law.




11.4 The Corporation shall be precluded from asserting in any judicial proceeding commenced pursuant to this Section that the procedures and
presumptions of this Agreement are not valid, binding and enforceable and shall stipulate in any such court that the Corporation is bound by all the provisions
of this Agreement.

11.5 In the event that Indemnitee, pursuant to this Section, seeks a judicial adjudication of his or her rights under, or to recover damages for
breach of, this Agreement, Indemnitee shall be entitled to recover from the Corporation, and shall be indemnified by the Corporation against, any and all
expenses (of the kinds described in the definition of Expenses) actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in such judicial adjudication, but only if he or
she prevails therein. If it shall be determined in such judicial adjudication that Indemnitee is entitled to receive less than all of the indemnification or
advancement of expenses sought, the expenses incurred by Indemnitee in connection with such judicial adjudication shall be appropriately prorated.

12. Procedure Regarding Indemnification.

With respect to any Proceedings, the Indemnitee, prior to taking any action with respect to such Proceeding, shall consult with the Corporation as to
the procedure to be followed in defending, settling, or compromising the Proceeding and may not consent to any settlement or compromise of the Proceeding
without the written consent of the Corporation (which consent may not be unreasonably withheld or delayed). The Corporation shall be entitled to participate
in defending, settling or compromising any Proceeding and to assume the defense of such Proceeding with counsel of its choice and shall assume such
defense if requested by the Indemnitee. Notwithstanding the election by, or obligation of, the Corporation to assume the defense of a Proceeding, the
Indemnitee shall have the right to participate in the defense of such Proceeding and to employ counsel of Indemnitee’s choice, but the fees and expenses of
such counsel shall be at the expense of the Indemnitee unless (i) the employment of such counsel has been authorized in writing by the Company, or (ii) the
Indemnitee has reasonably concluded that there may be defenses available to him or her which are different from or additional to those available to the
Corporation (in which latter case the Corporation shall not have the right to direct the defense of such Proceeding on behalf of the Indemnitee), in either of
which events the fees and expenses of not more than one additional firm of attorneys selected by the Indemnitee shall be borne by the Corporation. If the
Corporation assumes the defense of a Proceeding, then counsel for the Corporation and Indemnitee shall keep Indemnitee reasonably informed of the status of
the Proceeding and promptly send to Indemnitee copies of all documents filed or produced in the Proceeding, and the Corporation shall not compromise or
settle any such Proceeding without the written consent of the Indemnitee (which consent may not be unreasonably withheld or delayed) if the relief provided
shall be other than monetary damages and shall promptly notify the Indemnitee of any settlement and the amount thereof.




13. Non-Exclusivity;_Survival of Rights; Insurance; Subrogation; Contribution.

13.1 The rights of indemnification and to receive advancement of Expenses as provided by this Agreement shall not be deemed exclusive of any
other rights to which Indemnitee may at any time be entitled under applicable law, the certificate of incorporation or by-laws of the Corporation, each as may
be amended from time to time, any agreement, a vote of stockholders or a resolution of directors, or otherwise. No amendment, alteration or repeal of this
Agreement or any provision hereof shall be effective as to any Indemnitee with respect to any action taken or omitted by such Indemnitee in his Corporate
Status prior to such amendment, alteration or repeal.

13.2 To the extent that the Corporation maintains an insurance policy or policies providing liability insurance for directors, officers, employees,
agents or fiduciaries of the Corporation or of any other corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise which such
person serves at the request of the Corporation, Indemnitee shall be covered by such policy or policies in accordance with its or their terms to the maximum
extent of the coverage available for any such director, officer, employee, agent or fiduciary under such policy or policies.

13.3 In the event of any payment under this Agreement, the Corporation shall be subrogated to the extent of such payment to all of the rights of
recovery of Indemnitee, who shall execute all papers required and take all action necessary to secure such rights, including execution of such documents as
are reasonably necessary to enable the Corporation to bring suit to enforce such rights.

134 The Corporation shall not be liable under this Agreement to make any payment of amounts otherwise indemnifiable hereunder if and to the
extent that Indemnitee has otherwise actually received such payment under any insurance policy, contract, agreement or otherwise.

13.5 (a) If a determination is made that Indemnitee is not entitled to indemnification, after Indemnitee submits a written request therefor, under this
Agreement, then in respect of any threatened, pending or completed Proceeding in which the Corporation is jointly liability with the Indemnitee (or would be
if joined in such Proceeding), the Corporation shall contribute to the amount of Expenses, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement by the Indemnitee
in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect (i) the relative benefits received by the Corporation on the one hand and the Indemnitee on the other hand from
the transaction from which Proceeding arose, and (ii) the relative fault of the Corporation on the one hand and of the Indemnitee on the other hand in
connection with the events that resulted in such Expenses, judgments, fines or amounts paid in settlement, as well as any other relevant equitable
considerations. The relative fault of the Corporation on the one hand and of the Indemnitee on the other hand shall be determined by reference to, among
other things, the parties’ relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such Expenses,
judgments, fines or amounts paid in settlement. The Corporation agrees that it would not be just and equitable if contribution pursuant to this Section were
determined by pro rata allocation or any other method of allocation that does not take into account the foregoing equitable considerations.
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(b)  The determination as to the amount of the contribution, if any, shall be made by:

@) a court of competent jurisdiction upon the applicable of both the Indemnitee and the Corporation (if the Proceeding had
been brought in, and final determination had been rendered by such court);

(i)  the Board by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of Disinterested Directors; or

(iii) Independent Counsel, if a quorum is not obtainable for purpose of (ii) above, or, even if obtainable, a quorum of
Disinterested Directors so directs.

14. Duration of Agreement.

This Agreement shall continue until and terminate upon the later of: (a) ten (10) years after the date that Indemnitee shall have ceased to serve as a
director and/or officer of the Corporation, or (b) the final termination of all pending Proceedings in respect of which Indemnitee is granted rights of
indemnification or advancement of Expenses, judgments, penalties, fines or amounts paid in settlement hereunder and or any proceeding commenced by
Indemnitee pursuant to Section 11 of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be binding upon the Corporation and its successors and assigns and shall inure to
the benefit of Indemnitee and his spouse, heirs, executors, personal representatives and administrators.

15. Severability.

If any provision or provisions of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable for any reason whatsoever: (a) the validity,
legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement (including, without limitation, each portion of any Section of this Agreement
containing any such provision held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, that is not itself invalid, illegal or unenforceable) shall not in any way be affected or
impaired thereby; and (b) to the fullest extent possible, the provisions of this Agreement (including, without limitation, each portion of any Section of this
Agreement containing any such provision held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, that is not itself invalid, illegal or unenforceable) shall be construed so
as to give effect to the intent manifested by the provision held invalid, illegal or unenforceable.
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16. Entire Agreement.

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Corporation and the Indemnitee with respect to the subject matter hereof and
supercedes all prior agreements, understanding, negotiations and discussion, both written and oral, between the parties hereto with respect to such subject
matter (the “Prior Agreements”); provided, however, that if this Agreement shall ever be held void or unenforceable for any reasons whatsoever, and is not
reformed pursuant to Section 15 hereof, then (i) this Agreement shall not be deemed to have superceded any Prior Agreements; (ii) all of such Prior
Agreements shall be deemed to be in full force and effect notwithstanding the execution of this Agreement; and (iii) the Indemnitee shall be entitled to
maximum indemnification benefits provided under any Prior Agreements, as well as those provided under applicable law, the certificate of incorporation or
by-laws of the Corporation, a vote of stockholders or resolution of directors.

17. Exception to Right of Indemnification or Advancement of Expenses.

Except as provided in Section 11.5, Indemnitee shall not be entitled to indemnification or advancement of Expenses under this Agreement with
respect to any Proceeding, or any claim therein, brought or made by him against the Corporation.

18. Covenant Not to Sue; Limitation of Actions; Release of Claims.

No legal action shall be brought and no cause of action shall be asserted by or on behalf of the Corporation (or any of its subsidiaries) against the
Indemnitee, his spouse, heirs, executors, personal representatives or administrators after the expiration of two (2) years from the date of accrual of such cause
of action and any claim or cause of action of the Corporation (or any of its subsidiaries) shall be extinguished and deemed released unless asserted by the
filing of a legal action within such two (2) year period; provided, however, that if any shorter period of limitation is otherwise applicable to any such cause of
action, such shorter period shall govern.

19. Identical Counterparts.

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original but all of which
together shall constitute one and the same Agreement.

20. Headings.
The headings of the paragraphs of this Agreement are inserted for convenience only and shall not be deemed to constitute part of this Agreement or

to affect the construction thereof.
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21. Modification and Waiver.

No supplement, modification or amendment of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing by both of the parties hereto. No waiver of
any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed or shall constitute a waiver of any other provisions hereof (whether or not similar) nor shall such
waiver constitute a continuing waiver.

22, Notice by Indemnitee.

Indemnitee agrees promptly to notify the Corporation in writing upon being served with any summons, citation, subpoena, complaint, indictment,
information or other document relating any Proceeding or matter which may be subject to indemnification or advancement of Expenses, judgments, penalties,
fines or amounts paid in settlement covered hereunder.

23. Notices.

All notices, requests, demands and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if (i) delivered
by hand and receipted for by the party to whom such notice or other communication shall have been directed, or (ii) mailed by certified or registered mail
with postage prepaid, on the third business day after the date on which it is so mailed:

If to Indemnitee, to the address set forth on the signature page.

If to the Corporation, to:

Chicken Soup for the Soul Publishing, LLC
132 E. Putnam Avenue

Floor 2W

Cos Cob, Connecticut 06807

Attention: Chief Executive Officer

or to such other address or such other person as Indemnitee or the Corporation shall designate in writing in accordance with this Section, except that notices
regarding changes in notices shall be effective only upon receipt.

24. Governing Law.
The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the laws of the State of Delaware

applicable to contracts made and performed in that state without giving effect to the principles of conflicts of laws.
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25. Miscellaneous.

Use of the masculine pronoun shall be deemed to include usage of the feminine pronoun where appropriate.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

CHICKEN SOUP FOR THE SOUL
ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

By:

Name:
Title:

INDEMNITEE

Address for Notice:

Phone:

E-mail:
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Exhibit 6.6

CHICKEN SOUP FOR THE SOUL ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
2017 Long Term Incentive Plan
Section 1. Purpose; Definitions.

1.1. Purpose. The purpose of the Plan is to enable the Company to offer to employees, officers and directors of and consultants to the
Company (and its Parent companies, Subsidiaries and Affiliates) whose past, present and/or potential future contributions to the Company and its Subsidiaries
have been, are or will be important to the success of the Company, an opportunity to share monetarily in the success of and/or acquire a proprietary interest in
the Company. The various types of long-term incentive awards that may be provided under the Plan will enable the Company to respond to changes in
compensation practices, tax laws, accounting regulations and the size and diversity of its businesses.

1.2. Definitions. For purposes of the Plan, the following terms shall be defined as set forth below:

(a) “Affiliate” means a corporation, limited liability company or other entity that controls, is controlled by, or is under common
control with the Company and designated by the Committee from time to time as such.

(b) “Agreement” means the agreement between the Company and the Holder, or such other document as may be determined by the
Committee, setting forth the terms and conditions of an award under the Plan.

(o) “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.

(d) “Change of Control” means a transaction in which any one person, or more than one person acting as a group, acquires the
ownership of stock of the Company that, together with the stock held by such person or group, constitutes more than 50% of the total voting power of the
stock of the Company.

(e) “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time.

® “Committee” means the committee of the Board designated to administer the Plan as provided in Section 2.1. If no Committee is so
designated, then all references in this Plan to “Committee” shall mean the Board.

() “Common Stock” means the Class A Common Stock of the Company, par value $.0001 per share.

(h) “Company” means Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc., a corporation organized under the laws of the State of
Delaware.

@) “Disability” means physical or mental impairment as determined under procedures established by the Committee for purposes of
the Plan.

)] “Effective Date” means the date determined pursuant to Section 12.1.




k) “Fair Market Value,” unless otherwise required by any applicable provision of the Code or any regulations issued thereunder,
means, as of any given date: (i) if the Common Stock is listed on a national securities exchange or is traded over-the-counter and last sale information is
available, the last sale price of the Common Stock in the principal trading market for the Common Stock on such date, as reported by the exchange or by
such source that the Committee deems reliable, as the case may be; or (ii) if the fair market value of the Common Stock cannot be determined pursuant to
clause (i), such price as the Committee shall determine, in good faith.

(0] “Holder” means a person who has received an award under the Plan.

(m) “Incentive Bonus” means a bonus opportunity awarded under Section 9 pursuant to which a recipient may become entitled to
receive an amount based on satisfaction of such Performance Goals as are specified in the award Agreement.

(n) “Incentive Stock Option” means any Stock Option intended to be and designated as an “incentive stock option” within the
meaning of Section 422 of the Code.

(o) “Non-qualified Stock Option” means any Stock Option that is not an Incentive Stock Option.

(p) “Normal Retirement” means retirement from active employment with the Company or any Subsidiary on or after such age which
may be designated by the Committee as “retirement age” for any particular Holder. If no age is designated, it shall be 65.

(q) “Other Stock-Based Award” means an award under Section 8 that is valued in whole or in part by reference to, or is otherwise
based upon, Common Stock.

(r) “Parent” means any present or future “parent corporation” of the Company, as such term is defined in Section 424(e) of the Code.




(s) “Performance Goal” means any goals the Committee establishes that relate to one or more of the following with respect to the
Company or any one or more of its Subsidiaries or its or their respective business units, in all cases before Excluded Items (defined below) except as
otherwise determined by the Committee upon the grant of an award: sales or other revenues; cost of goods sold; gross profit; expenses or expense or cost
reductions; income or earnings, including net income or income from operations; earnings before one or more items such as interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortization; margins; working capital or any of its components, including accounts receivable, inventories and/or accounts payable; assets or
productivity of assets; return on shareholders’ equity, capital, assets, debt or ratio of debt to equity or other financial measure that appears on the
Company’s financial statements or is derived from one or more amounts that appear on the Company’s financial statements; stock price; dividend
payments; economic value added, or other measure of profitability that considers the cost of capital employed; cash flow; net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents; customer satisfaction; market share; product quality; new product introductions or launches; sustainability, including energy or
materials utilization; business efficiency measures; retail sales; safety; or any combination of the foregoing. Performance Goals also may include
earnings per share on a consolidated basis and total shareholder return. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee at the time of grant, as to each
Performance Goal, the relevant measurement of performance shall be computed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles to the
extent applicable, but will exclude the effects of the following: (i) charges for reorganizing and restructuring, (ii) discontinued operations, (iii) asset
write-downs, (iv) gains or losses on the disposition of a business or business segment or arising from the sale of assets outside the ordinary course of
business, (v) changes in tax or accounting principles, regulations or laws, (vi) extraordinary, unusual, transition, one-time and/or non-recurring expenses,
revenues or other items of gain or loss, (vii) changes in interest expenses as a result of modified debt structures and (viii) mergers and acquisitions, that,
in case of each of the foregoing, the Company identifies in its publicly filed periodic or current reports, its audited financial statements, including notes to
the financial statements, or the Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of the Company’s annual report, to the extent applicable (collectively, the
“Excluded Items”). With respect to any award intended to qualify as performance-based compensation under Section 162(m) of the Code, such
exclusions shall be made only to the extent consistent with Section 162(m) of the Code. To the extent consistent with Section 162(m) of the Code, the
Committee may also provide for other adjustments to Performance Goals in the Agreement. In addition, the Committee may appropriately adjust any
evaluation of performance under a Performance Goal to exclude any of the following events that occurs during a performance period: (i) litigation,
claims, judgments or settlements; (ii) the effects of changes in other laws or regulations affecting reported results; and (iii) accruals of any amounts for
payment under this Plan or any other compensation arrangements maintained by the Company; provided that, with respect to any award intended to
qualify as performance-based compensation under Section 162(m) of the Code, such adjustment may be made only to the extent consistent with Code
Section 162(m) of the Code. Where applicable, the Performance Goals may be expressed, without limitation, in terms of attaining a specified level of the
particular criterion or the attainment of an increase or decrease (expressed as absolute numbers, averages and/or percentages) in the particular criterion or
achievement in relation to a peer group or other index. The Performance Goals may include a threshold level of performance below which no payment
will be made (or no vesting will occur), levels of performance at which specified payments will be paid (or specified vesting will occur), and a maximum
level of performance above which no additional payment will be made (or at which full vesting will occur). In addition, in the case of awards that the
Committee determines at the date of grant will not be considered performance based compensation under Section 162(m) of the Code, the Administrator
may establish other Performance Goals and provide for other exclusions or adjustments not listed in this Plan.

®) “Plan” means the Company’s 2017 Long Term Incentive Plan, as hereinafter amended from time to time.

(u) “Repurchase Value” shall mean the Fair Market Value if the award to be settled under Section 2.2(d) or repurchased under Section
5.2(1) is comprised of shares of Common Stock and the difference between Fair Market Value and the exercise price (if lower than Fair Market Value) if
the award is a Stock Option or Stock Appreciation Right; in each case, multiplied by the number of shares subject to the award. “Repurchase Value” if
the award to be repurchased under Section 10.2 is comprised of shares of Common Stock shall mean the greater of the Fair Market Value or the value of
such award based upon the price per share of Common Stock received or to be received by other shareholders of the Company in the event. “Repurchase
Value” if the award to be repurchased under Section 10.2 is comprised of Stock Options or Stock Appreciation Rights shall mean the difference between
the greater of (1) the Fair Market Value or the value of such award based upon the price per share of Common Stock received or to be received by other
shareholders of the Company in the event and (2) the exercise price (if lower), multiplied by the number of shares subject to the award.




W) “Restriction Period” means the time or conditions within which awards may be subject to forfeiture, including upon termination of
employment or failure of performance conditions.

w) “Restricted Stock” means Common Stock received under an award made pursuant to Section 7 that is subject to restrictions under
Section 7.

x) “Restricted Stock Unit” means an unfunded, unsecured right to receive, on the applicable settlement date, one share or an amount
in cash or other consideration determined by the Committee to be of equal value as of such settlement date, subject to certain vesting conditions and other
restrictions.

) “SAR Value” means the excess of the Fair Market Value (on the exercise date) over (a) the exercise price that the participant would

have otherwise had to pay to exercise the related Stock Option or (b) if a Stock Appreciation Right is granted unrelated to a Stock Option, the Fair
Market Value of a share of Common Stock on the date of grant of the Stock Appreciation Right, in either case, multiplied by the number of shares for
which the Stock Appreciation Right is exercised.

(z) “Stock Appreciation Right” means the right to receive from the Company, without a cash payment to the Company, either a
number of shares of Common Stock equal to the SAR Value divided by the Fair Market Value (on the exercise date), or, at the Company’s election, cash
in the amount of the SAR Value.

(aa) “Stock Option” or “Option” means any option to purchase shares of Common Stock which is granted pursuant to the Plan.
(bb) “Subsidiary” means any present or future “subsidiary corporation” of the Company, as such term is defined in Section 424(f) of the
Code.
(co) “Vest” means to become exercisable or to otherwise obtain ownership rights in an award. No award shall vest in less than a one-
year period.
Section 2. Administration.
2.1. Committee Membership. The Plan shall be administered by the Board or a Committee. If administered by a Committee, such Committee

shall be composed of at least two directors, all of whom are “outside directors” within the meaning of the regulations issued under Section 162(m) of the
Code and “non-employee” directors within the meaning of Rule 16b-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Committee members shall
serve for such term as the Board may in each case determine and shall be subject to removal at any time by the Board.

2.2 Powers of Committee. The Committee shall have full authority to award, pursuant to the terms of the Plan: (i) Stock Options, (ii) Stock
Appreciation Rights, (iii) Restricted Stock, (iv) Restricted Stock Units, (v) Other Stock-Based Awards, and/or (vi) Incentive Bonuses. For purposes of
illustration and not of limitation, the Committee shall have the authority (subject to the express provisions of this Plan):




(a) to select the officers, employees, directors and consultants of the Company, Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate to whom Stock Options,
Stock Appreciation Rights, Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units, Other Stock-Based Awards and/or Incentive Bonuses may from time to time be
awarded hereunder;

(b) to determine the terms and conditions, not inconsistent with the terms of the Plan, of any award granted hereunder (including, but
not limited to, number of shares, share exercise price or types of consideration paid upon exercise of such options, such as other securities of the
Company or other property, any restrictions or limitations, and any vesting, exchange, surrender, cancellation, acceleration, termination, exercise or
forfeiture provisions, or any Performance Goals, as the Committee shall determine);

() to determine the terms and conditions under which awards granted hereunder are to operate on a tandem basis and/or in
conjunction with or apart from other awards under this Plan and cash and non-cash awards made by the Company, Parent, Subsidiary and/or Affiliate
outside of this Plan; and

(d) to make payments and distributions with respect to awards (i.e., to “settle” awards) through cash payments in an amount equal to
the Repurchase Value.

The Committee may not modify or amend any outstanding Option or Stock Appreciation Right to reduce the exercise price of such Option or Stock
Appreciation Right, as applicable, below the exercise price as of the date of grant of such Option or Stock Appreciation Right. In addition, no payment of
cash or other property having a value greater than the Repurchase Value may be made, and no Option or Stock Appreciation Right with a lower exercise price
may be granted, in exchange for, or in connection with, the cancellation or surrender of an Option or Stock Appreciation Right.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the Committee shall not grant to any one Holder in any one calendar year Options and/or Stock
Appreciation Rights and/or any other awards with respect to more than 100,000 shares in the aggregate or Incentive Bonuses for more than $200,000 in the
aggregate. In all cases, determinations of these limits should be made in a manner that is consistent with the exemption for performance-based compensation
that Section 162(m) of the Code provides. Non-employee Directors may not be granted any awards covering more than 15,000 shares of Common Stock in
any year.

2.3. Interpretation of Plan. Subject to Section 11, the Committee shall have the authority to adopt, alter and repeal such administrative rules,
guidelines and practices governing the Plan as it shall from time to time deem advisable, to interpret the terms and provisions of the Plan and any award
issued under the Plan (and to determine the form and substance of all Agreements relating thereto), and to otherwise supervise the administration of the Plan.
Subject to Section 11, all decisions made by the Committee pursuant to the provisions of the Plan shall be made in the Committee’s sole discretion and shall
be final and binding upon all persons, including the Company, its Parent, Subsidiaries, Affiliates and Holders.




Section 3. Stock Subject to Plan.

3.1. Number of Shares. The total number of shares of Common Stock reserved and available for issuance under the Plan shall be up to
1,000,000 (one million) shares and no more than 1,000,000 (one million) shares of Common Stock may be granted as Incentive Stock Options. Shares of
Common Stock under the Plan (“Shares”) may consist, in whole or in part, of authorized and unissued shares or treasury shares. If any shares of Common
Stock that have been granted pursuant to a Stock Option cease to be subject to a Stock Option, or if any shares of Common Stock that are subject to any Stock
Appreciation Right, Restricted Stock award, Restricted Stock Units or Other Stock-Based Award granted hereunder are forfeited, or any such award otherwise
terminates without a payment being made to the Holder in the form of Common Stock, such shares shall again be available for distribution in connection with
future grants and awards under the Plan. If a Holder pays the exercise price of a Stock Option by surrendering any previously owned shares and/or arranges to
have the appropriate number of shares otherwise issuable upon exercise withheld to cover the withholding tax liability associated with the Stock Option
exercise, then, in the Committee’s discretion, the number of shares available under the Plan may be increased by the lesser of (i) the number of such
surrendered shares and shares used to pay taxes; and (ii) the number of shares purchased under such Stock Option.

3.2 Adjustment Upon Changes in Capitalization, Etc. In the event of any common stock dividend payable on shares of Common Stock,
Common Stock split or reverse split, combination or exchange of shares of Common Stock, or other extraordinary or unusual event which results in a change
in the shares of Common Stock of the Company as a whole, the Committee shall determine, in its sole discretion, whether such change equitably requires an
adjustment in the terms of any award in order to prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefits available under the Plan (including number of shares subject
to the award and the exercise price) or the aggregate number of shares reserved for issuance under the Plan. Any such adjustments will be made by the

Committee, whose determination will be final, binding and conclusive.

3.3. Administrative Stand Still. In the event of any changes in capitalization described above in Section 3.2, or any other extraordinary
transaction or change affecting the shares or the share price of Common Stock, including any equity restructuring or any securities offering or other similar
transaction, for administrative convenience, the Committee may refuse to permit the exercise of any award for up to sixty days before and/or after such
transaction; provided, however, that the Committee may not refuse to permit the exercise of any award during the last five trading days prior to the expiration
of such award.

3.4. Substitute Awards. In connection with an entity’s merger or consolidation with the Company or any Subsidiary or Affiliate or the
Company’s or any Subsidiary’s or Affiliate’s acquisition of an entity’s property or stock, the Committee may grant awards in substitution for any options or
other stock or stock-based awards granted before such merger or consolidation by such entity or its affiliate. Substitute awards may be granted on such terms
as the Committee deems appropriate, notwithstanding limitations on awards in the Plan. Substitute awards will not count against the plan limit, except that
shares acquired by exercise of substitute Incentive Stock Options will count against the maximum number of shares that may be issued pursuant to the
exercise of Incentive Stock Options under the Plan.

Section 4. Eligibility.

Awards may be made or granted to employees, officers, directors and consultants of the Company, Parent companies, Subsidiaries or Affiliates who
are deemed to have rendered or to be able to render significant services to the Company or Subsidiaries and who are deemed to have contributed or to have
the potential to contribute to the success of the Company or Subsidiary and which recipients are qualified to receive options under the regulations governing
Form S-8 registration statements under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“Securities Act”). No Incentive Stock Option shall be granted to any person
who is not an employee of the Company, Parent or Subsidiary (including any non-employee directors) at the time of grant or so qualified as set forth in the
immediately preceding sentence. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, an award may be made or granted to a person in connection with his hiring or
retention, or at any time on or after the date he reaches an agreement (oral or written) with the Company, Subsidiaries, Parents or Affiliates with respect to
such hiring or retention, even though it may be prior to the date the person first performs services for the Company or Subsidiaries; provided, however, that
no portion of any such award shall vest prior to the date the person first performs such services and the date of grant shall be deemed to be the date hiring or
retention commences.




Section 5. Stock Options.

5.1. Grant and Exercise. Stock Options granted under the Plan may be of two types: (i) Incentive Stock Options and (ii) Non-qualified Stock
Options. Any Stock Option granted under the Plan shall contain such terms, not inconsistent with this Plan, or with respect to Incentive Stock Options, not
inconsistent with the Plan and the Code, as the Committee may from time to time approve. The Committee shall have the authority to grant Incentive Stock
Options or Non-qualified Stock Options, or both types of Stock Options which may be granted alone or in addition to other awards granted under the Plan.

5.2. Terms and Conditions. Stock Options granted under the Plan shall be subject to the following terms and conditions:

(a) Option Term. The term of each Stock Option shall be fixed by the Committee; provided, however, that no Stock Option may be
exercisable after the expiration of ten years from the date of grant; provided, further, that no Incentive Stock Option granted to a person who, at the time
of grant, owns stock possessing more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of voting stock of the Company (“10% Shareholder”)
may be exercisable after the expiration of five years from the date of grant.

(b) Exercise Price. The exercise price per share of Common Stock purchasable under a Stock Option shall be determined by the
Committee at the time of grant; provided, however, that the exercise price of a Stock Option may not be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value on the
date of grant or, if greater, the par value of a share of Common Stock; provided, further, that the exercise price of an Incentive Stock Option granted to a
10% Shareholder may not be less than 110% of the Fair Market Value on the date of grant.

(0) Exercisability. Stock Options shall be exercisable at such time or times and subject to such terms and conditions as shall be
determined by the Committee. The Committee intends generally to provide that Stock Options be exercisable only in installments, i.e., that they vest over
time, generally over a two- to five-year period. The Committee may waive such installment exercise provisions at any time at or after the time of grant in
whole or in part, based upon such factors as the Committee determines.




(d) Method of Exercise. Subject to whatever installment, exercise and waiting period provisions are applicable in a particular case,
Stock Options may be exercised in whole or in part at any time during the term of the Option by giving written notice of exercise to the Company
specifying the number of shares of Common Stock to be purchased. Such notice shall be accompanied by payment in full of the purchase price, which
shall be in cash or, if provided in the Agreement, either in shares of Common Stock (including Restricted Stock and other contingent awards under this
Plan) or partly in cash and partly in such Common Stock, or such other means which the Committee determines are consistent with the Plan’s purpose
and applicable law. Cash payments shall be made by wire transfer, certified or bank check or personal check, in each case payable to the order of the
Company; provided, however, that the Company shall not be required to deliver certificates for shares of Common Stock with respect to which an Option
is exercised until the Company has confirmed the receipt of good and available funds in payment of the purchase price thereof (except that, in the case of
an exercise arrangement approved by the Committee and described in the last sentence of this paragraph, payment may be made as soon as practicable
after the exercise). The Committee may permit a Holder to elect to pay the exercise price upon the exercise of a Stock Option by irrevocably authorizing
a third party to sell shares of Common Stock (or a sufficient portion of the shares) acquired upon exercise of the Stock Option and remit to the Company
a sufficient portion of the sale proceeds to pay the entire exercise price and any tax withholding resulting from such exercise. The Committee may also
authorize other means for paying the exercise price of a Stock Option, including using the value of the Stock Option (as determined by the difference in
the market price of the Common Stock and the exercise price of the Stock Option or other means determined by the Committee).

(e) Stock Payments. Payments in the form of Common Stock shall be valued at the Fair Market Value on the date of exercise. Such
payments shall be made by delivery of stock certificates in negotiable form that are effective to transfer good and valid title thereto to the Company, free
of any liens or encumbrances.

® Transferability. Except as may be set forth in the next sentence of this Section or in the Agreement, no Stock Option shall be
transferable by the Holder other than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution, and all Stock Options shall be exercisable, during the Holder’s
lifetime, only by the Holder (or, to the extent of legal incapacity or incompetency, the Holder’s guardian or legal representative). Notwithstanding the
foregoing, a Holder, with the approval of the Committee, may transfer a Non-Qualified Stock Option (i) (A) by gift, for no consideration, or (B) pursuant
to a domestic relations order, in either case, to or for the benefit of the Holder’s “Immediate Family” (as defined below), or (ii) to an entity in which the
Holder and/or members of Holder’s Immediate Family own more than fifty percent of the voting interest, subject to such limits as the Committee may
establish and the execution of such documents as the Committee may require, and the transferee shall remain subject to all the terms and conditions
applicable to the Non-Qualified Stock Option prior to such transfer. The term “Immediate Family” shall mean any child, stepchild, grandchild, parent,
stepparent, grandparent, spouse, former spouse, sibling, niece, nephew, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law or sister-
in-law, including adoptive relationships, any person sharing the Holder’s household (other than a tenant or employee), a trust in which these persons have
more than fifty percent beneficial interest, and a foundation in which these persons (or the Holder) control the management of the assets. The Committee
may, in its sole discretion, permit transfer of an Incentive Stock Option in a manner consistent with applicable tax and securities law upon the Holder’s
request.

(g) Termination by Reason of Death. If a Holder’s employment by, or association with, the Company, Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate
terminates by reason of death, any Stock Option held by such Holder, unless otherwise determined by the Committee and set forth in the Agreement,
shall thereupon automatically terminate, except that the portion of such Stock Option that has vested on the date of death may thereafter be exercised by
the legal representative of the estate or by the legatee of the Holder under the will of the Holder, for a period of one year (or such other greater or lesser
period as the Committee may specify in the Agreement) from the date of such death or until the expiration of the stated term of such Stock Option,
whichever period is shorter.




(h) Termination by Reason of Disability. If a Holder’s employment by, or association with, the Company, Parent, Subsidiary or
Affiliate terminates by reason of Disability, any Stock Option held by such Holder, unless otherwise determined by the Committee and set forth in the
Agreement, shall thereupon automatically terminate, except that the portion of such Stock Option that has vested on the date of termination may
thereafter be exercised by the Holder for a period of one year (or such other greater or lesser period as the Committee may specify in the Agreement)
from the date of such termination or until the expiration of the stated term of such Stock Option, whichever period is shorter.

@) Termination by Reason of Normal Retirement. Subject to the provisions of Section 13.4, if such Holder’s employment by, or
association with, the Company, Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate terminates due to Normal Retirement, any Stock Option held by such Holder, unless
otherwise determined by the Committee and set forth in the Agreement, shall thereupon automatically terminate, except that the portion of such Stock
Option that has vested on the date of termination may thereafter be exercised by the Holder for a period of one year in the case of a Non-Qualified Stock
Option or three months in the case of an Incentive Stock Option (or such other greater or lesser period as the Committee may specify in the Agreement)
from the date of such termination or until the expiration of the stated term of such Stock Option, whichever period is shorter.

G Other Termination. Subject to the provisions of Section 13.4, if such Holder’s employment by, or association with, the
Company, Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate terminates for any reason other than death, Disability or Normal Retirement, any Stock Option held by such
Holder, unless otherwise determined by the Committee and set forth in the Agreement, shall thereupon automatically terminate, except that, if the
Holder’s employment is terminated by the Company, Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate without cause, the portion of such Stock Option that has vested on
the date of termination may thereafter be exercised by the Holder for a period of three months (or such other greater or lesser period as the Committee
may specify in the Agreement) from the date of such termination or until the expiration of the stated term of such Stock Option, whichever period is
shorter.

k) Incentive Stock Options. The aggregate Fair Market Value (on the date of grant of the Stock Option) with respect to which
Incentive Stock Options become exercisable for the first time by a Holder during any calendar year (under all such plans of the Company and its Parent
and Subsidiaries) shall not exceed $100,000. To the extent that any Stock Option intended to qualify as an Incentive Stock Option does not so qualify,
including by reason of the immediately preceding sentence, it shall constitute a separate Non-qualified Stock Option. The Company shall have no
liability to any Holder or any other person if a Stock Option designated as an Incentive Stock Option fails to qualify as such at any time or if a Stock
Option is determined to constitute “nonqualified deferred compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code and the terms of such Stock
Option do not satisfy the requirements of Section 409A of the Code.

) Buyout and Settlement Provisions. The Committee may at any time, in its sole discretion, offer to repurchase a Stock Option
previously granted, at a purchase price not to exceed the Repurchase Value, based upon such terms and conditions as the Committee shall establish and
communicate to the Holder at the time that such offer is made.

(m) Rights as Shareholder. A Holder shall have none of the rights of a Shareholder with respect to the shares subject to the Option
until such shares shall be transferred to the Holder upon the exercise of the Option.




Section 6. Stock Appreciation Rights.

6.1. Grant and Exercise. ~ Subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan, the Committee may grant Stock Appreciation Rights in tandem with
an Option or alone and unrelated to an Option. The Committee may grant Stock Appreciation Rights to participants who have been or are being granted Stock
Options under the Plan as a means of allowing such participants to exercise their Stock Options without the need to pay the exercise price in cash. In the case
of a Non-qualified Stock Option, a Stock Appreciation Right may be granted either at or after the time of the grant of such Non-qualified Stock Option. In the
case of an Incentive Stock Option, a Stock Appreciation Right may be granted only at the time of the grant of such Incentive Stock Option.

6.2. Terms and Conditions. Stock Appreciation Rights shall be subject to the following terms and conditions:

(a) Exercisability. Stock Appreciation Rights shall be exercisable as shall be determined by the Committee and set forth in the
Agreement, subject, for Stock Appreciation Rights granted in tandem with an Incentive Stock Option, to the limitations, if any, imposed by the Code with
respect to related Incentive Stock Options.

(b) Termination. All or a portion of a Stock Appreciation Right granted in tandem with a Stock Option shall terminate and shall no
longer be exercisable upon the termination or after the exercise of the applicable portion of the related Stock Option.

() Method of Exercise. ~Stock Appreciation Rights shall be exercisable upon such terms and conditions as shall be determined by
the Committee and set forth in the Agreement and, for Stock Appreciation Rights granted in tandem with a Stock Option, by surrendering the applicable
portion of the related Stock Option. Upon exercise of all or a portion of a Stock Appreciation Right and, if applicable, surrender of the applicable portion
of the related Stock Option, the Holder shall be entitled to receive a number of shares of Common Stock equal to the SAR Value divided by the Fair
Market Value on the date the Stock Appreciation Right is exercised or, at the Company’s election, cash for the value so calculated.

(d) Shares Available Under Plan. The granting of a Stock Appreciation Right in tandem with a Stock Option shall not affect the
number of shares of Common Stock available for awards under the Plan. The number of shares available for awards under the Plan will, however, be
reduced by the number of shares of Common Stock acquirable upon exercise of the Stock Option to which such Stock Appreciation Right relates.

Section 7. Restricted Stock; Restricted Stock Units.

7.1. Grant. Shares of Restricted Stock may be awarded either alone or in addition to other awards granted under the Plan. The Committee
shall determine the eligible persons to whom, and the time or times at which, grants of Restricted Stock will be awarded, the number of shares to be awarded,
the price (if any) to be paid by the Holder, any Restriction Period, the vesting schedule and rights to acceleration thereof, the Performance Goal(s), if any, and
level of achievement versus the Performance Goal(s) that shall determine the number of shares of Restricted Stock granted, issued and/or vested, the term of
the performance period, if any, as to which performance will be measured for determining the number of such shares of Restricted Stock and all other terms
and conditions of the awards. In addition, the Committee may award Restricted Stock Units, which may be subject to vesting and forfeiture conditions during
the applicable Restriction Period, as set forth in an Agreement.
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7.2. Restricted Stock Terms and Conditions. Each Restricted Stock award shall be subject to the following terms and conditions:

(a) Certificates. Restricted Stock, when issued, will be represented by a stock certificate or certificates registered in the name of the
Holder to whom such Restricted Stock shall have been awarded. During the Restriction Period, certificates representing the Restricted Stock and any
securities constituting Retained Distributions (as defined below) shall bear a legend to the effect that ownership of the Restricted Stock (and such
Retained Distributions) and the enjoyment of all rights appurtenant thereto are subject to the restrictions, terms and conditions provided in the Plan and
the Agreement. Such certificates shall be deposited by the Holder with the Company, together with stock powers or other instruments of assignment, each
endorsed in blank, which will permit transfer to the Company of all or any portion of the Restricted Stock and any securities constituting Retained
Distributions that shall be forfeited or that shall not become vested in accordance with the Plan and the Agreement.

(b) Rights of Holder. Restricted Stock shall constitute issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock for all corporate purposes.
The Holder will have the right to vote such Restricted Stock and to exercise all other rights, powers and privileges of a holder of Common Stock with
respect to such Restricted Stock, with the exceptions that (i) the Holder will not be entitled to delivery of the stock certificate or certificates representing
such Restricted Stock until the Restriction Period shall have expired and unless all other vesting requirements with respect thereto shall have been
fulfilled; (ii) the Company will retain custody of the stock certificate or certificates representing the Restricted Stock during the Restriction Period; (iii)
the Company will retain custody of all dividends and distributions (“Retained Distributions”) made, paid or declared with respect to the Restricted Stock
(and such Retained Distributions will be subject to the same restrictions, terms and conditions as are applicable to the Restricted Stock) until such time, if
ever, as the Restricted Stock with respect to which such Retained Distributions shall have been made, paid or declared shall have become vested and with
respect to which the Restriction Period shall have expired; and (iv) a breach by the Holder of any of the restrictions, terms or conditions contained in this
Plan or the Agreement or otherwise established by the Committee with respect to any Restricted Stock or Retained Distributions will cause a forfeiture of
such Restricted Stock and any Retained Distributions with respect thereto.

(o) Vesting; Forfeiture. Upon the expiration of the Restriction Period with respect to each award of Restricted Stock and the
satisfaction of any other applicable restrictions, terms and conditions, which may include Performance Goals, (i) all or part of such Restricted Stock shall
become vested in accordance with the terms of the Agreement, and (ii) any Retained Distributions with respect to such Restricted Stock shall become
vested to the extent that the Restricted Stock related thereto shall have become vested. Any such Restricted Stock and Retained Distributions that do not
vest shall be forfeited to the Company and the Holder shall not thereafter have any rights with respect to such Restricted Stock and Retained Distributions
that shall have been so forfeited.

(d) Discretionary Adjustments and Limits. Notwithstanding the satisfaction of any Performance Goals, the number of shares of
Restricted Stock granted, issued and/or vested under an award of Restricted Stock on account of either financial performance or personal performance
evaluations may, to the extent specified in the Agreement, be reduced, but not increased, by the Committee on the basis of such further considerations as
the Committee shall determine.
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7.3. Restricted Stock Units Terms and Conditions. Each Restricted Stock Units award shall be subject to the following terms and conditions:

(a) Settlement. The Committee may provide that settlement of Restricted Stock Units will occur upon or as soon as reasonably
practicable after the Restricted Stock Units vest or will instead be deferred, on a mandatory basis or at the Holder’s election, in a manner intended to
comply with Section 409A.

(b) Shareholder Rights. A Holder will have no rights of a holder of Common Stock with respect to shares subject to any Restricted
Stock Unit unless and until the shares are delivered in settlement of the Restricted Stock Unit.

() Dividend Equivalents. If the Committee provides, a grant of Restricted Stock Units may provide a Holder with the right to receive
dividend equivalents. Dividend equivalents may be paid currently or credited to an account for the Holder, settled in cash or shares and subject to the
same restrictions on transferability and forfeitability as the Restricted Stock Units with respect to which the dividend equivalents are granted and subject
to other terms and conditions as set forth in the Agreement.

Section 8. Other Stock-Based Awards.

Other Stock-Based Awards may be awarded, subject to limitations under applicable law, that are denominated or payable in, valued in whole or in
part by reference to, or otherwise based on or related to, shares of Common Stock, as deemed by the Committee to be consistent with the purposes of the
Plan, including, without limitation, purchase rights, shares of Common Stock awarded which are not subject to any restrictions or conditions, convertible or
exchangeable debentures, or other rights convertible into shares of Common Stock and awards valued by reference to the value of securities of or the
performance of specified Subsidiaries. These other stock-based awards may include performance shares or options, whose award is tied to specific
Performance Goals. Other Stock-Based Awards may be awarded either alone or in addition to or in tandem with any other awards under this Plan or any other
plan of the Company. Each other Stock-Based Award shall be subject to such terms and conditions as may be determined by the Committee.

Section 9. Incentive Bonuses.

9.1. General. Each Incentive Bonus award will confer upon the Holder the opportunity to earn a future payment tied to the level of achievement
with respect to one or more Performance Goal(s) established for a performance period established by the Committee.

9.2. Incentive Bonus Document. The terms of any Incentive Bonus will be set forth in an Agreement. Each Agreement evidencing an Incentive
Bonus shall contain provisions regarding (i) the target and maximum amount payable to the Holder as an Incentive Bonus, (ii) the Performance Goal(s) and
level of achievement versus the Performance Goal(s) that shall determine the amount of such payment, (iii) the term of the performance period as to which
performance shall be measured for determining the amount of any payment, (iv) the timing of any payment earned by virtue of performance, (v) restrictions
on the alienation or transfer of the Incentive Bonus prior to actual payment, (vi) forfeiture provisions and (vii) such further terms and conditions, in each case
not inconsistent with this Plan as may be determined from time to time by the Committee.
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9.3. Performance Goals. The Committee shall establish the Performance Goal(s) and level of achievement versus the Performance Goal(s) that
shall determine the target and maximum amount payable under an Incentive Bonus.

9.4. Timing and Form of Payment. The Committee shall determine the timing of payment of any Incentive Bonus. Payment of the amount due
under an Incentive Bonus shall be made in cash. The Committee may provide for or, subject to such terms and conditions as the Committee may specify, may
permit a Holder to elect for, the payment of any Incentive Bonus to be deferred to a specified date or event.

9.5. Discretionary Adjustments. Notwithstanding satisfaction of any Performance Goals, the amount paid under an Incentive Bonus on account
of either financial performance or personal performance evaluations may, to the extent specified in the Agreement, be reduced, but not increased, by the
Committee on the basis of such further considerations as the Committee shall determine.

9.6. Termination. If a Holder’s employment by, or association with, the Company or any Subsidiary, Parent or Affiliate terminates for any
reason (including by reason of death or Disability), the Holder shall receive payment in respect of any Incentive Bonuses only to the extent specified by the
Committee, unless otherwise expressly provided in the Agreement or another contract, including an employment agreement. Payments in respect of any such
Incentive Bonuses shall be made at the time specified by the Committee and set forth in the Agreement.

Section 10. Accelerated Vesting and Exercisability.

10.1. Non-Approved Transactions. If there is a Change of Control, and the Board does not authorize or otherwise approve such transaction,
then the vesting periods of any and all Stock Options and other awards granted and outstanding under the Plan shall be accelerated and all such Stock Options
and awards will immediately and entirely vest, and the respective holders thereof will have the immediate right to purchase and/or receive any and all
Common Stock subject to such Stock Options and awards on the terms set forth in this Plan and the respective Agreements respecting such Stock Options and
awards, and all Performance Goals will be deemed achieved at 100% of target levels and all other terms and conditions will be deemed met. An increase in
the percentage of stock owned by any one person, or persons acting as a group, as a result of a transaction in which the Company acquires its stock in
exchange for property is not treated as an acquisition of stock for purposes of this Section 10.1.
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10.2.  Approved Transactions. The Committee may, in the event of an acquisition by any one person, or more than one person acting as a
group, together with acquisitions during the 12-month period ending on the date of the most recent acquisition by such person or persons, of assets from the
Company that have a total gross fair market value equal to or more than 50% of the total gross fair market value of all of the assets of the Company
immediately before such acquisition or acquisitions, or there is a Change of Control that has been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors,

(i) accelerate the vesting of any and all Stock Options and other awards granted and outstanding under the Plan; (ii) require a Holder of any Stock Option,
Stock Appreciation Right, Restricted Stock award or Other Stock-Based Award granted under this Plan to relinquish such award to the Company upon the
tender by the Company to Holder of cash, stock or other property, or any combination thereof, in an amount equal to the Repurchase Value of such award;
provided, however, that the obligation to tender the Repurchase Value to such Holders may be subject to any terms and conditions to which the tender of
consideration to the Company’s shareholders in connection with the acquisition is subject, including any terms and conditions of the acquisition providing for
an adjustment to or escrow of such consideration; and provided, further, that in the case of any Stock Option or Stock Appreciation Right with an exercise
price that equals or exceeds the price paid for a share of Common Stock in connection with the acquisition, the Committee may cancel the Stock Option or
Stock Appreciation Right without the payment of consideration therefor; and/or (iii) terminate all incomplete performance periods in respect of awards in
effect on the date the acquisition occurs, determine the extent to which Performance Goals have been met based upon such information then available as it
deems relevant and cause to be paid to the Holder all or the applicable portion of the award based upon the Committee's determination of the degree of
attainment of Performance Goals, or on such other basis determined by the Committee. For this purpose, gross fair market value means the value of the assets
of the Company, or the value of the assets being disposed of, determined without regard to any liabilities associated with such assets.

10.3.  Code Section 409A. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Plan or any award granted hereunder to the contrary, no acceleration shall
occur with respect to any award to the extent such acceleration would cause the Plan or an award granted hereunder to fail to comply with Code Section
409A.

Section 11. Amendment and Termination.

The Board may at any time, and from time to time, amend alter, suspend or discontinue any of the provisions of the Plan or any Agreement, but no
amendment, alteration, suspension or discontinuance shall be made that would impair the rights of a Holder under any Agreement theretofore entered into
hereunder, without the Holder’s consent, except as set forth in this Plan or the Agreement. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, no amendment to
the provisions of the Plan shall be effective unless approved by the shareholders of the Company to the extent shareholder approval is necessary to satisfy any
provision of the Code or other applicable law or the listing requirements of any national securities exchange on which the Company’s securities are listed.

Section 12. Term of Plan.

12.1. Effective Date. The Effective Date of the Plan shall be January 1, 2017, subject to the approval of the Plan by the Company’s
shareholders within one year after the Effective Date. Only Stock Options may be granted under the Plan prior to such approval of the Plan by the Company’s
shareholders; provided, however, that if the Plan is not approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the Common Stock within one year
from the Effective Date, then (i) no Incentive Stock Options may be granted hereunder and (ii) all Incentive Stock Options previously granted hereunder shall
be automatically converted into Non-qualified Stock Options.

12.2. Termination Date. Unless terminated by the Board, this Plan shall continue to remain effective until such time as no further awards may

be granted and all awards granted under the Plan are no longer outstanding. Notwithstanding the foregoing, grants of Incentive Stock Options may be made
only during the ten-year period beginning on the Effective Date.
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Section 13. General Provisions.

13.1. Written Agreements. Each award granted under the Plan shall be confirmed by, and shall be subject to the terms of, the Agreement
executed by the Company and the Holder, or such other document as may be determined by the Committee. The Committee may terminate any award made
under the Plan if the Agreement relating thereto is not executed and returned to the Company within 10 days after the Agreement has been delivered to the
Holder for his or her execution.

13.2. Performance Awards. The Committee, in its sole discretion, may determine at the time an award is granted or at any time thereafter
whether such award is intended to qualify as “performance based compensation” within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code. For the avoidance of
doubt, nothing herein shall require the Committee to structure any awards in a manner intended to constitute performance based compensation and the
Committee shall be free, in its sole discretion, to grant awards that are not intended to be performance based compensation. Notwithstanding any other
provision of the Plan and except as otherwise determined by the Committee, any award which is granted under the Plan and is intended to qualify as
performance based compensation” shall be subject to any additional limitations set forth in Section 162(m) of the Code or any regulations or rulings issued
thereunder that are requirements for qualification as performance based compensation, and the Plan and the applicable Agreement shall be deemed amended
to the extent necessary to conform to such requirements. In addition, Restricted Stock awards, Other Stock-Based Awards and Incentive Bonus awards that
are intended to qualify as performance based compensation under Section 162(m) of the Code shall be subject to the following provisions, which shall control
over any conflicting provision in the Plan or any Agreement:

(a) To the extent necessary to comply with the requirements of Section 162(m)(4)(C) of the Code, no later than 90 days following the
commencement of any performance period or any designated fiscal period or period of service (or such earlier time as may be required under Section
162(m) of the Code), the Committee shall, in writing, (a) designate the recipient to receive such award, (b) select the performance criteria applicable to
the performance period, (c) establish the Performance Goals, and amounts of such awards, as applicable, which may be earned for such performance
period based on the performance criteria, and (d) specify the relationship between performance criteria and the Performance Goals and the amounts of
such awards, as applicable, to be earned by each covered employee for such performance period.

(b) Following the completion of each performance period, the Committee shall certify in writing whether and the extent to which the
applicable Performance Goals have been achieved for such performance period. In determining the amount earned under such awards, the Committee
shall have the right to reduce or eliminate (but not to increase) the amount payable at a given level of performance to take into account additional factors
that the Committee may deem relevant, including the assessment of individual or corporate performance for the performance period.

(o) No adjustment or action described in Section 3.2 or in any other provision of the Plan shall be authorized to the extent that such

adjustment or action would cause such award to fail to so qualify as performance based compensation, unless the Committee determines that the award
should not so qualify.
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13.3. Unfunded Status of Plan. The Plan is intended to constitute an “unfunded” plan for incentive and deferred compensation. With respect to
any payments not yet made to a Holder by the Company, nothing contained herein shall give any such Holder any rights that are greater than those of a
general creditor of the Company.

13.4.  Employees.

(a) Engaging in Competition With the Company;_Solicitation of Customers and Employees; Disclosure of Confidential Information.

If a Holder’s employment with the Company, Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate is terminated for any reason whatsoever, and Holder (i) within three months
after the date thereof, accepts employment with any competitor of, or otherwise engages in competition with, the Company, Parent, Subsidiary or
Affiliate, (ii) within two years after the date thereof, solicits any customers or employees of the Company, Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate to do business
with or render services to the Holder or any business with which the Holder becomes affiliated or to which the Holder renders services or (iii) at any time
uses or discloses to anyone outside the Company any confidential information or material of the Company, Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate in violation of
the Company’s policies or any agreement between the Holder and the Company, Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate, the Committee, in its sole discretion, may
require such Holder to return (through the payment of cash, return and transfer to the Company of shares of Common Stock or by other methods
determined by the Committee) to the Company the economic value of any award that was realized or obtained by such Holder at any time during the
period beginning on the date that is six months prior to the date such Holder’s employment with the Company is terminated; provided, however, that if
the Holder is a resident of the State of California, such right must be exercised by the Company for cash within six months after the date of termination of
the Holder’s service to the Company or within six months after exercise of the applicable Stock Option, whichever is later. In such event, Holder agrees
to (1) remit to the Company, in cash, an amount equal to the difference between the Fair Market Value of the shares subject to the award on the date of
termination (or the sales price of such shares if the shares were sold during such six month period) and the price the Holder paid the Company for such
shares, or (2) in the case of SARs, shall, at the Company’s election, return the full amount paid to the Holder in connection therewith.

(b) Termination for Cause. If a Holder’s employment with the Company, Parent, subsidiary or Affiliate is terminated for cause, the
Committee may, in its sole discretion, require such Holder to return to the Company the economic value of any award that was realized or obtained by
such Holder at any time during the period beginning on that date that is six months prior to the date such Holder’s employment with the Company is
terminated. In such event, Holder agrees to (1) remit to the Company, in cash, an amount equal to the difference between the Fair Market Value of the
shares on the date of termination (or the sales price of such Shares if the shares were sold during such six month period) and the price the Holder paid the
Company for such shares, (2) with the consent of the Company, which may be withheld for any reason or no reason, shares of Common Stock having
Fair Market Value surrendered to the Company equal to the Fair Market Value on the date they were acquired upon exercise of the Option or (3) in the
case of SARs, shall return the full amount paid to the Holder in connection therewith.

(o) No Right of Employment. Nothing contained in the Plan or in any award hereunder shall be deemed to confer upon any Holder
who is an employee of the Company, Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate any right to continued employment with the Company, Parent, Subsidiary or
Affiliate, nor shall it interfere in any way with the right of the Company, Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate to terminate the employment of any Holder who
is an employee at any time.
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13.5. No Fractional Shares. No fractional shares of Common Stock shall be issued or delivered pursuant to the Plan. The Committee shall

determine whether cash, additional awards or other securities or property shall be issued or paid in lieu of fractional shares of Common Stock or whether any
fractional shares should be rounded, forfeited or otherwise eliminated.

13.6. Provisions for Foreign Participants. The Committee may modify awards granted to Holders who are foreign nationals or employed outside

the United States or establish subplans or procedures under the Plan to address differences in laws, rules, regulations or customs of such foreign jurisdictions
with respect to tax, securities, currency, employee benefit or other matters.

13.7. Limitations on Liability.

(©) Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Plan, no individual acting as a director, officer, other employee or agent of the
Company or any Subsidiary, Parent or Affiliate will be liable to any Holder, former Holder, spouse, beneficiary, or any other person for any claim, loss,
liability, or expense incurred in connection with the Plan or any award, and such individual will not be personally liable with respect to the Plan because
of any contract or other instrument executed in his or her capacity as member of the Committee, director, officer, other employee or agent of the
Company or any Subsidiary, Parent or Affiliate. The Company will indemnify and hold harmless each director, officer, other employee and agent of the
Company or any Subsidiary, Parent or Affiliate that has been or will be granted or delegated any duty or power relating to the Plan’s administration or
interpretation, against any cost or expense (including attorneys’ fees) or liability (including any sum paid in settlement of a claim with the Committee’s
approval) arising from any act or omission concerning this Plan unless arising from such person’s own fraud or bad faith.

(b) Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary shall be liable to a Holder or any other person as to: (i) the non-issuance or sale of shares
as to which the Company has been unable to obtain from any regulatory body having jurisdiction the authority deemed by the Company’s counsel to be
necessary to the lawful issuance and sale of any shares hereunder; and (ii) any tax consequence expected, but not realized, by any Holder or other person
due to the receipt, exercise or settlement of any Award granted hereunder.

13.8. Lock-Up Period. The Company may, at the request of any underwriter representative, placement agent or otherwise, in connection with the

registered offering of any Company securities under the Securities Act or pursuant to an exemption therefrom, prohibit Holders from, directly or indirectly,
selling or otherwise transferring any shares or other Company securities acquired under this Plan during a period of up to one hundred eighty days following
either the effective date of a Company registration statement filed under the Securities Act, in the case of a registered offering, or the closing date of the sale
of the Company securities, in the case of an offering exempt from registration, or for such longer period as determined by the underwriter, representative or
placement agent.
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13.9. Data Privacy. As a condition for receiving any award, each Holder explicitly and unambiguously consents to the collection, use and
transfer, in electronic or other form, of personal data as described in this paragraph by and among the Company and its Parent, Subsidiaries and Affiliates
exclusively for implementing, administering and managing the Holder’s participation in the Plan. The Company and its Parent, Subsidiaries and Affiliates
may hold certain personal information about a Holder, including the Holder’s name, address and telephone number; birthdate; social security, insurance
number or other identification number; salary; nationality; job title(s); any shares held in the Company or its Parent, Subsidiaries and Affiliates; and award
details, to implement, manage and administer the Plan and awards (the “Data”). The Company and its Parent, Subsidiaries and Affiliates may transfer the
Data amongst themselves as necessary to implement, administer and manage a Holder’s participation in the Plan, and the Company and its Subsidiaries and
Affiliates may transfer the Data to third parties assisting the Company with Plan implementation, administration and management. These recipients may be
located in the Holder’s country, or elsewhere, and the Holder’s country may have different data privacy laws and protections than the recipients’ country. By
accepting an award, each Holder authorizes such recipients to receive, possess, use, retain and transfer the Data, in electronic or other form, to implement,
administer and manage the Holder’s participation in the Plan, including any required Data transfer to a broker or other third party with whom the Company or
the Holder may elect to deposit any shares. The Data related to a Holder will be held only as long as necessary to implement, administer, and manage the
Holder’s participation in the Plan. A Holder may, at any time, view the Data that the Company holds regarding such Holder, request additional information
about the storage and processing of the Data regarding such Holder, recommend any necessary corrections to the Data regarding the Holder or refuse or
withdraw the consents in this Section 13.9 in writing, without cost, by contacting the local human resources representative. The Company may cancel
Holder’s ability to participate in the Plan and, in the Committee’s discretion, the Holder may forfeit any outstanding awards if the Holder refuses or
withdraws the consents in this Section 13.9. For more information on the consequences of refusing or withdrawing consent, Holders may contact their local
human resources representative.

13.10.  Successor. The obligations of the Company under the Plan shall be binding upon any successor corporation or organization resulting from
the merger, consolidation or other reorganization of the Company, or upon any successor corporation or organization succeeding to all or substantially all of
the assets and business of the Company and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

Stock Option or other award under the Plan to represent to and agree with the Company in writing that the Holder is acquiring the shares for investment
without a view to distribution thereof. Each person acquiring shares of Common Stock pursuant to a Stock Option or other award under the Plan shall be
required to abide by all policies of the Company in effect at the time of such acquisition and thereafter with respect to the ownership and trading of the
Company’s securities.

13.11.  Investment Representations; Company Policy. The Committee may require each person acquiring shares of Common Stock pursuant to a

13.12.  Additional Incentive Arrangements. Nothing contained in the Plan shall prevent the Board from adopting such other or additional
incentive arrangements as it may deem desirable, including, but not limited to, the granting of Stock Options and the awarding of Common Stock and cash
otherwise than under the Plan; and such arrangements may be either generally applicable or applicable only in specific cases.
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13.13.  Withholding Taxes. Not later than the date as of which an amount must first be included in the gross income of the Holder for Federal
income tax purposes with respect to any Stock Option or other award under the Plan, the Holder shall pay to the Company, or make arrangements satisfactory
to the Committee regarding the payment of, any Federal, state and local taxes of any kind required by law to be withheld or paid with respect to such amount.
If permitted by the Committee, tax withholding or payment obligations may be settled with Common Stock, including Common Stock that is part of the
award that gives rise to the withholding requirement. The obligations of the Company under the Plan shall be conditioned upon such payment or
arrangements and the Company or the Holder’s employer (if not the Company) shall, to the extent permitted by law, have the right to deduct any such taxes
from any payment of any kind otherwise due to the Holder from the Company or any Subsidiary.

13.14.  Clawback. Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Plan, any award which is subject to recovery under any law, government regulation
or listing requirement of any national securities exchange on which the Company’s securities are listed, will be subject to such deductions and clawback as
may be required to be made pursuant to such law, government regulation or listing requirement (or any policy adopted by the Company pursuant to any such
law, government regulation or listing requirement).

13.15.  Governing Law. The Plan and all awards made and actions taken thereunder shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
law of the State of Delaware (without regard to choice of law provisions).

13.16.  Other Benefit Plans. Any award granted under the Plan shall not be deemed compensation for purposes of computing benefits under any
retirement plan of the Company or any Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate and shall not affect any benefits under any other benefit plan now or subsequently in
effect under which the availability or amount of benefits is related to the level of compensation (unless required by specific reference in any such other plan to
awards under this Plan).

13.17. Non-Transferability. Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Plan or the Agreement, no right or benefit under the Plan may be
alienated, sold, assigned, hypothecated, pledged, exchanged, transferred, encumbranced or charged, and any attempt to alienate, sell, assign, hypothecate,
pledge, exchange, transfer, encumber or charge the same shall be void.

13.18.  Applicable Laws. The obligations of the Company with respect to all Stock Options and other awards under the Plan shall be subject to
(i) all applicable laws, rules and regulations and such approvals by any governmental agencies as may be required, including, without limitation, the
Securities Act, and (ii) the rules and regulations of any securities exchange on which the Common Stock may be listed. Notwithstanding anything herein to
the contrary, the Plan and all awards will be administered only in conformance with such applicable laws. To the extent such applicable laws permit, the Plan
and all Agreements will be deemed amended as necessary to conform to such applicable laws.

13.19.  Conflicts. If any of the terms or provisions of the Plan or an Agreement conflict with the requirements of Section 422 of the Code, then
such terms or provisions shall be deemed inoperative to the extent they so conflict with such requirements. Additionally, if this Plan or any Agreement does
not contain any provision required to be included herein under Section 422 of the Code, such provision shall be deemed to be incorporated herein and therein
with the same force and effect as if such provision had been set out at length herein and therein. If any of the terms or provisions of any Agreement conflict
with any terms or provisions of the Plan, then such Agreement shall be deemed entered into outside of this Plan. Additionally, if any Agreement does not
contain any provision required to be included therein under the Plan, such provision shall be deemed to be incorporated therein with the same force and effect
as if such provision had been set out at length therein.
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13.20.  Compliance with Section 409A of the Code. The Company intends that any awards be structured in compliance with, or to satisfy an
exemption from, Section 409A of the Code, such that there are no adverse tax consequences, interest, or penalties pursuant to Section 409A of the Code as a
result of the awards. Notwithstanding the Company’s intention, in the event any award is subject to Section 409A of the Code, the Committee may, in its sole
discretion and without a participant’s prior consent, amend this Plan and/or outstanding Agreements, adopt policies and procedures, or take any other actions
(including amendments, policies, procedures and actions with retroactive effect) as are necessary or appropriate to (i) exempt this Plan and/or any award from
the application of Section 409A of the Code, (ii) preserve the intended tax treatment of any such award, or (iii) comply with the requirements of Section 409A
of the Code, including without limitation any such regulations guidance, compliance programs and other interpretive authority that may be issued after the
date of grant of an award. This Plan shall be interpreted at all times in such a manner that the terms and provisions of the Plan and the awards are exempt
from or comply with Section 409A of the Code.

13.21.  Sub-Plans. The Committee may from time to time establish sub-plans under the Plan for purposes of satisfying blue sky, securities, tax or
other laws of various jurisdictions in which the Company intends to grant Awards. Any sub-plans shall contain such limitations and other terms and
conditions as the Committee determines are necessary or desirable. All sub-plans shall be deemed a part of the Plan, but each sub-plan shall apply only to the
participants in the jurisdiction for which the sub-plan was designed.

13.22.  Non-Registered Stock. The shares of Common Stock to be distributed under this Plan have not been, as of the Effective Date, registered
under the Securities Act or any applicable state or foreign securities laws and the Company has no obligation to any Holder to register the Common Stock or
to assist the Holder in obtaining an exemption from the various registration requirements, or to list the Common Stock on a national securities exchange or
any other trading or quotation system.

13.23.  Non-Uniform Treatment. The Committee's determinations under the Plan need not be uniform and may be made by it selectively among

persons who are eligible to receive, or actually receive, Awards. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Committee shall be entitled to make
non-uniform and selective determinations, amendments and adjustments, and to enter into non-uniform and selective Award Agreements.
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Exhibit 6.7
ESCROW AGREEMENT

AGREEMENT made this __ day of , 2017, by and among Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc. (the "Issuer"), the
representative of the Joint Bookrunning Managers (“Joint Bookrunning Manager”) whose name and address appears on the Information Sheet (as defined

herein) attached to this Agreement, and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, 17 Battery Place, gth Floor, New York, New York 10004 (the “Escrow
Agent”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Issuer has filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission") an offeirng statement (the "Offering
Statement") covering a proposed public offering of its securities as described on the Information Sheet;

WHEREAS, the Joint Bookrunning Managers propose to offer the Securities, as agents for the Issuer and Selling Stockholders named in the
Offering Statement, for sale to the public on a "best efforts, any or all" basis with respect to the Maximum Securities Amount and Maximum Dollar Amount
and at the price per share all as set forth, on the Information Sheet;

WHEREAS the Issuer and the Joint Bookrunning Managers propose to establish an escrow account (the "Escrow Account"), to which subscription
monies which are received by the Escrow Agent from the Joint Bookrunning Managers and other selling agents and dealers (collectively, the “Selling
Agents”) in connection with such public offering are to be credited, and the Escrow Agent is willing to establish the Escrow Account and the terms are
subject to the conditions hereinafter set forth; and

WHEREAS, the Escrow Agent has an agreement with JP Morgan Chase to establish a special bank account (the "Bank Account") into which the
subscription monies, which are received by the Escrow Agent from the Selling Agents and credited to the Escrow Account, are to be deposited;

NOW, THEREFORE in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

1. Information Sheet. Each capitalized term not otherwise defined in this Agreement shall have the meaning set forth for such term on the
information sheet which is attached to this Agreement and is incorporated by reference herein and made a pact hereof (the "Information Sheet").

2. Establishment of the Bank Account.

2.1 The Escrow Agent shall establish a non-interest bank account at the branch of JP Morgan Chase selected by the Escrow Agent,
and bearing the designation set forth on the Information Sheet (heretofore defined as the "Bank Account"). The purpose of the Bank Account is for (a) the
deposit of all subscription monies (checks, or wire transfers) which are received by the Selling Agents from prospective purchasers of the Securities and are
delivered by the Selling Agents to the Escrow Agent, (b) the holding of amounts of subscription monies which are collected through the banking system, and
(c) the disbursement of collected funds, all as described herein.

2.2 On or before the date of the initial deposit in the Bank Account pursuant to this Agreement, the Joint Bookrunning Manager shall
notify the Escrow Agent in writing of the Qualification Date of the Offering Statement (the "Qualification Date"), and the Escrow Agent shall not be required
to accept any amounts for credit to the Escrow Account or for deposit in the Bank Account prior to its receipt of such notification.




2.3 The Offering Period, which shall be deemed to commence on the Qualification Date, shall consist of the number of calendar days
or business days set forth on the Information Sheet, including the extension described therein; provided, however that if such extension is initiated, the
Escrow Agent shall be provided with written notice of such extension no later than one (1) business day after the date on which such extension is initiated.
The last day of the Offering Period, as may be extended, is referred to herein as the "Termination Date”. After the Termination Date, the Selling Agents shall
not deposit, and the Escrow Agent shall not accept, any additional amounts representing payments by prospective purchasers.

3. Deposits to the Bank Account.

3.1 The Selling Agents shall promptly deliver to the Escrow Agent all monies which they receive from prospective purchasers of the
Securities, which monies shall be in the form of checks or wire transfers. Upon the Escrow Agent’s receipt of such monies, they shall be credited to the
Escrow Account. All checks delivered to the Escrow Agent shall be made payable to “CST&T CSS ENTERTAINMENT Escrow Account.” Any check
payable other than to the Escrow Agent as required hereby shall be returned to the prospective purchaser, or if the Escrow Agent has insufficient information
to do so, then to the applicable Selling Agent (together with any Subscription Information, as defined below or other documents delivered therewith) by noon
of the next business day following receipt of such check by the Escrow Agent, and such check shall be deemed not to have been delivered to the Escrow
Agent pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

3.2 Promptly after receiving subscription monies as described in Section 3.1, the Escrow Agent shall deposit the same into the Bank
Account. Amounts of monies so deposited are hereinafter referred to as “Escrow Amounts.” The Escrow Agent shall cause the Bank to process all Escrow
Amounts for collection through the banking system. Simultaneously with each deposit to the Escrow Account, the applicable Selling Agent (or the Issuer, if
such deposit is made by the Issuer) shall inform the Escrow Agent in writing of the name, address, and the tax identification number of the purchaser, the
amount of Securities subscribed for by such purchase, and the aggregate dollar amount of such subscription (collectively, the “Subscription Information™).

3.3 The Escrow Agent shall not be required to accept in the Escrow Account any amounts representing payments by prospective
purchasers, whether by check or wire, except during the Escrow Agent's regular business hours. The Selling Agents shall maintain the name, address, tax
identification number and the number of shares and other know your customer compliance.

3.4 Only those Escrow Amounts, which have been deposited in the Bank Account and which have cleared the banking system and
have been collected by the Escrow Agent, are herein referred to as the "Fund".

3.5 Pursuant to Rule 15¢2-4, until the Fund is disbursed in accordance with Article 4 hereof, the Issuer will not have any access to the
proceeds held in the Fund. Only upon instructions from both the Issuer and the Joint Bookrunning Manager that a closing of the proposed offering will take
place in accordance with Article 4 hereof will the Escrow Agent disburse any portion of the Fund to the Issuer for its use.




3.6 If the proposed offering is terminated before the Termination Date, the Escrow Agent shall, upon instructions in writing signed by
both the Issuer and the Joint Bookrunning Manager, refund to the applicable investors (or the corresponding Selling Agent) any portion of the Fund prior to
disbursement of the Fund to the Issuer in accordance with Article 4 hereof.

4. Disbursement from the Bank Account.

4.1 If at any time up to the close of regular banking hours on the Termination Date, the Escrow Agent receives subscription monies,
the Escrow Agent shall promptly notify the Issuer and the Joint Bookrunning Manager of such fact in writing. The Escrow Agent shall promptly disburse the
Fund, by drawing checks on the Bank Account in accordance with instructions in writing signed by both the Issuer and the Joint Bookrunning Manager as to
the disbursement of the Fund, promptly after it receives such instructions and funds have cleared.

4.2 Upon disbursement of the Fund pursuant to the terms of this Article 4, the Escrow Agent shall be relieved of all further
obligations and released from all liability under this Agreement. It is expressly agreed and understood that in no event shall the aggregate amount of payments
made by the Escrow Agent exceed the amount of the Fund.

5. Rights, Duties and Responsibilities of Escrow Agent. It is understood and agreed that the duties of the Escrow Agent are purely ministerial
in nature, and that:

5.1 The Escrow Agent shall notify the Joint Bookrunning Manager, on a daily basis, of the Escrow Amounts which have been
deposited in the Bank Account and of the amounts, constituting the Fund, which have cleared the banking system and have been collected by the Escrow
Agent.

5.2 The Escrow Agent shall not be responsible for or be required to enforce any of the terms or conditions of the agency agremeent
between the Issuer and the Joint Bookrunning Manager or any other agreement between the Issuer and the Joint Bookrunning Manager nor shall the Escrow
Agent be responsible for the performance by the Issuer or the Joint Bookrunning Manager of their respective obligations under this Agreement.

5.3 The Escrow Agent shall not be required to accept from any Selling Agent (or the Issuer) any Subscription Information pertaining
to prospective purchasers unless such Subscription Information is accompanied by checks, or wire transfers meeting the requirements of Section 3.1, nor shall
the Escrow Agent be required to keep records of any information with respect to payments deposited by any Selling Agent (or the Issuer) except as to the
amount of such payments; however, the Escrow Agent shall notify the Joint Bookrunning Manager within a reasonable time of any discrepancy between the
amount set forth in any Subscription Information and the amount delivered to the Escrow Agent therewith. Such amount need not be accepted for deposit in
the Escrow Account until such discrepancy has been resolved.

5.4 The Escrow Agent shall be under no duty or responsibility to enforce collection of any check delivered to it hereunder. The
Escrow Agent, within a reasonable time, shall return to the applicable Selling Agent any check received which is dishonored, together with the Subscription
Information, if any, which accompanied such check.

5.5 The Escrow Agent shall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy, act in reliance upon the contents, and assume the genuineness of
any notice, instruction, certificate, signature, instrument or other document which is given to the Escrow Agent pursuant to this Agreement without the
necessity of the Escrow Agent verifying the truth or accuracy thereof. The Escrow Agent shall not be obligated to make any inquiry as to the authority,
capacity, existence or identity or any person purporting to give any such notice or instructions or to execute any such certificate, instrument or other
document.




5.6 If the Escrow Agent is uncertain as to its duties or rights hereunder or shall receive instructions with respect to the Bank Account,
the Escrow Amounts or the Fund which, in its sole determination, are in conflict either with other, instructions received by it or with any provision of this
Agreement, it shall be entitled to hold the Escrow Amounts, the Fund, or a portion thereof, in the Bank Account pending the resolution of such uncertainty to
the Escrow Agent's sole satisfaction, by final judgment of a court or courts of competent jurisdiction or otherwise; or the Escrow Agent, at its sole option,
may deposit the Fund (and any other Escrow Amounts that thereafter become part of the Fund) with the Clerk of a court of competent jurisdiction in a
proceeding to which all parties in interest are joined. Upon the deposit by the Escrow Agent of the Fund with the Clerk of any court, the Escrow Agent shall
be relieved of all further obligations and released from all liability hereunder.

5.7 The Escrow Agent shall not be liable for any action taken or omitted hereunder, or for the misconduct of any employee, agent or
attorney appointed by it, except in the case of willful misconduct or gross negligence. The Escrow Agent shall be entitled to consult with counsel of its own
choosing and shall not be liable for any action taken, suffered or omitted by it in accordance with the advice of such counsel.

5.8 The Escrow Agent shall have no responsibility at any time to ascertain whether or not any security interest exists in the Escrow
Amounts, the Fund or any part thereof or to file any statement under the Uniform Commercial Code with respect to the Fund or any part thereof.

6. Amendment; Resignation. This Agreement may be altered or amended only with the written consent of the Issuer, the Joint Bookrunning
Manager and the Escrow Agent. The Escrow Agent may resign for any reason upon three (3) business days' written notice to the Issuer and the Joint
Bookrunning Manager. Should the Escrow Agent resign as herein provided, it shall not be required to accept any deposit, make any disbursement or
otherwise dispose of the Escrow Amounts or the Fund, but its only duty shall be to hold the Escrow Amounts until they clear the banking system and the
Fund for a period of not more than five (5) business days following the effective date of such resignation, at which time (a) if a successor escrow agent shall
have been appointed and written notice thereof (including the name and address of such successor escrow agent) shall have been given to the resigning
Escrow Agent by the Issuer, the Joint Bookrunning Manager and such successor escrow agent, then the resigning Escrow Agent shall pay over to the
successor escrow agent the Fund, less any portion thereof previously paid out in accordance with this Agreement; or (b) if the resigning Escrow Agent shall
not have received written notice signed by the Issuer, the Joint Bookrunning Manager and a successor escrow agent, then the resigning Escrow Agent shall
promptly refund the amount in the Fund to each prospective purchaser without interest thereon or deduction therefrom, and the resigning Escrow Agent shall
promptly notify the Issuer and the Joint Bookrunning Manager in writing of its liquidation and distribution of the Fund; whereupon, in either case, the Escrow
Agent shall be relieved of all further obligations and released from all liability under this Agreement. Without limiting the provisions of Section 8 hereof, the
resigning Escrow Agent shall be entitled to be reimbursed by the Issuer and the Joint Bookrunning Manager for any expenses incurred in connection with its
resignation, transfer of the Fund to a successor escrow agent or distribution of the Fund pursuant to this Section 6.

7. Representations and Warranties. The Issuer and the Joint Bookrunning Manager hereby jointly and severally represent and warrant to the
Escrow Agent that:




7.1 No party other than the parties hereto and the prospective purchasers (and the applicable Selling Agents) have, or shall have, any
lien, claim or security interest in the Escrow Amounts or the Fund or any part thereof.

7.2 No financing statement under the Uniform Commercial Code is on file in any jurisdiction claiming a security interest in or
describing (whether specifically or Generally) the Escrow Amounts or the Fund or any part thereof.

7.3 The Subscription information submitted with each deposit shall, at the time of submission and at the time of disbursement of the
Fund, be deemed a representation and warranty that such deposit represents a bona fide payment by the purchaser described therein for the amount of
securities in such described as Subscription Information.

7.4 All of the information contained in the Information Sheet is, as of the date hereof, and will be, at the time of any disbursement of
the Fund, true and correct.

7.5 Reasonable controls have been established and required due diligence performed to comply with “Know Your Customer”
regulations, USA Patriot Act, Office of the Foreign Asset Control (OFAC) regulations and the Bank Secrecy Act.

8. Fees and Expenses. The Escrow Agent shall be entitled to the Escrow Agent Fees set forth on the Information Sheet, payable as and when
stated therein. In addition, the Issuer and the Joint Bookrunning Manager jointly and severally agree to reimburse the Escrow Agent for any reasonable
expenses incurred in connection with this Agreement, including, but not limited to, reasonable counsel fees. Upon receipt of any subscription monies, the
Escrow Agent shall have a lien upon the Fund to the extent of its fees for services as Escrow Agent.

9. Indemnification and Contribution.

9.1 The Issuer and the Joint Bookrunning Manager (collectively referred to as the "Indemnitors") jointly and severally agree to
indemnify the Escrow Agent and its officers, directors, employees, agents and shareholders (collectively referred to as the " Indemnitees") against, and hold
them harmless of and from, any and all loss, liability, cost, damage and expense, including without limitation, reasonable counsel fees, which the Indemnitees
may suffer or incur by reason of any action, claim or proceeding brought against the Indemnitees arising out of or relating in any way to this Agreement or
any transaction to which this Agreement relates, unless such action, claim or proceeding is the result of the willful misconduct or gross negligence of the
Indemnitees.

9.2 If the indemnification provided for in Section 9.1 is applicable, but for any reason is held to be unavailable, the Indemnitors shall
contribute such amounts as are just and equitable to pay, or to reimburse the Indemnitees for, the aggregate of any and all losses, liabilities, costs, damages
and expenses, including counsel fees, actually incurred by the Indemnitees as a result of or in connection with, and any amount paid in settlement of, any
action, claim or proceeding arising out of or relating in any way to any actions or omissions of the Indemnitors.

9.3 The provisions of this Article 9 shall survive any termination of this Agreement, whether by disbursement of the Fund,
resignation of the Escrow Agent or otherwise.




10. Governing Law and Assignment. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the internal law of the State of
New York and shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns; provided, however, that any assignment or transfer by any
party of its rights under this Agreement or with respect to the Escrow Amounts or the Fund shall be void as against the Escrow Agent unless (a) written notice
thereof shall be given to the Escrow Agent; and (b) the Escrow Agent shall have consented in writing to such assignment or transfer.

11. Notices. All notices required to be given in connection with this Agreement shall be sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt
requested, or by hand delivery with receipt acknowledged, or by the Express Mail service offered by the United States Post Office, and addressed, if to the
Issuer or the Joint Bookrunning Manager, at their respective addresses set forth on the Information Sheet, and if to the Escrow Agent, at its address set forth
above, to the attention of the Trust Department.

12. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be determined to be invalid
or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Agreement or the application of such provision to persons or circumstances other than those to which it is
held invalid or unenforceable shall not be affected thereby and shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

13. Execution in Several Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts or by separate instruments, and all of such
counterparts and instruments shall constitute one agreement, binding on all of the parties hereto.

14. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and
supersedes all prior agreements and understandings (written or oral) of the parties in connection therewith.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

CHICKEN SOUP FOR THE SOUL
ENTERMENTMENT INC.

By:

Name:
Title:

HCFP/CAPITAL MARKETS LLC

By:

Name:
Titie:

CONTINENTAL STOCK TRANSFER &
TRUST COMPANY

By:

Name
Title:




EXHIBIT A
ESCROW AGREEMENT INFORMATION SHEET

The Issuer

Name: Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc.

Address: 132 E. Putnam Avenue, Floor 2, Cos Cob, Connecticut 06807
Tax Identification Number: 81-2560811

The Joint Bookrunning Manager

Name: HCFP/Capital Markets LLC
Address: 420 Lexington Avenue, Suite 300, New York, New York 10170

The Securities

Description of the Securities to be offered: The offering consists of 900,000 shares of the Issuer’s Class A common stock comprised of (a) up to
641,983 newly issued shares of Class A common stock (“Shares”) and (b) up to an aggregate of 258,017 of outstanding shares of Class A common
stock that may be sold by certain stockholders (“Selling Stockholder Shares” and together with the Shares, the “Offering Shares”). The purchase
price per share shall be $12.00 or such other amount as determined by the Issuer and the Joint Bookrunning Manager.

To the extent less than 900,000 of the Offering Shares are sold in the offering, the Offering Shares sold in the offering will be allocated pro rata
between the Shares and Selling Stockholder Shares. To the extent 900,000 or more of the Offering Shares are sold in the offering, all of the Selling
Stockholder Shares will be sold in the offering. In the event all of the Offering Shares are sold, the Issuer may, in its discretion, sell up to 1,600,000
additional newly issued shares (“Additional Shares”) in the offering.

Maximum Amounts and Conditions Required for Disbursement of the Escrow Account

Aggregate dollar amount which must be collected before the Escrow Account may be disbursed to the Issuer and Selling Stockholders: $1.00;
Maximum amount: $30,000,000

Plan of Distribution of the Securities

The offering will terminate on , 2017, subject to extension for up to ninety (90) days with the mutual consent of the Issuer and the Joint
Bookrunning Manager (the offering period, as extended, being referred to as the “Offering Period” and the last day of the Offering Period, as may be
extended, being referred to as the “Termination Date”). The Issuer may hold an initial closing on any number of Offering Shares at any time during
the Offering Period and through and including the Termination Date and thereafter may hold one or more additional closings during the Offering
Period. No closing will be conducted unless the Issuer has been approved for listing on the Nasdaq Global Market or Nasdaq Capital Market (in
either case, “Nasdaq”). The issuer will delay listing and trading on Nasdaq until the earlier of the final closing of the offering and the end of the
Offering Period.

Title of Escrow Account

“CST&T AAF CSS ENTERTAINMENT”




Escrow Agent Fees

$ :$ payable at signing of the Escrow Agreement from the Issuer, plus $ on or prior to the initial Closing. ($ fee for online
"view only" access to the bank account is included). $ is payable for document review services related to each amendment to the Escrow
Agreement. In addition, a fee of $ is payable for each additional closing after the initial closing. Should the Escrow Agent continue for more
than one year, the Escrow Agent shall receive a fee of $ per month, or any portion thereof, payable in advance on the first business day of the
month.




Exhibit 6.8

STOCK CUSTODY AGREEMENT
for Sale of Shares of Class A Common Stock
of Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc.

Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company
17 Battery Place, 8th Floor
New York, New York 10004

Ladies and Gentlemen:

There are hereby delivered to Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as custodian (the “Custodian”), certificate(s) representing shares of
Class A common stock (“Common Stock”) of Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), as set forth at the
end of this letter on the page entitled “CERTIFICATE(S) DEPOSITED.” Each of the certificates so delivered is accompanied by an executed stock power
duly endorsed for transfer and is in negotiable form bearing the signature of the undersigned. The certificate(s) are to be held by the Custodian for the account
of the undersigned and are to be disposed of by the Custodian in accordance with this Custody Agreement (this “Custody Agreement”).

Concurrently with the execution and delivery of this Custody Agreement, the undersigned has executed a power of attorney (the “Power of
Attorney”) irrevocably appointing Scott W. Seaton and William J. Rouhana, Jr. each with full power and authority to act alone in any matter thereunder and
with full power of substitution, the true and lawful attorneys-in-fact of the undersigned (individually, an “Atterney” and collectively, the “Attorneys”), with
full power and authority in the name of, for and on behalf of, the undersigned with respect to certain matters arising in connection with the sale of the
Common Stock by the undersigned as contemplated by that certain joint bookrunning manager agreement (the “Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement”)
among the Company, certain shareholders of the Company, including the undersigned (the “Selling Shareholders”), and HCFP/Capital Markets LLC, as
representative (the “Representative”) of the selling agents to be named in the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement (the “Selling Agents”), including, but
not limited to, entering into and performing the undersigned’s obligations under the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement.

The total number of shares of Common Stock to be sold by the undersigned to the Selling Agents and set forth in the Joint Bookrunning Manager
Agreement is hereinafter referred to as the “Shares.”

The Custodian is hereby authorized and directed to hold the certificate(s) deposited with the Custodian hereunder in the custody of the Custodian
and, subject to the instructions of the Attorneys: (i) to take all necessary action to cause the Shares to be transferred on the books of the Company into such
names as the Representative, on behalf of the several Selling Agents, shall have instructed, including surrendering the certificate(s) representing the Shares to
the transfer agent for the Common Stock for cancellation, in exchange for new certificate(s) for shares of Common Stock registered in such names and in
such denominations as the Representative shall have instructed; (ii) to deliver such new certificate(s) to the Representative, for the accounts of the several
Selling Agents, against payment for such Shares at the purchase price per Share specified in the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement and to give receipt
for such payment; (iii) to deposit the same to the Custodian’s account as custodian for the Shares and draw upon such account to pay such transfer taxes, if
any, payable in connection with the transfer of the Shares to the Selling Agents (“Iransfer Taxes”) as the Custodian may be instructed to pay by the
Attorneys; (iv) to transmit to the undersigned in the manner set forth under “Manner of Payment” below, within 24 hours of receiving instructions from the
Attorneys to do so, the excess, if any (the “Net Proceeds™), of the amount received by the Custodian as payment for the Shares over the Transfer Taxes, if
any. The amount of such Net Proceeds is to be paid in the manner requested by the undersigned at the end of this Custody Agreement or in such manner as the
Custodian, in accordance with the terms hereof, shall deem appropriate. Upon receipt of instructions from the Attorneys, the Custodian shall also return to the
undersigned new certificate(s) representing the excess, if any, of the number of shares of Common Stock represented by the certificate(s) deposited with the
Custodian hereunder over the number of Shares sold by the undersigned to the Selling Agents pursuant to the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement.




Under the terms of the Power of Attorney, the authority conferred thereby is granted and conferred subject to and in consideration of granted and
conferred subject to and in consideration of the interests and actions of the Attorneys, the Selling Agents and the Company and is irrevocable and not subject
to termination by any act of the undersigned or by operation of law, whether by the death or incapacity of the undersigned (if the undersigned is an
individual), by the death or incapacity of any trustee or executor or the termination of any trust or estate (if the undersigned is a trust or an estate), or by the
dissolution or liquidation of any corporation, limited liability company or partnership (if the undersigned is a corporation, limited liability company or
partnership), or by the occurrence of any other act of the undersigned (any of the foregoing being hereinafter referred to as an “Event”). Accordingly, the
certificate(s) deposited with the Custodian hereunder and this Custody Agreement and the Custodian’s authority hereunder are subject to and in consideration
of the interests of the Attorneys, the Selling Agents and the Company, and this Custody Agreement and the Custodian’s authority hereunder are irrevocable
and are not subject to withdrawal or termination by the occurrence of any Event. If an Event shall occur after the execution hereof but before the delivery of
the Shares to the Selling Agents, then certificate(s) representing such Shares will be delivered by the Custodian to the Selling Agents on behalf of the
undersigned in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement and this Custody Agreement and any actions taken by
the Custodian pursuant to this Custody Agreement shall be as valid as if such Event had not occurred, regardless of whether or not the Custodian, the
Attorneys, the Selling Agents or any one of them, shall have received notice of such Event.

Notwithstanding any of the foregoing provisions, if the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement shall not have been executed and delivered, or the
transactions contemplated thereby shall not have been consummated by October 31, 2017, then, upon receipt of written notice from the Attorney to the
Custodian on or after that date, the Custodian shall return to the undersigned all certificate(s), together with any stock powers, delivered herewith.

Until payment of the purchase price for the Shares has been made to the Custodian by or for the account of the several Selling Agents, the
undersigned shall remain the owner of all shares of Common Stock represented by the certificate(s) deposited with the Custodian hereunder and shall have the
right to vote such shares and all other securities, if any, represented by such certificate(s) and to receive all dividends and distributions thereon, except the
right to retain custody and dispose of such shares, which is subject to the rights of the Custodian under this Custody Agreement, the Attorneys under the
Power of Attorney and the Selling Agents under the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement. The Selling Agents shall not acquire the power or the right to
direct the investment of the Shares by virtue of this Custody Agreement until the consideration therefor is paid pursuant to the Joint Bookrunning Manager
Agreement.

The Custodian shall be entitled to act and rely upon any statement, request, notice or instruction respecting this Custody Agreement given to the
Custodian by the Attorneys, or any one of them. Any Attorney has the authority to instruct the Custodian on irregularities or discrepancies in the certificates
representing shares of Common Stock and any accompanying documents.

In taking any action requested or directed by the Representative and permitted under the terms of this Custody Agreement, the Custodian will be
entitled to rely upon a writing signed by a Vice President, Senior Vice President, Managing Director, Counsel, Assistant General Counsel or General Counsel
of HCFP/Capital Markets LLC




It is understood that the Custodian assumes no responsibility or liability to any person or entity other than to deal with the certificate(s) deposited
with the Custodian hereunder and the proceeds from the sale of all or a portion of the securities represented thereby in accordance with the provisions of this
Custody Agreement. The undersigned agrees to indemnify the Custodian for and to hold the Custodian free from and harmless against any and all loss, claim,
damage, liability or expense incurred by the Custodian arising out of or in connection with acting as Custodian hereunder, as well as the cost and expense of
defending against any claim of liability hereunder, which is not due to the Custodian’s own gross negligence, bad faith or willful misconduct; provided,
however, that (i) the liability under this Custody Agreement of each Selling Shareholder shall be limited to an amount equal to the aggregate gross proceeds
after underwriting commissions and discounts, but before expenses, to such Selling Shareholder from the sale of the Shares sold by such Selling Shareholder
under the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement and (ii) no Selling Shareholder shall be required to contribute any amount in excess of the amount by which
the aggregate gross proceeds after underwriting commissions and discounts, but before expenses, to such Selling Shareholder from the sale of the Shares sold
by such Selling Shareholder under the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement exceeds the amount of any damages which such Selling Shareholder has
otherwise been required to pay under the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement.

By executing this Custody Agreement, each of the Selling Shareholders represents that, as of the date hereof, such Selling Shareholder (i) has the
authority to execute and deliver this Custody Agreement; (ii) has the authority to sell the Shares; and (iii) has good and marketable title to such Shares, free
and clear of all liens, encumbrances, equities, security interests and claims whatsoever, and such Shares will be transferred to the purchasers of such Shares
pursuant to the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement, assuming such purchasers purchase such Shares for value in good faith and without notice of any
such lien, encumbrance, equity or other adverse claim within the meaning of the Uniform Commercial Code, free and clear of all liens, encumbrances,
equities, security interests and claims whatsoever. The representations, warranties and agreements of the Selling Shareholders in this Custody Agreement are
made for the benefit of, and may be relied upon by, the Company, the Custodian and the Selling Agents, and their respective representatives, agents and
counsel. These representations, warranties, agreements and covenants shall remain operative and in full force and effect, and shall survive delivery of and
payment for the Shares, regardless of (i) any investigation, or statement as to the results thereof, made by or on behalf of any of the persons or entities listed
in the preceding sentence, (ii) acceptance of the Shares and payment for them under the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement and (iii) termination of this
Custody Agreement.

This Custody Agreement shall be binding upon the undersigned and the heirs, legal representatives, distributees, successors and assigns of the
undersigned.

This Custody Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts and, if executed in more than one counterpart, the executed counterparts shall
each be deemed to be an original and all such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same instrument. Delivery of a signed counterpart of this

Agreement by facsimile or e-mail/.pdf transmission shall constitute valid and sufficient delivery thereof.

This Custody Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York without regard to the conflicts of laws principles thereof.




Please acknowledge your acceptance hereof as Custodian, and receipt of the certificate(s) deposited with you hereunder, by executing and returning
the enclosed copy hereof to the undersigned in care of the Attorneys.

Dated: , 2017

Very truly yours,

By:
Name:
Title:




Print Name(s), Address and Fax Number(s) of
Selling Shareholder(s) and Name and Title of
any Person Signing as Agent or Fiduciary:

Taxpayer I.D.:

Fax Number:

Instruction: If you are an individual and are married, your spouse is required to complete this form:
SPOUSAL CONSENT
I am the spouse of .. On behalf of myself, my heirs and legatees, I hereby join in and consent to the terms of the foregoing Custody Agreement and
agree to the sale of the shares of Class A Common Stock of Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc., registered in the name of my spouse or otherwise

registered, which my spouse proposes to sell pursuant to the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement (as defined therein).

Dated:

(Signature of Spouse)

Instruction: Complete each column as to certificate(s) to be deposited with the Custodian.

CERTIFICATE(S) DEPOSITED

Stock Certificate Number Maximum Number of Shares of Common Stock To Be Sold from
Certificate

Total




Instruction: Indicate how you wish to receive payment for the shares of Common Stock sold to the Selling Agents. Please note that if you are selling shares of
Common Stock registered in the name of a corporation or other association or a trust, payment will be made only to the corporation or other association or
trust. A wire transfer can be made only to an account standing in exactly the same name as the person or entity, including the corporation or other association
or trust, that is the registered owner of the Common Stock being sold.

MANNER OF PAYMENT

I request that payment of the net proceeds from the sale of the shares of Common Stock of the Company to be sold by me pursuant to the Joint Bookrunning
Manager Agreement be made in the following manner (CHECK ONE):

O CHECK made payable to:

to be sent to the following address:

Phone: ()

Please send by (check one):
O First class mail
| Federal Express, account number

OR
O TRANSFER to the following account:

Account No.

Bank See attached wire transfer instructions
(name)

(address)

ABA No.

Phone: ()

OR

O OTHER (please specify)




CUSTODIAN’S ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND RECEIPT

Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as Custodian, acknowledges acceptance of the duties of the Custodian under the foregoing Custody
Agreement and receipt of the certificate(s) referred therein.

Dated: , 2017
CONTINENTAL STOCK TRANSFER &

TRUST COMPANY

By:

Name:
Title:




POWER OF ATTORNEY OF SELLING SHAREHOLDER

Mr. Scott W. Seaton

c/o Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc.
132 E. Putnam Avenue

Floor 2W

Cos Cob, Connecticut 06807

The undersigned shareholder of Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), understands that it is
contemplated that the undersigned will sell shares of Class A common stock of the Company (“Coemmon Stock”) through the selling agents (the “Selling
Agents”) named in the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement, among the Company and HCFP/Capital Markets LLC, as representative of the Selling Agents
(in such capacity, the “Representative”), and the selling shareholders named therein (the “Selling Shareholders™), including the undersigned, substantially in
the form filed as an exhibit to the Offering Statement (as defined below) (such agreement, in the form in which executed, being called herein the “Joint
Bookrunning Manager Agreement”), pursuant to the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement, and the Selling Agents propose to offer and sell such shares
of Common Stock (including the offer and sale of newly issued shares of Common Stock by the Company and the offer and sale of shares of Common Stock
by other Selling Shareholders pursuant to the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement, the “Offering”) to the public. The undersigned also understands that
the Company has filed an Offering Statement on Form 1-A, Registration No. 024-10704 (as amended, the “Offering Statement”), with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) in connection with the Offering.

Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein have the meanings set forth in the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement.

(1)  In connection with the foregoing, the undersigned hereby constitutes and appoints each of Scott W. Seaton and William J. Rouhana, Jr. as
attorney-in-fact (each an “Attorney” and, together, the “Attorneys”) of the undersigned, with full power and authority to act, together or individually,
including full power of substitution, in the name of and for and on behalf of the undersigned with respect to all matters arising in connection with the sale of
the Shares (as defined below) by the undersigned including, but not limited to, the power and authority to take any and all of the following actions:

(a)  toinstruct the participant in The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) that maintains a securities account with respect to the Shares
on behalf of the undersigned (the “DTC Participant”), if any, to, among other things, withdraw up to the Maximum Shares (as defined below) from the DTC
Participant’s account with DTC;

(b)  tosell, assign and transfer to the Selling Agents pursuant to the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement up to the Maximum Number
of Shares of Common Stock specified on the signature page of the undersigned hereto (the “Maximum Shares”), or such lesser amount as the Attorneys, or
any of them, in their or his sole discretion shall determine, on behalf of the undersigned at a purchase price per share to be paid by the Selling Agents, as
determined by negotiation among the Company, the Attorneys and the Representative, but at the same price per share to be paid by the Selling Agents to the
Company and all other Selling Shareholders for the shares of Common Stock sold by each of them in the Offering;




(0) for the purpose of effecting such sale, to execute on behalf of and to perform the undersigned’s obligations under the Joint
Bookrunning Manager Agreement, the receipt of a draft of which is hereby acknowledged, containing such additions to or changes in the terms, provisions
and conditions thereto as the Attorneys, or any of them, in their or his sole discretion, shall approve, including, subject to the limitation set forth in
paragraph (1)(b) hereof, the purchase price per share to be paid by the Selling Agents and including any additions to or changes in the terms, provisions and
conditions thereof relating to the Offering; provided that no such addition or change shall be materially adverse to the undersigned, as determined in the
reasonable judgment of the Attorneys, or any of them, without the undersigned’s written consent other than (i) the determination of the purchase price per
share to be paid by the Selling Agents (subject to the limitation set forth in paragraph (1)(b) hereof), and (ii) the determination of the number of shares of
Common Stock to be sold by the undersigned to the Selling Agents, which number shall be no greater but may be fewer than the Maximum Shares (such
number of shares of Common Stock sold by the undersigned pursuant to the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement, the “Shares”), none of clause (i) or (ii)
requiring the undersigned’s written consent; provided, further, that all terms and conditions applicable to each Selling Shareholder shall be the same;

(d)  to give such orders and instructions to the Company, the Custodian and the transfer agent for the Common Stock (the “Transfer
Agent”) as the Attorneys, or any of them, in their or his sole discretion, shall determine with respect to (i) the transfer of the Shares on the books of the
Company in order to effect the sale to the Selling Agents in the Offering, including giving the name or names in which new certificates for the Shares are to
be issued or book-entry positions created, and the denominations thereof, (ii) the delivery to or for the account of the Selling Agents of the Shares against
receipt by the Selling Shareholders of the purchase price to be paid therefor, (iii) the remittance to the undersigned of the balance of the proceeds from any
sale of Shares (net of underwriting discounts and commissions) and (iii) the remittance to the undersigned of new certificates or creation of new book-entry
positions representing that number of shares of Common Stock, if any, that is in excess of the number of shares of Common Stock sold by the undersigned to
the Selling Agents in the Offering;

(e)  toretain legal counsel in connection with any and all matters referred to herein;

(f)  to endorse (in blank or otherwise) on behalf of the undersigned the certificate or certificates, if any, representing the Shares to be sold
by the undersigned, or a stock power or powers attached to such certificate or certificates;

(g)  tomake, acknowledge, verify and file on behalf of the undersigned applications, consents to service of process and such other
documents, undertakings or reports as may be required by law with state commissioners or officers administering state securities law in connection with (but
only in connection with) the Offering; and

(h) to make, exchange, acknowledge and deliver all such other contracts, powers of attorney, orders, receipts, notices, requests,
instructions, certificates, letters and other writings, including communications to the Commission and amendments to the Joint Bookrunning Manager
Agreement and Custody Agreement, and in general to do all things and to take all actions, that the Attorneys, or any of them, in their or his sole discretion,
may consider necessary or proper and not materially adverse to the undersigned in connection with or to carry out the aforesaid sale of the Shares to the
Selling Agents and the Offering, as fully as could the undersigned if personally present and acting; provided, that no such contracts, power of attorney, orders,
receipts, notices, requests, instructions, certificates, if any, letters or writings shall impose any obligation on the undersigned not contemplated by the Joint
Bookrunning Manager Agreement which may be materially adverse to the undersigned. The Attorneys shall serve hereunder without compensation.




(2)  This Power of Attorney and all authority conferred hereby are granted and conferred subject to and in consideration of the interests and
actions of the Attorneys, the Selling Agents and the Company, and for the purpose of completing the transactions contemplated by the Joint Bookrunning
Manager Agreement, the Custody Agreement and this Power of Attorney. Except as provided below, this Power of Attorney and all authority conferred
hereby shall be irrevocable and shall not be terminated by the undersigned or by operation of law, whether by the death or incapacity of the undersigned (if
the undersigned is an individual), by the death or incapacity of any trustee or executor or the termination of any trust or estate (if the undersigned is a trust or
an estate), or by the dissolution or liquidation of any corporation, limited liability company or partnership (if the undersigned is a corporation, limited liability
company or partnership), or by the occurrence of any other act of the undersigned. If any event described in the preceding sentence shall occur before the
delivery of the Shares to be sold by the undersigned under the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement, certificates for the Shares shall be delivered by or on
behalf of the undersigned in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement and the Custody Agreement, and all
other actions required to be taken under the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement shall be taken, and action taken by the Attorney, pursuant to and to the
extent permitted by this Power of Attorney, shall be valid as if such event had not occurred, whether or not the Attorney shall have received notice of such
event.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) if the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement shall not have been executed and delivered, or the transactions
contemplated thereby shall not have been consummated by October 31, 2017, (ii) if the Offering Statement is withdrawn, (iii) if the Attorneys, or either of
them, delivers notice that the undersigned has properly withdrawn in full from participation in the Offering at least five days prior to the anticipated pricing
date of the Offering or (iv) when all actions required by paragraph (1) above have been taken on behalf of the undersigned (whether or not the Maximum
Shares have been sold in the Offering), then from and after such date the undersigned shall have the power to revoke all authority hereby conferred by giving
written notice on or promptly after such date to the Attorney that this Power of Attorney has been terminated; subject, however, to all lawful action done or
performed by the Attorney pursuant to this Power of Attorney prior to the actual receipt of such notice. In addition, the undersigned shall have the power to
revoke all authority hereby conferred by giving written notice on or before the date that is five business days prior to the estimated effective date of the
Offering Statement, as communicated to the Selling Shareholders by the Selling Agents; subject, however, to all lawful action done or performed by the
Attorneys, or any of them, pursuant to this Power of Attorney prior to the actual receipt of such notice.

(3)  The undersigned ratifies all that the Attorneys, or any of them, have done or shall do pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (2) of this Power of
Attorney, to the extent permitted hereby.

(4)  The Attorneys, or any of them, shall be entitled to act and rely upon any statement, request, notice or instruction respecting this Power of
Attorney given to such Attorney by the undersigned; provided, however, that the Attorneys, or any of them, shall not be entitled to act on any statement or
notice to the Attorneys with respect to the Closing Date under the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement, or with respect to the termination of the Joint
Bookrunning Manager Agreement, or advising that the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement shall not have been executed and delivered, unless such
statement or notice shall have been confirmed in writing to the Attorney by the Selling Agents.
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(5)  The undersigned, severally and not jointly with any one or more of the other Selling Shareholders, agrees to hold the Attorneys, or any of
them, jointly and severally, free and harmless from any and all loss, damage or liability that they, or either one of them, may sustain as a result of any action
taken in good faith hereunder and not due to the Attorney’s or Attorneys’ own gross negligence, willful misconduct or bad faith. It is understood that the
Attorneys shall serve without compensation.

(6)  The Selling Agents, the Company, the Custodian, the Transfer Agent and all other persons dealing with the Attorneys as such may rely and
act upon any writing believed in good faith to be signed by the Attorneys, or any of them, on behalf of the undersigned.

(7)  This Power of Attorney shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York, without regard to
principles of conflicts of laws that would result in the application of any law other than the laws of the State of New York.

(8)  For the avoidance of doubt, whenever two or more powers of attorney granting the powers specified in this Power of Attorney are valid, the
agents appointed in each shall act separately unless otherwise specified.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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This Power of Attorney has been duly executed as of the date below.

Date:

Print name(s)
Maximum Number of
Shares to be sold to the
Selling Agents:

Sign

Name and Title of Signatory (if an entity)

WITNESSES

Instruction: To be completed only if this power of attorney is not notarized on the following page.

Print Name of Witness #1

Sign

Print Name of Witness #2

Sign
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ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Instruction: To be completed only if this power of attorney is not witnessed on the preceding page.

For Individuals:

STATE OF )
) ss.
COUNTY OF )
On the day of in the year 2017 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said State, personally appeared
and , personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the individual

whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she executed the same in his/her capacity, that by his/her signature on the
instrument, the individual, or the person upon behalf of which the individual acted, executed the instrument.

(Signature and office of individual
taking acknowledgment)

For Entities:
STATE OF )
) ss.
COUNTY OF )
On the day of in the year 2017 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said State, personally appeared
,a(n) of , personally known to me or proved to me on the basis

of satisfactory evidence to be the individual(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed
the same in his/her/their capacity(ies), that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument, the individual(s), or the person upon behalf of which the
individual(s) acted, executed the instrument.
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Acknowledged and Accepted:

Date:

The Attorneys:

Signature of Scott Seaton

Signature of William J. Rouhana, Jr.

STATE OF )
) ss.
COUNTY OF )
On the day of in the year 2017 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said State, personally appeared Scott Seaton,

personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and
acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his capacities, that by his signatures on the instrument, the individuals, or the person upon behalf of which
the individual acted, executed the instrument.

(Signature and office of individual
taking acknowledgment)

STATE OF )
) ss.
COUNTY OF )
On the day of in the year 2017 before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said State, personally appeared William J.

Rouhana, Jr., personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the within
instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his capacities, that by his signatures on the instrument, the individuals, or the person upon
behalf of which the individual acted, executed the instrument.

(Signature and office of individual
taking acknowledgment)
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Company Form For Affiliates
Exhibit 6.9

Lock-Up Agreement

, 2017

Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc.
132 E. Putnam Avenue

Floor 2W

Cos Cob, Connecticut 06807

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Reference is hereby made to the proposed Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement (the “Agreement”), to be dated and executed on or before the qualification
date of the Offering to which the Agreement relates, among Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), the
Selling Stockholders parties to the Agreement and the Managers parties to the Agreement. The Agreement provides for the Regulation A, Tier 2 offering
(“Offering”) of shares (the “Shares”) of the Company’s Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the “Common Stock”).

To induce the Managers and the Company to continue their efforts in connection with the Offering, the undersigned, an executive officer and/or director or
parent of the Company, agrees that, without the Company’s prior written consent, the undersigned will not, for an initial period (“Initial Lock-Up Period”)
commencing on the date hereof and ending on the 18-month anniversary of the date that the Shares commence to trade (“Trading Date”) (unless such day is
a Friday in which event the expiration of the Initial Lock-Up Period shall occur on the next business day); and thereafter for an additional 24-month period
(“Additional Lock-Up Period” and, together with the Initial Lock-Up Period, the “Lock-Up Period”), (1) offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, grant any
option or contract to purchase, purchase any option or contract to sell, or otherwise dispose of, directly or indirectly, any shares of Common Stock of the
Company or any shares convertible into, exercisable for, or exchangeable for shares of Common Stock, (2) enter into any swap or other arrangement that
transfers to another, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of the Common Stock, whether any such transaction described in
clause (1) or (2) above is to be settled by delivery of Common Stock or such other securities, in cash or otherwise. If the undersigned is an officer or director
of the Company, the undersigned further agrees that the foregoing restrictions shall be equally applicable to any issuer-directed shares of Common Stock the
undersigned may purchase in the Offering. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, 1/24th of the Common Stock subject to this Agreement
shall become free of the lock-up obligations imposed hereby on each of the first 24 month anniversary dates of the commencement date of the Additional
Lock-Up Period.

The lock-up restrictions contained in the foregoing paragraph shall not apply to (a) bona fide gifts; provided that the recipient thereof agrees in writing with
the Company to be bound by the terms of this Lock-Up Agreement; (b) dispositions to any trust for the direct or indirect benefit of the undersigned and/or the
immediate family of the undersigned; provided that such trust agrees in writing with the Company to be bound by the terms of this Lock-Up Agreement; (c)
transfers of Common Stock or securities convertible into Common Stock on death by will or intestacy; (d) sales or transfers of Common Stock solely in
connection with the “cashless” exercise of Company stock options or warrants outstanding on the date hereof for the purpose of exercising such stock options
or warrants; (provided that any remaining Common Stock received upon such exercise will be subject to the restrictions provided for in this Lock-Up
Agreement); (e) in the case of a non-natural person, distributions of Common Stock or other securities to limited partners, members or stockholders of the
undersigned, provided the recipient thereof agrees in writing with the Company to be bound by the terms of this Lock-Up Agreement; or (f) in the case of a
non-natural person, transfers of Common Stock or other securities to any wholly-owned subsidiary of the undersigned (including any corporation,
partnership, limited liability company or other entity that is directly or indirectly owned by the undersigned) or to the parent corporation of the undersigned or
any wholly-owned subsidiary of such parent corporation; provided that such recipient thereof agrees in writing with the Company to be bound by the terms of
this Lock-Up Agreement. For purposes of this paragraph, “immediate family” shall mean the undersigned and the spouse, any lineal descendent, father,
mother, brother or sister of the undersigned.




The undersigned also agrees and consents to the entry of stop transfer instructions with the Company’s transfer Manager and registrar relating to the transfer
of the undersigned’s shares of Common Stock except in compliance with the restrictions described above.

Notwithstanding the above, if (a) during the period that begins on the date that is fifteen (15) calendar days plus three (3) business days before the last day of
the Lock-Up Period and ends on the last day of the Lock-Up Period, the Company issues an earnings release or material news or a material event relating to
the Company occurs; or (b) prior to the expiration of the Lock-Up Period, the Company announces that it will release earnings results during the sixteen (16)
day period beginning on the last day of the Lock-Up Period, then the restrictions imposed by this Lock-Up Agreement shall continue to apply until the
expiration of the date that is fifteen (15) calendar days plus three (3) business days after the date on which the issuance of the earnings release or the material
news or material event occurs; provided, however, that this paragraph shall not apply if the safe harbor provided by Rule 139 under the Act is available in the
manner contemplated by Rule 2711(f)(4) of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. (“FINRA”).

The undersigned hereby confirms that the undersigned has not, directly or indirectly, taken, and hereby covenants that the undersigned will not, directly or
indirectly, take, any action designed, or which has constituted or will constitute or might reasonably be expected to cause or result in the stabilization or
manipulation of the price of any security of the Company to facilitate the sale or resale of shares of Common Stock.

If (i) the Company notifies you in writing that it does not intend to proceed with the Offering, (ii) the Offering Statement filed with the Commission with
respect to the Offering is withdrawn or (iii) for any reason the Agreement shall be terminated prior to the initial closing contemplated under the Agreement,
this Lock-Up Agreement shall be terminated and the undersigned shall be released from its obligations hereunder.

The undersigned understands that the Company and the Managers are relying on this Lock-Up Agreement in proceeding toward consummation of the
Offering contemplated by the Agreement. This Lock-Up Agreement is irrevocable and shall be binding upon the undersigned and the heirs, personal
representatives, successors and assigns of the undersigned.

This Lock-Up Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.

[Signatures on next page]




Very truly yours,

[NAME OF THE DIRECTOR AND/OR OFFICER OR PARENT
COMPANY]

[NAME]




Managers Form for Affiliates
Exhibit 6.10

Lock-Up Agreement

, 2017
HCFP/Capital Markets LLC
As Representative of the Joint Bookrunning Managers (“Managers”) named in the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement referred to below.
Ladies and Gentlemen:

Reference is hereby made to the proposed Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement (the “Agreement”), to be dated and executed on or before the qualification
date of the Offering to which the Agreement relates, among Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), the
Selling Stockholders parties to the Agreement and the Managers parties to the Agreement for which HCFP/Capital Markets LLC, is the representative of the
Managers (the “Representative”). The Agreement provides for the Regulation A, Tier 2 offering (“Offering”) of shares (the “Shares”) of the Company’s
Class A common stock, par value $.0001 per share (the “Commeon Stock”).

To induce the Managers to continue their efforts in connection with the Offering, the undersigned agrees that, without the Representative’s prior written
consent, the undersigned will not, for a period commencing on the date hereof and ending on the first business day following the one hundred eightieth day

(180th) day (“Lock-Up Period”) after the date that the Shares commence to trade (“Trading Date”) (unless such day is a Friday in which event the expiration
of the Lock-Up Period shall occur on the next business day), (1) offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, grant any option or contract to purchase, purchase any
option or contract to sell, or otherwise dispose of, directly or indirectly, any shares of Common Stock of the Company or any shares convertible into,
exercisable for, or exchangeable for shares of Common Stock, (2) enter into any swap or other arrangement that transfers to another, in whole or in part, any
of the economic consequences of ownership of the Common Stock, whether any such transaction described in clause (1) or (2) above is to be settled by
delivery of Common Stock or such other securities, in cash or otherwise. If the undersigned is an officer or director of the Company, the undersigned further
agrees that the foregoing restrictions shall be equally applicable to any issuer-directed shares of Common Stock the undersigned may purchase in the
Offering.

The foregoing paragraph shall not apply to (a) bona fide gifts; provided that the recipient thereof agrees in writing with the Representative to be bound by the
terms of this Lock-Up Agreement; (b) dispositions to any trust for the direct or indirect benefit of the undersigned and/or the immediate family of the
undersigned; provided that such trust agrees in writing with the Representative to be bound by the terms of this Lock-Up Agreement; (c) transfers of Common
Stock or securities convertible into Common Stock on death by will or intestacy; (d) sales or transfers of Common Stock solely in connection with the
“cashless” exercise of Company stock options or warrants outstanding on the date hereof for the purpose of exercising such stock options or warrants;
(provided that any remaining Common Stock received upon such exercise will be subject to the restrictions provided for in this Lock-Up Agreement); (e) in
the case of a non-natural person, distributions of Common Stock or other securities to limited partners, members or stockholders of the undersigned, provided
the recipient thereof agrees in writing with the Representative to be bound by the terms of this Lock-Up Agreement; or (f) in the case of a non-natural person,
transfers of Common Stock or other securities to any wholly-owned subsidiary of the undersigned (including any corporation, partnership, limited liability
company or other entity that is directly or indirectly owned by the undersigned) or to the parent corporation of the undersigned or any wholly-owned
subsidiary of such parent corporation; provided that such recipient thereof agrees in writing with the Representative to be bound by the terms of this Lock-Up
Agreement. For purposes of this paragraph, “immediate family” shall mean the undersigned and the spouse, any lineal descendent, father, mother, brother or
sister of the undersigned.




In addition, the undersigned agrees that, without the Representative’s prior consent, the undersigned will not, during the period commencing on the date

hereof and ending on the one hundred eightieth (180t day after the Trading Date, make any demand for or exercise any right with respect to, the registration
of any shares of Common Stock of the Company or any Shares convertible into, exercisable for, or exchangeable for shares of Common Stock.

The undersigned also agrees and consents to the entry of stop transfer instructions with the Company’s transfer Manager and registrar relating to the transfer
of the undersigned’s shares of Common Stock except in compliance with the restrictions described above.

Notwithstanding the above, if (a) during the period that begins on the date that is fifteen (15) calendar days plus three (3) business days before the last day of
the Lock-Up Period and ends on the last day of the Lock-Up Period, the Company issues an earnings release or material news or a material event relating to
the Company occurs; or (b) prior to the expiration of the Lock-Up Period, the Company announces that it will release earnings results during the sixteen (16)
day period beginning on the last day of the Lock-Up Period, then the restrictions imposed by this Lock-Up Agreement shall continue to apply until the
expiration of the date that is fifteen (15) calendar days plus three (3) business days after the date on which the issuance of the earnings release or the material
news or material event occurs; provided, however, that this paragraph shall not apply if (i) the safe harbor provided by Rule 139 under the Act is available in
the manner contemplated by Rule 2711(f)(4) of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. (“FINRA”) and (ii) within the 3 business days preceding the
15" calendar day before the last day of the Lock-Up Period, the Company delivers to the Representative a certificate, signed by the Chief Financial Officer or
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certifying on behalf of the Company that the Company’s shares of Common Stock are “actively traded securities,”
within the meaning of Rule 2711(f)(4) of FINRA.

If the undersigned is an officer or director of the Company, (i) the Representative agrees that, at least three (3) business days before the effective date of any
release or waiver of the foregoing restrictions in connection with a transfer of shares of Common Stock, the Representative will notify the Company of the
impending release or waiver, and (ii) the Company will announce the impending release or waiver by press release through a major news service at least two
(2) business days before the effective date of the release or waiver. Any release or waiver granted by the Representative hereunder to any such officer or
director shall only be effective two (2) business days after the publication date of such press release. The provisions of this paragraph will not apply if (a) the
release or waiver is effected solely to permit a transfer not for consideration and (b) the transferee has agreed in writing to be bound by the same terms
described in this Lock-Up Agreement to the extent and for the duration that such terms remain in effect at the time of the transfer.

The undersigned hereby confirms that the undersigned has not, directly or indirectly, taken, and hereby covenants that the undersigned will not, directly or
indirectly, take, any action designed, or which has constituted or will constitute or might reasonably be expected to cause or result in the stabilization or
manipulation of the price of any security of the Company to facilitate the sale or resale of shares of Common Stock.

If (i) the Company notifies you in writing that it does not intend to proceed with the Offering, (ii) the Offering Statement filed with the Commission with
respect to the Offering is withdrawn or (iii) for any reason the Agreement shall be terminated prior to the initial closing contemplated under the Agreement,
this Lock-Up Agreement shall be terminated and the undersigned shall be released from its obligations hereunder.

The undersigned understands that the Company and the Managers are relying on this Lock-Up Agreement in proceeding toward consummation of the
Offering contemplated by the Agreement. This Lock-Up Agreement is irrevocable and shall be binding upon the undersigned and the heirs, personal

representatives, successors and assigns of the undersigned.

This Lock-Up Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.




Very truly yours,

[NAME OF THE DIRECTOR, OFFICER OR STOCKHOLDER]

[NAME]




Company Investor Form
Exhibit 6.11

Lock-Up Agreement

,2017

Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc.
132 E. Putnam Avenue

Floor 2W

Cos Cob, Connecticut 06807

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Reference is hereby made to the proposed Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement (the “Agreement”), to be dated and executed on or before the qualification
date of the Offering to which the Agreement relates, among Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), the
Selling Stockholders parties to the Agreement and the Managers parties to the Agreement. The Agreement provides for the Regulation A, Tier 2 offering
(“Offering”) of shares (the “Shares™) of the Company’s Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the “Common Stock”).

To induce the Managers and the Company to continue their efforts in connection with the Offering, the undersigned, an executive officer and/or director or
parent of the Company, agrees that, without the Company’s prior written consent, the undersigned will not, for a period (“Lock-Up Period”) commencing on

the date hereof and ending on the ninetieth (90th) day that the Shares commence to trade (“Trading Date”) (unless such day is a Friday in which event the
expiration of the Lock-Up Period shall occur on the next business day) (1) offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, grant any option or contract to purchase,
purchase any option or contract to sell, or otherwise dispose of, directly or indirectly, any shares of Common Stock of the Company or any shares convertible
into, exercisable for, or exchangeable for shares of Common Stock, (2) enter into any swap or other arrangement that transfers to another, in whole or in part,
any of the economic consequences of ownership of the Common Stock, whether any such transaction described in clause (1) or (2) above is to be settled by
delivery of Common Stock or such other securities, in cash or otherwise.

The lock-up restrictions contained in the foregoing paragraph shall not apply to (a) bona fide gifts; provided that the recipient thereof agrees in writing with
the Company to be bound by the terms of this Lock-Up Agreement; (b) dispositions to any trust for the direct or indirect benefit of the undersigned and/or the
immediate family of the undersigned; provided that such trust agrees in writing with the Company to be bound by the terms of this Lock-Up Agreement; (c)
transfers of Common Stock or securities convertible into Common Stock on death by will or intestacy; (d) sales or transfers of Common Stock solely in
connection with the “cashless” exercise of Company stock options or warrants outstanding on the date hereof for the purpose of exercising such stock options
or warrants; (provided that any remaining Common Stock received upon such exercise will be subject to the restrictions provided for in this Lock-Up
Agreement); (e) in the case of a non-natural person, distributions of Common Stock or other securities to limited partners, members or stockholders of the
undersigned, provided the recipient thereof agrees in writing with the Company to be bound by the terms of this Lock-Up Agreement; or (f) in the case of a
non-natural person, transfers of Common Stock or other securities to any wholly-owned subsidiary of the undersigned (including any corporation,
partnership, limited liability company or other entity that is directly or indirectly owned by the undersigned) or to the parent corporation of the undersigned or
any wholly-owned subsidiary of such parent corporation; provided that such recipient thereof agrees in writing with the Company to be bound by the terms of
this Lock-Up Agreement. For purposes of this paragraph, “immediate family” shall mean the undersigned and the spouse, any lineal descendent, father,
mother, brother or sister of the undersigned.




The undersigned also agrees and consents to the entry of stop transfer instructions with the Company’s transfer Manager and registrar relating to the transfer
of the undersigned’s shares of Common Stock except in compliance with the restrictions described above.

Notwithstanding the above, if (a) during the period that begins on the date that is fifteen (15) calendar days plus three (3) business days before the last day of
the Lock-Up Period and ends on the last day of the Lock-Up Period, the Company issues an earnings release or material news or a material event relating to
the Company occurs; or (b) prior to the expiration of the Lock-Up Period, the Company announces that it will release earnings results during the sixteen (16)
day period beginning on the last day of the Lock-Up Period, then the restrictions imposed by this Lock-Up Agreement shall continue to apply until the
expiration of the date that is fifteen (15) calendar days plus three (3) business days after the date on which the issuance of the earnings release or the material
news or material event occurs; provided, however, that this paragraph shall not apply if the safe harbor provided by Rule 139 under the Act is available in the
manner contemplated by Rule 2711(f)(4) of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. (“FINRA”).

The undersigned hereby confirms that the undersigned has not, directly or indirectly, taken, and hereby covenants that the undersigned will not, directly or
indirectly, take, any action designed, or which has constituted or will constitute or might reasonably be expected to cause or result in the stabilization or
manipulation of the price of any security of the Company to facilitate the sale or resale of shares of Common Stock.

If (i) the Company notifies you in writing that it does not intend to proceed with the Offering, (ii) the Offering Statement filed with the Commission with
respect to the Offering is withdrawn or (iii) for any reason the Agreement shall be terminated prior to the initial closing contemplated under the Agreement,
this Lock-Up Agreement shall be terminated and the undersigned shall be released from its obligations hereunder.

The undersigned understands that the Company and the Managers are relying on this Lock-Up Agreement in proceeding toward consummation of the
Offering contemplated by the Agreement. This Lock-Up Agreement is irrevocable and shall be binding upon the undersigned and the heirs, personal
representatives, successors and assigns of the undersigned.

This Lock-Up Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.

[Signatures on next page]




Very truly yours,

[NAME OF THE DIRECTOR AND/OR OFFICER OR PARENT
COMPANY]

[NAME]




Managers Form for Investors
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Lock-Up Agreement

, 2017

HCFP/Capital Markets LLC
As Representative of the Joint Bookrunning Managers (“Managers”) named in the Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement referred to below.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Reference is hereby made to the proposed Joint Bookrunning Manager Agreement (the “Agreement”), to be dated and executed on or before the qualification
date of the Offering to which the Agreement relates, among Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), the
Selling Stockholders parties to the Agreement and the Managers parties to the Agreement for which HCFP/Capital Markets LLC, is the representative of the
Managers (the “Representative”). The Agreement provides for the Regulation A, Tier 2 offering (“Offering”) of shares (the “Shares”) of the Company’s
Class A common stock, par value $.0001 per share (the “Commeon Stock”).

To induce the Managers to continue their efforts in connection with the Offering, the undersigned agrees that, without the Representative’s prior written

consent, the undersigned will not, for a period commencing on the date hereof and ending on the first business day following the ninetieth (90th) day (“Lock-
Up Period”) after the date that the Shares commence to trade (“Trading Date”) (unless such day is a Friday in which event the expiration of the Lock-Up
Period shall occur on the next business day), (1) offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, grant any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option or contract to
sell, or otherwise dispose of, directly or indirectly, any shares of Common Stock of the Company or any shares convertible into, exercisable for, or
exchangeable for shares of Common Stock, (2) enter into any swap or other arrangement that transfers to another, in whole or in part, any of the economic
consequences of ownership of the Common Stock, whether any such transaction described in clause (1) or (2) above is to be settled by delivery of Common
Stock or such other securities, in cash or otherwise. If the undersigned is an officer or director of the Company, the undersigned further agrees that the
foregoing restrictions shall be equally applicable to any issuer-directed shares of Common Stock the undersigned may purchase in the Offering.

The foregoing paragraph shall not apply to (a) bona fide gifts; provided that the recipient thereof agrees in writing with the Representative to be bound by the
terms of this Lock-Up Agreement; (b) dispositions to any trust for the direct or indirect benefit of the undersigned and/or the immediate family of the
undersigned; provided that such trust agrees in writing with the Representative to be bound by the terms of this Lock-Up Agreement; (c) transfers of Common
Stock or securities convertible into Common Stock on death by will or intestacy; (d) sales or transfers of Common Stock solely in connection with the
“cashless” exercise of Company stock options or warrants outstanding on the date hereof for the purpose of exercising such stock options or warrants;
(provided that any remaining Common Stock received upon such exercise will be subject to the restrictions provided for in this Lock-Up Agreement); (e) in
the case of a non-natural person, distributions of Common Stock or other securities to limited partners, members or stockholders of the undersigned, provided
the recipient thereof agrees in writing with the Representative to be bound by the terms of this Lock-Up Agreement; or (f) in the case of a non-natural person,
transfers of Common Stock or other securities to any wholly-owned subsidiary of the undersigned (including any corporation, partnership, limited liability
company or other entity that is directly or indirectly owned by the undersigned) or to the parent corporation of the undersigned or any wholly-owned
subsidiary of such parent corporation; provided that such recipient thereof agrees in writing with the Representative to be bound by the terms of this Lock-Up
Agreement. For purposes of this paragraph, “immediate family” shall mean the undersigned and the spouse, any lineal descendent, father, mother, brother or
sister of the undersigned.




In addition, the undersigned agrees that, without the Representative’s prior consent, the undersigned will not, during the period commencing on the date

hereof and ending on the ninetieth (90th) day after the Trading Date, make any demand for or exercise any right with respect to, the registration of any shares
of Common Stock of the Company or any Shares convertible into, exercisable for, or exchangeable for shares of Common Stock.

The undersigned also agrees and consents to the entry of stop transfer instructions with the Company’s transfer Manager and registrar relating to the transfer
of the undersigned’s shares of Common Stock except in compliance with the restrictions described above.

Notwithstanding the above, if (a) during the period that begins on the date that is fifteen (15) calendar days plus three (3) business days before the last day of
the Lock-Up Period and ends on the last day of the Lock-Up Period, the Company issues an earnings release or material news or a material event relating to
the Company occurs; or (b) prior to the expiration of the Lock-Up Period, the Company announces that it will release earnings results during the sixteen (16)
day period beginning on the last day of the Lock-Up Period, then the restrictions imposed by this Lock-Up Agreement shall continue to apply until the
expiration of the date that is fifteen (15) calendar days plus three (3) business days after the date on which the issuance of the earnings release or the material
news or material event occurs; provided, however, that this paragraph shall not apply if (i) the safe harbor provided by Rule 139 under the Act is available in
the manner contemplated by Rule 2711(f)(4) of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. (“FINRA”) and (ii) within the 3 business days preceding the
15" calendar day before the last day of the Lock-Up Period, the Company delivers to the Representative a certificate, signed by the Chief Financial Officer or
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certifying on behalf of the Company that the Company’s shares of Common Stock are “actively traded securities,”
within the meaning of Rule 2711(f)(4) of FINRA.

The undersigned hereby confirms that the undersigned has not, directly or indirectly, taken, and hereby covenants that the undersigned will not, directly or
indirectly, take, any action designed, or which has constituted or will constitute or might reasonably be expected to cause or result in the stabilization or
manipulation of the price of any security of the Company to facilitate the sale or resale of shares of Common Stock.

If (i) the Company notifies you in writing that it does not intend to proceed with the Offering, (ii) the Offering Statement filed with the Commission with
respect to the Offering is withdrawn or (iii) for any reason the Agreement shall be terminated prior to the initial closing contemplated under the Agreement,
this Lock-Up Agreement shall be terminated and the undersigned shall be released from its obligations hereunder.

The undersigned understands that the Company and the Managers are relying on this Lock-Up Agreement in proceeding toward consummation of the
Offering contemplated by the Agreement. This Lock-Up Agreement is irrevocable and shall be binding upon the undersigned and the heirs, personal

representatives, successors and assigns of the undersigned.

This Lock-Up Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.




Very truly yours,

[NAME OF THE DIRECTOR, OFFICER OR STOCKHOLDER]

[NAME]




EXHIBIT 11.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the inclusion in this Regulation A Offering Statement No. 367-00057 on Form 1-A/A (“Offering Statement”) of our report dated May 15, 2017
relating to the consolidated financial statements of Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc. and Subsidiary appearing in the Offering Statement, and to
the reference to us under the heading “Experts” in such Offering Statement.

/s/ Rosenfield and Company, PLLC

Orlando, Florida
June 19, 2017




Exhibit 12.1

GRAUBARD MILLER
THE CHRYSLER BUILDING
405 LEXINGTON AVENUE
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10174

June 19, 2017

Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment, Inc.
132 E. Putnam Avenue, Floor 2W
Cos Cob, Connecticut 06807

Dear Sirs:

Reference is made to the Offering Statement on Form 1-A, as amended (“Offering Statement”), filed by Chicken Soup for the Soul Entertainment,
Inc. (“Company”), a Delaware corporation, under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“Act”), and Regulation A thereunder. The Offering Statement
relates to the issuance and sale by the Company of up to 2,241,983 shares (“Company Shares”) of Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share
(“Common Stock”), of the Company and up to 258,017 shares (“Selling Stockholder Shares”) of Common Stock by certain selling stockholders named in the
Offering Statement.

We have examined such documents and considered such legal matters as we have deemed necessary and relevant as the basis for the opinion set
forth below. With respect to such examination, we have assumed the genuineness of all signatures, the authenticity of all documents submitted to us as
originals, the conformity to original documents of all documents submitted to us as reproduced or certified copies, and the authenticity of the originals of
those latter documents. As to questions of fact material to this opinion, we have, to the extent deemed appropriate, relied upon certain representations of
certain officers and employees of the Company.

Based upon the foregoing, we are of the opinion that:

1. The Company Shares, when issued and sold in accordance with and in the manner described in the Offering Statement, will be duly
authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non assessable.

2. The Selling Stockholder Shares have been duly authorized and are validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable.

Our opinions set forth herein are limited to the laws of the State of New York and the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware and, to the
extent that judicial or regulatory orders or decrees or consents, approvals, licenses, authorizations, validations, filings, recordings or registrations with
governmental authorities are relevant, to those required under such laws (all of the foregoing being referred to as “Opined on Law”). We do not express any
opinion with respect to the law of any jurisdiction other than Opined on Law.

We hereby consent to the use of this opinion as an exhibit to the Offering Statement, to the use of our name as your counsel and to all references
made to us in the Offering Statement and in the Offering Circular forming a part thereof. In giving this consent, we do not hereby admit that we are in the
category of persons whose consent is required under Section 7 of the Act, or the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

Very truly yours,

/s/ Graubard Miller




